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AUDIT BOARD
AGENDA
Wednesday 21 October 2020

Viewing this meeting on YouTube
This meeting may be viewed on YouTube by opening the link below:
https://youtu.be/j9QKq3Cp6TY

1.

Apologies for Absence.

2.

Declarations of Interest.
To receive any declarations of interest from Members including
the terms(s) of any Grant(s) of Dispensation from the Strategic
Director (Internal Services).

3.
4.

Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 July
2020

MD
(Pages 1 - 10)

Urgent Items
The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are
any urgent items and their position on the agenda.

5.

References from Other Committees (IF ANY)
There are currently no references from other Committees for the
Board to consider.

6.

7.

Annual Report 2019/2020 of the Monitoring Officer on the
Review of Ethical Governance Arrangements and Ancillary
Matters

(Pages 11 - 58)

Complaints Monitoring and Procedure Review - 2019/2020
(Pages 59 100)

8.

Report from the External Auditor
(Pages 101 138)

9.

Statement of Accounts 2019-20
(Pages 139 274)

10.

Internal Audit Update
(Pages 275 292)

To receive a report from the Internal Audit Manager (Senior Audit
Executive).
11.

Counter Fraud Policies
(Pages 293 320)

To receive a report from the Internal Audit Manager (SAE).
12.

Selective Invoice Checks
(Pages 321 324)

Following the Board meeting in July, the Chairman selected a
further five payments for checking by Internal Audit. This report
summarises the outcome of that exercise and provides the
opportunity to select further payments for checking.
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DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL
AUDIT BOARD
MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit Board held on Wednesday 22 July 2020 at
1.30 pm.

PRESENT:

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs. J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor D Butler-Ruhle
Councillor R Gosine
Councillor S N Gosine
Councillor P M Harman
Councillor A R Lloyd

ABSENT:

None

IN ATTENDANCE:

Sarah Martin

–

Marie
KellyStone
Tim Sams
Fran Chivers

–

Glen Moore

–

Mr. I Murray

–

Mr. K Mungadzi

–

36.

–
–

Strategic Director (Internal Services)
& Section 151 Officer
Head of Legal Services
Financial Services Manager
Internal Audit Manager (Chief Audit
Executive)
Counter Fraud Manager
Grant Thornton UK
Auditors)
Grant Thornton UK

(External

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
The Chairman welcomed Members to the first virtual meeting of the Audit
Board via the Zoom platform, which was also being streamed live to the public
via YouTube, as per the link published on the Council website.
He extended a special welcome to Mr Ian Murray and Mr Keith Mungadzi from
the Council’s External Auditors, Grant Thornton UK, and noted the remote
presence of the Council’s Strategic Director (Internal Services) & Section 151
Officer, the Head of Legal Services, the Financial Services Manager, and the
Counter Fraud Manger, and gave a special welcome to the Council’s recently
appointed Internal Audit Manager (Chief Audit Executive) Fran Chivers, who
was attending her first Board meeting.
Members were also advised that the Democratic Services Manager and the
Transformation Manager were in attendance remotely, to assist the
Committee Co-ordinator with the IT processes for the meeting, whilst he
clerked the proceedings.
1
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The Chairman advised of a change to the published agenda order of
business: Item 14 (Member Code of Conduct: Adoption of IHRA Definition of
Ant-Semitism), would be taken after Item 7 (Fraud Compliance Update), to
allow the Head of Legal Services to depart the proceedings prior to the
Board’s consideration of the standard finance items.
There were no apologies absence, with the Vice-Chairman subsequently
joining proceedings following a prior work commitment.
37.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

38.

CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 21
JANUARY 2020
RESOLVED:
1. That the Minutes of the Board meeting held on 22 January 2020 be
confirmed as accurate.

39.

URGENT ITEMS
The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items for the Board to
consider.

40.

REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)
None.

41.

REPORT FROM EXTERNAL AUDITOR - 2019-20 AUDIT PLAN
The covering report from the Financial Services Manager (FSM) presented
the External Auditor’s 2019-20 Audit Plan for the Council’s Accounts
[Appendix A to the report].
The FSM’s covering report advised Members that due to the COVID-19
pandemic, and the subsequent cancellation of the Board meeting in April, the
deadlines for submission and audit of the Council’s statement of accounts had
been extended from 31 July 2020 to 1 September 2020. Given these
developments, and the statutory publishing deadlines required, rather than
update Members on the progress of their audit work, it had been necessary
for Grant Thornton, as External Auditor, to submit to the Board their 2019-20
Audit Plan (attached as Appendix A). However, it was still expected that the
Council’s Statement of Accounts would be published, audited and ready for
approval well within the extended timescales.
Ian Murray (Grant Thornton Engagement Lead) gave a brief summary of his
2019-20 External Audit Plan for Dartford for the Year ending 31 March 2020.
He advised Members that the increase in risk posed by the Covid-19
2
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pandemic to the Council’s property holdings and pension obligations had
been recorded in the External Auditor’s Plan before the Board [Section 3, p 57, agenda pages 17-19 refer]. In terms of Value for Money (VfM) the External
Auditor would be monitoring all Council arrangements put in place to manage
the impact of COVID-19 in terms of loss of the Council’s demand-led income
and increase on Council services [Section 8, p.10, agenda p 22 refers].
Similarly, the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, allied to changes to audit
working practices imposed by the FRC as the regulatory authority, had led to
an increase in audit fees for the Council to those previously agreed with the
PSAA on 1 April 2018. The revised external audit fee structure was set out for
Members in Section 10 of the Plan [report pages 12/13, agenda pages 24/25
refer], and had been discussed with the Strategic Director (Internal Services)
and the Financial Services Manager, prior to presentation to the Board.
In response to a specific question from the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for
Finance (attending as a Board Member), the GT Engagement Lead confirmed
for the Board that he had no concerns over the progress of the 2019-20
External Audit: matters had been delayed by the need to work remotely via
the Team and Zoom virtual platforms, but the audit process remained ongoing
with a continued excellent relationship between GT and the Council’s finance
staff at all levels.
The Chairman thanked the GT representatives for their attendance and
submission of their 2019-20 External Audit Plan, and asked Mr Murray to
extend his and the Board’s best wishes to his predecessor, Mrs Liz Jackson,
who had diligently audited the Council’s accounts over many years.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Board notes the contents of the covering report from the
Financial Services Manager, and the External Auditor’s Audit Plan
2019-20 for the Council accounts (Appendix A to the covering report).
42.

FRAUD COMPLIANCE TEAM ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
The report from the Counter Fraud & Compliance Manager (CFCM) presented
at Appendix A for the Board’s consideration, a summary of the work
undertaken by the Counter Fraud & Compliance Team (CF&C Team) during
the year ending 31 March 2020.
The CFCM highlighted two specific areas of that work for Members:


Business Rates [table agenda p.33 refers]: The CF&C Team had
continued to concentrate its efforts in support of the Business Rates
Team [Dartford & Sevenoaks Revs & Bens Joint Service] to identify
businesses who had failed to register to pay Business Rates tax. The
CF&C Team had successfully identified 10 (ten) business cases during
2019/20 which had resulted in an accrued increase of revenue for the
Council of £64,956, with a further £33,308 due to accrue to the Council
3
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in 2020/21 financial year, as a consequence of those 10 business
registrations;
Council Tax 2019/20 [table agenda p.34 refers]: The work of the Team
in the period under review had produced an increase in tax yield of
£179,263 from 198 adjusted cases.

Members were advised that as part of the Council’s response to the COVID19 pandemic, some team members had been diverted to support the
Council’s new business grant support scheme, but would be returning to the
Team’s traditional areas of work soon.
In response to a specific question from the Chairman, the CFCM confirmed
that that no members of the CF&C Team had been diverted to any general
duties in support of the Council’s efforts to combat COVID-19. He also
undertook to discuss with the Leader of the Council [and the Communications
Team] the Chairman’s proposal that the Council issue a press release to this
effect, to re-assure the public that the Council’s efforts to combat fraud had
not been diluted. The Cabinet Member for Finance supported the Chairman’s
proposal.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Board notes the work undertaken by the Counter Fraud &
Compliance Team during the 2019/20 financial year as set out in detail
in Appendix A to the report;
2. That in consultation with the Leader of the Council, the Counter Fraud
& Compliance Manager issues a press release confirming that the core
anti-fraud duties of his team had continued to be met throughout the
Corona virus pandemic.
43.

MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT: ADOPTION OF THE INTERNATIONAL
HOLOCAUST REMEMBRANCE ALLIANCE DEFINITION OF ANTISEMITISM
The report from the Head of Legal Services asked Members to consider and
endorse an amendment to the Member Code of Conduct to incorporate the
provisions of the International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance’s definition of
anti-Semitism in ‘the broader context of respect, tolerance, inter-faith
understanding and equality, as set out in para. 3.6 of the report (wording
attached as Appendix A), as recommended by the General Assembly of the
Council [13.01.2020:Min. No. 74 refers].
In addition to her offer to respond to any questions Members had, the Head of
Legal Services advised the Board that the Member Code of Conduct was
being reviewed on a national basis, and asked Members to consider
responding to that national consultation (closing date 17 August 2020).
RESOLVED:
4
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1. That the Board endorses the proposed amendment to the Member
Code of conduct, to apply the International Holocaust Remembrance
Alliance definition of anti-Semitism, in the broader context of respect,
tolerance, inter-faith understanding and equality, as set out in para. 3.6
of the report as per the revised wording (attached as Appendix A to the
report).
44.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20
The covering report from the Financial Services Manager (FSM) informed the
Board of the review of governance arrangements which had taken place for
the system of internal control which had operated during the 2019/20 financial
cycle. The report enclosed for the Board’s approval the Annual Governance
Statement 2019/20 (Appendix A), the Governance Action Plan (GAP) 2020/21
(Appendix B), together with the GAP 2020/21 Review (Annex 1 to Appendix
B).
The FSM reminded Members of the interrelationship between the appendices,
and how they contributed to the Council’s ability to publish an Annual
Governance Statement (GAS) each financial year. The GAS 2020/21
(Appendix A to the report) was supported by the 2020/21 GAP document
(Appendix B), which contained a pictogram (agenda p.51) which set out the
various stages in that annual cycle that the Council undertook to comply with
its’s own Code of Governance and the seven principles of the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework. The 2020/21 GAP document had identified nine
(9) actions for Officers to undertake [Appendix B agenda p. 56 refers], as
underpinned by the GAP 2020/21 Review [App. B Annex 1 agenda pages
59/60]. The 2020/21 GAP took account of the impact of COVID-19 on staffing
levels within the Finance Department, and would continue to do so.
In response to specific questions from the Cabinet Member for Finance, the
FSM confirmed that resource levels were sufficient to carry out the action plan
despite the current impact of COVID-19, and that he was also satisfied with
the security measures in place for staff to work remotely from home [App. B,
GAP Action 6 (agenda p.56) and Internal Audit Annual Opinion (July 2020)
Min. No. 45 refer].
RESOLVED:
1. That the Board notes the review of the Council’s Governance
arrangements that has taken place for the 2020/21 financial year as set
out in the report;
2. That the Board approves the Annual Governance Statement 2019/20
(attached as Appendix A to the report), for inclusion in the Annual
Statement of Accounts, together with the Governance Action Plan for
2020/21 (attached within Appendix B to the report).

5
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45.

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL OPINION 2019-20
The report from the recently appointed Audit Manager (Chief Audit Executive),
asked the Board to note the Internal Audit Annual Opinion (July 2020)
attached as Appendix A to the report, on the effectiveness of the Council’s
internal control, governance and risk management arrangements, as required
under Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).
She reminded Members that the annual Internal Audit Opinion was a
mandatory requirement for the Council, and gave an overview of all the
internal audit work and performance during the 2019/20 financial year, as
derived from the Internal Audit Plan agreed by the Board in April 2019 [Min.
No.43 refers]. Due to a long-term vacancy in the Internal Audit team during
the period under review, exacerbated by the re-allocation of two (2) team
members to the Council’s Community Hub (to help combat the effects of
COVID-19 in the Borough); less internal audit work had been undertaken than
was proposed in the 2019/20 Plan [Limitations – agenda p.67 refers].
However, in overall terms, the work of the Internal Audit team had been good,
and no new risks had been identified in the Council’s financial procedures.
The Team was performing well in terms of client satisfaction [agenda p.81
refers], but needed to improve on delivery within budget. With regard to the
outstanding Food Safety recommendation, the Council’s Environmental
Health Department had been unable to undertake any inspections of food
premises since March 2020, due to COVID-19 lock-down restrictions.
The Audit Manager advised that she had been in post since 11 May 2020 and
appreciated the opportunity to meet the Board and work with Members going
forward. If there had been any ‘gaps’ in her presentation she was happy to
respond to questions, or revert on any points she was unfamiliar with by
email.
In response to a specific question from the Chairman, regarding client
feedback in 2019/20 ‘[Q3 – ‘could have done better’ - agenda p.84 refers]; the
Audit Manger advised that the comment referred to the need for Internal Audit
to keep clients aware of the audit process throughout (rather than at the
conclusion), and that the point had been taken on board going forward.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Board notes the Annual Audit Opinion 2019-20 (July 2020)
attached as Appendix A to the report.

46.

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020-21
The covering report from the Audit Manager reminded the Board that, in
accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS); the Council’s
Internal Audit service was required to establish a risk-based plan to determine
its priorities and areas for review, together with details of the audit planning
process and the resources necessary to deliver that Plan; and the Audit Board
6
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was required, through its Terms of Reference, to consider and approve the
Plan each year.
The Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 [attached as Appendix A to the covering
report] for the Board’s approval, detailed the audit planning process, the
outcomes of planning consultations, and the resources necessary to deliver
the Plan. The Internal Audit team had initially lost two (2) members to the
Council’s Community Hub (combatting the effects of COVID-19 in the
Borough); but had been back to full strength since late June and was
continuing to catch-up with its core work. The overall 2020/21 Plan had been
divided into Plan A and Plan B to prioritise resources: all audits in Plan A were
due to be completed, but Plan B audits would only be completed as resources
allowed. All clients listed in Plan A and B [agenda pages 104-108 refer] had
been contacted by Internal Audit, and audits listed in Plan A had been
scheduled. Discussions with Senior Management had confirmed that the
review of previously identified risks remained relevant. However, it would be
necessary in the ensuing financial year to continually review the overall
2020/21 Plan, and bring any necessary changes back to the Board for
approval as required. In 2020/21 the time made available for advisory work
had been increased, to further assist the Council’s response to COVID-19;
including assurance checks on Business Support Grants, together with the
Council’s Counter Fraud Team.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Board approves the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 (attached as
Appendix A to the covering report).
47.

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER (JULY 2020)
The covering report from the Audit Manager attached at Appendix A, the
Internal Audit Charter (July 2020). The Charter set out the scope and remit of
the Internal Audit service, including the necessary safeguards required to
protect the independence and objectivity of the Service, and provided an
overview of governance arrangements. The Charter also authorised Internal
Audit’s access to all records, personnel and assets, that it deemed necessary
to undertake its work. The Audit Board, as the body charged with governance
and oversight of the Internal Audit service, was required, through its Terms of
Reference, to consider and approve the Charter on an annual basis.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Board notes and approves the contents of the Internal Audit
Charter (July 2020) as attached at Appendix A to the covering report.

48.

PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS - EXTERNAL QUALITY
ASSESSMENT PROCUREMENT
The covering report from the Internal Audit Manager, provided the Board with
an update on the intention to procure an external quality assessment (EQA),
7
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in the 2020/21 financial year of the Council’s Internal Audit function, via a selfassessment process as set out in Appendix A to the report; in order to satisfy
the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).
The PSIAS required that the internal audit function be externally assessed by
an independent and competent assessor on at least a five yearly basis. The
last EQA exercise had been conducted in November 2015 and the next EQA
was therefore due; to ensure the internal audit function was operating
effectively and in accordance with professional standards. However, the
regulatory body [IIA], had indicated that due to the impact of COVID-19, some
reasonable leeway on timescales would be permitted. Staff resources had
been deployed in the 2020/21 Audit Plan to complete the self-assessment
exercise, prior to input from the external assessor.
In response to a specific question from the Chairman, the Internal Audit
Manger advised that the external assessor had yet to be nominated, but that
estimates for the work would be sought from three external providers,
including PriceWaterhouseCoopers, given their previous association with and
existing knowledge of, the Council’s internal audit function.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Board notes the decision to procure an external quality
assessment of the Council’s Internal Audit function, via a selfassessment validation, as set out in Appendix A to the report.
49.

SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS
Following the cancellation of the Board meeting in April 2020 due to
restrictions imposed by COVID-19, the Chairman had been asked to select
three creditor payments by the Internal Audit Manager for checking. The
report summarised the outcome of that exercise, and provided the opportunity
for Members to select further payments for checking.
Testing of the payments to Bells Power Services Ltd, B R Stacey Fencing
Ltd and Celebtime confirmed that the payments had been justified and made
promptly, with the third listed not quite according to financial procedures,
given the lack of a purchase order.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Board notes the contents of the report;
2. That the Internal Audit Manager provides the Chairman with a list of
further payments for the selection of another five payments for
checking.
In bringing the proceedings to a close, the Chairman thanked his Grant
Thornton guests for attending the virtual proceedings, congratulated the
8
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Internal Audit Manager for attending her first meeting of the Board, and all
Officers for their reports.

The meeting closed at 2.21 pm

Councillor D A Hammock
CHAIRMAN

9
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019/2020 OF THE MONITORING OFFICER ON
THE REVIEW OF ETHICAL GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND
ANCILLARY MATTERS
1.

Summary

1.1

To review the Council’s ethical governance arrangements and ancillary
matters.

2.

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

That the Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report 2019/20 on the Review of
Ethical Governance Arrangements and ancillary matters, as set out in
Appendix A, be considered and endorsed.

3.

Background and Discussion
3.1 The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report set out at Appendix A, focuses on
the effectiveness of the ethical governance framework and reviews the
Council’s ethical governance arrangements and ancillary matters by
providing:
(a)
(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

an acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring there is a sound
system of ethical governance;
an indication of the level of assistance that the systems and
processes that comprise the Council’s ethical governance
arrangements can provide;
a brief description of the key elements of the ethical governance
arrangements;
a brief description of the process that has been applied in
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the ethical
governance arrangements; and
an outline of the actions taken to deal with changes to the
standards regime introduced by the Localism Act 2011.

3.2 The Council is responsible for ensuring inter alia, that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and ethical standards. Members
and Officers are responsible for implementing proper ethical governance
arrangements. To this end, the adopted Member Code of Conduct [GAC
16.07.12:Min.No.35] [GAC 16.12.2013 [Min.No:72] and Audit Board
22.07.2020 [Min.No.43]], is consistent with the legal principles and reflects
the requirements of the CIPFA guidance ‘Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government’ and Addendum.
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3.3 On 23 March 2020, the Prime Minister addressed the nation on the
Covid-19 pandemic. Lockdown measures were put in place by the
Government to avoid and/or mitigate against the transmission of the
virus. Measures included the closure of non - essential businesses,
people required to stay at home, working remotely etc.
3.4 The unprecedented in peacetime Government measures in response to
the crisis (e.g. prohibitions on gatherings, social distancing, self-isolation
and shielding of those deemed to be the most vulnerable) have meant that
the requirement for local authorities to hold public meetings in person, with
all Members present in one place, cannot be met.
3.5 The Council still needs to deliberate and make decisions, enable
democratic participation from applicants and residents and maintain
momentum on developments in the Borough, whilst adhering to social
distancing. The Coronavirus Act 2020 came into force in April 2020 to
support local authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, whilst
ensuring essential business and services continue.
3.6 The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel
Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 gives local authorities
greater flexibility to redeploy their resources to focus on meeting the
many new challenges they face in responding to the Covid-19 pandemic,
whilst maintaining critical front-line services.
3.7 In addressing the numerous challenges brought by Covid-19, the Council
had to find innovative solutions such as piloting virtual meetings using
the Zoom video conferencing platforms, with live streaming of committee
meetings’ open sessions on YouTube.
3.8 The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report summarises the key work carried
out in 2019/2020 and provides assurance that the Council’s control
environment, in the areas that are the responsibility of the Monitoring
Officer, is adequate and effective. This Annual Report supports the
assurance statements included in the Annual Governance Statement.
3.9 Members are asked to consider and endorse the Monitoring Officer’s
Annual Report at Appendix A.
4.

Relationship to the Corporate Plan
The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report is part of the Council’s ongoing
commitment to good corporate governance and supports effective decision
making and an effective ethical governance framework.
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5.

6.

Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk
assessments
Financial Implications

None

Legal Implications

As detailed in Appendix A

Staffing Implications

None

Administrative Implications

None

Risk Assessment

The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report
increases awareness of the ethical
governance framework and sets out
the good governance arrangements
that are in place

Details of Exempt Information Category
Not applicable

7.

Appendices
Appendix A – Monitoring Officer 2019/2020 Annual Report
BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted

Date /
File Ref

Report Author

Marie Kelly-Stone
(01322) 343634

Section and
Directorate

Legal Services/
Strategic
Directorate
(Internal
Services)

Exempt
Information
Category
N/A
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER ON
THE REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S ETHICAL
GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND ANCILLARY
MATTERS
2019 and 2020
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Introduction

1.1.1 Local authorities are established in statute, with their responsibilities largely set
out through a framework of legal duties. Councils are subject to duties that set out
what they must do and set checks and balances on their actions. These duties
include the role of officers and accountability to the public.
The core
accountability system is largely based on the application of these legal duties.
1.1.2 Effective local government relies on public confidence in elected councillors and
appointed officers. Good governance underpins credibility and confidence in
public services. The function of governance is to ensure that the Council fulfils its
purpose and achieves its intended outcomes for citizens and service users and
that it operates in an effective, efficient, economic and ethical manner. These
concepts guide all governance activity.
1.1.3 Ethics is a key element of governance and the purpose of the Monitoring Officer’s
annual review of the Council’s ethical governance is to ensure that robust
arrangements are in place and that the Council continues to develop and improve
management and reporting arrangements so as to satisfy itself that its approach
to ethical governance is both adequate and effective in practice. Other aspects of
governance on financial propriety within the Council are reviewed by the Section
151 Officer and reported to the Audit Board/Cabinet.
2.

CIPFA/SOLACE framework for good governance

2.1

The framework produced by CIPFA/SOLACE ‘Delivering Good Governance in
Local Government’1 (the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework’) provides a structure to
help individual authorities with their approach to governance. It also provides
guidance on best practice for developing and maintaining a local code of
corporate governance.

2.1.1 To achieve good governance, the Council should be able to demonstrate that its
governance structures comply with the core and sub principles contained in the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework. The Council should therefore develop and maintain
a local code of governance/governance arrangements reflecting those principles.
Whatever form of arrangements are in place, the Council should test its
governance structures and partnerships against the CIPFA/SOLACE
Framework’s principles.
2.2

1

The following are the key elements of the typical systems and processes that
comprise an authority’s governance arrangements. The Council’s review of
the effectiveness of its governance arrangements makes appropriate
reference to these elements:

December 2016

2
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 identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its purpose
and intended outcomes for citizens and service users;
 reviewing the authority’s vision and its implications for the authority’s
governance arrangements;
 translating the vision into objectives for the authority and its
partnerships;
 measuring the quality of services for users, to ensure they are
delivered in accordance with the authority’s objectives and for
ensuring that they represent the best use of resources and value for
money;
 defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the
executive, non-executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear
delegation arrangements and protocols for effective communication
in respect of the authority and partnership arrangements;
 developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct,
defining the standards of behaviour for members and staff;
 reviewing the effectiveness of the authority’s decision-making
framework, including delegation arrangements, decision making in
partnerships and robustness of data quality;
 reviewing the effectiveness of the framework for identifying and
managing risks and demonstrating clear accountability;
 ensuring effective counter-fraud and anti-corruption arrangements
are developed and maintained;
 ensuring effective management of change and transformation;
 ensuring the authority’s financial management arrangements
conform with the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement
on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government2 and,
where they do not, explain why and how they deliver the same
impact;
 ensuring the authority’s assurance arrangements conform with the
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the
Head of Internal Audit3 and, where they do not, explain why and how
they deliver the same impact;
 ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the discharge of the
monitoring officer function;
 ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the discharge of the
head of paid service function;
 undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in
CIPFA’s Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and
2

April 2016 publication
2019

3

3
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Police4;
 ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal
policies and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful;
 establishing whistleblowing arrangements and for receiving and
investigating complaints from the public;
 identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in
relation to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training;
 establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and
encouraging open consultation;
 enhancing the accountability for service delivery and effectiveness of
other public service providers;
 incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of
partnerships and
other joint working as identified
by
CIPFA/SOLACE ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government’ 5, and reflecting these in the C o u n c i l ’ s overall
governance arrangements.
2.3 This report addresses the key elements (shown above in italics) which are the
responsibility of the Monitoring Officer. These key elements are supported by a
number of underlying principles, which in turn, translate into a range of specific
requirements referred to in the Council’s local code of corporate governance.
2.4 The Council is required to prepare an Annual Governance Statement. This
Statement is presented by the Section 151 Officer to the Audit Board for approval,
with the Annual Statement of Accounts. The Annual Governance Statement was
presented to the Audit Board on 22 July 2020 [Min.No.44].
2.5 The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report provides assurance that the Council’s
control environment in the areas which are the responsibility of the Monitoring
Officer is adequate and effective. This Annual Report supports the assurance
statements included in the Annual Governance Statement.
2.6 Some of the assurances required to be given affect the Audit Board’s work in so far
as ethical standards are concerned. By way of example, the Council is required to
demonstrate how the Member Code of Conduct is embedded, how awareness is
raised about the Code, what steps are taken to enforce the Code in the form of
registers of interests etc. and how the Code is reviewed. Other key documents and
functions which impact on the work of the Audit Board include the Constitution,
Member induction and training, Member/Officer Relations’ Protocol and other
Protocols that have been adopted by the Audit Board. Those assurances are dealt
with in this report.
4

2018

5

2016

4
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THE ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION

3.1

Executive arrangements
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3.1.1 Elected Members are collectively responsible for the governance of the Council.
3.1.2 On 23 April 2001 [Min.No.186], the Council adopted ‘executive arrangements’
comprising a Cabinet and Leader form of local governance. In 2010, the Local
Government & Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (as amended) required the
Council to reconsider its governance arrangements to either an elected mayor
and cabinet executive or to a new style leader and cabinet. The Council
consulted on its preferred model between June and September 2010. Following
the consultation, the formal resolution to adopt a leader and cabinet form of
executive from 8 May 2011 was passed by the GAC on 13 December 2010 [Min.
No.85]. Standing Orders provide for the removal of the Leader by way of
resolution, on a vote of no confidence.
3.1.3 Under the Local Government & Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (as
amended), the Leader was appointed for a further 4-year term of office from the
2019 Annual Meeting.
The Localism Act 2011 (Local Authority Governance Transitional Provisions)
Order 2012 preserves the current rules relating to the election and terms of office
of executive leaders, until such time as the local authority makes provision for
different arrangements under Section 9C of the Local Government Act 2000
(different forms of local authority executives).
Emergency legislation was made in April 2020 to support local authorities in the
vital work they are doing to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, whilst ensuring
essential business and services continue. The Local Authorities and Police and
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime
Panel Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (the Covid Regs 2020)
removed the requirement to hold an annual meeting in 2020.
Under Reg.4(2) of the Covid Regs, appointments made at the Annual Meeting
2019 will continue until the 2021 Annual Meeting, unless the Council decides
otherwise.
3.1.4 By law, executive arrangements must include one or more overview and scrutiny
committees through which non-executive councillors can question and challenge
the performance of the executive and promote public debate.
3.1.5 The Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations
2000 (as amended) provide for a division of responsibilities between the Cabinet
and the remainder of the Council, in particular the GAC and the regulatory
committees.

5
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The Constitution

3.2.1 The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and
the procedures which are to be followed, to ensure that decisions are efficient,
transparent and that those who make the decisions, are accountable to local
people. The Monitoring Officer is the guardian of the Council’s Constitution and
is responsible for ensuring that the Constitution operates efficiently, is properly
maintained and is adhered to. The Monitoring Officer is responsible for the
review of and keeping up to date the Constitution, in line with changes in
legislation, Officer structure etc.
3.2.2 A key role for the Monitoring Officer is to be aware of the strengths and
weaknesses of the Constitution and to make recommendations for ways in which
it could be amended, in order better to achieve the proper governance of the
Council.
(i)

The General Assembly of the Council (the GAC) is responsible inter alia
for:







agreeing the Council’s Constitution containing the key governance
documents including executive arrangements;
agreeing the policy framework and key strategies;
agreeing the budget;
appointing Statutory Officers6 and electing the Leader of the Council;
appointing committees to discharge Council functions.

(ii)

The Cabinet is responsible inter alia for:






proposing the policy framework and key strategies;
proposing the budget;
implementing the policy framework and key strategies;
appointing committees to discharge Cabinet functions.

(iii)

Statutory Officers

All local authorities are required by law to:





6

designate an officer as Head of the Paid Service;
designate an officer as Monitoring Officer responsible for informing
councillors of any proposal, decision or omission of the council which is
unlawful or involves maladministration and having investigation and
advisory duties under the ethical framework for councillors;
appoint an officer as Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer)
responsible for the financial administration of the local authority’s affairs.

Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer

6
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The Statutory Officers’ roles encompass both proactive and reactive elements.
The proactive role centres on raising standards, encouraging ethical behaviour,
increasing awareness and utilisation of the elements of good governance and
ensuring that robust procedures are in place. The reactive role focuses on taking
appropriate action to deal with issues and potential problems as they arise. The
Statutory Officers’ effectiveness in this role is, in turn, dependent on effective
systems and procedures being in place to identify problems and ensure that
Councillors, Officers and the public are aware of appropriate channels to raise
concerns.
The specific roles and responsibilities of the Statutory Officers are set out in the
Annex 1 to this report.
The Local Authorities) Standing Orders (England) (Amendment) Regulations
2015 provide disciplinary and dismissal procedures for Statutory Officers. The key
feature of the process is that a Statutory Officer cannot be dismissed, unless the
dismissal has been approved by the GAC, by way of a vote. The legislation also
makes provision for an advisory panel, to include Independent Persons, which
can advise the Council on the proposed dismissal.
The Statutory Officer Advisory Panel was established (under Section 102(4) of
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended)), by the GAC, on 14 January 2019
[Min.No.89].
3.3

Contract Standing Orders

3.3.1 All local authorities have statutory power under the Local Government Act 1972,
to make discretionary standing orders if they choose for the regulation of council
proceedings and business and regarding the quorum, proceedings and place of
meeting of their committee etc. However, there are a number of mandatory
standing orders relating to staff and regulating certain aspects of the local
authorities’ proceedings and business and for contracting purposes that must be
incorporated into local authorities’ constitutions.
3.3.2 Section 135 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) imposes a duty on
local authorities to adopt contract standing orders (CSOs), which contain the core
obligations for a robust purchasing framework. In addition to CSOs, the Council
has adopted a Procurement Guide that provides practical guidance on how the
CSOs apply to purchasing decisions and processes. The Guide explains some of
the more technical and legal issues involved in procurement and provides
practical working examples.
3.3.3 Pursuant to the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, the Council is required to
ensure that tender processes are run on a fully electronic basis.

7

Agenda Item 6

3.4

Page 22

Scheme of Delegations to Officers

3.4.1 Pursuant to the powers contained respectively, in Section 101(1) of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended) and Section 14(3) of the Local Government
Act 2000 (as amended), Council and Cabinet may arrange for certain of their
respective functions to be discharged by Officers, in the manner, to the extent
and subject to the conditions set out in the Scheme of Delegations to Officers.
3.4.2 The Scheme of Delegations to Officers is reviewed annually by the Head of Legal
Services in consultation with Directors and service managers to ensure fitness for
purpose. Directors have delegated authority to make in-year amendments the
Scheme.
3.4.3 A comprehensive review of the Scheme of Delegations to Officers will be
undertaken and reported to the GAC and Cabinet, following the proposed
restructure of the directorates, as reported to the GAC [12.10.2020].
3.4.4 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to
Information) (England) Regulations 2012 requires written records to be made of
Cabinet decisions that have been delegated to an officer under a specific express
authorisation, or under a general authorisation (scheme of delegations). It is for
the Council to decide what information should be recorded on the basis of the
national rules.
3.4.5 The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 extends the
requirement to produce written records of decisions delegated to Officers by the
GAC and Committees.
The Council has made provision within its Constitution for the recording and
publishing on its website, of decisions referred to in paras.3.4.4 and 3.4.5 above.
3.5

The committee framework

3.5.1 It is important that committees are clear about their roles and responsibilities and
that there is a clear distinction in their terms of reference. This avoids confusion,
disputes and possible duplication. Furthermore, committees are likely to be more
effective, if they are required to focus on their own defined areas of business.
3.5.2 The functions of ‘overseeing financial processes, audit and risk management’ are
delegated to the Audit Board. Since the repeal on 30 June 2012, of the legislative
requirement to have a statutory standards committee, the promotion of good
ethical conduct by Councillors has been delegated to the Audit Board. The Audit
Board not only fulfils its statutory obligations, but also provides a supportive, as
well as a regulatory role, within its Terms of Reference.
The Audit Board oversees the following functions:

8
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internal control;
risk management;
financial management and reporting;
anti-fraud and anti-corruption arrangements;
issues raised by internal and external auditors.

The Audit Board also:






provides the Council with advice on adopting the Member Code of Conduct;
monitors the effectiveness of the Code;
trains Members on the Code or arranges such training;
promotes and maintains high standards of conduct for Members;
assists Members to follow the Code.

A Hearing Panel (a sub-committee of the Audit Board) deals with hearings into
alleged Member misconduct, following an investigation. There is no right of
appeal against the Hearing Panel’s or Monitoring Officer’s decision on a Code of
Conduct complaint, except through the courts by way of judicial challenge, or
through the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman on matters related
to maladministration or service failure.
3.6

Overview and Scrutiny

3.6.1 The Council appointed the Scrutiny Committee in response to the Local
Government Act 2000 (as amended), in order to introduce more democracy into
the decision making process and to ensure that those who make decisions are
held accountable.
Scrutiny Committee:




reviews and questions Cabinet members and Officers about decisions and
performance;
scrutinises the performance of the Council in relation to its policy
objectives, performance targets and/or particular service areas;
makes recommendations to the Cabinet, the Council etc. arising from the
outcome of the scrutiny process.

3.6.2 The Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) is a process by which Councillors who
are not members of Scrutiny Committee, may refer to the Committee for scrutiny,
any genuine, significant and persistent local government matter which is relevant
to the functions of the Committee. Although no CCfA referrals were made to
Scrutiny Committee in 2019/20, it should be noted that the Scrutiny Committee
Protocol provides for Members to raise concerns related to their ward and that
Cabinet Advisory Panels are an opportunity for all backbench Members to
participate in policy formulation etc. pre-decision.

9

Agenda Item 6

Page 24

3.6.3 Scrutiny Committee Call-ins
Scrutiny Committee and the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny)
Committee may, in accordance with their Protocols, exercise a call-in of Cabinet
decisions and key decisions delegated to officers, either prior to the decision
being taken or once the decision has been taken, but prior to implementation.
Under the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and
Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013, Scrutiny Committee can review and scrutinise
matters relating to the planning, provision and operation of the health service in
the Borough of Dartford.
There were no call-ins during 2019/20.
3.6.4 Policy Overview Committee carries out the ‘overview’ function by reviewing
general policies of the Council and recommending accordingly to the Cabinet on
future policy options.
3.6.5 Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Committee reviews and
scrutinises the discharge of the Council’s crime and disorder functions.
3.6.6 Treasury Management Panel oversees the Council’s treasury management
function, in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services
Code of Practice7 and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Authorities8.
3.6.7 Scrutiny Committee, Policy Overview Committee and the Crime and Disorder
(Overview and Scrutiny) Committee have adopted protocols that provide
guidance on the application of the Committees’ respective processes. The
protocols are reviewed annually by the Committees, to ensure fitness for purpose
and compliance with legislation.
3.7

Terms of Reference are reviewed annually to ensure fitness for purpose and
compliance with legislation. They are then adopted at the Annual Meeting in
May. In - year amendments (delegated to the Directors), may however be
required, through changes in legislation and/or officer structure.

3.8

The co-ordination and maintenance of Key Decisions through a Regulation 9
Notice (formerly referred to as the ‘Forward Plan’) is central to meeting the
requirements of good governance as it enhances open and transparent decision
making. In compliance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules and the
Constitution, the Regulation 9 Notice sets out Key Decisions, which will be taken
by the Cabinet, together with any decisions, expected to be taken in camera, and
the date/period within which the decision will be taken. The Regulation 9 Notice

7

2017
2017

8

10

Page 25

Agenda Item 6

must be published on the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk at least 28 days
in advance of a Key Decision being taken by the Cabinet.
3.9

Support to GAC, Cabinet, Scrutiny and other committee meetings

3.9.1 The distribution and publication of committee reports, agendas and decisions is
central to meeting the requirements of a key deliverable. Responsibility for
overseeing the process and for ensuring that documents comply with statutory
and constitutional requirements is that of the Democratic Services Manager
reporting to the Strategic Director (Internal Services). Responsibility includes:









distributing and publishing all agendas not less than five clear working
days’ prior to the meeting taking place and ensuring that all agendas are
compliant with the access to information rules and exempt information is
identified/marked accordingly;
advertising public meetings five clear days’ before the meeting date;
ensuring that papers are made reasonably available to the public;
drafting minutes for agreement by the Chairman within five working days’
of the meeting;
publishing a record of all decisions, including key decisions taken by
Cabinet within five working days’ of the meeting;
ensuring that petitions are handled in accordance with the Council’s
Standing Orders;
ensuring that meetings are accessible.

3.9.2 Meetings’ analysis
One of the explicit aims of the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended), was to
streamline the decision making process to allow councils to focus on service
delivery.
The COVID-19 pandemic and the unprecedented in peacetime Government
measures in response to the crisis (e.g. prohibitions on gatherings, social
distancing, self-isolation and shielding of those deemed to be the most
vulnerable) have meant that the requirement for local authorities to hold public
meetings in person, with all Members present in one place, cannot be met.
Reg.5 of the Covid Regs 2020 permits the holding of remote meetings. The effect
of this is that Members and other participants e.g. Officers do not need to be in
the same place.
Due to the impact of the pandemic, meetings scheduled at the end of March 2020
through to late May 2020, including the Annual Meeting 2020, were cancelled,
whilst the Council established practical arrangements for holding remote
meetings, including making the necessary changes to Standing Orders, policies
and protocols and the temporary reduction of allocated seats on the larger
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committees as at the time of the lockdown in March 2020, it was not clear
whether a virtual platform could work with more than 10 people.
The Council has made arrangements for meetings to be held ‘virtually’ from
remote locations (via the Zoom platform), where it is necessary to consider
matters which are, by their nature, essential for the proper conduct of the
Council’s business (including complying with statutory requirements, legal or
contractual obligations, or to meet the needs of public health and well-being) and
which are time-critical.
Remote meetings are meetings in public and as such, the public and press must,
as a minimum requirement, be able to hear the proceedings. Meetings held in
open session are live steamed on YouTube.
The meetings listed below for 2019/20 include all meetings held up to the
scheduled date of the 2020 Annual Meeting.
In 2019/20, the following meetings were serviced by Democratic Services:
2018/2019

2019/2020

GAC (including Budget
and Annual Meeting)

6

5

GAC specials (Aldermen)

0

1

Cabinet Advisory Panels

9

6

Cabinet

9

7

Scrutiny Committee

4

2

Policy Overview
Committee

4

3

Development Control
Board

12

10

Audit Board

4

3

Hearing Panel

0

0

Licensing Sub-committee
hearings

3

2

Licensing Committee

2

2

Appeals Panel

0

0

12
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Joint Transportation
Board

4

4

Deed, Trust and
Obligations Committee

2

2

Borough and Parish
Council Forum

4

3

Tenants & Leaseholders
Joint Liaison Group
(formerly the Resident
Involvement Joint Liaison
Group)

2

1

Electoral Provisions Subcommittee

3

0

Crime and Disorder
(Overview and Scrutiny)
Committee

2

2

Treasury Management
Panel

2

2

Appointments Panel

0

0

Remuneration and
Performance Management
Panel

0

0

Independent
Remuneration Panel

0

1

N/A

3

Strategic Housing Board

3.9.3 The volume of meetings represents a substantial commitment of both Councillors’
and Officers’ time and resources. It is important that meetings constitute an
effective use of time and resources that they add value to corporate effectiveness
and help in meeting the aims and objectives set out in the Constitution and the
Corporate Plan.
Following the regular review for fitness for purpose over a number of years of the
Council’s strategies, policies etc. in accordance with the Code of Corporate
Governance, business for the GAC has reduced and one GAC meeting, formerly
held in March each year, has been deleted from the calendar of meetings.
However, there will still be the need to hold one-off additional special GAC
meetings as business dictates.
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3.9.4 Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 any person
attending a local authority public meeting may film, photograph, audio record or
use any other communication methods, including the internet, to publish, post or
otherwise share the results of their reporting activities, during or after the
meeting.
The Council has approved a policy that governs the exercise of these rights [GAC
28 July 2014 - Min.No:114].
The 2014 Regulations do not affect the current circumstances in which a private
meeting may be held or a person may be excluded (for example, where exempt
information would be disclosed or in the case of disorderly conduct).
3.9.5 The Local Government (Electronic Communications)(England) Order 2015 allows
for agendas to be sent electronically thereby delivering savings. Members must
however consent to receiving summonses electronically and they may at any time
withdraw their consent.
Members will be consulted before a decision is taken to move to electronic
agendas.
3.10

Skills of committees and councillors

3.10.1 Given the different roles of committees, it follows that arrangements should be in
place to ensure that Members have the necessary skills, experience and
knowledge. Although some aspects of the skills and experiences required for
committees are likely to be similar, there are some that are likely to be more
specific. For example, overseeing risk management and financial arrangements
undertaken by the Audit Board requires different skills to that of overseeing the
Council’s ethical governance arrangements.
3.10.2 The Development Control Board and hearings of the Licensing Committee
and its sub-committee, the Appeals Panel and the Hearing Panel, are quasijudicial. All quasi-judicial committee members are trained on the quasi-judicial
nature of their functions, either through attendance at relevant training courses or
through previously gained experience - Members cannot participate in the
decision making of these committees, until they have been trained.
3.10.3 The planning system is a rapidly changing area of responsibility for Councillors
and is a significant issue for all Borough Councillors, partly because of the
division of responsibility between the Development Control Board which is
principally involved with development control and related issues and Cabinet,
who have a role to play in the development of planning policy and partly because,
on rare occasions, the GAC does have a role in planning related matters. The
Localism Act 2011 has resulted in wide ranging changes to housing and planning,
which represent a fundamental shift in policy to a more localised system.

14
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3.10.4 Members will inevitably encounter planning issues through their ward work, or
through schemes for regeneration. Consideration is therefore given to training
which not only covers the procedure and principles for determining planning
applications but also, understanding planning policy development.
3.10.5 The Council is the sole trustee of a number of charitable land holdings (Kidd
Legacy at Central Park, Hesketh Park and Children’s Playing Field and
Recreation Ground Savoy Road Dartford). The charitable functions fall to the
Cabinet, which has established and appointed the Deed, Trust and Obligations
Committee to manage these land holdings. The Member Code of Conduct and a
Conflicts Policy (approved by the Charity Commission) applies to the governance
of the Committee. Membership of the Committee comprises elected Councillors
and four voting co-opted Independent Members.
There is currently an Independent Member vacancy on the Committee.
recruitment process will be undertaken shortly.
3.11

The

Membership of committees
(a) CIPFA recommends that audit committees should ideally be separate from
scrutiny arrangements and be chaired independently of both functions9. The
Council’s Constitution maintains this separation of functions between the Audit
Board, the executive and scrutiny functions.
(b) Under the Localism Act 2011, the Council is required to appoint at least one
Independent Person, who acts in an advisory capacity on matters related to
alleged Member misconduct. The role also extends to advising any panel
appointed to deal with disciplinary matters related to a Statutory Officer.
Ms Marion Agyemon and Ms Linda Comstive were appointed as the Council’s
Independent Persons, with effect from 15 January 2019, for a period of 5 years
and 1 day [GAC – 14.01.2019 Min No: 88].

4.

LAWFULNESS AND ADMINISTRATION

4.1

The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Head of Legal Services (the
Deputy Monitoring Officer), is the Council’s lead adviser on issues of lawfulness
and the Council’s legal powers. Part of this role involves monitoring committee
reports, agendas and decisions, to ensure compliance with legislation and the
Constitution.

4.2

Decisions of the Cabinet and other Council Committees are accessible through
the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk

9

Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (2013 Edition)
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4.3

If the Monitoring Officer considers that any proposal, decision or omission would
give rise to unlawfulness, or, if any decision or omission has given rise to
maladministration, she must report to the GAC or where appropriate, the Cabinet,
after first consulting with the Head of Paid Service and the Section 151 Officer.
Any proposal or decision that is subject to such a report cannot be implemented,
until the report has been considered by the Council.

4.4

The sound governance arrangements operated by the Council ensure that the
power to report potentially unlawful decision-making is rarely used. No such
report was issued in 2019/20.

5.

CORPORATE COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION

5.1

All Committee reports have a compulsory heading in which the author has to
consider legal implications, under advice from the Head of Legal Services.
Financial and staffing implications are similarly dealt with, except that they are
referred respectively to the Section 151 Officer, Head of Finance and if
applicable, the HR Manager.

5.2

Training sessions, letter/email and/or reports to relevant Committees and
Officers, provide updates on new legislation.

Equality Act 2010
5.3

The general public sector equality duty is set out in section 149(1) of the Equality
Act 2010. The broad purpose of this duty is to integrate consideration of equality
and good relations into the day-to-day business of public authorities and requires
the Council to consider how it could positively contribute to the advancement of
equality and good relations. It requires equality considerations to be reflected
into the design of policies and the delivery of services, including internal policies,
and for these issues to be kept under review.
In summary, the Council, must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to
the need to:
(a)
(b)
(c)

5.4

eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act;
advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic (as defined in the Act) and those who do not;
foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not.

The Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) Regulations 2011 requires the Council
to publish at intervals of not greater than one year beginning with the date of last
publication, sufficient information to demonstrate its compliance with the public
sector equality duty. The Council’s Equality and Diversity Document Framework
2018-2022 reflects the public sector equality duty and is published accordingly.
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Bribery Act 2010
5.5

Ministry of Justice10 guidance sets out the following six principles the Council
should consider when seeking to prevent bribery:
(a) risk assessments - keeping up to date with the bribery risks;
(b) top level commitment – establishing a culture across the organisation in which
bribery is unacceptable;
(c) due diligence – knowing who the Council does business with, knowing why,
when and to whom funds should be released and seeking reciprocal antibribery agreements and being able to feel confident that business
relationships are transparent and ethical;
(d) clear, practical and accessible policies and procedures – applied to all
employees and business partners;
(e) effective implementation – going beyond ‘paper compliance’ to embedding
anti-bribery in the organisation’s internal controls, recruitment, remuneration
policies, operations, communications and training on practical business
issues;
(f) monitoring and review – auditing and financial controls that are sensitive to
bribery and are transparent, with regular reviews of policies and procedures
with possible external verification.

5.6 The review of the Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy is dealt with as a separate
item on the agenda. No investigations were carried out in the year 2019/20.
Information Governance Assurance
5.7 The Information Commissioner (ICO) emphasises the importance of good
information governance in ensuring transparency, providing people with
confidence that their personal information is being handled properly and in
protecting the vulnerable.
5.8 Staff are required to undertake the online data protection training and disciplinary
procedures refer to sanctions that may apply for breaches of data protection
principles.
5.9

10

The Senior Information Risk Officer (Strategic Director (Internal Services)) is
responsible for managing information risk within the Council and for providing
assurance to the Accountable Officer (the Managing Director) on the content of

March 2011
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the Annual Governance Statement in regards to information governance
assurances.
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and Data Protection Act 2018
5.10 The Data Protection Act 2018 (applying the GDPR) came into force on 25 May
2018. Drawn up by the EU, GDPR strengthens the data rights of EU residents
and harmonises data protection law across all member states, making it identical.
The Information Commissioner is the independent supervisory authority for data
protection in the UK.
GDPR increases the potential administrative fines (up to 10 million euros or 2%
of annual global turnover) combined in some cases with other corrective action
for serious breaches of the data protection legislation and makes it easier for
people to discover what information organisations have on them. In essence, it
seeks to bring more transparency to people about what data organisations collect
about them, and what those organisations use it for, as well as the requirement to
prevent unnecessary data collection.
The Data Protection Act 2018 controls how personal information is processed by
the Council. Individuals must understand why their data is being processed, and
how it is being processed, while that processing must abide by GDPR rules.
There is a legal obligation on the Council to notify the ICO of personal data
breaches within 72 hours of becoming aware of the breach, where feasible. In
some cases, this obligation extends to notifying data subjects as well.
The Council must comply with the ‘data protection principles’ and make sure that
information is:









used fairly and lawfully
used for limited, specifically stated purposes
used in a way that is adequate, relevant and not excessive
accurate
kept for no longer than is absolutely necessary
handled according to people’s data protection rights
kept safe and secure
not transferred outside the European Economic Area without adequate
protection

There is stronger legal protection for more sensitive information, such as:




ethnic background
political opinions
religious beliefs
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health
sexual health
criminal records

5.11 The Head of Legal Services has been appointed the Data Protection Officer.
Guidance is issued by the Data Protection Officer to Members and Officers.
When sharing personal information with other oprganisations/public bodies e.g.
the Police, the Council is required to consider the legal implications of the
sharing. The Kent & Medway Information Sharing Agreement (v4 2020)
(based on the statutory guidance (Data Sharing Code of Practice), provides a
framework for the Council to make good quality decisions about data sharing.
Officers are required to undertake annual refresher GDPR training (recorded
through the appraisal process).
An audit in May 2019 of the Council’s data protection practices, resulted in
‘substantial assurance’ with some low level recommendations.
Borough Councillors are data controllers in their own right. Since 1 April 2019,
Councillors are no longer required to register as data controllers with the ICO and
pay the fee, if they are only processing personal data in connection with their
constituency work as an elected member - which includes ward/case work. This is
referred to as an ‘exempt purpose’.
However, if Councillors also process personal data for any other non-exempt
purpose, for example as a business owner, or if, as a business owner, they have
CCTV at their offices for crime prevention purposes, then as that processing is
not exempt, they must pay the fee to the ICO in respect of that processing – they
would do so not as a councillor, but in their business capacity (see the ICO’s selfassessment toolkit
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/data-protection-fee/selfassessment/y)
The ICO has advised that Parish/Town Councillors are not data controllers in
their own right, as it is the Parish/Town Council that is the data controller.
The ICO has launched a number of bite-sized resources, which address the top
three GDPR compliance challenges for Parish/Town Councils, although equally
applicable to the Borough Council.
The Home Office has introduced a revised code of practice for public authorities
disclosing information to specified anti-fraud organisations. The Council must
have regard to the Code and the Data Protection Act 2018 when disclosing
information for the purposes of fraud prevention e.g. when in the course of
investigating fraud or as a matter of routine, when processing applications for
housing benefit or employment.
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Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA)
5.12 RIPA provides the legislative framework within which covert surveillance
operations (directed surveillance, deployment of a covert human intelligence
source and access to communications data) must be conducted in order to
ensure that investigatory powers are used in accordance with human rights.
The right to respect for one's private and family life is enshrined in Article 8 of the
European Convention on Human Rights, which renders it unlawful for a public
authority to act in a way, which is incompatible with any of the Convention rights.
As with many of the rights in the Convention, the right to privacy is not an
absolute right and is subject to certain exemptions.
RIPA limits local authorities to using the following three covert techniques for the
purpose of preventing or detecting crime or preventing disorder:




directed surveillance (essentially covert surveillance in places other than
residential premises or private vehicles;
covert human intelligence sources (includes undercover officers, public
informants and people who make test purchases);
communications data – service use information (such as the type of
communication, time sent and its duration) and subscriber information
(includes billing information such as the name, address and bank details of
the subscriber of telephone or internet services).

Use of these techniques has to be authorised internally by an authorising officer
or a designated person. The authorisation will not take effect until the Council has
obtained an order from a JP (a District Judge or lay magistrate) approving the
grant (or renewal) of an authorisation or notice. If the JP is satisfied that the
statutory tests have been met and that the use of the technique is necessary and
proportionate, he/she will issue an order approving the grant or renewal for the
use of the technique as described in the application.
These techniques can only be used where it is considered necessary (e.g. to
investigate a suspected crime or disorder) and proportionate (e.g. balancing the
seriousness of the intrusion into privacy against the seriousness of the offence
and whether the information can be obtained by other means).
Local authorities cannot conduct ‘intrusive’ surveillance (i.e. covert surveillance
carried out in residential premises or private vehicles), obtain traffic data (which
includes information about where the communications are made or received) or
intercept the content of any person’s communications.
Through its published Policy Statement [adopted by Cabinet 22.04.2010
Min.No.179] (reviewed periodically by the Head of Legal Services), the Council is
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committed to implementing the provisions of RIPA to ensure that any covert
surveillance carried out during the course of investigations is undertaken properly
and that the surveillance is necessary and proportionate to the alleged offence/s.
Given that the Council investigates fly tipping offences through overt and signed
use of mobile CCTV, the Council does not need to rely on its RIPA powers.
The Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) has oversight of the
conduct of directed surveillance and covert human intelligence sources by public
authorities. The Council is usually inspected by IPCO, every three years – the
last [desktop] inspection took place in January 2019. The inspection
recommended up to date training for investigating and authorising officers and
reporting annually, to the Audit Board, to remind Members of the scope of the
legislation.
Officers were trained on 13 May 2019 in the use of RIPA powers. Further training
on the use of social media for investigative purposes, was held in October 2019.
The Council is required to submit annual returns to IPCO on its use of RIPA. The
return for 2019/20 was a ‘nil’ return.
Compliance with transparency code
5.13 The Local Government Transparency Code 2015 imposes a legally binding
requirement on local authorities to be held fully accountable to the local people
they serve. The Government believes that in principle, all data held and managed
by local authorities should be made available to local people unless there are
specific sensitivities (e.g. protecting vulnerable people or commercial and
operational considerations) to doing so. The Transparency Code encourages
local authorities to see data as a valuable resource not only to themselves, but
also their partners and local people.
The Transparency Code sets out in detail the type of information held by local
authorities which must be published and ought to be published e.g. expenditure
over £500 (including costs, supplier and transaction information), senior
employees’ salaries, councillors’ allowances and expenses, copies of contracts
and tenders, grants to the voluntary community, key indicators, land and property
assets etc.
The Council is required to publish on an annual basis, the most recent valuation
of its social housing stock, to ensure it is being put to best use.
The Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to be open about their approach
to pay, by preparing approving and publishing a ‘pay policy statement’. The
Council first adopted its pay Policy Statement on 27 February 2012 [Min.No.5].
The Policy Statement is approved annually at the Budget Meeting. Any decisions
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taken by the Council in relation to pay and reward of staff must reflect its current
Pay Policy.
If the Council fails to comply with the mandatory requirements of the
Transparency Code, MHCLG may withhold the new burdens funding which is
paid to eligible authorities by grant, under section 31 of the Local Government Act
2003 (as amended).
Compliance with publicity code
5.14

The Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity 11 provides
recommended practice on a number of aspects of publicity, covering subject
matter, costs, content, dissemination, advertising, recruitment advertising,
publicity about individual members of an authority, timing of publicity, elections,
referendums and petitions, and assistance to others for publicity. The Secretary
of State has powers in the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, to direct
compliance with the Publicity Code.

Freedom of Information and Environmental Information Regulations
5.15

The Freedom of Information Act 2000 provides public access to information held
by the Council. It does this in two ways:



through a publication scheme, the Council is obliged to publish certain
information about its activities – this increases transparency and allows the public
to routinely access information relating to the Council’s functions; and
members of the public are entitled to request information from the Council however, this does not mean the Council is always obliged to provide the
information. In some cases, there will be a good reason why it should not make
public some or all of the information requested e.g. a vexatious request can be
refused and exemptions may be applied.



The 2000 Act covers any ‘recorded information’ that is held by the Council.
‘Recorded information’ includes printed documents, computer files, letters, emails,
photographs, and sound or video recordings.
The 2000 Act does not cover information that is in someone’s head. If a member of
the public asks for information, the Council only has to provide information it already
has in recorded form – it does not have to create new information or find out the
answer to a question.
Anyone can make a request for information under the 2000 Act. Requests are often
made by people concerned about local issues, journalists, researchers, scientists,
lawyers on behalf of clients, MPs, campaign groups, or companies.

11

March 2011
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The 2000 Act:





covers information that is held on behalf of the Council even if it is not held on the
Council’s premises e.g. the Council may keep certain records in off-site storage,
or it may send out certain types of work to be processed by a contractor.
Similarly, information held in non-work personal email accounts (e.g. Hotmail,
Yahoo and Gmail) may be subject to FOIA if it relates to the official business of
the Council. All such information which is held by someone who has a direct,
formal connection with the Council is potentially subject to FOI regardless of
whether it is held in an official or private email account. If the information held in a
private account amounts to Council business it is very likely to be held on behalf
of the Council in accordance with section 3(2)(b) of the 2000 Act e.g. a Councillor
may hold information relating to Council business in his/her private email account
on behalf of the Council. In the local government context, the ICO advises that
there needs to be a clear demarcation between Council business and work for
individuals as their local representative;
does not cover information in private email accounts that does not relate to the
business of the Council;
does not give people access to their own personal data (information about
themselves) such as their tenancy records. If a member of the public wants to
see information that the Council holds about them, they should make a data
protection subject access request.

The ICO targets its monitoring activity towards those authorities, which repeatedly or
seriously fail to respond to freedom of information requests within the appropriate
timescales (20 working days following the date of receipt of the request, unless an
extension has been agreed). Monitoring may be a precursor to further action if an
authority is unable to demonstrate an improvement within a specified timescale.
The Freedom of Information Code of Practice12 recommends that as a matter of best
practice, public authorities with over 100 full time equivalent employees should
publish, on a quarterly basis, details of their performance on handling requests for
information under the 2000 Act. The information should include:






12

the number of requests received during the period;
the number of the received requests that have not yet been processed (you may
also wish to show how many of these outstanding requests have extended
deadlines or a stopped clock, e.g. because a fee notice has been issued);
the number of the received requests that were processed in full (including
numbers for those that were met within the statutory deadline, those where the
deadline was extended and those where the processing took longer than the
statutory deadline);
the number of requests where the information was granted in full;

4 July 2018
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the number of requests where the information was refused in full (separately
identifying those where this was because the information was not held);
the number of requests where the information was granted in part and refused in
part;
the number of requests received that have been referred for internal review.

Following the review of the FOI procedures, compliance statistics are published on
the Council’s website, on a quarterly basis.
Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (EIRs)
The principle behind the law is that giving the public access to environmental information
e.g. Information about land development, pollution levels, energy production, and waste
management) will encourage greater awareness of issues that affect the environment.
The EIRs give people a right of access to information about the activities of the Council
that relate to or affect the environment, unless there is good reason for them not to have
the information. This is sometimes referred to as a presumption in favour of disclosure.
The EIRs apply only to the environmental information held by the Council whereas the
2000 Act gives people access to most other types of information held by the Council.
Compliance with Modern Slavery Act 2015
5.16

The Modern Slavery Act 2015 provides a modern definition of slavery and human
trafficking, establishing them as serious criminal offences meriting punishment up
to and including life imprisonment. It allows the courts to impose orders aimed at
preventing the commission of these offences and creates a new independent
anti-slavery commissioner.
Local authorities are under a duty,13 shared with police bodies and the
Gangmasters Licensing Authority, to notify the Secretary of State upon
developing reasonable grounds to believe that a person may be a victim of
slavery or human trafficking. Referrals are made to the Home Office and the
Strategic Director (External Services), the Council’s Safeguarding Lead, is
informed.
Although the Council engages in commercial activities by providing services
(statutory and discretionary), because its annual turn-over is less than £36milion
it is not duty bound to issue an anti-slavery and human trafficking statement, but
has chosen to do so, with publication of its statement on the Council’s website.
The Public Contracts Regulations 2015 require the exclusion of any supplier that
has itself committed a modern slavery offence. The Council’s Modern Antislavery and Human Trafficking Statement sets out inter alia, the steps it has

13

Section 52 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and Modern Slavery Act 2015 (Duty to Notify) Regulations 2015
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taken to ensure there is no slavery or human trafficking in its business or supply
chains and the standards expected of those with whom it does business.
Standard terms and conditions have been reviewed and child exploitation (levels
1 and 2) incorporated in the Council’s safeguarding training.
5.17

Compliance with Fluency Duty - Part 7 of the Immigration Act 2016
Under Part 7 of the Immigration Act 2016, the Council is under a duty to ensure
that employees in customer-facing roles (i.e. whose main duties require regular
interaction with members of the public) speak fluent English and so provide
higher quality services to the public.
The Council must have to have regard to the Government’s statutory Code of
Practice14. The Code aims to provide assistance to public authorities to determine
the necessary standard of spoken English to be met by their customer-facing
staff, the appropriate complaints procedure to follow should a member of the
public consider that the required standard has not been met and the appropriate
forms of remedial action which may be taken if a member of staff falls below the
standard required.
The Code is not intended to prescribe the process for every type of customerfacing role and it is not a definitive statement of the law. However, it provides
principles and examples that public authorities can consider when fulfilling their
legal duties and obligations.
The Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure has been updated to reflect the
requirements of the Code and HR policies are under review.

6. THE ETHICAL GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK REVIEW
Member Code of Conduct
6.1

Following the implementation of the standards regime under the Localism Act
2011, the Member Code of Conduct was adopted by the GAC on 16 July 2012
[Min.No.35.4]. The Code was reviewed by the GAC on 16 December 2013
[Min.No:72].
On 13 January 2020 [Min.No. 74], the GAC adopted the International Holocaust
Remembrance Alliance’s definition and recommended that the definition be
included in the Member Code of Conduct, in the broader context of respect,
tolerance, inter-faith understanding and equality. The Audit Board agreed to the
amendment to the Member Code of Conduct [22.04.20:Min.No. 43].

6.2

14

The Code regulates the conduct of all elected Members and voting Co-optees
and defines the standards of conduct required of Members and voting Co-optees

Code of practice on the English language requirement for public sector workers
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in carrying out their duties and in their relationships with the Council and its
Officers.
6.3

Borough Councillors are supportive of the principles underlying the ethical
framework.

6.4

As lead Officer for the Audit Board on matters related to the ethical governance
framework, the Monitoring Officer has a key role in facilitating, promoting and
maintaining high standards of conduct within the Council. As well as procedure
development and implementation, this also involves advising Borough and
Parish/Town Councillors, Officers and Parish/Town Clerks on propriety issues,
advising the Audit Board on applications for dispensations and on matters related
to allegations of misconduct on the part of Borough or Parish/Town Councillors.

6.5

The Monitoring Officer is responsible for:
1.
2.
3.

Overseeing the day-to-day implementation and monitoring of the operation
of the Member Code of Conduct;
Reviewing the operation of the Member Code of Conduct;
Reporting annually to the Audit Board, on compliance with the Member
Code of Conduct and any changes necessary to maintain and ensure its
effectiveness in practice.

6.6

The Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer have an open door policy of
proactively helping Members with any ethical problems. Members, Town/Parish
Councillors, Clerks and Officers are encouraged to make contact earlier, rather
than later, if they are anticipating or experiencing a problem.

6.7

Local Government Ethical Standards - A Review by the Committee on Standards
in Public Life (CSPL) - the 20th report of the CSPL identifies some specific areas
of concern noting a minority of councillors who engage in bullying or harassment,
or other highly disruptive behaviour and a small number of parish councils giving
rise to a disproportionate number of complaints about poor behaviour. The report
also identifies a number of risks in the sector: the current rules around conflicts of
interest, gifts, and hospitality are commented on as inadequate; and the
increased complexity of local government decision-making has been found to
place governance under strain.
CSPL’s recommendations will require amendments to primary and secondary
legislation and the Local Government Transparency Code.
The LGA has committed to reviewing the current model member code of conduct,
as recommended by the CSPL. The LGA’s consultation on the draft member
code of conduct ran for 10 weeks, from 8 June until 17 August 2020. The
outcome of the consultation is awaited.
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Following the implementation of the Council’s ethical governance framework
under the Localism Act 2011, the following protocols etc. were reviewed and
referred to the Audit Board, as the committee that oversees the Council’s ethical
governance arrangements.
Under Sections 28(6) and (7) of the Localism Act 2011, the Council must have in
place ‘Arrangements’ for investigations and decisions relating to Code of
Conduct breach allegations involving a Borough or Parish/Town Councillor or coopted member. The Council’s Arrangements were adopted in July 2012 [GAC
16.07.12: Min.No.35.16] and subsequently reviewed by the Audit Board in
September 2013 [18.09.2013:Min.No.28].
Consistently with localism, it is for the Council to ensure that its Arrangements for
dealing with Member Code of Conduct breach allegations are sufficiently robust
and effective to fulfil its statutory requirement of promoting and maintaining high
standards of Member conduct.
The Arrangements were again reviewed by the Audit Board on 24 October 2018
[Min.No.23] and remain fit for purpose.

6.9.

Protocol on Member/Officer Relations
The Member/Officer Relations’ Protocol provides a guide to good working
relationships between elected Members (including co-optees) and Officers. It
does not aim to be comprehensive, but is intended to offer guidance on issues,
which often arise.
No complaints relating to alleged breaches of the
Member/Officer Relations’ Protocol were received by the Monitoring Officer, in the
year 2019/20.
The revised Member/Officer Relations’ Protocol was adopted by the Audit Board
on 13 May 2013 [Min.No. 5] and remains fit for purpose.

6.10

Probity in Planning Protocol and Probity in Licensing Protocol
The Probity in Planning Protocol was adopted by the Development Control
Board on 20 December 2012 [Min. No.96] and referred to the Audit Board on 9
January 2013 [Min.No.43] for endorsement.
The Probity in Licensing Protocol was adopted by the Licensing Committee on
19 December 2012 [Min. No.11] and referred to the Audit Board on 9 January
2013 [Min.No.44] for endorsement.
The Protocols provide guidance to the Council respectively as local planning
authority and licensing authority, on practices and procedures designed to avoid
grounds for allegations and malpractice. Both Protocols remain fit for purpose.
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Members’ Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality
(i)

The Member Code of Conduct states ‘You must not place yourself under a
financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that
might seek to influence you in the performance of your official duties. You
should have regard to the guidance in the Council’s Protocol on Gifts,
Benefits and Hospitality.’

(ii)

Within 28 days of offer and acceptance, Members must register with the
Monitoring Officer any gift, benefit and/or hospitality within the terms of the
Protocol, with an estimated/guide value of £100 or more offered to and
accepted by them, in the conduct of the business of the Council, the
business of the office to which they have been elected or appointed or
when they are acting as representative of the Council. The source of the
gift, benefit and/or hospitality must also be registered.

(iii)

Members do not need to register gifts, benefits and/or hospitality offered
and accepted that are not related to their role as a Member - for example,
Christmas gifts from family and friends. However, Members should always
consider whether any gifts, benefits and/or hospitality received could be
seen as being connected to their role as a Member.

(iv)

No requests were received during 2019/20 to view the Register and no
requests were received under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 for
information relating to Members’ gifts, benefits and/or hospitality and
expenses.

(v)

No complaints were referred to the Monitoring Officer in 2019/20, relating
to alleged failure to register the receipt of gifts, benefits and/or hospitality.

The revised Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality Protocol was adopted by the Audit
Board on 13 May 2013 [Min.No. 5] and remains fit for purpose. The Gifts and
Hospitality Register was checked and no declarations were made in the year
2019/20.
6.12

Protocol on the Release of Confidential information
(a)

The Member Code of Conduct states ‘………. You should have regard to
the guidance in the Council’s Protocol on the release of confidential
information.’

(b)

The Council is committed to the principles of openness and transparency.
However, in the practical application of these principles, Members need to
have regard to legal obligations, which, in some cases, may require
information to be kept confidential.
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(c)

Members will have access to a great deal of information which is
confidential, either because it is personal information or because it is
commercially sensitive or it is information, which would not otherwise be
placed in the public arena/domain.
The handling of confidential
information is an essential element in the relationships of trust that should
exist between Members, Officers and the public and a mishandling of such
information and/or its accidental or deliberate disclosure is likely to
damage trust as well as lead to formal proceedings being taken against
the Council, individual Members or Officers.

(d)

No complaints were referred to the Monitoring Officer in 2019/20, alleging
disclosure of confidential information.

The revised Protocol on the Release of Confidential Information was adopted by
the Audit Board on 13 May 2013 [Min.No.5] and remains fit for purpose.
6.13

Protocol on the use of Council Facilities and Resources by Councillors
(a)

The Member Code of Conduct states ‘You must, when using or authorising
the use by others of the resources of the Council, ensure that such
resources are not used improperly for political purposes (including party
political purposes) and you must have regard to any applicable Local
Authority Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986 15
and guidance on the Use of Resources by Councillors within the Council’s
Protocol.’

(b)

The Council provides a range of facilities to support Councillors, such as IT
equipment, to enable Councillors to carry out their duties as a councillor.
Members must make sure that they use the Council’s resources for proper
purposes only. The onus is placed on individual Members to be aware of
and ensure the Council complies with the rules governing local authority
publicity.

(c)

No complaints were referred to the Monitoring Officer in 2019/20, alleging
misuse of Council resources.

The revised Protocol on the use of Council Facilities and Resources was adopted
by the Audit Board on 13 May 2013 [Min.No. 5] and remains fit for purpose.
6.14

Outside Bodies
(a)

15

The Standards Committee adopted the Guidance for Members on Outside
Bodies [4 July 2007 Min.No. 9].

Superseded by the Code on Recommended Practice for Local Government Publicity (31 March 2011).
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(b)

The Council is now increasingly working in partnership with external
organisations and greater clarity is needed as to the role of Members
appointed to these bodies. Funding streams may benefit outside bodies
and be channelled through the Council as the accountable body and
questions of accountability and governance will arise.

(c)

Service on outside bodies has always been an established part of a
Member’s role. An appointed Member on an external body will be able to
use their knowledge and skills as a Councillor to assist the organisation to
which they are appointed.

(d)

Membership of an outside body brings into play different considerations to
those, which relate to Council membership. Members will have different
duties, obligations and liabilities depending upon the type of organisation
involved.

(e)

Councillors who serve in a decision-making capacity as members of
outside bodies, whether companies, trusts or other associations, owe
duties and responsibilities to those bodies which are separate and distinct
from their duties owed to the Council. On occasion, it is likely that duties
owed to the outside body and to the Council, will conflict.

(f)

The majority of outside bodies on which Councillors serve are, at present,
either charitable organisations or companies. Nominations to outside
bodies are made at the Annual Meeting or in year appointments are made,
as and when the need arises.
The guidance remains fit for purpose.

6.15

Maintaining Registers of Members’ Interests
The Monitoring Officer is responsible for establishing and maintaining a Register
of Members’ [Disclosable Pecuniary] Interests for Borough Councillors. This duty
extends to the Registers for Parish/Town Councillors. Section 29(5) of the
Localism Act 2011, requires that all Registers be accessible to the public, via
councils’ websites. Whilst Parish/Town Council Registers have to be published
on their websites, there is also the requirement that they be published on the
Borough Council’s website.
(a)

Register of Members’ Interests- Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

(i)

A Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) is specific to a Member’s
business interests (for example their employment, trade, profession,
contracts, or any company with which they are associated and wider
financial interests they might have (for example trust funds, investments,
and assets including land and property). The nature of the interest is listed
in national rules.
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(ii)

The Member Code of Conduct requires Members to register their DPIs
(including those of their husband/wife/civil partner, or a person with whom
they are living as husband/wife or as if they are civil partners, where they
are aware that the other person has the interest) within 28 days of their
election or appointment, or 28 days of the interest arising if subsequent to
election or appointment. It is a criminal offence under the Localism Act
2011, if without reasonable excuse, Members fail to notify the Monitoring
Officer of their DPIs or any changes thereto.

(iii)

In addition to the above, Members are required to notify the Monitoring
Officer of any DPIs before the end of 28 days beginning with the day on
which the Member Code of Conduct takes effect. Failure to comply with
this requirement would not of itself be a criminal offence, but could render
Members liable to action being taken against them under the Code.

(iv)

Members need to register their interests so the public, Council staff and
fellow Members know which of their interests might give rise to a conflict of
interest. The Register is a document that can be consulted when (or
before) an issue arises and lets others consider whether or not the
Member may have a conflict of interest.

(v)

Members have an ongoing obligation to keep their Register of Interests up
to date. Failure to do so is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011.

(vi)

Where a Member is re-elected, written confirmation that their DPIs have
not changed is acceptable. If their interests change, then the changes will
have to be recorded on the Register of Interests.

(vii)

There is no public right of access to the Register of Interests of former
Members. Information about Members who have ceased to hold office is
removed from the public copy of the Register immediately.

All Borough Councillors and Parish/Town Councillors have notified the Monitoring
Officer of their DPIs.
Parish/Town Clerks are responsible for ensuring that outdated information in their
published Registers e.g. the removal of entries related to persons who are no
longer councillors are removed from their Parish/Town Council’s website.
Kent local authorities have a protocol with Kent Police for the handling and
investigation of alleged criminal offences created by Section 34 of the Localism
Act 2011 and specifically related to DPIs.
As discussed in para.(a)(i) above, DPIs are a very specific form of financial
interests regulated by law and applying nationally.
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The Council has determined that other financial interests should also be declared.
These interests are referred to in the Constitution as ‘Prejudicial Interests’.
Simply put, if an item under discussion at a meeting affects a Member’s financial
position or the financial position of a person or body associated with that Member
‘to a greater extent than other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the
Council’s area’, then it is a Prejudicial Interest.
Prejudicial Interests are not registrable in the same way as DPIs, but do need to
be declared when relevant to a matter under consideration by the committee.
(b) Conflicts of interest
A more difficult area is that of apparent bias. This is where Councillors do not
have a DPI or Prejudicial Interest in a particular matter but some other interest
that can bring decision-making into disrepute, if not well-managed. Often the
perception of conflict is alone enough to cause concern. This can lead to
reputational damage and undermine public confidence in the integrity of the
Council.
A conflict of interest is a set of circumstances that creates a risk that an
individual’s ability to apply judgement or act in one role is, or could be, impaired
or influenced by a secondary interest. It can occur in any situation where an
individual or organisation can exploit a professional or official role for personal or
other benefit. This definition is based on generally accepted standards.
Conflicts can exist if the circumstances create a risk that decisions may be
influenced, regardless of whether the individual actually benefits. The perception
of competing interests, impaired judgement or undue influence can also be a
conflict of interest.
Conflicts might occur if individuals have, for example:
• a direct or indirect financial interest;
• non-financial or personal interests; or
• conflicts of loyalty where decision-makers have competing loyalties between an
organisation they owe a primary duty to and some other person or entity.
The Council has a system to identify and manage conflicts of interest, rather than
to eliminate them. The effect is to make Members aware of what to do if they
suspect a conflict and ensure decision-making is efficient, transparent and fair.
Rules are clear and robust but not overly prescriptive or complex.
Where the circumstances create a risk that decisions may be influenced,
Members are required to declare any known interests at the beginning of a
meeting or as soon as they become aware of the interest and withdraw from the
meeting room during the debate on the item.
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In a recent review of the types of interest declared by Members, it was noted that
Members will on occasion declare non- financial interests e.g. an association with
an individual as ‘prejudicial’. Some Members also appear confused as to whether
or not they have an interest to declare and whether those interests are DPIs or
prejudicial interests.
If in doubt, Members are asked to contact the Democratic Services Manager for
guidance.
6.16

6.17

Dispensations
(a)

Section 33 of the Localism Act 2011 sets out the rules for the granting of
dispensations by the Audit Board or under delegated authority, by the
Managing Director in consultation with the Monitoring Officer.

(b)

During 2019/20, Members were each granted a dispensation by the
Managing Director, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, to speak and
vote on Members’ Allowances and financial contributions to Parish/Town
Councils [as reported to the GAC (Budget) - 25.02.19: Min. No.2].

Related Party Transactions
(a)

The requirement for Members and senior Officers to declare Related Party
Transactions has been considered by the Accounting Standards Board as
fundamental to the presentation of the Council’s published accounts.
External auditors require the completion of a signed declaration on an
annual basis. The objective is to identify any transactions that may have
taken place as a result of the control or influence exercised by one party
over another. The concern is that such transactions may not be, or may
not be perceived to be, in the best interests of the Council. Each year,
Members and senior Officers are asked by the Managing Director to
provide brief details of any related party transaction. If any disclosure
becomes likely, a draft of the proposed disclosure note will be provided to
the individual for comments prior to publication.

(b)

On 12 April 2007 [Min No.32(3)], the Standards Committee agreed that a
refusal by a Member to make the appropriate declaration, be treated as a
breach of a local protocol and that the matter be investigated and
determined locally.
Eight Councillors made related declarations, but only one of the
declarations was deemed necessary for disclosure in the financial
statements for the year 2019/20.
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Partnership Working
(a)

Partnership working is playing an increasingly important role in public
sector service delivery. The Council is fully committed to partnership
working because it recognises the strength and value of effective
partnerships in contributing to the improvement of the well-being of the
Borough’s communities. The Council encourages partnership working
wherever benefits can be demonstrated.

(b)

Partnership working includes ‘joined up’ or collaborative working between
the Council and other public sector bodies, the private sector and the third
sector (non-governmental organisations that are value driven and which
principally reinvest their surpluses to further social, environmental or
cultural objectives - includes voluntary and community organisations,
charities, social enterprises, co-operatives and housing associations).

(c)

Poor ethical standards in partnership arrangements may adversely affect
the Council’s community leadership role, reputation etc. The Audit Board
encourages high standards of behaviour in the Council and amongst
partners. The Seven General Principles of Public Life (referred to below),
guide the conduct of Councillors and underpin the Code of Conduct that all
Councillors, including Parish and Town Councillors, are bound:
Selflessness
Integrity
Honesty
Objectivity
Accountability
Openness
Leadership

(d)

Maintaining high standards is crucial to maintaining effective partnerships,
but if problems are to occur, they are likely to be exacerbated by the
adverse impact on partnership working, which may follow. The General
Principles are simple, and coherent, which means they can also be
followed by partners, who are not obliged to formally adhere to the Code of
Conduct. The Code of Practice for Effective Joint Working Arrangements
recommends that the General Principles should, as a minimum, be
incorporated in all partnership arrangements.
The Code of Practice for effective Joint Working Arrangements has been
reviewed by the Strategic Director (Internal Services), to ensure fitness for
purpose.

6.19

Politically Restricted Posts
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(a)

There is long established tradition that local government employees
involved in advising elected members of their authority, should be seen to
observe a policy of political neutrality. This policy is important for two main
reasons: it is essential to the functioning of the democratic system that
members of a local authority should be able to receive impartial advice
from its officers and that its officers should not be influenced by any
political bias in the implementation of the authority’s policies. It is also vital
that members and those who have elected them, should have complete
confidence that their officers will give impartial advice and will act
impartially in implementing the authority’s policies.

(b)

To ensure that local authority employees who hold posts involving duties
of a politically sensitive nature cannot, at the same time, become or remain
a member of a local authority (other than parish/town councils), Part 1 of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (as amended) imposes
restrictions on political activities by local government employees.

(c)

The Council provides standard information to all applicants who are
seeking appointment to a politically restricted post and these restrictions
are also incorporated into the contract of employment. The Council is
required to maintain an up to date list of its politically restricted posts. The
list is open to public inspection.

(d)

The Localism Act 2011 gives the responsibility to the Head of Paid Service
to determine applications for exemption from political restriction by holders
of such posts.

(e)

No applications for exemption or directions were made to or by the Head
of Paid Service, during the year 2019/20.

7.

MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS STATISTICAL ANALYSIS
2019/20

7.1

Complaints to the Monitoring Officer 2019/20
A successful ethical standards regime is one where there are no complaints
because Councillors are seen to be complying with the Code of Conduct. If a
complaint is received, a measure of the regime can be assessed firstly by
whether the complaint was justified, then secondly, by the seriousness of the
breach of the Code of Conduct and the action required. The number of
complaints received by the Monitoring Officer in the year 2019/20 is as follows:
Borough Councillors
Parish/Town Councillors

16

216
0

Of which one investigation was concluded in the year 2020/2021
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The complaints were dealt with as follows, where applicable, in consultation with
the Independent Person:
DPI Offence referred to the Police – 0
Dismissed at Preliminary Stage (Legal &/or Local Criteria Tests not met) – 1
Formal Investigation Undertaken – 0
Upheld - 0
Referred to Hearing Panel - 0
Dealt with by Informal Resolution - 0
Dealt with by Mediation (Political Group Leader) - 0
Dealt with by Mediation (Political Group Panel) - 0
Not Upheld (No Further Action) - 0
8.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT OF COUNCILLORS 2019/20

8.1

Induction - The Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) has issued
guidance on how best to embed high ethical standards in public sector
organisations through induction, education and training. The CSPL’s aim is not to
impose a one-size-fits-all model of induction, but that every organisation should
take the lead in designing and delivering an induction programme that responds
to the challenges and circumstances of their particular area of public life.
However, as a basic minimum, the CSPL expects to see induction cover the
relevant code of conduct and the principles on which it is based, with an
explanation of any compliance requirements that derive from that code and
reference to the channels for raising and dealing with ethical issues.
Following a Borough Council local or by-election or appointment to the Council,
Councillors and Co-optees are provided with a Member Handbook, which details
the background into the Council’s corporate governance arrangements. This is
an invaluable guide for first-time Councillors and Co-optees, who may be
unfamiliar with the work of the Council or with local government in general.
The Council has a Members’ induction process for newly elected councillors. This
covers the Member Code of Conduct and its principles and the particular role and
responsibilities of Members, particularly when participating in quasi - judicial
decision-making committees e.g. Development Control Board and Licensing Subcommittee. The induction covers the practical as well as theoretical relevance
and involves active rather than passive learning.
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Following local elections, Parish/Town Councillors are invited to participate in the
[Borough Council’s] induction process. Attendance at induction is compulsory for
newly elected Borough Councillors.
8.2

Training
(a) In recognition of the changing responsibilities and demands on Councillors
(principally through legislation), the Council provides training and
development, facilities, access to information and guidance to help them carry
out their roles. There are no set guidelines on training and development. The
Council offers induction courses to introduce newly elected Councillors to the
workings and responsibilities of the Council and to familiarise them with
systems, facilities and the decision making process.
(b) Members are aware of training opportunities available to them, but do on
occasions feel overloaded with meetings, making the logistics difficult.
Nevertheless, Members are prepared to attend training as long as it is of the
right quality and pitched at the right level. The levels of awareness present an
opportunity to raise the profile of Member development within the Council.
(c) Training records for Borough Councillors are maintained by Member Services
and by the Parish/Town Council Clerks for Parish/Town Councillors. Training
records form part of the evidence during any investigation into complaints of
breaches of the Code.
(d) First Tier Tribunal decisions were critical of councillors who failed to attend
training put on by their local authorities and non-attendance was not accepted
as a justification for a breach of the Code of Conduct occurring. Further
criticism was levied at councillors who failed to read the Code.
(e) Prior to a Borough Council local or by-election, candidates are advised that
they will be required to attend training on the Member Code of Conduct, if
elected a councillor. Arrangements are made to train new Councillors and
Co-optees on the Code of Conduct, as soon as possible, following their
election/confirmation of appointment.
(f) In organising training/development sessions, Officers are mindful of the
pressures on Councillors’ time and will endeavour to make the sessions as
flexible as possible, to accommodate these time pressures. ‘Flexibility’
includes on-line training and one to one sessions with the Head of Legal
Services.

8.3

Training - Member Code of Conduct, Development Control, Licensing and
Treasury Management Panel
The training provided by the Council reflects the changing roles of Councillors,
and ensures that Councillors understand the implications of new legislation.
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However, Councillors themselves are ultimately responsible for ensuring they
have the skills they need to carry out their duties.
Training is categorised as non-mandatory and mandatory. Non-mandatory
training includes softer skills development such as community leadership.
Mandatory training includes ethical governance related matters e.g. code of
conduct and training for Members who sit on quasi-judicial committees, boards
and /or panels.
Following the 2019 local elections, all Members received training on the Member
Code of Conduct & Safe and Effective Use of Social Media. All members (and
nominated substitutes) of the Development Control Board and Licensing
Committee participated in mandatory training relevant to their respective areas of
decision making before they could take part in the decision-making process.
Treasury Management Panel (TMP) members have received and continue to
receive, from Arlingclose (the Council’s Treasury Advisor), ‘bite size’ training
during meetings. The training to date, has included an overview/background of
the TMP’s role, the meaning/definition of key terms and an explanation of matters
on the agenda.
All Members have been trained on the GDPR (through attendance either at a
training session, on-line or through a one to one with the Data Protection Officer).
Four Members of the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee (including an
Independent Member) received training on the Charity Act 2011.
9.

MEMBER TRAINING DEVELOPMENT 2020/2021
Providing effective training and development opportunities for Members is integral
to the achievement of the Council’s corporate priorities.
The Kent Design CPD programme includes webinar training for councillors on the
delivery of high-quality architecture, public space and infrastructure to improve
the quality of life for both visitors and residents. As a member of Kent Design, the
Council receives a number of places at events. Recent training concerned the
design quality of major applications in relation to uses, lifespan and movement.
The national consultation on the revisions to the Member Code of Conduct is
likely to impact on the standards regime in the year 2020/21 and may require
refresher training for all Members.
Following a review of the Licensing Sub-committee hearing procedure, the Head
of Legal Services has been asked to arrange mandatory training for all Licensing
Committee members. This training will be delivered by 31 December 2020.

10.

PARISH/TOWN COUNCILS
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(a)

There are eight Parish/Town Councils in the Borough of Dartford. Seven
Councils adopted a Code of Conduct based upon the Borough Council’s Member
Code and one adopted the National Association of Local Councils (NALC) Code.

(b)

The Monitoring Officer and Head of Legal Services periodically issue guidance
notes to the Parish/Town Council Clerks on the Code of Conduct and
declarations of interest.

(c)

Audit Board agendas and minutes are copied to Parish/Town Clerks.

(d)

Parish/Town Clerks assist the Monitoring Officer in compiling the Parish/Town
Councillor DPI Registers and keeping them under review. The Registers are
open to inspection by members of the public at the Parish/Town Council offices
and on their websites.

(e)

The NALC publication ‘Standing Orders for Local Councils’ provides guidance,
the most up to date legislation and model standing orders for parish/town
councils.

(f)

Following complaints received by one Parish Council regarding alleged breaches
of its Code of Conduct, the [Borough] Council’s Independent Member will deliver
on-line training to the whole Parish Council, including its Clerk.

11.

JOINT COLLABORATION/WORKING

(a)

The Council recognises the benefits, economies of scale and wealth of advice
and experience that suitable collaboration can bring to it.

(b)

The Council’s formal partnership arrangements with Sevenoaks District Council
cover Audit and Fraud, Environmental Health and Revenues and Benefits.

12.

STAFF

12.1

Code of Conduct for Employees

(a)

The Council‘s employees are bound by the Employee Code of Conduct. The
Code is incorporated in contracts of employment and referred to in the induction
process. The Code is well publicised on the Council’s Intranet.

(b)

The Head of Paid Service, deals with all matters related respectively, to the
appointment, dismissal etc. of staff below Statutory Officer and Director level.
Appointment, dismissal etc. of Statutory Officers and Directors are dealt with by
the Statutory Officer Advisory Panel.

(c)

The Government has not introduced a statutory code of conduct for employees
and it now seems unlikely that this will be introduced.
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The Employee Code of Conduct is under review. No allegations of breaches of
the Code were reported to the Head of Paid Service in 2019/20.
12.2

Registration of Officer Interests
A Register of Employees’ Interests is maintained by the Head of Paid Service.
The Register is open to inspection by Borough Councillors, not the public.
No complaints of alleged failure to declare interests were received by the Head of
Paid Service in the year 2019/20.

12.3

Whistleblowing

(a)

The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 (as amended) contains measures which
help to promote greater openness between employers and employees in the
workplace and supports a structure for whistleblowing.
In order to benefit from whistleblower protection, a disclosure must ‘in the
reasonable belief of the worker making the disclosure’ be ‘made in the public
interest’. The ‘good faith’ requirement for whistleblowing no longer applies,
although compensation can be reduced where good faith is lacking.

(b)

The Audit Board considers reports on whistleblowing, where fraud, corruption
(including alleged breaches of the Bribery Act 2010) or other malpractice has
served to undermine the Council’s internal controls and lines of reporting.

(c)

The Whistleblowing Policy ensures that robust arrangements are in place for
confidential reporting of concerns and the proportionate and independent
investigation of whistleblowing matters and for appropriate follow up action. The
Audit Manager maintains a record of concerns raised and the outcomes (but in a
form that does not endanger confidentiality).

(d)

The review of the Whistleblowing Policy is dealt with as a separate item on the
agenda. No investigations were carried out in the year 2019/20.

13.

CORPORATE COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE

(a)

The Corporate Complaints Procedure is designed and intended to give all staff,
Councillors and the Council’s contractors/partners, guidance on how to handle
complaints effectively. Complaints monitoring is seen as a stimulus to system
improvement. Statistical/analytical reports are submitted quarterly to Management
Team and Policy Overview Committee.

(b)

The annual report to the Audit Board on the Corporate Complaints Procedure, is
reported elsewhere on the agenda. This also updates Members on the roles
respectively, of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman, Housing
Ombudsman and Members as ‘designated persons’.

40

Page 55

Agenda Item 6

(c)

The Regulators’ Code17 provides a clear, flexible and principles-based framework
for how regulators should engage with those they regulate. Local authorities
must have regard to the ‘Regulators’ Code when formulating complaints and
appeals’ processes and when developing standards, policies or procedures that
guide their regulatory activities. The Council’s activities should be carried out in a
way, which is transparent, accountable, proportionate and consistent.

14.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN & HOUSING
OMBUDSMAN

(a)

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGO) issues an Annual
Review of Complaints setting out the number of complaints against the Council
during a specified period.

(b)

All social housing (landlord related functions) complaints are dealt with by the
Housing Ombudsman (HO).

(c)

An analysis of LGO and HO related complaints for the year 2019/20 is provided
elsewhere on the agenda.

(d)

The LGO cannot determine whether a Member has breached the Code of
Conduct. However, committees are within the jurisdiction of the LGO. It is
possible to make a complaint of maladministration causing injustice as a result of
some action or inaction by a committee or monitoring officer about the handling of
a complaint (e.g. delay or bias).

(e)

A complaint to the LGO may only be made by, or on behalf of, a member of the
public or a body of persons other than a local authority or other public service
body. A complainant must be able to claim a personal injustice. An elected
Member may only complain to the LGO about something that affects them
personally as a member of the public. This includes actions of an authority’s
committee and officers carrying out functions in relation to the committee.

15.

IN SUMMARY
This Annual Report summarises the key work carried out in 2019/2020 and
provides assurance that the Council’s control environment, in the areas that are
the responsibility of the Monitoring Officer, is adequate and effective. This
Annual Report supports the assurance statements included in the Annual
Governance Statement.

17

6 April 2014
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ANNEX 1
1.

THE ROLE OF THE HEAD OF PAID SERVICE

The responsibilities of the Head of Paid Service rest with the Managing Director, who
undertakes to discharge these statutory responsibilities in a positive way and in a
manner that enhances the overall reputation of the Council.
In general, the Head of Paid Service has overall corporate management and operational
responsibility for the way in which the Council delivers its services and in particular, he
co-ordinates the staffing needs of the Council, including the organisation, appointment
and proper management of staff, reporting to the GAC or Cabinet as appropriate.
Having excellent working relations with Members and Officers assists in the discharge of
the statutory responsibilities of the Head of Paid Service. Equally, a speedy flow of
relevant information and access to debate (particularly at the early stages of any
decision-making by the Council) will assist in fulfilling those responsibilities.
The Head of Paid Service meets regularly with Directors to consider and recommend
action in connection with corporate governance issues and other matters.
The Head of Paid Service has a special relationship of respect and trust with the Leader
of the Council, Deputy Leader and Committee chairmen, with a view to ensuring the
effective and efficient discharge of Council business.
The Head of Paid Service’s functions are summarised as follows:
Description

Source

Report on decisions incurring unlawful expenditure,
unlawful loss or deficiency or unlawful item of account

Section 4 Local Government and Housing Act 1989

Report on resources

Section 4 Local Government and Housing Act 1989

All staff to be appointed on merit

Section 7 Local Government and Housing Act 1989

Duty to adopt Standing Orders with respect to staff

Section 8 Local Government and Housing Act 1989

Confidentiality of staff records

Section 11 Local Government and Housing Act 1989

Conflicts of interest in staff negotiations

Section 12 Local Government and Housing Act 1989

Appointment of staff

Section 112 Local Government Act 1972

Dispensations (see Delegations)

Section 33 Localism Act 2011

Exemptions from political restrictions

Section 3A Local Government & Housing Act 1989 (as
amended)

42

Page 57

2.

Agenda Item 6

THE ROLE OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

The responsibilities of the Monitoring Officer role rest with the Strategic Director
(External Services). The Monitoring Officer has a broad role in ensuring the lawfulness
and fairness of Council decision making, ensuring compliance with codes and protocols
and promoting good governance and high ethical standards.
The Monitoring Officer’s functions are summarised as follows:
Description

Source

Report on any maladministration or injustice where
the Ombudsman has carried out an investigation

Section 5 Local Government and Housing Act
1989 (as amended)

Appoint a Deputy

Section 5 Local Government and Housing Act
1989 (as amended)

Report on sufficiency of resources for carrying out
the Monitoring Officer functions

Section 5 Local Government and Housing Act
1989 (as amended)

Establish and maintain the Register of Members’
Interests for Borough and Parish/Town Councils

Section 81 Local Government Act 2000 (as
amended) and Member Code of Conduct

Maintain and update the Constitution

The Constitution

Key role in promoting and maintaining high
standards of conduct in the Council

The Constitution

Advise Councillors on interpretation of the Code of
Conduct

The Constitution

Support the Audit Board (on ethical governance
issues)

Local Government Act 2000 (as amended) and
Statutory Guidance para.8.20

Receive alleged breach of Code of Conduct
complaints and consult Independent Person

Localism Act 2011 – Adopted Arrangements for
dealing with Code of Conduct breaches

Investigate Member misconduct (Borough and
Parish Councils)

Localism Act 2011 – Adopted Arrangements for
dealing with Code of Conduct breaches

Overview of ethical framework in relation to
Parish/Town Councils

Section 83(12) Local Government Act 2000 (as
amended)

Consult with, support and advise the Head of Paid
Service and Section 151 Officer on issues of
lawfulness and probity

The Constitution

Provide
advice
maladministration

and

The Constitution

In consultation with the Section 151 Officer, advise
on whether executive decisions are within the

The Constitution

on

vires

issues
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budget and policy framework
Consider whether certain information is exempt
from disclosure under the Freedom of Information
Act

Section 36 Freedom of Information Act 2000

Receive copies of whistleblowing allegations of
misconduct

Whistleblowing Policy

3.

THE ROLE OF THE SECTION 151 OFFICER

The responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer rests with the Strategic Director (Internal
Services).
There are five areas that are critical to the achievement of the Section 151 Officer’s
statutory responsibilities:
• maintaining strong financial management underpinned by effective financial controls;
• contributing to corporate management and leadership;
• supporting and advising democratically elected representatives;
• supporting and advising officers in their operational roles;
• leading and managing an effective and responsive financial service.
The Section 151 Officer’s functions are summarised as follows:
Description

Source

Report on decisions incurring unlawful expenditure,
unlawful loss or deficiency or unlawful item of account

Sections 114, 114a, 115, 116 Local Government and
Finance Act 1988

Appointment of Deputy

Section 114 Local Government and Finance Act 1988

Report on resources

Section 114 Local Government and Finance Act 1988

Responsibility for the administration of financial affairs

Section 151 Local Government Act 1972

Borrowing,
investment
administration

Sections 1 – 92 Local Government Act 2003

accounts

and

financial

Responsibility to determine the form of the Council’s
accounts and records, provide internal audit and
statement of accounts

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting)
(England) Regulations 2003 (as amended)
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COMPLAINTS MONITORING AND PROCEDURE REVIEW –
2019/2020
1.

Summary

1.1 To provide Members with information on the Council’s Corporate Complaints
Procedure, including the number and nature of complaints received in
respect of the services provided by the Council, during the period 1 April
2019 to 31 March 2020.
2.

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

That the Board receives the report and comments accordingly.

3. Background and Discussion
3.1

The Council is committed through its Corporate Plan objectives, to the
highest possible standards of openness, probity and accountability both as
an employer and as a provider of services. In line with this commitment, the
complaints system is seen as important to improve the quality and
responsiveness of services and as a stimulus to system improvement. The
ideal is for staff to welcome feedback and customers to feel free to complain
or comment based on a clear understanding of the quality of service they
should expect. Staff should feel free to apologise, resolve issues quickly at
a local level, restore relationships and pass on lessons so that systems are
improved.

3.2

Although the Corporate Complaints Procedure Code of Practice for Staff
(the CCP) is very detailed and comprehensive, Officers need only refer to
specific elements of the CCP at any one time. The CCP refers to an
informal resolution process which is intended to encourage communication
between the parties involved, either directly or through an intermediary, in
order to facilitate a mutual understanding of what may be different
perspectives regarding the complaint. The CCP reminds staff that informal
resolution and apology should be immediate where possible and that
customers most often want an explanation, an apology and reassurance
that the same thing will not happen to others.

3.3

This annual report provides a mechanism by which the Council can be kept
informed about the operation of the CCP and provides information about
the level of activity and an assessment of how well the Council is doing in
relation to the standard which it expects to achieve, including the meeting
of timescales.

3.4

The principal aims of the CCP are as follows:
(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

to ensure that customers receive social justice regardless of age, sexual
orientation, religion or belief, gender reassignment and pregnancy and maternity,
as well as on grounds of race, sex and disability;
to raise the standards of complaints’ management across the Council;
to ensure the quality of complaints’ investigations are consistently high;
to encourage and support satisfactory resolution to customer complaints;
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to learn from complaints and use the information to improve service
provision;
to place a positive focus on complaints’ management.

3.5

The Head of Legal Services is the Council’s Corporate Complaints Officer.
She remains independent of any decisions, but may give guidance and
advice on procedure. She also acts as the Council’s link to respectively,
the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman and Housing
Ombudsman.

3.6

The CCP is managed by the Corporate Complaints Officer. Management
Team have overall responsibility for the CCP.

3.7

Complaints about the Council can be broadly categorised as follows:
(a) failure to provide a service at the level or standard expected of the
Council;
(b) the unhelpful attitude of an employee or contractor of the Council;
(c) neglect or delay in answering a query or responding to a request for
service;
(d) failure to follow the Council's agreed policies, rules or procedures;
(e) failure to take proper account of relevant matters in coming to a
decision;
(f) failure to tell people of their rights;
(g) malice, bias or unfair discrimination.

3.8

The following complaints are not covered by the CCP:
(a) requests for a service, e.g., the initial reporting of a fault;
(b) one - off service related complaints e.g. bins not emptied, are handled
by the Contact Centre;
(c) complaints about court proceedings;
(d) complaints about personnel matters concerning employees of the
Council;
(e) complaints about something which affects all or most of the inhabitants
of the Borough, for instance the amount of Council Tax being levied;
(f) complaints about matters for which there is a right of appeal to a
Tribunal or to a Government Minister, e.g., the refusal of planning
permission;
(g) complaints for which there is a legal remedy, e.g., an injury claim;
(h) complaints already being dealt with by the Local Government and
Social Care Ombudsman or Housing Ombudsman;
(i) complaints from employees of the Council (except as external users of
services);
(j) matters which have arisen more than three months before the
complaint is made, unless there are very special circumstances;
(k) matters connected with ‘internal malpractice’ and the employment
protection for individuals disclosing certain information in relation to the
workplace (refer through the Whistleblowing Policy);
(l) matters connected with the level of Housing Benefit/Council Tax
Support awarded;
(m) policy issues, e.g., the allocation of resources or prioritisation of works;
(n) complaints, which fall to be dealt with under the Member Code of
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Conduct.
3.9

The Regulators’ Code (April 2014) requires the Council to have a clear
and accessible complaints process. The Council is under a statutory duty
to have regard to the Code.

3.10

The means for making a complaint are actively promoted and information
about the complaints’ process is available via various leaflets, on-line
(website and intranet), the Civic Centre reception points and public outlets,
such as the Museum and Library. Customer Services has direct contact
with the majority of complainants and provide more detailed advice and
support to service users who may require assistance in expressing their
concerns or defining their complaints.

3.11

Complaints can be made in person, over the telephone, in writing by letter,
fax or email or through the Council’s website. Relay UK (previously Next
Generation Text) – a national relay service, assists people with hearing
and speech difficulties communicate with anyone over the phone.

3.12

Although the CCP has a three stage process, Officers are encouraged to
resolve issues informally in the first instance.
3.12.1
3.12.2
3.12.3

3.12.4

3.13

Informal process;
Stage One investigation by the service manager;
Stage Two investigation undertaken by an Officer independent of the
Stage One decision or the investigation may be outsourced when a
complaint is complex or contentious or when the Council’s
independence is likely to be questioned;
Stage Three – referral by the complainant, to the Local Government
and Social Care Ombudsman or Housing Ombudsman and if related
to a data protection, freedom of information/environmental
information regulations’ issues, to the Information Commissioner.

Response times are as follows:
3.13.1 Stage One - 15 working days
3.13.2 Stage Two – 21 working days

3.14

Complaints are managed entirely through Pentana (a performance
management system). The system provides for logging, tracking,
monitoring and reporting on complaints. Having instant access to
complaints’ information enables the Corporate Complaints Officer/relevant
Director to quickly identify issues of concern and pass them immediately
to the relevant service area for resolution. Management Team receive
quarterly updates.

3.15

Complaints’ data is analysed and grouped by departments, stages and
nature of complaints, response time and decisions. Equalities information
is recorded separately.

Training and development
3.16

Training of new front line staff, service managers and Departmental
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Complaints Officers is designed to help staff in developing their skills in:
3.16.1
3.16.2
3.16.3
3.16.4
3.16.5
3.16.6

defining and analysing complaints;
planning investigations and making the best use of sources of
information;
evaluating information and making sound decisions;
communicating those decisions effectively;
resolving and learning from complaints;
overcoming common problems.

3.17 Training for Stage Two investigators develops staff skills in:
3.17.1
3.17.2
3.17.3
3.17.4
3.17.5
3.17.6

defining and analysing complaints;
planning investigations and making the best use of sources of
information;
evaluating information and making sound decisions;
communicating those decisions effectively;
resolving and learning from complaints;
overcoming common problems.

All managers will undertake the LGO’s on-line training on accepting, investigating
and deciding complaints. Training will be completed by no later than 31 January
2021.
3.18

Shared [front line] services with Sevenoaks District Council currently
comprise Internal Audit, Revenues and Benefits (Revs & Bens) and
Environmental Health. Complaints against the Dartford element of the joint
service are dealt with and monitored in accordance with Dartford Council’s
complaints’ procedure.

Complaints’ analysis
3.19

Management Team receives reports on a quarterly basis. Directors
discuss with their managers, patterns of complaints and possible service
improvements etc. with a view to remedying any acknowledged
deficiencies as quickly as possible.

3.20

The information contained within Appendix A shows those complaints that
have been escalated through the various stages of the complaints
process. This Appendix details:

3.20.1 the number of complaints received;
3.20.2 at which stage complaints were handled;
3.20.3 the date of response together with the target date (15 working days for
Stage One: 21 working days for Stage Two);
3.20.4 nature of complaints received and the categories used for recording;
3.20.5 the actual outcomes (upheld, dismissed, partially upheld);
3.20.6 explanatory information.
The following provides an analysis of corporate and ombudsman complaints for the year
2019/20:
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(a) Response times
2018/2019

2019/2020

Number
investigated at
this stage

Percentage
completed within
timescale

Number
investigated
at this stage

Percentage
completed within
timescale

Stage 1

86

90.7%

100

94.5%

Stage 2

9

66.66%

15

57%

Local Government Ombudsman

2

-

10

-

Housing Ombudsman

4

-

2

-

Information Commissioner

-

-

-

-

Across the two internal stages, there has been an increase in the number of complaints
that were responded to within the specified response time. There has also been an
increase in the number of complaints received in total and across Stages One and Two of
the complaints process. Details of each complaint are provided in Appendix A.
(b) Outcome analysis
Outcome

2018/2019

2019/2020

Number

Percentage

Number

Percentage

Complaints upheld

17

17.2%

19

14.5%

Complaints partially upheld

26

26.3%

15

11.4%

Complaints dismissed

56

56.5

81

61.8%

-

-

4

3%

6

-

12

9.1%

Complaint processed but outcome not
recorded
Complaints referred to Ombudsman/
Information Commissioner

With 17.2% of complaints being upheld and 26.3% being partially upheld, the indication is
that the Council’s customers were reasonably justified in complaining and by doing so,
assisted the Council in improving its services. The percentage of complaints dismissed
has increased.
(c) Trends - Breakdown by service area
Service Area

Number of complaints

Ombudsman/Information
Commissioner Complaints

2018/2019

2019/2020

2018/2019

2019/20

Council Tax/Revenue &
Benefits/Fraud

27

10

0

2

Corporate Support

0

0

0

0

Customer Services

1

0

0

0

Planning/Development
Control

4

11

0

1

Environmental Health

5

4

0

2

Housing

42

70

2 to the LGO
4 to the Housing
Ombudsman

5 to the LGO
2 to the Housing
Ombudsman

Licensing

0

0

0

0

Waste and Recycling

7

8

0

0
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Parking and Regulatory
Enforcement

9

8

0

0

Parks

1

4

0

0

Bereavement Services

0

0

0

0

Electoral Services

1

1

0

0

Legal Services

4

0

0

0

Leisure

0

0

0

0

Finance

0

0

0

0

Other

0

3

0

0

(d) Breakdown by complaint type
Type

Number of complaints
2018/2019

2019/2020

DBC Staff

10

28

Contractor Staff

2

9

Services provided by DBC

84

79

Services provided by Contractor

5

9

(e) Compensation
2018/2019

2019/2020

Number of complaints where
compensation was paid

Percentage of total
number of complaints

Number of complaints where
compensation was paid

Percentage of total
number of complaints

1

0.99%

3
1 LGO
2 HO

2.36%

Directors have delegated authority to consider and agree monetary compensation in
exceptional circumstances. Compensation may be appropriate where the Council has failed
to perform a statutory obligation or its actions could amount to maladministration, particularly
where financial loss has occurred.
Lessons learned from complaints’ handling









local front line responsibility for complaint handling is the most crucial
aspect of the system;
informal resolution and apology should be immediate where possible;
useful to record complainants’ objectives such as: explanation,
apology, improvement or redress and the extent to which complainants
and those complained against, are satisfied with the process;
the definition of a complaint needs to be broad but measurable;
understanding the seriousness of complaints is essential to the
efficient management of complaints - serious complaints or clusters of
common complaints can raise issues of principle that require policy
review and action;
in most cases, local resolution (informal and formal) supported by
independent review processes (assessment, review, investigation,
decision and report) is appropriate;
timescales should be short but related to the complexity of the issue -
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however, an over emphasis on timescales can detract from outcomes
such as satisfaction with resolution and the improvement actions taken;
stage two investigators need skills in investigation and access to
expertise about service standards to reinforce their objectivity and
authority;
customers most often want an explanation, an apology and
reassurance that the same thing will not happen to others;
monitoring should involve real examples rather than just statistics and
focus on timescales, to the exclusion of other outcomes;
encourage feedback from staff and customers to improve the
complaints’ process.

3.21 How the information from complaints is used to improve working
practices and/or policy
The emphasis of effective complaints handling is on early and local
resolution of complaints and ensuring that learning is shared and
improvements acted upon as soon as possible after the issue that gave rise
to the complaint. Senior management take an active interest in complaints
and review the information gathered on a regular basis.
An analysis of complaints’ outcomes (Appendix A) provides a detailed record
of services that are not being provided to service users’ satisfaction. For
example, most of the complaints in Revs & Bens relate to concerns over
awards of housing benefit and council tax support or delays in processing
claims. As part of the ongoing review of the service to improve efficiency and
customer service, every effort is being made to improve the accuracy and
time taken to process claims. A team of quality checkers take a sample of
claims from each assessor to check that they have been processed
accurately and then additional training will be provided where it is clear that
an assessor is making numerous mistakes. Risk based verification has also
been introduced, which means that those low risk claims have far fewer
checks undertaken on them. This helps to speed up how quickly claims are
processed.
On occasion, complaints refer to a member of staff not being as helpful or
polite as they should be. Where this happens, service managers will speak
to the member of staff and remind them of the need for good customer
service. Very occasionally, staff may be put forward for additional training in
good customer care.
Satisfaction surveys
3.22 Complainants are routinely surveyed at the close of the complaint. There are
no national indicators that assess the satisfaction with complaints handling.
From an analysis of responses received, it would appear that some
customers view the satisfaction survey process as a further opportunity to
prolong their complaint. This is unfortunate and calls into question the merits
of continuing with the satisfaction surveys. Management Team considered
whether it was appropriate to use a different method of surveying complaints
e.g. telephone rather than written, as any attempt to continue the complaint
could be closed down immediately and whether a replacement indicator
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such as the number of complaints that are escalated through the various
stages of the CCP could be considered. It was agreed, that for the time
being, the satisfaction surveys be continued.
Equalities and Diversity
3.23 Local authorities are subject to the public sector equality duty (PSED) in the
Equality Act 2010. The PSED is the reformulated and broadened version of
the ‘due regard’ duties on public authorities, which apply to discrimination on
grounds of age, sexual orientation, religion or belief, gender reassignment
and pregnancy and maternity, as well as on grounds of race, sex and
disability.
3.24 The Council has explicit objectives of improving equality of access to
complaints for vulnerable people, those with language barriers or speech
problems etc. The complaint’s form and leaflets are written in plain English.
Braille, large print, audio and language line (interpretation) facilities are
available on request. The Council also welcomes calls via Relay UK.
3.25 Customers are asked to complete equalities monitoring data when they
submit a complaint form either in hard copy or online. The completion of the
equalities data is discretionary and a significant number of complainants
choose not to provide this information. However many people do provide this
data so it is hopefully indicative of overall trends. This data is collected to
ensure that the Council is treating all members of its community fairly and
making its CCP accessible to all individuals. The results of equalities
monitoring is set out at Appendix B to the report.
Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman
3.26 The Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman (LGO) is responsible for
deciding whether maladministration, service failure or both have occurred in
relation to the service provided. The LGO’s views are final, subject only to
judicial review by the courts.
3.27 One of the key priorities for the LGO is to continue to ensure that complaints
are resolved at a local level. The LGO will only normally investigate if the
local complaints’ procedure has been exhausted.
On 31 July 2019, the LGO launched a new interactive map, called ‘Your
Council's Performance’. The intention of this new tool is to place a focus on
local authorities’ compliance with LGO investigations.
Two complaints were submitted to the LGO who partially upheld one
complaint that related to noise nuisance arising from a firework display in
Central Park and resulted in recommendations in relation to the Council’s
processes and policy for event management. The other complaint relating to
the repeated failure to collect refuse was upheld on the grounds of
inconvenience caused to the complainant by fault and, in addition to
supporting the Council’s payment of £100 by way of compensation as part
of the resolution at Stage 2, the LGO instructed the Council to issue a further
apology and to monitor the collection of refuse from the complainant’s
property for a defined period of time.
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The LGO’s Annual Review Letter 2020 was reported to Cabinet
[24/09/2020:Min.No.148].
3.28 The LGO has issued principles for authorities to consider when setting up
arrangements for third parties to deliver services on its behalf and will treat
any complaint about a service provided by a third party on behalf of the
Council, as being against the Council. This means that the Council maintains
responsibility for third party actions, including complaint handling, no matter
what the arrangements are with that party.
Where complaints involve contractors, the LGO provides contractors with
the opportunity to comment as part of the investigation and decision-making
process.
Information Commissioner
3.29 In the year 2019/2020, no complaints alleging data breaches were referred
to the Information Commissioner.
Housing Ombudsman
3.30 All social housing (landlord related functions) complaints are dealt with by
the Housing Ombudsman.
3.31 Under section 180 of the Localism Act 2011, local authority tenants can ask
for their complaints to be considered by a ‘designated person’ when their
landlord’s internal complaints’ procedure has been exhausted. The
introduction of a ‘designated person’ is intended to involve local politicians
and local people in resolving housing issues.
3.32 A ‘designated person’ has no legal authority over Council housing policies
or procedures. The ‘designated person’ can either try to resolve the
complaint themselves or they can, with the consent of the complainant, refer
the complaint to the Housing Ombudsman. If the ‘designated person’ refuses
to do either, the complainant can contact the Ombudsman directly, subject
to waiting 8 weeks from the date of the Stage Two decision.
3.33 A ‘designated person’ can be any Member of Parliament, a local councillor
or a designated tenant panel. MPs and local councillors (not County or
Parish/Town Councillors) automatically become ‘designated persons’ at the
commencement of and throughout their term of office.
Cabinet agreed that there would be advantages in designating a specific
Member to fulfil the role, as that Member could be trained and supported by
the Housing team to fully understand the operations and obligations of the
Housing service, prior to dealing with any complaints. Appointing a Member
specifically to this role also provides a single point of contact for consistency
of approach and leaves Tenant Groups, the local MP and Housing Portfolio
member free to continue in their current roles, without conflict of interest
issues arising. Councillor D Hammock was appointed the ‘designated
person’ [Cabinet 25.04.13: Min.No.185] and has received training from the
Head of Legal Services and Head of Housing.
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3.34 In the year 2019/2020, two complains were referred to the ‘designated
person’.
3.35 In the year 2019/2020, the Housing Ombudsman dealt with ten complaints

against the Council as landlord. This number is comparable to the 2018/19
data. One complaint resulted in a find of maladministration and the other as
a no maladministration finding.
The Housing Ombudsman will start publishing reports in November 2020.
Conclusion
3.36 Quarterly reports to Management Team identify any apparent trends that are
then taken up by the relevant Director with the service department
concerned, with a view to recommending and/or agreeing on action to
minimise or avoid similar complaints in future.
3.37 The Council will continue to monitor the effectiveness of its CCP including
the Pentana system, to ensure consistency of data and fitness for purpose.
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan
The Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness,
probity and accountability both as an employer and as a provider of services.
In line with this commitment, the Council encourages its customers to voice
their concerns (through the Corporate Complaints Procedure), as an
opportunity to put things right for the customer and to improve services.
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk
assessments
Financial Implications

None

Legal Implications

None

Staffing Implications

None

Administrative Implications

None

Risk Assessment

Failing to follow the Corporate Complaints
Procedure
could
result
in
a
maladministration
decision
by
the
Ombudsmen against the Council

6. Details of Exempt Information Category
Not applicable
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7. Appendices
Appendix A – Corporate Complaints Analysis 2019/2020
Appendix B – Equalities Analysis 2019/2020
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Date /
File Ref

Report Author
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Section and
Directorate

Legal Services/
Strategic
Directorate
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Services)

Exempt
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Category
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Stage 1

Service

Description

Opened Date

1235 - 4.19

Housing

Alleged
maladministration over 08-Apr-2019
tenancy and rent

1237

Parks

Misuse of public open
space by motor
vehicles

1238 -12.19 Council Tax

Due Date

25-Apr-2019

15-Apr-2019

09-May-2019

Bailiff involved with no
08-Apr-2019
prior notice to property

30-Apr-2019

Completed
Date

28-May-2019

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage 1
completed in Partially
33 working Upheld
days.

Stage History

Stage 1 opened 8 April
and closed 28 May 2019.

Action Taken

Payment levels re assessed
and increased.

Manager confirms that the
Stage 1 complaint opened
complaint was dealt with
15 April 2019.
but has not kept a record.
07-May-2019

Stage 1
Upheld
completed in

Stage 1 opened 8 April
and closed on 7 May
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Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

managers

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

19 working
days.

Stage History

Action Taken

2019.

25-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
26 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 15 April
and closed 25 May 2019

Stage 1 opened 26 April
and closed 28 May 2019.

Housing

Noise nuisance from
above flat

1242 4 19

Housing

Alleged problems with
housing allocations
interview and form
completion

26-Apr-2019

20-May-2019

28-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in Partially
20 working Upheld
days.

1243 4 19

Elections

Alleged problem with
mobile polling station
blocking drive

26-Apr-2019

20-May-2019

16-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
13 working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
26 April and closed 16
May 2019.

Housing

Problems with
provisions of lease for
property owned by
complainant and used
for Council
accommodation

24-Apr-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Upheld
5 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 16 April
Rent reviewed and monthly
and closed 24 April 2019. increase confirmed.

Housing Rents

Alleged over charging
of rent by Council

29-Apr-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Complaint dismissed and
Stage 1 opened 26 April
request to escalate to
and closed 29 April 2019. Stage 2 denied by Sheri
Green

1240 -4.19

1247 4 19

1248 5 19

Development
Control

Alleged mal
administration of
planning application.

16-Apr-2019

26-Apr-2019

07-Jun-2019

09-May-2019

10-May-2019

15-May-2019

28-Jun-2019

30-Aug-2019

Stage 1
completed in Outside
70 working Jurisdiction
days.

Stage 1 opened 7 June
and closed 30 August
2019.

Staff not providing good
enough customer care.
Case transferred to another
case worker.
Staff training undertaken
to ensure no repeat of this.
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Reference
ID

Originally not treated as a
complaint as the
Complainant could appeal
to Planning Inspectorate
against the decision.
Complainant subsequently
complained about the
officer dealing with the
case.

Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

08-May-2019

Stage 1 opened 2 May
and closed on 8 May
2019.

Stage 1 opened 5 May
and closed 9 May 2019.

Stage 1 opened 6 May
and closed 7 May 2019.

Referred to contractor to
deal with.

Stage 1 opened 29 April
2019.

Manager confirms that the
complaint was dealt with
but has not kept a record.

16-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
6 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 8 May
and closed 16 May 2019.

Confirmed that neighbour
had cut off water supply
but not upheld as Council
not aware - separate
supply being installed to
prevent reoccurrence

13-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
5 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 7 May
and closed 13 May 2019.

Letter to complainant
explaining responsibilities
and charges

14-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
2 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 10 May
and closed 14 May 2019.

24-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
11 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 9 May
and closed 24 May 2019.

1250 5 19

Environmental
Protection

Excessive noise from
neighbour

05-May-2019

28-May-2019

09-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Withdrawn
3 working
days.

1251 - 5 19

Environmental
Protection

Alleged incorrect issue
of FPN for littering,
attitude of
06-May-2019
enforcement officer, IT
link to Council

23-May-2019

07-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in Outside
1 working Jurisdiction
day.

1252 5 19

Refuse
Collection

Continual missed
29-Apr-2019
collection of brown bin.

21-May-2019

1253 -5 19

Housing
Repairs

Problems with water
supply - leasehold flat
- neighbour keeps
turning water off,
issues with repair
service.

1254 -5 19

Housing
Services

Alleged failure to
maintain leasehold
property.

Housing

Overhanging Trees on
Council Land

Housing

Alleged delay in
dealing with Request to
09-May-2019
write off rent arrears,
and poor advice given

1255 5 19

1256 5 19

06-May-2019

10-May-2019

30-May-2019

29-May-2019

01-Jun-2019

30-May-2019

This is really a service
request. The neighbour's
behaviour improved and
the case was closed with
the agreement of the
complainant.
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1249 - 5 19

08-May-2019

Action Taken

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
4 working
days.

Alleged issues with
allocations and bidding 02-May-2019
process

24-May-2019

Stage History

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

by housing officers
Refuse
Collection
Service

Continual failure to
collect refuse

1258 5 19

Housing
Services

Damage to furniture
caused by removal
company acting for
Council

15-May-2019

06-Jun-2019

1259 5 19

Housing
Contractor

Alleged theft of
equipment and tools
from garage while
carrying out repairs to
roof.

17-May-2019

05-Jun-2019

1260 5 19

Refuse
collection and
Damage to
Green bin

Complainant alleges
green bin smashed by
refuse truck and
replaced with smaller
inferior brown model.

27-May-2019

13-Jun-2019

1261 5 19

Housing

Damage caused by
17-May-2019
plasterers in bathroom.

1262 5 19

Alleged delays in
Housing
repairing hot water and 18-May-2019
Repairs service
heating boiler.

1263

1264

14-May-2019

Waste and
Recycling

Communal rubbish bins
have not been
07-Jun-2019
collected for over 3
months.

Housing

Delays by the council's
contractor, TSG, in
12-Jun-2019
repairing a tenant's hot
water system.

Stage 1 opened 14 May
2019.

04-Jun-2019

05-Jun-2019

06-Jun-2019

28-Jun-2019

03-Jul-2019

Manager confirms that the
complaint was dealt with
but has not kept a record.

28-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
8 working
days

Stage 1 opened 15 May
and closed 28 May 2019.

29-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
7 working
days.

Complainant advised to
Stage 1 complaint opened
contact police as they are
17 May and closed 29
alleging theft from garage
May 2019.
by contractor

Stage 1 opened 27 May
2019.

Manager confirms that the
complaint was dealt with
but has not kept a record.

29-May-2019

Stage 1
competed in
Upheld
7 working
days.

Communication issues

Apologies given and £40
decorating voucher given

29-May-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
6 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 18 May
and closed 29 May 2019.

Service provided within
timescale set as Policy.

10-Jun-2019

Stage one
complaint
completed in Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 complaint opened
7 June 2019 and closed
on 10 June 2019.

17-Jun-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Upheld
3 working
days

Stage 1 complaint opened
12 June and closed 17
June 2019.
An apology was issued for
the 3-week delay in
repairing the hot water

An apology was issued for
the 3-week delay in
repairing the hot water
system.
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Reference
ID

Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

system.

1266

Housing

Lack of communication
by the Housing
Solutions team
17-Jun-2019
resulting in delays in
being able to bid for
properties.

1267 -6.19

Revenues and
Benefits

Conflicting information
on benefits issues 21-Jun-2019
back dating of arrears
etc.

1268

Poor quality of
Temporary
emergency
Accommodation accommodation and
length of stay.

1265

17-Jun-2019

24-Jun-2019

08-Jul-2019

08-Jul-2019

12-Jul-2019

15-Jul-2019

19-Jun-2019

Dismissed

The complainant’s housing
Stage 1 complaint opened banding was backdated to
17 June and closed 5 July reflect the advice that
2019.
should have originally been
provided to her.

11-Jul-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
14 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 21 June
and closed 11 July 2019.

03-Jul-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Upheld
7 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 24 June
and closed 3 July 2019.

Repairs to property
arranged with landlord

09-Jul-2019

Stage 1
completed in Outside
3 working Jurisdiction
days.

Stage 1 opened 4 July
and closed 9 July 2019.

Referred to insurers for
investigation.

The complainant had made
a payment to his Council
Stage 1 opened on 3 July
Tax account rather than his
and closed on 5 July
Housing Rent account. The
2019.
payments were traced and
the accounts reconciled.
Stage opened and closed
on 8 July 2019.

Housing

1273

Housing Rents

Alleged removal of
money from
complainants bank
accounts by rental
service

03-Jul-2019

24-Jul-2019

05-Jul-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
2 working
days.

1275

Other

Child sustained fall due
to footway block
08-Jul-2019
having lifted

30-Jul-2019

08-Jul-2019

Stage 1
completed in Dismissed
1 working

7 19

04-Jul-2019

25-Jul-2019

Agenda Item 7

05-Jul-2019

Stage 1
completed in Partially
14 working Upheld
days.

Alleged injury to
runner caused by
metal rod protruding
into pathway

1272

Stage 1 complaint opened
17 June 2019 and Closed
on 19 June 2019. 2
working days.
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Housing

Alleged allocation to
unsuitable
accommodation.

Stage 1
complaint
opened 17
June 2019
and Closed
on 19 June
2019. 2
working
days.

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

day.

1276 6 19

Harassment

Complainant accuses a
housing officer of
harassment relating to 18-Jun-2019
ASB and related
matters

09-Jul-2019

Harassment by
contractor

Alleged harassment of
member of public by
Kingdom contractor

10-Jul-2019

01-Aug-2019

1279

Housing
Repairs

Alleged delays in
repairs to hot water
and heating system in
temporary
accommodation

16-Jul-2019

06-Aug-2019

1280

Alleged damage caused
Parks and Open
by trees and lack of
17-Jul-2019
spaces
pruning

1281

Parks

Alleged damage to
property caused by
tree roots, condition of
17-Jul-2019
adjoining council
owned land, treatment
of initial enquiry.

1283 8 19

Planning
complaint

Complainant alleges
mal administration in
Planning process to

01-Aug-2019

Outside
Jurisdiction

Stage 1 opened on 18
June and closed on 8 July
2019.

Stage 1 opened 10 July
2019.

Referred to contractor. As
a result of the production
of this report EARS
contacted the complainant
on 13 August 2020 who
confirmed that he had not
heard anything from the
contractor. EARS have
contacted Kingdom and
stressed the need to
respond to complaints
correctly. The complainant
has confirmed that he is
happy with the outcome.
Arrangements made
repairs to be carried out.

14-Aug-2019

Stage 1
completed in Partially
21 working Upheld
days.

Stage 1 opened 16 July
and closed on 14 August
2019.

14-Aug-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
20 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 17 July
and closed 14 August
2019.

07-Aug-2019

25-Jul-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
6 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 17 July
and closed on 25 July
2019.

22-Aug-2019

01-Aug-2019

Stage 1
opened and Dismissed
closed in 1

Stage 1 opened and
closed on 1 August 2019.

07-Aug-2019
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08-Jul-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
14 working
days.
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Reference
ID

Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

allow development on
adjoining property

1285 8 19

1290

Stage History

working day.

31-Jul-2019

20-Aug-2019

14-Aug-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
10 working
days.

Stage 1 opened on 31
July and closed on 14
August 2019.
An apology has been
issued for a breakdown in
communication on the
Council's part and an
update of the existing
Stage 1 complaint opened housing need requirements
1 August and closed 7
has been provided. The
August 2019.
Head of Housing is
conducting a review of the
case to ensure that the
Council meets its
obligations to the
complainant.

01-Aug-2019

22-Aug-2019

07-Aug-2019

Stage 1
complaint
completed in Upheld
4 working
days.

Housing

The complainant has
downsized to a smaller
property, which he
alleges was in a poor
condition and has
resulted in
01-Aug-2019
considerable
restorative works
having to be carried
out after his family had
moved in and
redecorated.

22-Aug-2019

02-Aug-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 complaint opened
1 August and closed 2
August 2019.

Housing

Alleged failure of a
member of the Housing
Solutions Team to
07-Aug-2019
understand the
background to his
application for housing

08-Aug-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 complaint opened
7 August and closed 8
August 2019.

Alleged failure to
Housing Advice respond to emails
Service
regarding clients
housing options

Action Taken

29-Aug-2019

Agenda Item 7

1289

Actual
Outcome
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1288 8 19

Housing

Complainant alleges
poor service by
housing advisors,
rudeness, and lack of
empathy

Response
Time
(working
days)

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

on the grounds of
homelessness.
Planning

1292 8 19

Refuse
collection
Service

Alleged damage to
property and issues
relating to refuse
collection and attitude
of the Contractor

14-Aug-2019

05-Sep-2019

03-Sep-2019

Stage 1
completed in Partially
13 working Upheld
days.

Stage opened 14 August
and closed 3 September
2019.

Matter of damaged gate
referred to Contractors
Insurer.

1293 8 19

Parking

Alleged overcharging
at Central Park Car
Park

16-Aug-2019

09-Sep-2019

16-Aug-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 opened and
closed 16 August 2019.

The complainant paid a car
park fee twice in error. One
of the fees was refunded.

1294 8 19

Housing

Complainant alleges
that delays in housing
service will cause her
to become homeless

22-Aug-2019

13-Sep-2019

03-Sep-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
7 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 22
August and closed 3
September 2019.

Complainant contacted and
advised of situation re her
application.

1297 9 19

Council Tax
Rebate

Complainant wants
rebate for vacant
property extended on a 03-Sep-2019
property leased to
DBC.

25-Sep-2019

Stage 1
completed in Partially
16 working Upheld
days.

Stage 1 opened 3
HB Calculation revised and
September and closed 25 complainant advised of
September 2019.
new payment plan.

1298 9 19

Housing

Alleged neglect of
relations in sheltered
accommodation

05-Sep-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
7 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 27
August and closed 5
September 2019.

1299 9 19

Housing /
Enforcement

Harassment of
residents on estate

25-Sep-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Upheld
14 working
days.

Police have been involved,
Stage opened 5
incident with neighbour,
September and closed 25
ASB on the estate
September 2019.
addressed.

Housing

Complainant allegedly
hit head on lighting,
which had been
lowered by contractor.

10-Sep-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Upheld
1 working
day.

1300 9 19

08-Aug-2019

30-Aug-2019

27-Aug-2019

05-Sep-2019

09-Sep-2019

24-Sep-2019

17-Sep-2019

26-Sep-2019

01-Oct-2019

22-Aug-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
10 working
days.

Stage 1 opened on 8
August and closed on 22
August 2019.

Planning practices to be
reviewed as a result of
GDPR concerns.

Stage 1 complaint opened Explained contractor
9 September and closed
actions and referred
10 September 2019.
Complainant to Insurance
section. Temporary repair
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1291 8 19

Complainant unhappy
that his details were
published on planning
complaints website

Agenda Item 7

Reference
ID

Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken
to be remedied to make
safe.

1303 - 9 19

Officer
Rudeness
Housing

Complainant alleges
that P Dosad was rude
and aggressive toward 13-Sep-2019
her at a public
consultation meeting

1304 9 19

Housing
allocations

Complainant believes
that allocations system
is not giving her any
25-Sep-2019
chance of achieving
property

Parking and
Regulatory
Enforcement

The complainant
parked his van illegally
in the Civic Centre car
park. On returning to
the vehicle, he found a
warning notice had
been fixed to the
vehicle displaying his
03-Oct-2019
name and address. He
alleges that he was
surrounded by 4 DBC
enforcement staff from
the CSU who behaved
aggressively and
complains that
displaying his

1305

26-Sep-2019

02-Oct-2019

04-Oct-2019

24-Oct-2019

12-Sep-2019

26-Sep-2019

9 days.

Dismissed

Stage 1 complaint opened
13 September and closed
SG could find no evidence
on 26 September 2019.
of allegations.
Completed in 9 working
days.

26-Sep-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 complaint opened
25 September and closed
26 September 2019.

23-Oct-2019

Stage 1
complaint
completed in Dismissed
13 working
days.

Council Officers within their
Stage 1 complaint opened rights to challenge
3rd October and closed on complainant and film
23rd October 2019.
situation

Agenda Item 7

Housing

Stage 1 complaint opened
9 September and closed
12 September 2019.
Completed in 3 working
days.
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1301 9 19

Complainant unhappy
with attitude of Officer
09-Sep-2019
and at current housing
situation

Stage 1
complaint
opened 9
September
and closed
12
Dismissed
September
2019.
Completed in
3 working
days.

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

particulars broke data
protection rules.
Housing

1309 19 10

Housing
Repairs

Alleged poor finish to
replacement bathroom 15-Oct-2019
- water damage etc.

Parking

Alleged inappropriate
use of parking permits
by commuters

Housing

Complainant alleges
misleading information
17-Oct-2019
released to her MP by
housing allocations

Housing
Repairs

Complainant alleges
poor quality work by
contractor and mal
administration by
Council over repairs
charging.

Housing

Alleged loss of phone
amongst property
stored in a garage
following eviction for
rent arrears and the
clearance of the
garage.

Housing

Alleged delay in
dealing with a faulty
boiler and the length of 04-Nov-2019
the out-of-hours
services to respond.

1310 19 10

1311 19 10

1313 19 10

1316

1318

08-Oct-2019

08-Oct-2019

18-Oct-2019

30-Oct-2019

25-Oct-2019

01-Nov-2019

29-Oct-2019

05-Nov-2019

06-Nov-2019

20-Nov-2019

25-Nov-2019

24-Oct-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
12 working
days.

17-Oct-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
2 working
days.

09-Oct-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 complaint opened
8 October and closed on 9
October 2019.

18-Oct-2019

Stage 1
complaint
completed in Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 complaint opened
Complainant offered new
on 17th October and
property through the
completed on 18th
allocations policy
October 2019.

21-Oct-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 complaint opened
18 October and closed 21
October 2019.

04-Nov-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
3 working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
on 30 October and closed
4 November 2019.

06-Nov-2019

Stage 1
complaint
Partially
dealt with in
Upheld
2 working
days.

An apology was issued in
Stage 1 complaint opened
respect of the time taken
on 4 November and
by the out-of-hours service
closed on 6 November
to respond to the
2019. Partially upheld.
complainant’s telephone

Stage 1 complaint opened
8 October and closed on
24 October 2019.
Damage caused by
inappropriate use - bath
not designed for shower.
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1308 1019

Complainant alleges ill
treatment and
rudeness by Housing
Officer.

Agenda Item 7

Reference
ID

Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken
call. However, the fault
was repaired within the
Council's specified
timescale.

Housing

1322 11 19

Housing
Repairs

Alleged delays in
attendance by
contractor to repair
boiler

Other

Complainant alleges
unreasonable
behaviour by caretaker
18-Nov-2019
when clearing up after
booking, and wants
deposit returned in full.

Housing
Repairs

Complainant claims
that Housing took too
long to contact
adjoining landlord re
leaking heating from
upstairs flat causing
damage to contents
and flat.

1325 12 19

Revenues and
Benefits

Complaint re financial
attachment to earnings
28-Nov-2019
to recover owed
amount

1326 19

Housing Rents

Complainant alleges ill06-Dec-2019
mannered response to

1323 - 11 19

1324
190

11

14-Nov-2019

18-Nov-2019

25-Nov-2019

26-Nov-2019

06-Dec-2019

19-Nov-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
2 working
days.

09-Dec-2019

28-Nov-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Upheld
8 working
days.

Apology offered. Service
Stage 1 complaint opened
failures addressed with
18 November and closed
contractor and training
28 November 2019.
programme put in place.

26-Nov-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
6 working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
18 November and closed
26 November 2019.

27-Nov-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
2 working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
25 November and closed
27 November 2019.

17-Dec-2019

03-Dec-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
3 working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
on 28 November and
closed on 3 December
2019.

31-Dec-2019

10-Dec-2019

Stage 1
Dismissed
completed in

Stage 1 opened 6
December and closed 10

05-Dec-2019

05-Dec-2019

12-Dec-2019

Stage 1 complaint opened
14th and closed on 26th
November 2019.
Stage 1 complaint opened
15 November 2019 and
closed 19 November
2019.

Agenda Item 7

1321

Alleged incorrect
assessment of housing
need resulting in
15-Nov-2019
inability to bid for
properties.

1320

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
6 working
days.
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Council Tax

Alleged stress caused
by taking enforcement
action for Council Tax
arrears.

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

enquiry re amending
rent payments

Council Tax

Complainant alleges
summons issued even
13-Dec-2019
though Direct Debit set
up to pay bill.

1330 19

Enforcement

Complainant alleges
rudeness and
aggressiveness from
Enforcement staff

1331 19

Complainant alleges
misinformation by BC
Building Control
Officer and additional
works necessary.

1332 19

1333 19

1334 19

Housing

Housing

Housing

06-Dec-2019

Complainant alleges
multiple requests for
resolution of repairs,

01-Jan-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
6 working
days.

16-Dec-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 opened 13
December and closed on
16 December 2019.
Stage 1 opened on 17
December and closed 20
December 2019.
Stage 1 opened 9
December and closed 19
December 2019.

17-Dec-2019

03-Jan-2020

20-Dec-2019

09-Dec-2019

26-Dec-2019

19-Dec-2019

Stage 1
completed in Dismissed
8 days.

29-Nov-2019

30-Dec-2019

07-Jan-2020

20-Dec-2019

22-Jan-2020

20-Dec-2019

Stage 1
completed in Dismissed
1 day.

Action Taken

December 2019.

18-Dec-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
3 working
days.

Complaint about use of
19-Dec-2019
ASB order by tenant.

Alleged harassment
from Landlord etc.

25-Dec-2019

Stage History

Officer spoke to
complainant and the
matter was resolved
informally.
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Housing
Allocations

1329 19

Actual
Outcome

2 working
days.

Complainant alleges
inefficiency and mal
administration in
dealing with her
housing allocation
case.

1327 19

Response
Time
(working
days)

Agenda Item 7

Reference
ID

Stage 1 opened 19
December and closed 20
December 2019.

Complainant warned about
use of derogatory language
about staff and sent a
leaflet on where to seek
help for mental health
issues.

20-Dec-2019

Stage 1
completed in Dismissed
15 days.

Stage 1 opened 29
November and closed 20
December 2019.

Complaint relates to the
behaviour of a private
landlord. The Council has
offered to raise his
behaviour with him if the
tenant provides his contact
details.

30-Jan-2020

Stage 1
completed in Partially
22 working Upheld
days.

Stage 1 opened 30
December 2019 and
closed 22 January 2020.

Partially upheld in respect
of the condition of the
property and failure to
respond to emails.

Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

relocation due to in
unsuitability and
removal of drug
related litter and
failure to respond to
emails.

Dismissed in respect of the
suitability of the location.
Staff processes put in place
to ensure timely responses
are made to future contact.

Complainant alleges
rude behaviour by staff
and management in
Leasehold Services and 02-Jan-2020
challenges liability for
paying for roof repairs
to a communal
building.

Housing

1337 20

Housing
Repairs

Complainant seeks a
better speedier service 10-Jan-2020
for a simple repair

1338 20

Housing
Repairs

Complainant has been
without hot water or
heating for 7 days

Alleged miscalculation
and maladministration
of Housing Benefit and
failure to inform her of
17-Dec-2019
a change to
entitlement as
information was
emailed rather than
posted.

1340 20

Council Tax

Complainant has
received summons for
unpaid CT for period
when property was
vacant.

1341 20

Housing

Complainant alleges

Stage 1
completed in Dismissed
4 days.

Stage 1 opened 2 January
and closed 8 January
2020.

29-Jan-2020

10-Jan-2020

Stage 1
completed in Upheld
1 day.

Stage 1 opened and
closed on 10 January
2020.

An apology has been
offered and arrangements
made to undertake a
comprehensive repair.

30-Jan-2020

23-Jan-2020

Stage 1
completed in Upheld
8 days.

Stage 1 opened 13
January and closed 23
January 2020.

An apology has been
offered and arrangements
made to repair the boiler.

15-Jan-2020

13-Jan-2020

Stage 1
Partially
completed in
Upheld
13 days.

Stage 1 opened 17
December 2019 and
closed 15 January 2020.

An apology was offered for
a slight delay in making a
decision on Housing Benefit
and for stress caused.

Stage 1
completed in Upheld
6 days.

Stage 1 opened 10
January and closed 20
January 2020.

An apology has been
offered for failure to update
records in a timely fashion.
Summons cancelled.

10-Jan-2020

31-Jan-2020

20-Jan-2020

14-Jan-2020

31-Jan-2020

29-Jan-2020

Stage 1

Dismissed

Stage 1 opened 14

Agenda Item 7

1339 20

13-Jan-2020

08-Jan-2020

21-Jan-2020
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1336 20

Revenues and
Benefits

Action Taken

Service
Harassment

1343 20

1344 20

Environmental
Health

Planning
Enforcement

1347 20

Housing

1348 20

Planning

Opened Date

Due Date

harassment by Housing
Officer relating to
Community Protection
Orders
Complainant alleges
non response to noise
complaint

Lack of response to
noise complaint.

Complainant alleges
staff were upset by
contact email re
enforcement on an
adjoining property.

Alleged breach of data
protection - released
picture of illegally
parked vehicle by a
neighbour.

Complainant alleges

21-Jan-2020

11-Feb-2020

22-Jan-2020

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

completed in
11 days.

January and closed 29
January 2020.

Stage 1
completed in Dismissed
1 day.

Stage 1 opened 21
January and closed 22
January 2020.

Relates to a KCC
responsibility.

Stage 1 opened 19
January and closed 27
January 2020.

Complainant states lack of
response to repeated
complaints about noise. His
complaints were made
through a web site called
RESOLVER to which the
Council does not subscribe.
He has been advised to
submit his complaint via
the Council's procedure.

Stage 1 opened 23
January and closed 24
January 2020

Apology offered.

Stage 1 opened 24
January and closed 7
February 2020.

The complainant accused
the Council of a breach of
data protection by sharing
a photo taken by the
complainant of his
neighbour's illegally parked
vehicle. The complaint was
dismissed on 7 February
but the complainant raised
further allegations on 4
March, which were
dismissed on 2 April 2020
following advice from Legal
Services.

Stage 1 opened on 29
January and closed on 14

19-Jan-2020

07-Feb-2020

27-Jan-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
5 working
days.

23-Jan-2020

13-Feb-2020

24-Jan-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Upheld
1 working
day.

24-Jan-2020

14-Feb-2020

07-Feb-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
10 working
days.

29-Jan-2020

19-Feb-2020

14-Feb-2020

Stage 1
Dismissed
completed in
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1346 20

Environmental
Protection

Description

Completed
Date

Agenda Item 7

Reference
ID

Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

poor service from
Planning Officer and
failure to follow correct
processes.

Actual
Outcome

12 working
days.

Stage History

Action Taken

February 2020.

28-Feb-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
19 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 3
February and closed on
28 February 2020.

12-Feb-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
2 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 10
February and closed 12
February 2020.

14-Feb-2020

05-Feb-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Upheld
8 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 24
January and closed 5
February 2020.

Complainant alleges
neglect of garages and
11-Feb-2020
deterioration of whole
area

28-Feb-2020

12-Feb-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 opened 11
February and closed 12
February 2020.

Complaint relates to

03-Mar-2020

18-Feb-2020

Complainant alleges
dangerous dogs in her
31-Jan-2020
block of flats - children
at risk

1350 20

Parking /
Enforcement

Complainant alleges
mistaken issue of PCN
as Blue Badge on
display

Housing

Alleged rudeness by
housing staff

1353 20

Housing
Repairs

Alleged misinformation
given by night
response service to
24-Jan-2020
water leak in council
property affecting
electric supply

1354 20

Housing
/Garage
Repairs

1357

Housing

03-Feb-2020

10-Feb-2020

17-Feb-2020

20-Feb-2020

24-Feb-2020

27-Feb-2020

Stage 1

Dismissed

Stage 1 opened on 17

Apology offered. Contractor
reminded of the correct
procedure and training has
been provided.

Agenda Item 7

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
8 working
days.

Housing
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12-Feb-2020

Complainant alleged that
dangerous dogs were being
kept in communal areas
but provided no details.
Response sent on 12
February 2020 seeking
Stage 1 opened on 31
further information. Further
January and closed on 12 online complaint was
February 2020.
submitted on 6 July 2020
objecting to paying charges
made to tenants for
maintaining communal
grounds. Response sent 8
July 2020 dismissing this
aspect of the complaint.

1349 20

1351 20

Response
Time
(working
days)

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

anti-social parking and
behaviour on a council
estate and alleged rude
behaviour of Housing
staff.

1359

1361

1362

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

completed in
1 working
day.

February and closed on
18 February 2020.

12-Mar-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
18 working
days.

Response delayed due to
Stage 1 complaint opened
problems experienced in
17 February and closed
contacting the
on 12 March 2020.
complainant.

Stage 1 opened on 7
February and closed on
17 February 2020.

Parking
Enforcement

The complainant
alleges that parking
enforcement officers
are themselves parking
illegally when issuing
17-Feb-2020
penalty notices to
other motorists
thereby setting a bad
example.

Revenues and
Benefits

The complainant
alleged that the
Council provided him
with inaccurate
information on how to
apply for universal
07-Feb-2020
credit resulting in him
receiving a court
summons and that the
Council sought to evict
him for rent arrears.

28-Feb-2020

17-Feb-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
6 working
days.

Housing

Alleged failure to
complete decoration
works to the
complainant’s
bathroom and
cancellation of 8
appointments by the
contractor.

09-Mar-2020

20-Feb-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 complaint opened
19 February 2020 and
closed on 20 February
2020.

Enforcement &
Regulatory
Services

The complainant
admits to dropping a
cigarette butt down a
drain, resulting in
being given a litter
enforcement fine, but

24-Feb-2020

Stage 1
completed in Outside
2 working Jurisdiction
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
Passed to Kingdom for
on 20 February and
resolution in accordance
closed on 24 February
with the SLA.
2020.

19-Feb-2020

20-Feb-2020

09-Mar-2020

12-Mar-2020

The complainant
approached the
Ombudsman who declined
to investigate, as there is a
right of appeal to a
tribunal.
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1360

Response
Time
(working
days)

Agenda Item 7

Reference
ID

Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

claims that he was
unaware that this was
prohibited and believed
that he was acting
responsibly. He is
seeking cancellation of
the penalty.

1365 3 20

Housing

Complainant requests
re housing or
substantial
adaptations, and
alleges abuse from
visiting workman and
warden.

1368

Housing :
Garage

Complainant unhappy
that garage is to be
demolished

Housing

Alleged rudeness by
call centre staff

Housing

Complaint re out of
hours service

1363 20

1372

1373

10-Mar-2020

12-Mar-2020

20-Mar-2020

25-Mar-2020

18-Mar-2020

31-Mar-2020

02-Apr-2020

14-Apr-2020

17-Apr-2020

Delay to processing the
application caused by being
handled by a temporary
employee. Apology offered
and case expedited.

10-Mar-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Upheld
9 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 26
February and closed 10
March 2020.

13-Mar-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
3 working
days.

Further response sent on
24 March 2020 to
Stage 1 opened 10 March
repetition of the original
and closed 13 March.
complaint submitted on 18
March 2020.

12-Mar-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 opened and
closed on 12 March 2020.

23-Mar-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
1 working
day.

Stage 1 opened 20 March
and closed 23 March
2020.

26-Mar-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Upheld
1 working
day.

Stage 1 opened 25 March Apology offered and call
and closed 26 March
handlers given further
2020.
training.

Agenda Item 7

Complainant alleges
lack of assistance from
26-Feb-2020
Housing re
homelessness
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Housing
Homeless

Reference
ID

1241 - 4 19

Description

Refuse
Collection

Alleged failure to
collect Brown Bin

Housing
Management

Alleged problems with
ASB from neighbour
and Council's lack of
response to this.

Opened Date

26-Apr-2019

20-May-2019

Housing
Repairs
contractor

Alleged threats by
Contractor

1287

Revenue
Services

Complainant is
unhappy at choice of
ways they can pay
their Council Tax and
31-Jul-2019
are accusing council of
discrimination against
disabled

1296 9 19

Housing /
Homelessness
storage costs

Complainant has
accepted relocation to
Bradford and has now
claimed that DBC has
erroneously disposed

1245 4 19

24-Apr-2019

06-Sep-2019

Due Date

15-May-2019

06-Jun-2019

23-May-2019

19-Aug-2019

04-Oct-2019

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

11-Jun-2019

Stage 1
completed in
6 working
days. Stage
Upheld
2 completed
in 30
working
days.

Stage 1 opened 15 April
and closed on 23 April
2019. Dismissed. Stage 2
Apology offered.
opened 26 April and
closed 11 June 2019.
Upheld.

29-May-2020

Stage 1
completed in
9 working
days. Stage Dismissed
2 completed
in 6 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 24 April
and closed 8 May 2019.
Dismissed. Stage 2
opened 20 May and
closed 29 May 2019.
Dismissed.

28-Sep-2020

Stage 1
completed in
2 working
days. Stage
Dismissed
2 completed
in 22
working
days.

Stage 1 opened 17 April
and closed 23 April 2019.
Dismissed. Stage 2
opened 24 April and
closed 28 May 2019.
Dismissed.

03-Sep-2019

Stage 1
completed in
5 working
days. Stage Dismissed
2 completed
in 6 working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
18 July and closed 25
July. Complaint
dismissed. Stage 2
opened 31 July and
closed 7 Aug 2019.
Complaint dismissed.

29-Jan-2020

Stage 1
completed in
Partially
17 working
Upheld
days. Stage
2 completed

Stage 1 opened 5 August
and closed 29 August
2019. Dismissed. Stage 2
opened 6 September and
closed 4 October 2019.
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1244 4 19

Service

Completed
Date

Agenda Item 7

Stage 2

An offer of recompense
made but rejected by
complainant. Appeal to the
Council's designated

Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

of her possessions left
in a garage, which was
not paid for.

1302

1319

Housing

Failure to deal with fly
tipping in the
communal bins at the
complainant's flats.

Housing

Denial of ability to
purchase a property
under right-to-buy
legislation.

in 20
working
days.

16-Sep-2019

15-Nov-2019

19-Nov-2019

15-Nov-2019

15-Oct-2019

16-Dec-2019

06-Dec-2019

16-Dec-2019

Stage History
Partially upheld.

Action Taken
person was rejected.

Stage 1
complaint
completed in
5 working Partially
days. Stage Upheld
2 complaint
completed in
19 working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
12 July 2019 and closed
on 19 July 2019. Stage 1
completed in 5 working
days. Complaint
dismissed. Stage 2
complaint opened on 16
September and 14
October 2019. Dismissed.

27-Nov-2019

Stage 1
completed in
1 working Dismissed
day. Stage 2
terminated.

Stage 1 complaint opened
28 October and a
response was sent on the
same day. Stage 1
complaint closed 28
October 2019. Complaint
dismissed. Stage 2
Referred to the Council’s
complaint opened 11
insurers
November 2019. Stage 2
investigation was
terminated on 27
November 2019 as the
matter was referred to
the Council's insurers.

16-Dec-2019

Stage 1
completed in
5 working
days. Stage
Dismissed
2 completed
in 21
working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
7 November 2019 and
closed on 15 November
2019. Complaint
dismissed. Stage 2
opened 19 November and
closed 16 December
2020.

11-Dec-2019

Stage 1
complaint
Dismissed
dealt with in
4 working

Stage 1 complaint opened
on 27 September and
closed on 3 October 2019.
Complaint dismissed.

14-Oct-2019

Instruction to Contractor
and information to the
complainant re recycling
process etc.
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1315

Housing

Allegation that the
communal rear door
entrance did not meet
safety regulations and
that the anti-slam
mechanism had failed
resulting in broken
glass injuring the
complainant's 10 year
old disabled son
requiring hospital
treatment.

Actual
Outcome
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1314

Waste & Parks

Repeated missed
recycling collections.

Response
Time
(working
days)

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

days. Stage
2 completed
in 18
working
days.

1345 20

1356

29-Jan-2020

Housing Void
condition

Allocated house in v
poor condition and not
fit for habitation.

Waste &
Recycling and
Parking
Enforcement

The complainant
alleges missed bin
collections and damage
to property arising as a
result of bins being
blown around during
14-Feb-2020
storm Ciara plus
repeated problems
with inconsiderate
parking along
Providence Street,
Greenhithe.

26-Feb-2020

26-Feb-2020

16-Mar-2020

13-Mar-2020

Action Taken

Stage 2 complaint opened
15 November and closed
11 December 2019.

16-Mar-2020

Stage 1
completed in
3 days.
Partially
Stage 2
Upheld
completed in
36 working
days.

The complaint relates to
anti-social behaviour and
criminal damage by a
neighbour. The complaint
Stage 1 complaint opened
fell between agencies
25 January and closed on
including the police and
29 January 2020.
housing. Stage 2 concluded
Dismissed. Stage 2
that the Housing
opened on 29 January
Department could have
2020 and closed on 16
issued an ASB warning to
March 2020.
the neighbour in a more
timely fashion. An apology
was offered and an ASB
warning issued.

20-Mar-2020

Stage 1
completed in
5 working
days. Stage
Dismissed
2 completed
in 17
working
days.

Stage 1 opened on 6
February and closed on
13 February 2020. Stage
2 opened 26 February
and closed on 20 March
2020.

07-Mar-2020

Stage 1
completed in
2 working
days. Stage Partially
2 completed Upheld
in 15
working
days.

Dismissed in relation to
complaint about parking
Stage 1 complaint opened regulations. Upheld with
and closed 10 February
regard to missed bin
2020. Dismissed. Stage 2 collections. Arrangement
opened 14 February and made to collect bins. The
closed 7 March 2020.
complainant was advised of
Partially upheld.
how to claim for damage to
his car caused by blown
bins.
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1355 20

Housing

Complainant alleges
lack of action over
numerous reports of
ASB / Crime /
Harassment by their
neighbour.

Stage History
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Reference
ID

Reference
ID

1358

1369

Housing

Planning

Description

Opened Date

Refusal to repair storm
damage to the
25-Feb-2020
complainant’s fence.

Lack of response to
requests for
information.

Alleged delay in
provision of details to
Planning issues
enable a complaint re
planning division.

20-Mar-2020

20-Mar-2020

Due Date

24-Mar-2020

23-Apr-2020

21-Apr-2020

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

20-Mar-2020

Stage 1
completed in
1 working
day. Stage 2 Dismissed
completed in
17 working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
and closed 17 February
2020. Dismissed. Stage 2
opened 25 February and
closed 20 March 2020.
Dismissed.

26-May-2020

Stage 1
completed in
3 working
days. Stage
Upheld
2 completed
in 43
working
days.

Stage 1 opened 12 March
and closed 17 March
Stage 1 dismissed. Stage 2
2020. Stage 2 opened 20
Upheld. Apology offered.
March and closed 26 May
2020.

26-May-2020

Stage 1
completed in
3 working
days. Stage
Upheld
2 completed
in 44
working
days.

Stage 1 opened 12 March
and closed 17 March
2020. Dismissed. Stage 2
Apology offered.
opened 20 March and
closed 26 May 2020.
Upheld.
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1369

Service

Completed
Date
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Reference
ID

1195

Environmental
Health

Housing

Description

Opened Date

Complaint about
alleged excessive noise
during the firework
14-Jan-2019
display in Central Park
on 3 November 2018.

Alleged failure to
rehouse the
Complainant and her
family in accordance
with the Council's
allocations policy.

03-Jun-2019

Due Date

13-Jun-2019

20-Jun-2020

13-Jun-2019

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

Stage 1
complaint
completed in
16 working
Partially
days. Stage
Upheld
2 complaint
completed in
25 working
days.

1. That an Env Health
officer is present at each
SAG meeting. 2. SAGs are
properly scrutinised to
ensure noise issues can be
Stage 1 complaint opened
managed at the event. 3.
on 5 November 2018
The Policy for the Use of
closed 24 Nov 2018.
Central Park is amended to
Stage 2 opened 3
require the event organiser
December 2018 and
to keep a record of noise
closed on 11 January
testing. 4. That the Policy
2019. Complaint partially
for the Use of Central Park
upheld. Stage 3 initiated
is provided to all event
and Ombudsman upheld
organisers where there is a
the complaint on 13 June
potential for noise nuisance
2019 but felt that the
and the document should
action taken by the
be made available on the
council was sufficient to
website. Stage 3 remedy the injustice.
Ombudsman upheld the
complaint but felt that
action taken by the Council
was sufficient to remedy
the injustice.

Stage 1
opened on
10 January
and closed
on 11
January
2019. Stage
1 completed
in 1 working
day.
Dismissed.
Stage 2
investigation

Complaint referred the
Housing Ombudsman in
Stage 1 opened on 10
error. Case closed by the
January and closed on 11 Local Government and
January 2019. Stage 2
Social Care Ombudsman on
investigation opened on
11 November 2019.
11 January 2019 and
Apology issued to
closed on 8 May 2019.
complainant for the
Stage 3 investigation by
incorrect referral and staff
Ombudsman opened 3
reminded of the need to
June 2019.
refer complainants to the
correct Ombudsman
service.
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1173

Service

Completed
Date
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Stage 3

Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Council Tax

03-Aug-2020

31-Dec-2021

1239 - 4.19

Housing

Alleged problems with
18-Nov-2019
Housing allocation and

07-Jan-2020

07-Jan-2020

Stage 1
completed in
11 working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
23 September and closed
on 8 October 2019.
Dismissed. Stage 2
complaint opened on 9
December 2019. Stage 3
opened 3 August 2020.

Stage 2
Dismissed
completed in

Stage 1 not applied. This
complaint started at
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1205

Failure to act on
information from
another authority
resulting in delays in
issuing a Council Tax
bill and subsequently
taking aggressive
recovery action.
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opened on
11 January
2019 and
closed on 8
May 2019.
Stage 2
completed in
79 working
days.
Dismissed.
Stage 3
investigation
by
Ombudsman
opened 3
June 2019.
Complaint
referred the
Housing
Ombudsman
in error.
Case closed
by the Local
Government
and Social
Care
Ombudsman
on 11
November
2019.

Action Taken

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

needs assessment
form

1269

1295

Council Tax

Complainant alleges
advice and mal
administration from
council tax officers has
led to him incurring
08-Jul-2019
large penalty charges
and additional council
Tax relating to vacancy
property.

Housing

Complaint that Housing
Maintenance provide
only morning or
afternoon time slots for
29-Aug-2019
maintenance repair
visits which in this case
meant that a Carer had
to be present for 5

Actual
Outcome

20 working
days.

Stage History

Action Taken

Stage 2. Stage 2 opened
15 April and closed 16
May 2019. Dismissed.
Stage 3 opened 18
November 2019 and
closed 7 January 2020.

Stage 1
completed in
1 working
day. Stage 2 Dismissed
completed in
16 working
days.

Stage 1 opened 28 June
and closed 1 July 2019.
Dismissed. Stage 2
opened 5 July and closed
29 July 2019. Dismissed.
Stage 3 opened 7
February and closed 28
April 2020. Dismissed.

Advice given to
complainant relating to
their housing rights and
situation relating to repairs
to their property.

25-Jul-2019

Stage 1
complaint
Partially
closed in 19
Upheld
working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
on 8 July 2019 and closed
on 2 August 2019.
Apology issued for failure
to notify the complainant
of changes to the amount
of Council tax discount
and premium applied to
his property and the
amount of additional
Council tax due was
written-off by way of
compensation. All other
aspects of the complaint,
including alleged delays
during the planning
process, were dismissed.

Apology issued for failure
to notify the complainant of
changes to the amount of
Council tax discount and
premium applied to his
property and the amount of
additional Council tax due
was written-off by way of
compensation. All other
aspects of the complaint,
including alleged delays
during the planning
process, were dismissed.

17-Sep-2019

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
2 working
days.

Housing Maintenance have
Stage 1 complaint opened offered to try and give a
29 August and closed 2nd more precise time for visit
September 2019.
if contacted in advance to
agree a time.

28-Apr-2020

28-Apr-2020

02-Jun-2020
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1278 7 19

Complainant alleges
harassment by landlord
Temporary
poor housing condition 07-Feb-2020
Accommodation
and collusion by
housing officers.

Response
Time
(working
days)
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Reference
ID

Reference
ID

Service

Description

Opened Date

Due Date

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Action Taken

hours with his client
waiting for a visit.

1307 19 10

Environmental
Health

1312 19 10 Housing

23-Oct-2019

Planning

Complaint of alleged
maladministration of a
planning assessment
by a named Planning
Officer submitted by
the complainant via
the Chairman of DC
Board.

Housing

Problems with delays
in notifying claimant of
non-payment of
Benefit resulting in
08-Apr-2020
DLPS landlord losing
income and serving a
CCJ on the tenant.

07-Jul-2020

22-Oct-2019

Stage 1 complaint opened
3rd and closed 9th
October 2019. Dismissed.
Stage 2 complaint opened
14th and closed 18th
October 2019. Dismissed.

11-Nov-2019

Stage 1
completed in
15 working
days. Stage
Dismissed
2 completed
in 16
working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
2 October 21 October
2019. Partially upheld.
Stage 2 complaint opened
23 October and closed on
15 November 2019.
Complaint dismissed.

30-Sep-2021

Stage 1
completed in
Dismissed
12 working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
4 November 2019 and
closed on 20 November
2019. Dismissed. Stage 2
request was rejected by
the Director as a matter
relating to the
interpretation of planning
merits rather than failure
to apply the correct
procedures. Stage 3
complaint opened 7 July
2020.

20-Aug-2020

Stage 1
completed in
31 working
days. Stage
Dismissed
2 completed
in 29
working
days.

Stage 1 complaint opened
15 January and closed 27
February 2020.
Ombudsman not
Dismissed. Stage 2
investigating as unlikely to
opened 27 February and
find fault
closed 8 April 2020. Stage
3 opened 8 April and
closed 20 August 2020.

20-Aug-2020

Case passed to EHS for
noise monitoring, and
Housing Benefit for
adjustment
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1342 20

Complainant alleges
problems with
neighbour and issues
with Housing Benefit
calculation

03-Oct-2019

Stage 1
completed in
3 working
days. Stage Dismissed
2 completed
in 3 working
days.
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1317

Complainant alleges
unfair treatment from
EHO and asks for new
case officer to be
allocated.

1364

Service

Housing :
Allocations

Description

Opened Date

Complainant alleges
mal administration of
her housing allocations
29-Jun-2020
placing and bad advice
given over
homelessness

Due Date

31-Dec-2021

Completed
Date

Response
Time
(working
days)
Stage 1
completed in
26 working
days. Stage
2 completed
in 22
working
days.

Actual
Outcome

Stage History

Stage 1 opened 3
February and closed 10
March 2020. Dismissed.
Stage 2 opened 27 April
and closed 28 May 2020.
Dismissed. Stage 3
opened 29 June 2020.

Action Taken

The complainant requested
a stage 2 review on 12
March 2020 but this was
overlooked until they
chased for a response on
27 April 2020.
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Equality & Diversity
Generated on: 01 October 2020
Rows are sorted by Sort
Age
Annual Totals
PI Code & Short Name

Annual Totals

Q1 2019/20

Q2 2019/20

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

2019/20

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

0

0

0

0

0

Equalities H2 Age - 16 to
19

0

0

0

0

0

Equalities H3 Age - 20 to
24

1

0

0

0

1

Equalities H4 Age - 25 to
59

2

1

2

3

8

Equalities H5 Age - 60 to
64

1

0

1

0

2

Equalities H6 Age - 65 and
above

0

0

0

1

1

Annual Totals
PI Code & Short Name

Annual Totals

Q1 2019/20

Q2 2019/20

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

2019/20

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Equalities J1 Nature of
Disability - Difficulty
getting around

1

0

0

1

2

Equalities J2 Nature of
Disability - Hearing

0

0

0

0

0
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Equalities H1 Age - Under
16

Difficulty
0

0

0

0

0

Equalities J4 Nature of
Disability - Learning
Difficulty

0

0

0

1

1

Equalities J5 Nature of
Disability - Mental Health
Problems

0

0

0

0

0

Equalities J6 Nature of
Disability - Other

0

0

0

0

0
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Equalities J3 Nature of
Disability - Difficulty
Seeing

Ethnic Group
Annual Totals
Q1 2019/20

Q2 2019/20

Q3 2019/20

Q4 2019/20

2019/20

Value

Value

Value

Value

Value

Equalities A1 Ethnic Group
- White British

3

1

3

3

10

Equalities A2 Ethnic Group
- White Irish

0

0

0

0

0

Equalities A3 Ethnic Group
- Any other white
background

0

0

0

0

0

Equalities B1 Ethnic Group
- Mixed/White & Black
Caribbean

0

0

0

0

0

Equalities B2 Ethnic Group
- Mixed/white & black
African

0

0

0

0

0

Equalities B3 Ehtnic Group
- Mixed/white & Asian

0

0

Equalities B4 Ethnic Group
- Mixed/any other mixed
background

0

0

Equalities C1 Ethnic Group

0

0
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PI Code & Short Name

Annual Totals

- Asian or Asian British
Indian
0

0

0

0

0

Equalities C3 Ethnic Group
- Asian or Asian British
Bangladeshi

0

0

0

0

0

Equalities C4 Ethnic Group
- Asian or Asian British Any other Asian
background

1

0

0

0

1

Equalities D1 Ethnic Group
- Black or Black British
Caribbean

0

0

0

1

1

Equalities D2 Ethnic Group
- Black or Black British
African

0

0

0

0

0

Equalities D3 Ethnic Group
- Black or Black British Any other black
background

0

0

0

0

0

Equalities E1 Ethnic Group
- Chinese

0

0

0

0

0

Equalities F1 Ethnic Group
- Any other Ethnic Group

0

0

0

0

0
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Equalities C2 Ethnic Group
- Asian or British Pakistani

Sex

PI Code & Short Name

Annual Totals

Q1 2019/20

Q2 2019/20

Value

Q3 2019/20

Value

Q4 2019/20

Value

2019/20

Value

Value

Equalities G1 Sex - Male

2

1

0

3

6

Equalities G2 Sex - Female

2

0

4

1

7
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Annual Totals
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AUDIT BOARD
21 October 2020

REPORT FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR

1.

Summary
The External Auditor has substantially completed the audit of the Council’s
2019/20 Accounts and now presents his “Audit Findings” report to Members.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 That Members welcome the External Auditor’s intention to issue an
unqualified opinion on both the Financial Statements and the Value for
Money Conclusion.
2.2 That Members approve the Letter of Representation, at Appendix B
to the report.

3. Background and Discussion
3.1 After the initial lockdown period in March, the 2019/20 Draft Statement of
Accounts was sent to the External Auditor for review 10 July 2020. The
External Auditor has substantially completed the audit of the accounts and now
presents the Audit Findings Report (Appendix A) to the Board. The Board
should consider the External Auditor’s report before approving the 2019/20
accounts for publication (referred to elsewhere on the agenda).
3.2 The Audit Manager (Iain Murray) will present the Audit Findings Report to the
Board. The External Auditor proposes an unqualified opinion on the accounts
and an unqualified value for money conclusion.
3.3 Members should note that the audit process has taken longer than normal due
to the COVID-19 crisis, lack of on-site working and some operational audit
issues. Despite the longer audit period, the relationship between the finance
team and Grant Thornton remains positive.
3.4 The External Auditor has noted the findings in the Audit Findings Report.
Limited changes were made to the draft statement as part of the audit process
however, no changes were made that change the outturn position for revenue
and capital budgets presented to Cabinet in June 2020. There have been no
changes to the level of usable reserves.
3.5 Appendix B is the letter of Representation that the Section 151 Officer is
required to sign. It confirms that the Council has complied with the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting, provided the External Auditor with
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access to all relevant information and other sundry matters. The External
Auditor requires the Board to approve the letter.
3.6 Appendix C is the draft audit opinion as issued by the auditor. This replaces
the opinion included in the draft accounts but is still subject to final
confirmation.
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan
The completion, approval and audit of the annual statement of accounts by the
statutory deadline are key requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015 (as amended). This is one way that the Council demonstrates that it is a
well-managed organisation making the best use of its resources, which is part
of the Council Performing Strongly theme.
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk
assessments
Financial Implications
Legal Implications
Staffing Implications
Administrative Implications
Risk Assessment

None specifically
None
None
None
None

6. Appendices
Appendix A – Audit Findings report 2019/20
Appendix B – Letter of Representation
Appendix C – Draft Audit Opinion
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The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify
control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible
improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in
part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this
report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
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Headlines

Headlines
This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of Dartford Borough Council (‘the Council’) and the preparation of the Council's financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 for those charged with governance.
Covid-19

The outbreak of the Covid-19 coronavirus pandemic has had a
significant impact on the normal operations of the group and Council.
Offices have been closed, and finance staff have been involved in
reprofiling the 2020 budget and the Medium-Term Financial Plan to take
into consideration potential lost revenues and additional expenditure
incurred as a result of the pandemic. We have reviewed this within our
Value for Money work (see page 18)

Authorities are still required to prepare financial statements in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and the Code of
Audit Practice albeit to an extended deadline for the preparation of the
financial statements up to 31 August 2020 and the date for audited
financials statements to 30 November 2020.

Restrictions for non-essential travel have meant both Council and audit staff have had to utilise
remote access working arrangements including video calling and the use of screensharing
applications in order to gain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence; for example, the audit
team have observed re-running of system reports and bank statements to gain assurance over
the completeness accuracy of information produced by the entity (‘IPE’).
The financial statements were provided to audit on 10 July 2020 and the audit commenced in
July.
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All staff in the finance team have been able to work from home and
access systems in the same way as before, with no key staff taking
sickness absence. The Council has provided IT and system support to
those who have need (such as second screens and system access).
There has been no change in the control environment following
lockdown and the switch to working from home

We updated our audit risk assessment to consider the impact of the pandemic on our audit
and issued an audit plan that included an additional financial statement risk in respect of Covid
-19 and highlighted the impact on our VfM approach. Further detail is set out on page 7.
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Headlines

Headlines
Financial
Statements

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the National Our audit work was completed remotely during July-October 2020. Our findings are
Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are required summarised on pages 6 to 15. We have not identified any adjustments to the financial
to report whether, in our opinion, the Council's financial statements:
statements that have resulted in adjustments to the Council’s Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Disclosure adjustments are detailed in Appendix B.
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council’s
income and expenditure for the year; and
•

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that would
have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC require modification of our audit opinion or material changes to the financial statements,
subject to the following outstanding matters;
code of practice on local authority accounting and prepared in
accordance with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.
• receipt of third-party confirmations for borrowings and investments;
•

review of outstanding substantive sections;

•

Housing benefits payment testing;

•

review of responses to audit queries;

•

resolution of audit queries in relation to PPE;

•

receipt of Pensions Letter from Kent County Council Pension Fund auditor;

•

agreement of immaterial disclosure notes to working papers;

•

completion of final management and engagement lead review of the audit file;

•

receipt of management representation letter (provided as a separate committee item); and

•

review of the final set of financial statements.
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We are also required to report whether other information published
together with the audited financial statements (including the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS), Narrative Report), is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Agenda Item 8

This table summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of Dartford Borough Council (‘the Council’) and the preparation of the Council's financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 for those charged with governance.

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements is
consistent with our knowledge of your organisation. The financial statements we have audited
is up until 31 March 2020 which was prior to the outbreak of the Covid-19 coronavirus
pandemic.
Our anticipated audit opinion for the Council will be unmodified. It will include an Emphasis of
Matter, highlighting material uncertainties around the valuation of land and buildings,
investment properties and the valuation of the net pension liability as at 31 March 2020
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Headlines

Headlines
Value for Money
arrangements –
2019/20

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the
Code'), we are required to report if, in our opinion, the Council has
made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for money (VFM)
conclusion’).

We have completed our risk based review of the Council’s value for money
arrangements. We have concluded that Dartford Borough Council has proper
arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources.
We have updated our VfM risk assessment to document our understanding of your
arrangements to ensure critical business continuity in the current environment. We have
not identified any new VfM risks in relation to Covid-19, moreover and enhancement of
the existing significant risks that we had identified.
We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion. Our findings
are summarised on pages 20

Statutory duties

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also requires us We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.
to:
We have completed the majority of work under the Code and expect to be able to certify
• report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers and the completion of the audit when we give our audit opinion.
duties ascribed to us under the Act; and
To certify the closure of the audit.

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance and timely collaboration provided by the finance team and other staff during these unprecedented
times.
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Financial statements

Audit approach
This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit that are
significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code
of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management.

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements
and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable
law.

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) and the Code, which is directed towards forming and expressing
Materiality for the financial statements
an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the
oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not
Performance materiality
relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements.
Trivial matters
Audit approach

•

An evaluation of the Council's internal controls environment, including its IT systems and
controls; and

•

Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including
the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

1,300,000
975,000
65,000
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Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is
risk based, and in particular included:

Council Amount (£)

Agenda Item 8

Overview of the scope of our audit

Our approach to materiality

Conclusion
We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and subject to
outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion on
completion of the audit. The outstanding items are detailed on page 4.
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Financial statements

Significant audit risks
Auditor commentary

Covid – 19

We have:

The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to
unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring urgent
business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expected
current circumstances would have an impact on the production and
audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020,
including and not limited to:

•

worked with management to understand the implications the response to the Covid-19 pandemic has had
on the organisation’s ability to prepare the financial statements and update financial forecasts, and
assessed the implications for our materiality calculations;

•

liaised with other audit suppliers, regulators and government departments to co-ordinate practical cross
sector responses to issues as and when they arose;

•

evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements that arose in light of the Covid-19
pandemic;

•

evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence could be obtained in the absence of physical verification of
assets through remote technology;

•

evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence could be obtained to corroborate significant management
estimates such as asset valuations and recovery of receivable balances; and

•

evaluated management’s assumptions that underpin the revised financial forecasts and the impact on
management’s going concern assessment.

•

•

Remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to critical
front line duties may impact on the quality and timing of the
production of the financial statements, and the evidence we can
obtain through physical observation;
Volatility of financial and property markets will increase the
uncertainty of assumptions applied by management to asset
valuation and receivable recovery estimates, and the reliability of
evidence we can obtain to corroborate management estimates;
Financial uncertainty will require management to reconsider
financial forecasts supporting their going concern assessment and
whether material uncertainties for a period of at least 12 months
from the anticipated date of approval of the audited financial
statements have arisen; and

•

Disclosures within the financial statements will require significant
revision to reflect the unprecedented situation and its impact on the
preparation of the financial statements as at 31 March 2020 in
accordance with IAS1, particularly in relation to material
uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus as a
significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement.
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In the valuation reports prepared by the valuer, they have confirmed that as a result of Covid-19 less weight
can be attached to market evidence for comparison purposes to inform opinions of value. At the balance sheet
date, the valuer was faced with an unprecedented set of circumstances on which to base a judgement and as
such the valuations have been reported on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty.’
In addition, the fund managers for Kent Pension Fund’s pooled, leasehold and freehold property investments
have declared material valuation uncertainties around the valuation of these investments on the same basis.
Given that the Council owns a share of these assets, this impacts upon the valuation of the net defined benefit
liability in the Council’s balance sheet.
The Council have reflected these uncertainties in Note 6 to the financial statements. We will refer to these
material valuation uncertainties in our audit report as an emphasis of matter.
Our work to address the points above is substantially complete, and we have not identified any other issues or
concerns to report.
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Risks identified in our Audit Plan

7

Financial statements

Significant audit risks
Auditor commentary

Fraudulent revenue and expenditure recognition

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams, we have determined that
the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to the improper recognition of
revenue.
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that
there is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to
revenue recognition.

•

There is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition.

•

Opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited.

•

The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including the Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen
as unacceptable.

Agenda Item 8

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Dartford Borough Council.
We have however:
evaluated the Council's accounting policy for recognition of revenues for appropriateness; and

•

performed substantive testing on material revenue streams

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of improper revenue recognition.
Management override of controls

We have:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that • evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;
the risk of management over-ride of controls is present in all
• analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals;
entities.
• tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and
We therefore identified management override of control, in
corroboration;
particular journals, management estimates and transactions
• gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied and made by management
outside the course of business as a significant risk, which was
and considered their reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence; and
one of the most significant assessed risks of material
• evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.
misstatement.
The main mechanism through which this could occur is through Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of management override of controls.
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•

the posting of manual journals amending the reported financial
performance. We therefore review the controls established
relating to manual journals, including those for authorisation of
manual journals.
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Financial statements

Significant audit risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Auditor commentary

Valuation of property, plant and equipment (including
Investment Properties)

We have:
•

evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to
the valuation experts and the scope of their work;

Council Dwellings: £313m

•

evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert;

Other Land & Buildings: £46m

•

written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuations were carried out;

Investment Properties: £10m

•

challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding;

We identified valuation of land and buildings, particularly
revaluations and impairments, as a significant risk, which was
one of the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement.

tested, on a sample basis, revaluations of the Council’s operational properties, investment properties, and HRA
properties during the year to ensure they have been input correctly into the Council’s asset register and financial
statements;
evaluated the assumptions made by management for any assets not revalued at 31 March 2020, and how
management has satisfied themselves that the carrying value of these assets in the balance sheet is not materially
different to their current value.

At the time of writing this report, our work is still in progress, subject to the resolution of outstanding queries, senior
management review, our audit work has not identified any other issues in respect of the valuation of property plant
and equipment (including investment property).

The Council have reflected this uncertainty in Note 6 to the financial statements. We will refer to these material
valuation uncertainties in our audit report as an emphasis of matter.

Agenda Item 8

Our work has identified an error in the valuation work carried out by management's expert in respect of Acacia Hall
Car Park. This was as a result of errors in the formula within the workings used by the valuer. The impact on the asset
in question is not material, an overstatement in value of £131k and management have decided not to adjust the
financial statements for this item. We are currently working with management to satisfy ourselves that the error in
relation to the formulae used by the valuer is isolated to this asset.
In the valuation reports prepared by the valuer, they have confirmed that as a result of Covid-19 less weight can be
attached to market evidence for comparison purposes to inform opinions of value. At the balance sheet date, the
valuer was faced with an unprecedented set of circumstances on which to base a judgement and as such the
valuations have been reported on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’.
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The Council re-values land and buildings on an annual basis to
ensure that the carrying value is not materially different from the •
current value or fair value (for surplus assets) at the financial
statements date. This valuation represents a significant estimate
by management in the financial statements
•
Management have engaged the services of an expert valuer to
estimate the current and fair values as at 31 March 2020.

9

Financial statements

Significant audit risks
Auditor commentary

Agenda Item 8

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

We have:

The Council’s [total] net pension liability at 31 March 2020 is
£55m (PY £55m). The Council uses Barnett Waddingham LLP
to provide actuarial valuations of the Council’s assets and
liabilities derived from this scheme. A full actuarial valuation is
required every three years.

•

updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that the
Authority’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

•

evaluated the instructions issued by management to their management expert (an actuary) for this estimate and
the scope of the actuary’s work;

•

assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Authority’s pension fund
valuation;

•

assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Authority to the actuary to estimate
the liability;

•

tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core financial
statements with the actuarial report from the actuary;

•

undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report
of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within the
report; and

•

written to the auditor of Kent County Council Pension Fund as to the controls surrounding the validity and
accuracy of membership data, contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the
fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

The latest full actuarial valuation was completed in March
2019. A roll forward approach is used in intervening periods,
which utilises key assumptions such as life expectancy,
discount rates, salary growth and investment returns. Given the
significant value of the net pension fund liability, small changes
in assumptions can result in significant valuation movements.
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Valuation of pension fund net liability

At the time of writing this report, our work is still in progress, subject to the resolution of outstanding queries, senior
management review and receipt of the assurance letter with respect to Kent County Council Pension Fund, our audit
work has not identified any other issues in respect of the valuation of the Council’s pension fund net liability.
As discussed under ‘Covid-19’ above, the fund managers for the Pension Fund’s pooled, leasehold and freehold
property investments reported that valuations of these investments were subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’
as at 31 March 2020, as a result of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. The value of these assets within the
pension fund is £765m, and as circa 1% of the Pension Fund’s assets are attributable to the Council (£7.65m) as a
scheduled body to the Fund, this material uncertainty impacts in turn upon the valuation of the net defined benefit
liability in the Council’s balance sheet.
Management have agreed to disclose the uncertainty in Note 6 to the financial statements. This disclosure will be
referred to in our auditor’s report in an emphasis of matter paragraph. This does not constitute a qualification of the
audit opinion
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Financial statements

Significant findings – key estimates and judgements
Accounting area

Summary of management’s policy

Auditor commentary

Land and Buildings
– Other - £46

Land and buildings are not specialised in nature and are
required to be valued at existing use in value (EUV) at year
end. The Council has engaged Michael Rogers LLP to
complete the valuation of properties as at 31 March 2020.
Land and buildings are revalued when management
considers there to be a material change in the value but as
a minimum every five years.

We considered and completed the following in the course of our testing:

Council Dwellings £313m

assessment of management’s expert,

•

completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to
determine the estimate

•

impact of any changes to valuation method

•

consistency of estimate against Gerard Eve report

•

reasonableness of decrease in estimate

•

adequacy of disclosure of estimate in the financial statements.

We have no concerns over the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the valuation expert used by the Council.
The valuer’s assessment that no material change had occurred to the
balance sheet date is caveated by a material valuation uncertainty disclosure
which has been disclosed in the financial statements. We will refer to the
material valuation uncertainty in our audit opinion in an emphasis of matter
paragraph.
At the time of writing this report, our work is still in progress, subject to the
resolution of outstanding queries and senior management review, our audit
work has not identified any other issues in respect of the valuation of
property plant and equipment.



We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated



We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic



We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious



We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Dartford Borough Council | 2019/20

(tbc)
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Assessment
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Management have considered the year end value of nonvalued properties and the potential valuation change in the
assets revalued at 01 April 2019, applying industry average
indices and rental income to determine whether there has
been a material change in the total value of these
properties. Management’s assessment of assets not
revalued has identified no material change to the property’s
value.
In line with RICS guidance, the Council’s valuer disclosed a
material uncertainty in their update report as to the valuation
of the Council’s land and buildings at 31 March 2020 as a
result of Covid-19. The Council has included disclosures on
this issue in Note 6.

•

Assessment

11

Financial statements

Significant findings – key estimates and judgements
We have assessed management’s estimate, considering:

Land at Stone Lodge was revalued at Fair Value
as at 31 March 2020. The valuation technique
was based on Significant Observable Inputs –
level 2, i.e. it was based on the market approach
using current market conditions and recent sales
or lettings evidence and other relevant
information for similar assets in Dartford
Borough, or other suitably comparable locations.
Where appropriate, adjustments have been
made to the comparable evidence to relate
these directly to the subject asset. Market
conditions are such that similar assets are
actively sold or let and the level of observable
inputs are significant, leading the assets being
categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

We have assessed management’s estimate, considering:

•

an assessment of management’s expert;

•

the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to determine the
estimate;

•

the reasonableness of the assumptions behind the valuations; and

•

the reasonableness of the increase in the estimate

In the valuation report, for investment assets, the valuer has confirmed that as a result of
Covid-19 less weight can be attached to market evidence for comparison purposes to inform
opinions of value. This is particularly relevant to investment properties, whose valuation is
typically based on income yields. The Council have reflected this uncertainty in Note 6 to the
financial statements. We will refer to these material valuation uncertainties in our audit report
as an emphasis of matter.


(tbc)
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Surplus
Assets £6.4m

The council has a number of investment
properties that it holds for either for rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost and
subsequently at fair value, being the price that
would be received to sell such an asset in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. As a non-financial
asset, investment properties are measured at
highest and best use. The council’s investment
properties are revalued annually as at 31st
March 2020. The Council’s investment property
revaluation has been prepared by the Richard
Robson BSc MRICS, of Michael Rogers LLP an
external valuer engaged by the Council.

At the time of writing this report, our work is still in progress, subject to the resolution of
outstanding queries, senior management review, our audit work has not identified any other
issues in respect of the valuation of property plant and equipment (including investment
property).

•

An assessment of management’s expert;

•

The completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to determine the
estimate;

•

The reasonableness of the assumptions behind the valuations; and

•

The reasonableness of the increase in the estimate

In the valuation report, for surplus assets, the valuer has confirmed that as a result of Covid19 less weight can be attached to market evidence for comparison purposes to inform
opinions of value. The Council have reflected this uncertainty in Note 6 to the financial
statements. We will refer to these material valuation uncertainties in our audit report as an
emphasis of matter.

Agenda Item 8

Investment
Properties £10m


(tbc)

At the time of writing this report, our work is still in progress, subject to the resolution of
outstanding queries, senior management review, our audit work has not identified any other
issues in respect of the valuation of property plant and equipment (including surplus assets).

Assessment


We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated



We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic



We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious



We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
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Significant findings – key estimates and judgements
Provisions for NNDR appeals
£7.4m – Note 21

The Council are responsible for repaying a proportion of
successful rateable value appeals. Management uses the
number of appeals outstanding at 31 March 2020 and the
average reduction achieved from settled appeals, to
calculate the level of provision required.

We reviewed:
 appropriateness of the underlying information used to
determine the estimate
 impact of any changes to valuation method
 consistency of estimate against peers/industry practice



 reasonableness of decrease in estimate
 adequacy of disclosure of estimate in the financial
statements.

Green

Our audit work is substantially complete. Our work has not
identified any issue in the key judgements and estimates applied
to date
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We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated



We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic



We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious



We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious
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Significant findings – key estimates and judgements
Summary of management’s
policy

Net pension
liability –
£62.9m

The Council’s total net pension
liability at 31 March 2020 is £55m
(PY £55m) comprising the Kent
County Council Local Government
defined benefit pension scheme
obligation. The Council uses
Barnett Waddingham to provide
actuarial valuations of the Council’s
assets and liabilities derived from
this scheme. A full actuarial
valuation is required every three
years.

Auditor commentary

Assessment

•

We have assessed the actuary, Barnett Waddingham, to be competent, capable and objective.

•

We have confirmed the controls and processes over the completeness and accuracy of the underlying
information sent to Kent County Council used to determine the estimate.

•

We have requested an assurance letter from the auditor of Kent County Council Pension Fund asking for
their assistance in checking source data provided to the actuary from the pension fund's records;

•

We have confirmed there were no significant changes in 2019/20 to the valuation method.

•

We have used PwC as our auditor’s expert to assess the actuary and assumptions made by the actuary –
see table below for out comparison of actuarial assumptions:

Given the significant value of the
net pension fund liability, small
changes in assumptions can result
in significant valuation movements.

Actuary
Value

PwC range

Assessment

Discount rate

2.35%

2.35%



Pension increase rate

1.95%

1.85% 1.95%



Salary growth

3.00%

1% above
CPI



Life expectancy – Males currently aged 45 /
65

45: 23.2
65: 21.8

22.8 – 24.7 /
21.4 – 23.3



Life expectancy – Females currently aged 45
/ 65

45: 25.2
65: 23.7

25.2 – 26.2 /
23.7 – 24.7




Green
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The latest full actuarial valuation
was completed as at 31 March
2019. A roll forward approach is
used in intervening periods which
utilises key assumptions such as
life expectancy, discount rates,
salary growth and investment
return.

Assumption

Agenda Item 8

Accounting
area

The actuary have confirmed that they have updated the assumption using March 2019 triennial valuation
data as opposed to using the estimated roll-forward approach from the 2016 triennial valuation, which gives
assurance that more recent information has been used. We therefore consider the assumption to be
reasonable.
•

Subject to receipt of the assurance letter from Kent County Council Pension Fund, our work confirms that
the decrease in the IAS 19 estimate is reasonable

Assessment


We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated



We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic



We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious



We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for Dartford Borough Council | 2019/20

14

Financial statements

Going concern
Our responsibility
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570).
Going concern material uncertainty disclosures
It has been a challenging year due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the impact of this has been administration of grants to businesses, the closure of leisure centres and car parks, with
additional challenges of reopening services under new government guidelines; and the need to free up capacity of teams to assist with additional workloads caused by the pandemic in
addition to normal responsibilities. In common with all Local Authorities, the Council is facing significant challenges, but has reported an underspend for 2019/20. Management have
undertaken an analysis of the potential financial implications of Covid-19 together with additional funding being provided. As at the 31 March 2020, General Fund reserves stood at
£3m, with total usable reserves of £42m. Although in a strong financial position, it is anticipated that the Council will require use of its financial reserves to pay its expenses in 2020/21.
Auditor commentary

Management's assessment process

Management has undertaken their own assessment of going concern, taking into account Paragraph 2.1.2.9 of the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting states that “An authority’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern
basis; that is, the accounts should be prepared on the assumption that the functions of the authority will continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future”. Their assertion that if an authority was in financial difficulty the prospects are that either
central government would make alternative arrangements for the continuation of the service or provide assistance with the
recovery of a deficit over more than one financial year.
Management have also considered the following factors:
The financial impact of Covid-19;

•

The Council’s reserves position;

•

Budget monitoring reports and projected overspends;

•

The Medium Term Financial Plan 2024/25

Work performed

We have viewed the Council’s financial assessment of the impact of Covid-19, cash flow forecasts, future financial plans and the
Council’s level of reserves. Whilst Covid-19 impact has been felt by the Council, but the Council has sufficient general fund and
earmarked reserves to cover the impact of Covid-19 in its worst-case projected scenarios. Management are conscious of the need
to remain responsive to emerging circumstances, whilst keeping sight of longer term strategic goals which underpin future
investment decisions from use of reserves.

Concluding comments

We are satisfied that the Council’s financial statements are appropriately prepared on a going concern basis, and that no further
disclosure is required.
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Going concern commentary
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Other matters for communication
Auditor commentary

Matters in relation to fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit Board. No material financial fraud is known to have occurred during 2019/20
financial year. We have not been made aware of any incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our
audit procedures.

Matters in relation to related
parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

Matters in relation to laws and
regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not identified any
incidences from our audit work.

Written representations

A letter of representation has been requested from the Council, which is included in the Audit Board papers.

Confirmation requests from third
parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to the Council’s banks and investment and borrowing
counterparties. This permission was granted and the requests were sent. Most of these requests were returned with positive confirmation,
however a small number of borrowing and investment confirmations have not yet been received

Disclosures

Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements

Audit evidence and explanations
/significant difficulties

Information and explanations requested from management have been provided in a timely manner. No significant difficulties have been
experienced.
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Issue
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We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.
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Other responsibilities under the Code
Issue

Commentary

Other information

We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements (including the
Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report, is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
Work is on-going; however, no inconsistencies have been identified to date, subject to finalisation of the audit. We plan to issue an unmodified
opinion in this respect – refer to Appendix C.

Matters on which we report by
exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas:
•

If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is misleading
or inconsistent with the other information of which we are aware from our audit

•

If we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties

We have nothing to report on these matters
We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation pack
under WGA group audit instructions.
The work is not required as the Council does not exceed the threshold.
Certification of the closure of the
audit

We intend to certify the closure of the 2019/20 audit of Dartford Borough Council in the audit report, as detailed in Appendix C.

Page 119

Specified procedures for Whole
of Government Accounts

Agenda Item 8
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Value for Money

Value for Money – 2019/20
Agenda Item 8

Background to our VFM approach

Risk assessment

We are required to satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as
the Value for Money (VFM) conclusion.

We carried out an initial risk assessment in and identified a number of significant risks in
respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the guidance contained in
AGN03. We communicated these risks to you in our Audit Plan on the 22 of July 2020

We are required to carry out sufficient work to satisfy ourselves that proper arrangements
are in place at the Council. In carrying out this work, we are required to follow the NAO's
Auditor Guidance Note 3 (AGN 03) issued in April 2020. AGN 03 identifies one single
criterion for auditors to evaluate:
“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

We have not identified any new VfM risks in relation to Covid-19, however we have
considered and commented on the potential impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s future
financial sustainability, as part of our work in addressing the previously identified
significant VfM risks.

We carried out further work only in respect of the significant risks we identified from our
initial and ongoing risk assessment. Where our consideration of the significant risks
determined that arrangements were not operating effectively, we have used the
examples of proper arrangements from AGN 03 to explain the gaps in proper
arrangements that we have reported in our VFM conclusion.
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This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving our report,
and have not identified any further significant risks where we need to perform further
work.

Informed
decision
making

Value for
Money
arrangements
criteria
Working
with partners
& other third
parties

Sustainable
resource
deployment
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Value for Money

Value for Money – 2019/20
Our work

Significant difficulties in undertaking our work

AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the Council's
arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your
arrangements which we wish to draw to your attention.

We have focused our work on the significant risks that we identified in the Council's
arrangements. In arriving at our conclusion, our main considerations were:

Significant matters discussed with management

•

Revenue Outturn 2019/20

•

The Medium Term Plan;

•

The 2020/21 budget;

•

Council, cabinet minutes

•

Discussions with management and officers

Overall conclusion
Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we are satisfied that the
Council had proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.
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We have set out more detail on the risks we identified, the results of the work we
performed, and the conclusions we drew from this work on pages 20.

There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such
significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from
management or those charged with governance.
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Value for Money – 2019/20
The Council will need to manage its financial
position and savings targets closely during
the medium term. As part of our work we will
consider the council’s arrangements in place
for managing the impact of COVID-19 on its
Financial Plan.
We will review arrangements in place for
monitoring the 19/20 budget and progress
made against the 2020/21 budget.

Local Authorities have seen central government funding reduction of nearly 50% over the last decade, as a result of austerity
measures introduced by successive governments over the same period in order to reduce the national deficit. Concurrently, Local
Authorities have also experienced increased demand and cost pressures and with no reduction in their statutory duties to provide
services to their residents. Dartford Borough Council continues to operate in this challenging financial environment and 2019/20 was
the ninth successive year of spending reductions, with central funding allocation not guaranteed beyond next year.

A balance budget for 2020/21 was set and approved by members on the 24 February, which factored several assumptions in relation
to income from business rates, council tax, investment income, demand pressures and spend. The council also has a detailed
Medium-Term Financial Plan up to 2024/25 which identified the council’s potential budget needs and resource requirements over the
next few years. For 2020/21, Officers anticipate services will be delivered within the overall budget set, with the aide reserves,
additional government funding. At the end of June 2020, Covid-19 general fund expenditure totalled £208k with additional Covid-19
related expenditure expected to be in the region of £1 million for the financial year. This position is being carefully monitored by
officers and monthly returns in respect of cost and income pressures being compiled and submitted to MHCLG.
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The Council set a balanced budget for 2019/20, approved by members on 25 February 2019, with financial position robustly
monitored and reviewed throughout the financial year, in line with prior years. The net expenditure budget on General Fund services
was £3 million lower than the original budget. Reserve contributions were not required compared to the original budget and an
additional £3.2 million was allocated to specific reserves during 2019/20. As at 31 March 2020, the Council had £45m of usable
reserves for general use and £13.8 million for housing. This is considered prudent and adequate for the council’s current estimated
needs. The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic was minimal for the financial year 2019/20, as this occurred at year end (last 2 weeks of
March). During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, robust arrangements were in place to ensure risks and uncertainties were
managed and mitigated in the short and medium financial term as part of council’s financial planning process.
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Significant risk: Financial Sustainability

The Council has sufficient resources and appropriate arrangements in place to meet the financial challenges presented by Covid-19
for the financial year 2020/21. In the medium term, the picture remains less certain as the longer-lasting impact of the pandemic on
the economy impact on both revenue streams and increased demands for services. However, the Council is in a strong position to
respond to some of the challenges due to the healthy general and earmarked reserve position.
Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we are satisfied that the Council had proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
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Independence and ethics

Independence and ethics
We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial
statements
We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.
Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
requirements for auditors of local public bodies.
Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix B
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Independence and ethics

Independence and ethics
Agenda Item 8

Audit and Non-audit services
For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified, as well
as the threats to our independence and safeguards that have been applied to mitigate these threats.
Proposed
Fees £ Threats identified

Safeguards

Audit related
Certification of Housing
Benefit Claim

23,000 Self-Interest (because this is a
recurring fee)

To mitigate against the self review threat , the timing of certification work is done after the audit has
completed, materiality of the amounts involved to our opinion and unlikelihood of material errors arising and
the Council has informed management who will decide whether to amend returns for our findings and agree
the accuracy of our reports on grants.
Certification of Housing
capital receipts grant

5,000 Self-Interest (because this is a
recurring fee)
Self review (because GT
provides audit services)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the
fee for this work is £5,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £43,232 and in particular relative to
Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it.
These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.
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Self review (because GT
provides audit services)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the
fee for this work in 2018/19 was £23,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £43,232 and in
particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no
contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

To mitigate against the self review threat , the timing of certification work is done after the audit has
completed, materiality of the amounts involved to our opinion and unlikelihood of material errors arising and
the Council has informed management who will decide whether to amend returns for our findings and agree
the accuracy of our reports on grants.
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Appendix A

Audit adjustments
We are required to report all nontrivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.
There were no adjusted or un-adjusted misstatements above triviality levels for the financial statements.
Misclassification and disclosure changes
The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Auditor recommendations

Disclosure and Presentation

We have agreed a small number of minor disclosure and presentation changes which management have agreed to adjust
for.



Note 31 Finance Leases

Some amendments have been made to the finance leases disclosure as a result of our audit work. The changes are
summarised below
• PV of Unguaranteed residual value of property: Changed from £1,114k to £91k
• Gross Investment in the Lease (Later than five years): Changed from £17,511 to £16,397k
• Minimum Lease Payments (Later than five years): Changed from £16,397 to £16,044k



Note 9 Unusable Reserves:
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The Pensions Reserves entries for the below lines have been amended by management to ensure they were consistent
with the IAS19 Report and Note 32 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes in the accounts
• Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the provision of
Services 4,645 to £4,791
• Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year (2,699) to (£2,845k)

Adjusted?
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Disclosure omission
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Appendix C

Audit adjustments
Agenda Item 8

Impact of unadjusted misstatements

The table below provides details of adjustments identified during the 2019/20 audit which have not been made within the final set of financial statements. The Audit Board Committee is
required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below:

Detail

Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
£‘000

Revaluations

Statement of Financial
Position £’ 000

Impact on total net
expenditure £’000

Debit: Revaluation Reserve
£131

Testing of valuations of land and building, identified an error in the formula
used by the valuer in calculating the valuation of Acacia Hall – Car Park. Our
re-performance of the valuation by the valuer identified a difference of £131k
between the valuer’s workings and the auditor’s working. The year-end
valuation for Acacia Hall Car Park in the draft accounts was £373k, however,
due to this formula error, the actual value at year end should have been
£242k. Our testing of valuations of other Car parks owned by the council did
not identify any significant issues Management have decided not to adjust for
this misstatement

Credit: Property Plant and
Equipment £131
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Management Response
The error was not considered to be material to the Council’s accounts,
therefore an amendment will be made in future years

Overall impact
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Fees
We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services
Audit fees
Council Audit
Total audit fees (excluding VAT)

Proposed fee

Final fee

£43,232

TBC

£43,232

TBC

The fees differ slightly to the draft financial statements, given that the figures in the accounts were an estimate as to what the fees would be.

Non-audit fees for other services

Total non- audit fees (excluding VAT)

Final fee

£23,000
£2,000

TBC
TBC

£25,500

TBC
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Audit Related Services:
• Housing benefit subsidy claim
• Pooling housing capital receipts grant

Proposed fee
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© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

©
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Appendix B
Tim Sams

Head of Finance

Grant Thornton UK LLP
30 Finsbury Square
London
EC2P 2YU

Please ask for:
Direct Line:
Direct Fax:
E-mail:

T SAMS
(01322) 343481
(01322) 343045
tim.sams@dartford.gov.uk

Your Ref:
Our Ref:

TSHF/letrep20

Date:

21 October 2020

Dear Sirs,
Dartford Borough Council
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of Dartford
Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to
whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 and applicable law.
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for
the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements
i.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 ("the Code"); in particular
the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith.

ii.

We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Council and
these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements.

iii.

The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no noncompliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on
the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

iv.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

v.

Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at
fair value, are reasonable. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation
of the financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately
disclosed in the financial statements.

vi.

We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of
pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent
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with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been identified and
properly accounted for. We also confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been
identified and properly accounted for.
vii.

Except as disclosed in the financial statements:
a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged
c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items
requiring separate disclosure.

viii.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards
and the Code.

ix.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International Financial
Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or
disclosed.

x.

We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures changes
schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The financial statements have been amended
for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material
misstatements, including omissions.

xi.

We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit Findings
Report. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these misstatements brought to our
attention as they are immaterial to the results of the Council and its financial position at the yearend. The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

xii.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

xiii.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of
assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

xiv.

We have updated our going concern assessment and cashflow forecasts in light of the Covid-19
pandemic. We continue to believe that the Council’s financial statements should be prepared on
a going concern basis and have not identified any material uncertainties related to going concern
on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate
for the Council’s needs. We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Council's ability to
continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statement.

Information Provided
xv.

We have provided you with:
a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;
b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and
c. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements, in compliance with the
nationally specified social distancing requirements established by the government in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

xvi.

We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.

xvii.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

xviii.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
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xix.

xx.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware
of and that affects the Council, and involves:
a. management;
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
d.
We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others.

xxi.

We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements.

xxii.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

xxiii.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should
be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement
xxiv.

We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's risk
assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant
risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report
xxv.

The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Council's
financial and operating performance over the period covered by the financial statements.

Approval
The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit Board at its meeting on
21st October 2020

Yours faithfully
Signed by the Section 151 Officer

Signed on behalf of the Audit Board by

…………………………………………

……………………………………

Tim Sams
Head of Finance

Councillor D Hammock
Chairman of the Audit Board

Date ……………………………………

Date………………………………………
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DRAFT Independent auditor’s report to the members of Dartford
Borough Council
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Dartford Borough Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year
ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the
Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue
Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement on the Housing Revenue Account
Statement, the Collection Fund and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The notes to the financial statements include the EFA, Notes to the Core
Statements, Policies and Judgements, Notes to the Housing Revenue Account Statement and Notes to
the Collection Fund. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United
Kingdom 2019/20.
In our opinion, the financial statements:


give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2020 and of its
expenditure and income for the year then ended;



have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20; and



have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit
Our audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all relevant uncertainties,
including those arising as a consequence of the effects of macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid19 and Brexit. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the Chief
Finance Officer and the related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of
preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic
environment and the Authority’s future operational arrangements.
Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst the most significant economic events currently faced by the UK, and at
the date of this report their effects are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty, with the full range
of possible outcomes and their impacts unknown. We applied a standardised firm-wide approach in
response to these uncertainties when assessing the Authority’s future operational arrangements.
However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future
implications for an authority associated with these particular events.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:
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the Chief Finance Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or



the Chief Finance Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

In our evaluation of the Chief Finance Officer’s conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set
out within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom
2019/20 that the Authority’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we
considered the risks associated with the Authority’s operating activities, including effects arising from
macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. We analysed how those risks might affect
the Authority’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the period of at least twelve
months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. In accordance with the
above, we have nothing to report in these respects.
However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the
Authority will continue in operation.
Emphasis of Matter – effects of Covid-19 on the valuation of property and investment properties
We draw attention to Note 6 of the financial statements, which describes the effects of the Covid-19
pandemic on the valuation of the Authority’s land and buildings and the Authority’s share of the pension
fund’s property investments as at 31 March 2020. As, disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements, the
valuer has declared a material ‘valuations uncertainty’ in the valuation report issued, this is on the basis
of uncertainties in markets caused by COVID-19. The values in the report have been used to inform the
measurement of the Council’s properties. A material valuation uncertainty has also been disclosed
under Pension Liability due to the Pension Fund’s property assets valuations being impacted by COVID19. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other information
The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Narrative Report, the Statement of Accounts, the Annual Governance
Statement other than the financial statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge of the Authority obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller
and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual
Governance Statement does not comply with the ‘delivering good governance in Local Government
Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the
information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual
Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by
internal controls.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Authority gained through our work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published
together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report, and the
Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:


we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or



we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or



we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under
Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the
audit; or;



we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the
course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or



we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.
Responsibilities of the Authority, the Chief Finance Officer and Those Charged with Governance
for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities , the Authority is required to make
arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Chief
Finance Officer. The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of
Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Chief Finance Officer
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Finance Officer is responsible for assessing the
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention by government
that the services provided by the Authority will no longer be provided.
The Audit Board is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged with governance are responsible
for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources
Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, we are satisfied that the Authority put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2020.
Responsibilities of the Authority
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review
regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied
that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of
the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
are operating effectively.
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the
guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, as to
whether in all significant respects the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers
and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us
to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the
year ended 31 March 2020.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we
undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the Authority has put in place
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Dartford Borough Council in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit
Practice.
We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we
have completed the work necessary to issue our Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Component
Assurance statement1 for the Authority for the year ended 31 March 2020. We are satisfied that this
work does not have a material effect on the financial statements or on our conclusion on the Authority's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2020.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent

Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the
Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DRAFT Iain Murray

Iain Murray, Key Audit Partner
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

London

[Date]

Grant Thornton UK LLP.
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AUDIT BOARD
21 OCTOBER 2020
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS) 2019/2020

1. Summary
To present the Council’s Statement of Accounts for the period 1 April 2019 to
31 March 2020 and to recommend accordingly.
2. RECOMMENDATION
That the Statement of Accounts 2019/20 be considered and approved for
publication.

3. Background and Discussion
3.1.

The production and publication of the annual Statement of Accounts
2019/20 are governed by the Local Government Finance Act 1982, and the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. These normally require that the
Accounts be prepared by 31 May, and audited and approved for publication
by 31 July.

3.2.

Due to the Covid-19 virus outbreak the deadlines for submission and audit
of the statement of accounts were changed so that the new statutory date
for publication for the final, audited 2019/20 Financial Statement is 30
November 2020, a change from the 31 July 2020. The formal 10 working
day public inspection period must start by 1 September 2020.

3.3.

The draft 2019/20 Statement of Accounts were provided to the auditors at
the beginning of the audit period on the 6 July 2020 despite the team
working from home during the period and being heavily involved in other
Covid-19 related work streams. Remote audit work continued throughout
July, August and September with the formal accounts inspection being
carried out during the audit period.

3.4.

The previous agenda item was a report from the External Auditor including
the Audit Findings report. At the time of writing the report the External
Auditor is proposing to give an unqualified opinion both on the accounts and
on the Value for Money conclusion. The Auditor cannot sign off the
accounts until they have been formally endorsed by Members. Having
considered the report of the External Auditor, the Board is asked to endorse
the Statement of Accounts and approve its publication.

3.5

A copy of the Statutory Accounts is attached as Appendix A to this report.
Due to the length and complexity of the document, the following are
highlighted for members’ consideration:
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (page 24)
Movement in Reserves Statement (page 25)
Balance Sheet (Page 27)
Note 1a Expenditure and Funding Analysis (page 29)
Housing Revenue Account (page 105)
Collection Fund (page 113)
The Head of Finance will provide a verbal update on the above, highlighting
the important areas at the meeting.
3.6

Outturn reports for the revenue and capital budgets will be presented to
Cabinet in June. There are no changes to these reports following the audit.

3.7

The responsibility for producing and signing the Statement of Accounts
rested with the Strategic Director (Internal Services) as Section 151 Officer.
It will be proposed to the General Assembly of the Council [Agenda item 11
-12 October 2020] that this responsibility transfers to the Head of Finance.
The draft statement incorporates this proposal, which will be confirmed or
otherwise by the time of the meeting.

3.8

The Chairman, on behalf of the Board, is certifying that the report on the
Statement of Accounts has been considered and that the Board has
approved them for publication.

4 Relationship to the Corporate Plan
The completion and approval of the annual Statement of Accounts by 31May
and its approval by 31July are key requirements of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015.
5 Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk
assessments
Financial Implications

The Statement of Accounts details the
Council’s financial position as at 31
March 2020

Legal Implications
Staffing Implications
Administrative Implications
Risk Assessment

These are detailed in paragraph 3.1.
None
None
No uncertainties and/or constraints

6 Appendices
Appendix A – Statement of Accounts 2019-2020
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NARRATIVE REPORT
Introduction
This Narrative Report provides a guide to the Council’s accounts for the year ending 31
March 2020. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (as amended due to the
Coronavirus outbreak) require the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts to be prepared, and
signed, by the responsible officer by 30th August. The statement also provides some
analysis of the development and performance of the Council in the financial year and of its
position at the end of that year.
The accounts are set out on pages 24 to 118.
The Statement of Accounts comprises:
The Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts: this sets out the
Council’s and the Chief Finance Officer’s responsibilities for the statement of accounts.
This statement also carries the certification of the Chief Finance Officer.
Movement in Reserves Statement: this statement shows the movement in the year on
the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into usable reserves (i.e. those that
can be used to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and unusable reserves. The
Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of
providing the authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. This is different from the statutory amounts required to
be charged to the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account for Council Tax setting
and dwellings’ rent setting purposes. The line titled “Net Increase/Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves” shows the statutory General Fund and Housing
Revenue Account balances, before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked
reserves undertaken by the Council.
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: this statement shows the
accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise
taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the
accounting cost.
Balance Sheet: The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the
assets and liabilities recognised by the authority. The net assets of the authority (assets
less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the authority. Reserves are reported in
two categories. The first category of reserves is usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that
the authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example, the Capital Receipts
Reserve may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category
of reserves is those that the authority is not able to use to provide services. This category
of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the
Revaluation Reserve) where cash amounts would only become available to provide
services if the assets were sold.
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Cash Flow Statement: this statement brings together the total movements of the
Council’s assets and liabilities during the financial year; these are inflows and outflows of
cash arising from both revenue and capital transactions with third parties.
Expenditure and Funding Analysis: Officially a note to the accounts, this analysis brings
together both the fiscal/funding framework and the accounting framework by service. It
takes the net expenditure that is chargeable to taxation and rents and reconciles it to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services line in the Consolidated Income and
Expenditure Statement.
Other Notes to the Accounts: the various accounts and statements are supported by
detailed notes to help the reader. These include the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Council and other explanatory information.
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and notes: the Council is required by law to account
separately for the provision of housing. This account shows the major elements of housing
revenue expenditure: repairs and maintenance, administration and financing costs as well
as how the expenditure is financed from rents and other income. The HRA Income and
Expenditure Statement is supported by a Movement on the HRA Statement.
Collection Fund and notes: there is a statutory requirement for local authorities that bill
for council tax and non-domestic rates (billing authorities) to maintain a separate fund to
show the transactions in respect of these items and the way in which they have been
distributed to precepting authorities.
Glossary: this provides a guide to some of the technical terms used in this document.
Changes to the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts
There were no significant changes to the 2019/20 apart from the deadline changes due to
the outbreak of Covid-19

Summary of financial performance in the year

The General Fund
The financial statements are produced in accordance with accounting principles. These
differ markedly from the internal financial management information used to set budgets and
monitor performance.
The General Fund accounts for all revenue services other than those provided in respect of
council housing. The budget requirement is the net expenditure on services and is the sum
to be met from government grants, retained business rates and council tax.
The Council set its budget requirement for 2019/20 at the budget meeting on 25 February
2019. This allowed for a net increase in reserves and balances of £4,161,640.
The following table compares the final figures for 2019/20 with the original budget.
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Original
Budget
£,000

Actual
£,000

Net expenditure on services
Contribution to reserves

12,820
4,774

9,738
7,975

Budget Requirement

17,594

17,713

Less:
Business Rates Retention
Other grants
Council tax

(5,000)
(4,774)
(7,209)

(4,890)
(4,875)
(7,209)

Contribution from reserves

(611)

0

0

739

Deficit (Surplus) for the year

Net expenditure on services was £3.08M lower than the original budget. In the main, this
was due to £2.3m additional income from interest relating to the Council’s investments.
Other areas where income was higher or expenditure was lower than budget include,
staffing variances of £360,000 and planning income of £246,000. Conversely, an
overspend of £296,000 was incurred on temporary accommodation for homeless families.
There were several other smaller budget variances. Full details can be found in the report
to Cabinet of 25 June 2020.
Because of the favourable outturn position, it was possible to avoid the planned draw-down
from reserves and make an additional contribution to specific reserves of £2.46m to set
against nominal losses in the value of investments as a result of the Coronavirus crisis. A
transfer form general reserves to earmarked reserves of £739,000 was made for the same
reason so that the General Fund balance decreased to £3m.

Earmarked Reserves
Earmarked Reserves movements not reflected in the table above include expenditure of
£609,000 and transfers of £580,000 from the General Fund into reserves. The total amount
carried forward in earmarked revenue reserves was £42m.
The Housing Revenue Account
The Housing Revenue Account accounts for all revenue services in respect of council
housing.
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The Housing Revenue Account is "ringfenced", i.e. it cannot subsidise or receive subsidies
from other accounts. It is also known as the ‘Landlord Account’, as all costs and income
relate to the provision of council housing.
The 2019/20 account was budgeted to make a deficit of £3.258m. The final outturn was a
surplus of £1.476m.
The main reason that the revenue expenditure reduced compared to budget was that the
total revenue contribution from the HRA to capital projects was £3.6m lower than originally
planned. The previous year HRA capital scheme overspent by £1.8m due to the new build
scheme working ahead of original profile. There was also an underspend against the
budget in year resulting in £2.1m less spend than expected over the two years for the
scheme. This, together with and availability of an additional £281,000 of other
contributions, meant that the £3.2m budgeted contribution for the scheme was not
required. There was also other capital underspending of £441,000.
Other areas of underspend include Repairs and Maintenance of £0.22m. Income also was
£0.686m higher than the budget.
The Council is due to pay back a significant debt instalment in 2021/22 and the account
continues to fund the new build programme. The reserve balance of £13.8m will be
important in responding to these challenges.
The Capital Programme
The Capital Programme consists of a number of projects where expenditure is incurred on
investment in new assets or improving existing ones. Ongoing revenue costs, such as
those charged to the General Fund or Housing Revenue Account, cannot be charged to
capital.
The Council budgeted to spend £30.771m on investment in assets of a capital nature;
actual expenditure was £17.379m. This was lower due to slower progress than initially
expected with the Acacia, New Homes and Town Centre projects, budgets are likely to be
rolled forward in the 2020/21 budget. Capital expenditure was funded from capital receipts,
government grants, developer contributions, revenue contributions and the Major Repairs
Reserve.
The Usable Capital Receipts Reserve had a balance at the beginning of the year of
£11.80m. New usable receipts during the year totalled £19.99m, £6.65m was used to
finance expenditure, £1.57m was paid to the Government in respect of receipts pooling.
Additionally capital receipts of £1.06m arising from the sale of council housing, were set
aside to be used to finance the provision of new social housing under the “one for one
receipts” scheme. The balance of usable capital receipts carried forward at the end of the
year was £24.62m.
The Balance Sheet valuation of property, plant and equipment plus investment properties
at the end of the year is £392m, a similar figure to the previous year. Movements within this
figure can be seen in the relevant notes.
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Capital commitments as at 31 March 2020 stand at £4.7m, compared with £11.6m as at 31
March 2020. This commitment relates to the ongoing completion of various schemes
including works to Acacia, Stone Lodge and the town centre.
Non-Financial Performance
Of the target performance indicators:




85.71% - the targets were green
0% - the targets were amber
14.29% - the targets were red

Improvement from last year in the target performance indicators can be seen in:




Percentage of repairs completed in time (93.25% in 2019-20 compared to 91.40% in
2018-19)
Average time taken to re-let local authority housing (in calendar days) (EXCL major
works) (20.01 in 2019-20 compared to 23.58 in 2018-19)
Average number of DBC working days lost due to long term (>4 weeks) illness per
employee (4.49 in 2019-20 compared to 6.31 in 2018-19)

The following target performance indicators consistently meet their target each year:










Number of households taking part in green bin (garden waste) service
Number of service requests completed for Private Sector Housing
No of private sector vacant dwellings that are returned into occupation or
demolished
Number of affordable homes delivered (gross)
Percentage of in-year Council Tax collected
Percentage of in-year Business Rates collected
Average time taken to process a new claim for Housing Benefit (cumulative)
Percentage of supplier payments made within 30 days of receipt of invoice
Rent Collection and Arrears Recovery - rents collected as a proportion of rents owed

However, performance has gone down from last year on the following target indicators:



Percentage of High risk (categories A & B) food hygiene inspections due and
completed (cumulative) (80% in 2019-20 compared to 100% in 2018-19)
Average number of DBC working days lost due to short term (<4 weeks) illness per
employee (4.85 in 2019-20 compared to 4.69 in 2018-19)

Of the “data only” indicators improvement from last year can be seen in:




Community Infrastructure Levy income (£3,727,327 in 2019-20 compared to
£2,075,404 in 2018-19)
Usage of DBC Sports Facilities: Average Number of parkrun Users (271 in 2019-20
compared to 266 in 2018-19)
Usage of DBC Sports Facilities: Princes Park Mini Pitch Users (176 in 2019-20
compared to 159 in 2018-19)
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Total number of arrests instigated by CCTV this month (93 in 2019-20 compared to
76 in 2018-19)
Total number of arrests supported by CCTV this month (102 in 2019-21 compared
to 81 in 2018-19)
Number of Dartford Town Against Crime (DTAC) interventions against persistent
offenders (40 in 2019-20 compared to 10 in 2018-19)
The average results of Nitrogen Dioxide levels from all automatic air quality
monitoring stations in the Borough (micrograms per m2) (32.9 in 2019-20 compared
to 40.2 in 2018-19)
Number of graffiti incidents (38 in 2019-20 compared to 64 in 2018-19)
Number of households where homelessness has been prevented (282 in 2019-20
compared to 215 in 2018-19)
Number of phone calls received by the Council (484,650 in 2019-20 compared to
502,241 in 2018-19)
Overall business birth rate (latest available figures – 705 in 2018-19 compared to
660 in 2017-18)
Overall business death rate (latest available figures – 575 in 2018-19 compared to
640 in 2017-18)
Life expectancy gap for men (latest available figures - 7.1 in 2016-18 compared to
7.5 in 2015-17)

However, the data only indicators where outcomes have worsened from last year are:













District wide unemployment rate (2.3% in 2019-20 compared to 1.7% in 2018-19)
Usage of DBC Sports Facilities: Total Fairfield Centre Visits (412,583 in 2019-20
compared to 526,563 in 2018-19)
Usage of DBC Sports Facilities: Average Number of Junior parkrun Users (40 in
2019-20 compared to 41 in 2018-19)
Number of local groups supported through Community Grant and other grant
schemes (13 in 2019-20 compared to 40 in 2018-19)
Percentage attendance at the Orchard Theatre (% of total seats available which are
used) (45.75% in 2019-20 compared to 62% in 2018-19)
Number of businesses supporting Dartford Town Against Crime (DTAC) (64 in 201920 compared to 83 in 2018-19)
Number of households taking part in energy efficiency initiatives in the Borough (225
in 2019-20 compared to 350 in 2018-19)
Number of fly tipping incidents (2,766 in 2019-20 compared to 2,670 in 2018-19)
Percentage of household waste going to landfill (0.5% in 2019-20 compared to 0.4%
in 2018-19)
No of households on the housing register (829 in 2019-20 compared to 785 in 201819)
No of households living in temporary accommodation (114 in 2019-20 compared to
69 in 2018-19)
Life expectancy gap for women (latest available figures – 5.7 in 2016-18 compared
to 4.8 in 2015-17)
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More details about performance including mitigating actions will be found as reported to
Cabinet in due course.
Influences affecting the Authority’s income and expenditure and levels of reserves
The Council has cash and investments of approximately £126m, compared to £109m as at
31 March 2020. Whilst these levels are affected by various factors, it is expected that
balances will reduce over the next 12 months due to planned capital expenditure.
The capital programme for 2020/21 totals £29.8m, of which £11.5m is for housing. The
capital programme is funded from a mixture of capital receipts, grants and contributions,
and revenue/reserve contributions.
Recent years have seen significant reductions in government grant, and further reductions
in resources are expected to occur over the next few years. However, the Council has
benefitted from increased income from business rates and the New Homes Bonus,
although both may only be short term and it is likely a business rates reset will reduce
income from business rates significantly. The Council has approved a Medium Term
Financial Plan, which identifies the potential budget needs and resource requirements in
the next few years.
The major financial risks for the Council in the coming years are the direct and indirect
effect of the Coronavirus. The Council will have additional costs and loss of income. It is
also possible that the increased government spend and decreased economic activity will
affect local government income in the medium term.
Other pre-existing risks include the proposed fair funding review and possible reductions in
retained income, business rate changes (including appeals, reset, retail market conditions
and the ongoing consultation for the move towards 75% business rates retention) and the
new arrangement to replace the New Homes Bonus.
At 31 March 2020, the Council had £45m of usable reserves for general use and £13.8m
for housing. This is considered prudent and adequate for current estimated needs.
The Council has sufficient balances and earmarked reserves to enable a smooth transition
to lower expenditure levels due to the reasons identified above. The main variable risk to
cash flows is income from investments, business rates and council tax.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DARTFORD
BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Dartford Borough Council (the ‘Authority’)
for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the
Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement,
the Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement, the Collection Fund
Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The Notes to the Accounts, Note to the Movement on the Housing
Revenue Account Statement and Collection Fund Notes. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19.
In our opinion, the financial statements:
 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2019
and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended;
 have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice
on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19; and
 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the
ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
 the Chief Finance Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
 the Chief Finance Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve
months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Other information
The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the
financial statements and, our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge of the Authority obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit
Practice
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to
consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the ‘Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)’ published by CIPFA and
SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from
our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement
addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal
controls.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Authority gained through our work in relation to
the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources, the other information published together with the financial statements
in the Statement of Accounts, for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:
 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
 we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary
to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of,
or at the conclusion of the audit; or;
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 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or
 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.
We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.
Responsibilities of the Authority, the Chief Finance Officer and Those Charged with
Governance for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts and
Certificate of the Chief Finance Officer set out on page 12 and 13, the Authority is
required to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and
to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those
affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Chief Finance Officer. The Chief Finance
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes
the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the Chief Finance Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Finance Officer is responsible for
assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
there is an intention by government that the services provided by the Authority will no
longer be provided.
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RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND
CERTIFICATE OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
The Council’s responsibilities
The Council is required:


to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to
secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those
affairs. In this authority that officer is the Strategic Director of Internal Services who
is the named Chief Finance Officer under section 151 of the Local Government Act
1972.



to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources
and safeguard its assets.



to approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Section 151 Officer’s responsibilities
The Section 151 officer is responsible for the preparation of the authority’s Statement of
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.
In preparing that statement of accounts, the Section 151 officer has:


selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;



made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;



complied with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting.

The Section 151 officer has also:


kept proper accounting records which were up to date;



taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
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CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION TO THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
I hereby certify that the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020 required
by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 gives a true and fair view of the financial
position and transactions of the Council, and its income and expenditure for the same year
then ended.

T Sams

TIM SAMS CPFA
SECTION 151 OFFICER
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APPROVAL OF THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT REGULATIONS 2015
COMPLETION OF THE APPROVAL OF THE ACCOUNTS
The Statement of Accounts was formally approved for publication by the Audit Board
on21st October 2020.

D Hammock
COUNCILLOR D A HAMMOCK
CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT BOARD
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2019 TO 31 MARCH 2020
SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY
Dartford Borough Council (the Council) is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for. The Council also has a duty under the Local
Government Act 1999 (as amended) to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for implementing proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, the stewardship of the resources at its
disposal and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements
for the management of risk.
The Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance (the Local
Code), which is consistent with the principles and reflects the requirements of the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government (2016).
The Local Code is published on the Council’s website at www.dartford.gov.uk.
This statement explains how the Council has complied with the Local Code and with
meeting the requirements of regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to
review and report on the effectiveness of its system of internal control and to prepare an
Annual Governance Statement.
The Council has in place appropriate management and reporting arrangements to enable it
to satisfy that its approach to corporate governance is adequate and effective in practice.
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for ensuring that
there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of the
Council's functions, and which includes arrangements for the management of risk.
THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by
which the Council is directed and controlled, and by which it, through its activities, can
account to, engage with and lead the community. The governance framework enables the
Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether
those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies,
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed
to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should
they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
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This Annual Governance Statement is produced for the year 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020
and includes the period up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.
THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council’s governance
arrangements are summarised below:
Identifying and communicating our vision and outcomes for citizens and service
users
The Corporate Plan 2017-2020 has been approved by the General Assembly of the
Council [17 July 2017 Min 34]. The Corporate Plan is published on the Council’s website.
Reviewing our vision and its implications for our governance arrangements
Progress towards the achievement of the objectives is monitored through the Performance
Management Framework, with performance reports to Management Team, Cabinet and
Policy Overview Committee, and through other internal review mechanisms.
Measuring the quality of services for users, to ensure that they are delivered in
accordance with the Council’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the
best use of resources
The Council measures the quality of service to users through a number of mechanisms
including:
 Customer surveys
 Comments, compliments and complaints
 Monitoring against targets and indicators
 Scrutiny by the Scrutiny Committee and reviews by the Policy
Overview Committee
 Comparison with similar authorities
Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of our community
and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation
The Council has developed a Consultation and Engagement Strategy to meet its duty to
inform, consult and involve people in the delivery of Council services. An Equalities and
Diversity Document Framework has been developed to meet the Council’s obligations
under the Equality Act 2010. The Statement of Community Involvement sets out how the
community will be involved in decisions about the Council’s Local Plan.
Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive,
non-executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements
and protocols for effective communication
The Council has an adopted Constitution, which details how the Council operates, how
decisions are made, and the procedures, which are to be followed to ensure that these are
efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. The Constitution defines the terms
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of reference for all Council committees. The Cabinet (exercising the executive functions of
the Council) is responsible for most decisions. The Cabinet is made up of the Leader and
Six Councillors. The Council elects the Leader and the Leader appoints the Cabinet. Major
decisions are published in advance, in the Regulation 9 Notice, and will generally be
discussed in a meeting open to the public. All decisions must be in line with the Council's
overall policies and budget. Any decisions the Cabinet wishes to take outside the budget
or policy framework must be referred to the General Assembly of the Council to decide.
There is a Scrutiny Committee that scrutinises the work of the Cabinet, presenting
challenge and the opportunity for a decision to be reconsidered. Most scrutiny is
undertaken post-decision but a "call-in" procedure allows Scrutiny Committee to also
review Cabinet decisions before they are implemented.
The Policy Overview Committee reviews general policies and makes recommendations on
future policy options to Cabinet.
A Scheme of Delegation to Officers is approved by the Cabinet/General Assembly of the
Council. This defines the framework and limits within which officers can take decisions.
Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the
standards of behaviour for members and staff
The standards of conduct and personal behaviour expected of Council Members and
Officers, its partners and the community are defined and communicated through codes of
conduct and protocols. These include:









A Member Code of Conduct
An Employee Code of Conduct
Regular performance appraisals for staff linked to corporate and service
objectives
An Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy
A Member/Officer Protocol
A Whistleblowing Policy
An Annual Monitoring Officer report
An Audit Board to oversee and monitor the Member Code of Conduct

Whistleblowing and receiving and investigating complaints from the public
The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy is regularly reviewed and provides for confidential
reporting on matters of concern. Informants are requested to be open in their disclosure,
but it is recognised that on occasions, informants will wish to remain anonymous.
The Council has an effective Corporate Complaints Procedure. A report is submitted
annually to the Audit Board on corporate complaints. The Cabinet receives an annual
report from the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman containing feedback
statistics from the complaints made to the Ombudsman and comment on the Council’s
performance in responding to Ombudsman investigations.
Reviewing and updating standing orders, financial instructions, scheme of
delegations and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how
decisions are taken and the processes and controls required to manage risks
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Standing Orders, Contract Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and the Scheme of
Delegations to Officers are regularly reviewed as are supporting procedures and manuals.
Compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures, and that
expenditure is lawful
The Council has a duty to ensure that it acts in accordance with the law and various
regulations in the performance of its functions. It has developed policies and procedures
for its Officers and Members to ensure that, as far as possible, they understand their
responsibilities both to the Council and to the public. Key documents and procedures
include:









Standing Orders
Contract Standing Orders
Procurement Guide
Finance Guidance incorporating Financial Regulations
Money Laundering procedures
Committee reporting procedure including requirements for the monitoring of legal
and financial implications
Regular training on new legal requirements
Regular updates from the Head of Legal Services for Members and Officers on
key changes to the local authority legal framework

Other key corporate policies on a range of topics such as Equalities, Customer Care, Data
Protection, Freedom of Information and Fraud have been adopted. All policies are subject
to internal review, to ensure they are adequately maintained and fit for purpose.
Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in
accordance with our objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of
resources
The Council, through its budgetary monitoring and control processes, ensures that
financial resources are being used in accordance with the budget and corporate policy via
regular management reporting to Directors, the Finance Portfolio Member and Cabinet.
Financial planning is underpinned by service planning and annual budget reviews to
ensure that individual service plans and service improvements are in line with corporate
objectives.
Through performance reports, corporate and key service objectives are monitored to
ensure that performance targets and indicators are being achieved.
Economic, effective and efficient use of resources is subject to review through the work of
the Scrutiny and Policy Overview Committees, Internal and External Audit and annual
budget reviews.
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Financial Management
Responsibility for ensuring that an effective system of internal financial control is
maintained and operated rests with the S151 Officer. The systems of internal financial
control provide reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, that
transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and that material errors or irregularities
are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period.
The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer is reported to the General
Assembly as part of the annual budget report. The Council meets all the governance
requirements contained in the statement.
Internal financial control is based on a framework of management information, financial
regulations and administrative procedures, which include the segregation of duties where
practical, management supervision and a system of delegation and accountability.
In particular, the process in 2019/20 included:
 The setting of a one year detailed budget and Medium Term Financial Plan;
 Monitoring of actual income and expenditure against the annual budget;
 A budget review by officers and Members;
 Setting of financial and performance targets;
 Regular reporting of the Council's financial position to Members;
 Clearly defined capital expenditure guidelines;
 Managing risk in key financial service areas.

Effectiveness of Internal Audit
The Council’s Internal Audit service is provided in partnership with Sevenoaks District
Council.
During 2019/20, the internal audit team have worked to deliver the annual audit plan,
approved by the Audit Board in April 2019. The plan has been delayed both due to the
restructure in the service and latterly the Covid-19 outbreak. The service has provided
regular updates to Members on the outcomes of audit work, progress on implemented
audit actions, and also updates regarding the outstanding actions from the External Quality
Assessment.
In August 2018 the Council entered into a secondment with Mid Kent Audit for the provision
of an Audit Manager, a role that also fulfils the Chief Audit Executive functions. Over the
course of the year the service has taken steps to review, update and improve delivery of
audit work, and the Internal Audit process has been revised to reflect the requirements of
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). This arrangement finished in January
and interim arrangements were in place for the reminder of the year.
The seconded Audit Manager led the service through a restructure in year with the
structure changed in order to improve the service and increase added-value. The
restructure work, recruitment and induction of new staff has taken some time and the audit
plan has slowed as a result. Additionally, catch-up work towards the end of the year was
thwarted due to the Covid 19 pandemic.
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Internal audit have issued no audit conclusions less than substantial in 2019/20, and the
majority of audit actions have been agreed and fully implemented. The Audit Board request
details of outstanding or deferred high priority actions, and while the Board has not
expressed any concerns over 2019/20, they have the power to invite Officers to attend
meetings to provide updates directly.
Individual audit reports continue to be issued and distributed to relevant Senior Managers,
with copies to the Managing Director and Section 151 Officer.
The effectiveness of the Internal Audit service was assessed in 2019/20 (using the PSIAS
checklist) following the formal follow-up of the External Quality Assessment (EQA) by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. The assessment was undertaken again in early 2019/20 and will
be the basis of a new EQA which should take place during 2020/21 which will provide a
baseline for the new audit manager (commenced May 2020) to work from.
The Audit Board, as those charged with governance, will provide continued oversight and
direction as required. As such, the operation of the service will also be monitored by the
Strategic Management Team, and the Section 151 Officer.
Performance and Risk Management
Performance indicators and targets remain under review and are monitored and reported
internally and externally. Management information on key performance indicators are
reported monthly. Performance data has continued to be managed through Pentana, which
enables the Council to input, collate, and report on real time performance as necessary.
The need to refresh and improve the risk management framework has continued and the
work to do that was not completed in 2019/20 due to other priorities. The Council will be
working with the Audit Partnership to update and rollout a new risk process over 2020/21.
This work will include updating the risk process to meet recognised modern practices, and
creating a greater link between operational and strategic level risks.
By doing this, the Council will have greater oversight and more effective management of
key risks as they arise.
The development needs of Members and senior officers in relation to their strategic roles,
are supported by appropriate training
Members receive training on key topics or where significant changes have occurred or new
legislation introduced. Training for officers is considered at the annual appraisal meeting
and also during the year, if required.
REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
Dartford Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of
the effectiveness of its governance framework, including the system of internal control.
This review is informed by:


The work of Internal Audit and the Chief Audit Executive’s Annual Opinion.
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The work of senior managers within the Council who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the governance environment
The work of the Data Protection Officer
The work of the Senior Information Risk Owner
The opinion of the external auditors as expressed in their annual report to the
Audit Board.
The detailed review undertaken on behalf of the Management Team.
The overview provided by Management Team.
The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report to the Audit Board.

The following processes have been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the governance framework:
Council
The Corporate Plan and the budget are approved and reviewed by the General Assembly
of the Council. Other strategies and policies are approved and reviewed by the General
Assembly of the Council (where the functions are reserved to it, by legislation).
Cabinet
The Cabinet receives reports on financial performance. Strategies and policies are
approved and reviewed by Cabinet (where the functions are reserved to Cabinet, by
legislation).
Scrutiny Committee and Policy Overview Committee
These Committees have respectively a role in (a) reviewing/scrutinising action and
decisions taken, (b) advising on and reviewing policies and (c) external scrutiny i.e. looking
at issues which lie outside the Council’s responsibilities.

Audit Board
The Audit Board receives quarterly updates on the assurance, which can be placed on
various systems and processes during the year, along with an annual assessment at the
year-end.
The Audit Board reviews reports presented to it by the Audit Manager (Chief Audit
Executive). The Board receives a summary of all internal audit reports and keeps a check
on those areas where adverse audit findings or assurance is given. Additionally, the Board
has regard to the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management arrangements.
The Audit Board receives an annual report from the Monitoring Officer on ethical
governance arrangements and on the effectiveness of the Corporate Complaints
Procedure.
Ethics is a key element of governance and the purpose of the Monitoring Officer’s annual
review of the Council’s ethical governance is to ensure that robust arrangements are in
place and that the Council continues to develop and improve management and reporting

20

Dartford Borough Council

Agenda Item 9

Page 168

arrangements so as to satisfy itself that its approach to ethical governance is both
adequate and effective in practice.

Data Protection Officer
The Head of Legal Services has been appointed the Data Protection Officer (DPO) in
accordance with the Data Protection Act 2018 (applying the General Data Protection
Regulation) (the 2018 Act).
The DPO’s minimum tasks are:




to inform and advise the Council and its employees about their obligations to
comply with the 2018 Act;
to monitor compliance with the 2018 Act, including managing internal data
protection activities, advising on data protection impact assessments, training staff
and conducting internal compliance audits;
to be the first point of contact for supervisory authorities and for individuals whose
data is processed (employees, customers etc.).

The DPO operates independently and is required to report to the highest management
level in the Council.

Senior Information Risk Officer
The Strategic Director (Internal Services) is the Council’s appointed SIRO who has
responsibility for ensuring that the Council’s IT systems’ risk within the organisation is
managed appropriately.
The SIRO’s other responsibilities can be summarised as:





owning the Council’s overall IT Security Policy and IT risk assessment processes
and ensuring they are implemented consistently by Information Asset Owners;
advising the Management Team and the Audit Board on the information risk aspects
of the Council’s statement on internal controls/annual governance statement;
reporting to the Audit Board on the effectiveness of the Council’s’ cyber security
management processes;
owning the Council’s IT incident management framework.

Annual Audit Opinion
Based on the work completed to date in 2019-20 and other sources of assurance available
to the function, the Chief Audit Executive’s overall annual assurance opinion is that the
Council’s arrangements for internal control, risk management, governance and anti-fraud
during the period is “sound”.
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SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES
On the basis of the review undertaken and considerd by the Strategic Directors, the
Council is satisfied that there are no significant governance matters that need to be brought
to the immediate attention of Members and that the Council’s corporate governance
arrangements are adequate and operating effectively.
However, the Council continues to seek to improve and strengthen the governance and
control environment. As such, the assessment against the Governance Code and
Principles have highlighted some areas for improvement. A supporting action plan is
appended to this statement.
Over the coming year, the Council will monitor and track progress against the action plan,
to ensure steps are taken to improve and enhance its governance arrangements. The
Council is satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were
identified in the review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation
as part of the next annual review.

COVID-19 pandemic
This governance statement AGS assesses governance in place during 2019/20, so the
majority of the year was unaffected by coronavirus.
However, coronavirus impacted on governance during March 2020. It is essential that the
AGS reflects the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on governance.
In March there was an impact on:





Business as usual and delivery of services mainly from staff working at home and
some self-isolation, some services were unable to function during the initial
lockdown such as parking enforcement. Decisions around any necessary changes
to internal controls were discussed with senior managers and escalated if necessary
The Council started a food delivery service for those shielding in partnership with
NHS volunteers at the request of government and procured personal protective
equipment to help staff carry out their roles.
An initial assessment of the costs and loss of income of immediately apparent
changes was also carried out and reported to management.

During the 2020-21 year a continuing response has been in operation including additional
financial monitoring and assessment of the long-term disruption and consequences arising
from the coronavirus pandemic.
Once the crisis is over the local authorities would intend to conduct a review of the lessons
to be learned from its response. This is included in the action plan.

The Leader of the Council

J Kite

Strategic Director – Internal Services
Strategic Director – External Services

S Martin
S Green
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Governance Action Plan 2019-20
Ref

Action

Link to Code
& Framework

Co-ordinating
Officer

1

Develop and implement
the workforce strategy &
value framework

Principles A, E,
F, G

HR Manager

2

Consider Hybrid system for
physical and virtual
meetings

Principles A, B

Strategic Director
– Internal
Services

Principles A, F,
G

Policy and
Performance
Manager

Principles D, F

Audit Manager,
Policy and
Performance
Manager

5

Asset Management review
and associated actions
planning and tracking

Principles C, E

Head of Legal
Services

6

Consider new ways of
working in a post-Covid 19
environment

Principle E

Strategic
Directors

7

Complete the refresh and
rollout of the risk
management framework
(strategic level risks and
operational)

Principles A, F,
G

8

Improve resilience and
community capacity to
respond to additional
peaks in demand

Principles E, F

Strategic
Directors

9

Carry out lessons learnt
review of Covid -19
response

Principles D,
E,G

Audit Manager

3

4

Review Corporate plan in
light of Covid 19 recovery
requirements
Review of performance
indicators and reporting /
monitoring arrangements –
effectiveness of
management oversight,
intervention and link to
objectives

Audit Manager

How will success be
measured?
 Strategy created and
adopted
 Communication and
engagement plan to
support rollout



Assessment concluded
System in place and
working effectively



New Corporate Plan agreed



Updated reports focussing
on outcomes and objectives
Greater oversight and
support to achieve
outcomes





Delivery of Asset
Management Strategy
action plan



Improved efficiency and
effectiveness



Strategic & operational risk
registers in place
Key risks escalated and
reported
Risk themes are strategies
monitored
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Audit Report and
consideration of any
recommendations
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from
taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this
may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the
Movement in Reserves Statement and in the Expenditure and Funding Analysis.

2019/20
Gross
Expenditure

2019/20
Gross
Income

2019/20
Net
Expenditure

2018/19
Net
Expenditure

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

292

(10)

282

291

Strategic Director External Services

17,635

(10,160)

7,475

7,973

Strategic Director Internal Services

39,328

(26,157)

13,171

7,738

13,536

(21,544)

(8,008)

(7,720)

70,791

(57,871)

12,920

8,282

Note 11

(6,103)

(960)

Note 12

8,146

(2,135)

Note 13

(24,969)

(22,209)

(10,006)

(17,022)

(8,337)

(6,409)

Managing Director

Local Authority Housing (HRA)

Page 105

Cost of Services
Other Operating Expenditure
Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure
Taxation and Non Specific Grant
Income and Expenditure
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services
(Surplus) / Deficit on the revaluation of
non current assets
(Surplus) or Deficit on the revaluation
of available for sale financial assets
Remeasurements of the net defined
benefit liability (asset)
Total Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Note 9

0

Note 9
Note 9

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
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(6,676)

(10,212)

(13,085)

(20,218)

(30,107)
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT
The statement below shows the movement in the financial year for the different reserves
held by the Authority, analysed into ‘Usable Reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to
fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and Unusable Reserves.
The (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of
providing the Authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. This is different from the statutory amounts required to
be charged to the General Fund balance and the Housing Revenue Account for council tax
setting and dwellings rent setting purposes.
The Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the
statutory General Fund and Housing Revenue Account balances before any discretionary
transfers to or from Earmarked Reserves undertaken by the Council.

Movement in
Reserves
during 2019/20

General
Fund
Balance

Earmarked
GF
Reserves

Total
General
Fund
Reserves

Housing
Revenue
Account

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
Account

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

Total
Usable
Reserves

Unusable
Reserves

Total
Authority
Reserves

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

Balance at 31
March 2019

(3,740)

(33,441)

(37,181)

(12,328)

(5,877)

(11,795)

(67,181)

(298,893)

(366,074)

Total
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

(1,710)

0

(1,710)

(8,296)

0

0

(10,006)

(10,212)

(20,218)

(6,077)

0

(6,077)

6,820

(5,192)

(12,827)

(17,276)

17,276

0

(7,787)

0

(7,787)

(1,476)

(5,192)

(12,827)

(27,282)

7,064

(20,218)

8,527

(8,527)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

740

(8,527)

(7,787)

(1,476)

(5,192)

(12,827)

(27,282)

7,064

(20,218)

(3,000)

(41,968)

(44,968)

(13,804)

(11,069)

(24,622)

(94,463)

(291,829)

(386,292)

Adjustments
between
accounting
basis and
funding basis
under
regulations

Note
8

(Net increase)
/ decrease
before
transfers to
Earmarked
Reserves
Transfers (to) /
from
Earmarked
Reserves
(Increase) /
Decrease in
Year
Balance at 31
March 2020

Note
10
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Further analysis of the specific adjustments and transfers which have been made to
reserves is contained in notes 8 and 9.
The following table shows the comparative information for movements in reserves which
took place during previous financial year:

Movement in
Reserves
during 2018/19

General
Fund
Balance

Earmarked
GF
Reserves

Total
General
Fund
Reserves

Housing
Revenue
Account

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
Account

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

Total
Usable
Reserves

Unusable
Reserves

Total
Authority
Reserves

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

Balance at
31 March 2018

(3,000)

(26,522)

(29,522)

(12,934)

(3,864)

(12,158)

(58,478)

(277,489)

(335,967)

Total
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

(9,395)

0

(9,395)

(7,627)

0

0

(17,022)

(13,085)

(30,107)

1,736

0

1,736

8,233

(2,013)

363

8,319

(8,319)

0

(7,659)

0

(7,659)

606

(2,013)

363

(8,703)

(21,404)

(30,107)

6,919

(6,919)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(740)

(6,919)

(7,659)

606

(2,013)

363

(8,703)

(21,404)

(30,107)

(3,740)

(33,441)

(37,181)

(12,328)

(5,877)

(11,795)

(67,181)

(298,893)

(366,074)

Adjustments
between
accounting
basis and
funding basis
under
regulations

Note
8

(Net increase) /
decrease
before transfers
to Earmarked
Reserves
Transfers (to) /
from
Earmarked
Reserves
(Increase) /
Decrease in
Year
Balance at 31
March 2019

Note
10
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BALANCE SHEET
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
£,000
Long Term Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Property
Intangible Assets
Long Term Investments
Long Term Debtors
Total Long Term Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Inventories
Short Term Debtors
Short Term Investments
Total Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowing
Short Term Creditors
Grants Receipts in Advance - Revenue
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Note 14
Note 15
Note 17
Note 18

Note 19
Note 18
Note 17

Note 17
Note 20
Note 28
Note 21

Net Current Assets
Long Term Liabilities
Long Term Creditors
Provisions
Long Term Borrowing
Net Pensions Liability
Total Long Term Liabilities

Note 20
Note 21
Note 17
Note 32

Total Net Assets
Financed by:
Usable Reserves
Usable Capital Receipts Reserve
Earmarked Reserves
Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve
General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
Unusable Reserves
Capital Adjustment Account
Revaluation Reserve
Collection Fund
Pensions Reserve
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
Pooled Fund Adjustment Account
Total Net Worth

Note 8
Note 10
Note 8
HRA
Note 9
Note 9
Note 9
Note 9
Note 9
Note 9

27

£,000

382,151
10,150
36
57,796
11,740
461,873

379,004
12,811
47
61,838
13,437
467,137

40,360
2
12,602
27,794
80,758

13,588
2
10,466
34,105
58,161

(4,651)
(28,364)
(1,394)
(1,501)
(35,910)

(4,663)
(26,535)
(97)
(3,288)
(34,583)

44,848

23,578

(12,663)
(5,898)
(46,962)
(54,906)
(120,429)

(13,370)
(5,031)
(51,405)
(54,835)
(124,641)

386,292

366,074

(24,622)
(41,967)
(11,069)
(3,000)
(13,804)

(11,795)
(33,440)
(5,877)
(3,740)
(12,328)

(206,636)
(133,219)
(1,670)
54,906
(13,772)
8,561

(208,853)
(127,299)
(1,432)
54,835
(15,376)
(769)

(386,292)

(366,074)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses
cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as Operating, Investing and Financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of
the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of taxation and grant
income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are
intended to contribute to the Authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of
capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

10,006

17,022

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of
services for non cash movements

Note 22

33,550

14,031

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit
on the provision of services that are investing and
financing activities

Note 22

(27,070)

(9,821)

16,486

21,232

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Note 23

15,179

(24,291)

Financing activities

Note 24

(4,893)

(4,505)

26,773

(7,564)

13,588

21,152

40,360

13,588

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting
period
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1a Expenditure and Funding Analysis
This analysis brings together both the fiscal/funding framework and the accounting
framework by service. It takes the net expenditure that is chargeable to taxation and rents,
and reconciles it to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services line in the
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Statement.

2019/20

Net
Expenditure
Chargeable to
the General
Fund and
HRA Balances
(MIRS)

Net
Adjustments
Expenditure in
between
the
Funding and
Comprehensive
Accounting
Income and
Basis
Expenditure
(Note 6)
Statement

£,000

£,000

£,000

269

13

282

Strategic Director External Services

6,959

516

7,475

Strategic Director Internal Services

2,615

10,556

13,171

(1,476)

(6,532)

(8,008)

8,367

4,553

12,920

(17,630)

(5,296)

(22,926)

(Surplus) or deficit

(9,263)

(743)

(10,006)

Opening General Fund and HRA Balance at
31 March 2019

49,509

Managing Director

Local Authority Housing (HRA)
Net cost of services

Other income and expenditure

Plus Surplus on General Fund and HRA
Balance in year

9,263

Closing General Fund and HRA Balance at
31 March 2020

58,772
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2018/19
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Net
Expenditure
Chargeable to
the General
Fund and
HRA Balances
(MIRS)

Net
Adjustments
Expenditure in
between
the
Funding and
Comprehensive
Accounting
Income and
Basis
Expenditure
(Note 6)
Statement

£,000

Restated
£,000

Restated
£,000

274

17

291

Strategic Director External Services

7,382

591

7,973

Strategic Director Internal Services

3,321

4,417

7,738

607

(8,327)

(7,720)

11,584

(3,302)

8,282

(18,637)

(6,668)

(25,305)

(7,053)

(9,970)

(17,023)

Managing Director

Local Authority Housing (HRA)
Net cost of services
Other income and expenditure
(Surplus) or deficit
Opening General Fund and HRA Balance at
31 March 2018
Plus Surplus on General Fund and HRA
Balance in year

42,456
7,053

Closing General Fund and HRA Balance at
31 March 2019

49,509
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1b Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis
The tables below show a further breakdown of the adjustments made to the General Fund
position in order to arrive at Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement amounts.
Adjustments from General
Fund to arrive at the
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
amounts 2019/20

Adjustment for
Capital
Purposes

Net Change
for Pensions
Adjustment

Other
Differences

Note 1

Note 2

Note 3

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

0

13

0

13

(31)

547

0

516

7,527

(67)

3,096

10,556

(6,374)

(275)

117

(6,532)

1,122

218

3,213

4,553

Other income and expenditure

(11,878)

837

5,745

(5,296)

Surplus or deficit

(10,756)

1,055

8,958

(743)

Adjustment for
Capital
Purposes

Net Change
for Pensions
Adjustment

Other
Differences

Total
Adjustments

Managing Director
Strategic Director External
Services
Strategic Director Internal
Services
Local Authority Housing (HRA)
Net cost of services

Adjustments from General
Fund to arrive at the
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
amounts 2018/19

Total
Adjustments

Restated
Note 1

Note 2

Note 3

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

0

17

0

17

62

529

0

591

2,807

(683)

2,293

4,417

Local Authority Housing (HRA)

(7,338)

(897)

(92)

(8,327)

Net cost of services

(4,469)

(1,034)

2,201

(3,302)

Other income and expenditure

(2,818)

1,173

(5,023)

(6,668)

Surplus or deficit

(7,287)

139

(2,822)

(9,970)

Managing Director
Strategic Director External
Services
Strategic Director Internal
Services
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1 Adjustments for Capital Purposes
Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and
revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for:
Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on
disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.
Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital
financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted
from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted
accounting practices.
Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for
income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are
adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for
which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant
Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without
conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.
2 Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments
Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee
Benefits pension related expenditure and income:
For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by
the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past
service costs.
For Financing and investment income and expenditure –- the net interest on the defined
benefit liability is charged to the CIES.
3 Other Differences
This column includes variations in the amount chargeable for Business Rates and Council
Tax under statute and the code. Other differences include interest costs budgeted and
reported under the service headings during the year but accounted in other income and
expenditure under the code and timing differences for debits or credits relating to premiums
or discounts on debt settlement
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2 Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature
The authority's expenditure and income is analysed as follows:
Expenditure/Income

2019/20

2018/19

£000

£000

Employee benefits expenses

11,037

10,566

Other services expenses

47,212

45,983

Depreciation, amortisation, impairment

12,537

8,574

Interest payments

11,908

5,353

Precepts and levies

1,167

1,226

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool

1,573

408

0

402

30,110

29,096

115,544

101,608

(30,938)

(29,464)

(8,359)

(2,996)

(485)

0

(3,756)

(7,489)

Income from council tax and non-domestic rates

(42,857)

(44,050)

Government grants and contributions

(39,155)

(34,631)

(125,550)

(118,630)

(10,006)

(17,022)

Expenditure

Discounted sale scheme
Non Domestic Rates Tariff/Levy
Total expenditure

Income
Fees, charges and other service income
Gain on the disposal of assets
Discounted sale scheme
Interest and investment income

Total income

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
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3 Accounting Policies
General Principles
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2019/20
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2020. The Authority is required to
prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015,
which require it to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These
practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2018/19 supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.

Accruals and Revenue Recognition
Expenditure and Income are accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when
cash payments are made or received and relate to activity on all of the Council’s functions
including non-exchange transactions e.g. Council Tax, Housing Rents and Business Rates.
In particular:
 Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of
goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.
 supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet;
 expenses in relation to services received, including those from employees, are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made;
 interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the
relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract;
 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.
Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made
to revenue for the income that might not be collected.
 “There is a de-minimis limit for manual accruals (not automatic accruals) of £5,000 to aid
faster closing, transactions below this limit are not generally accrued for as they are
deemed not material to the understanding of these accounts.”
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid
investments that mature in no more than three months of the Balance Sheet date and are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In
the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and
Estimates and Errors
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively,
and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of
transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or financial
performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated
otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as
if the new policy had always been applied. Material errors discovered in prior period figures
are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for
the prior period.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to
record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year:




depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service;
revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written
off;
amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution
from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to an
amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the authority in accordance with
statutory guidance).
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced
by the contribution in the General Fund Balance [Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) or
loans fund principal], by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.
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Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on
behalf of the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting
council tax and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a
separate fund (i.e. the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in
respect of council tax and NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund,
billing authorities, major preceptors and central government share proportionately the risks
and rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than
predicted.
Accounting for Council Tax and NDR
The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is the Authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations
determine the amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the Authority’s
General Fund. Therefore, the difference between the income included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by
regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment
Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The Balance Sheet includes the Authority’s share of the end of year balances in respect of
council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts,
overpayments and prepayments and appeals.

Discounted Sales Scheme
Discounts have been provided by two third parties on sales of new dwellings on a
development scheme in the borough.
Income due is based on a percentage of the market value of the properties and becomes
due to the Council upon either the first sale or redemption of the property or after 25 years if
no sale or redemption takes place.
The income due is secured as a result of a charge on the properties. For properties sold
before January 2017 the charge is in the Council’s favour. For properties after this date the
charge is in the favour of a third party and a floating charge over the portfolio held by the
Council.
To determine the fair value of the asset at the balance sheet date each year the following
method will be used:


Adjust the historic sale figure by appropriate price indices to reflect the gross income
due at the balance sheet date.



Estimate the likely income stream based on disposals of properties over the 25 year
period.
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In order to reflect that the income will come in the future these values are
discounted, using an appropriate rate of discount to be determined by the Council and its
advisers.
Indices and discount rates are reviewed annually, and the value is updated for any sales
that have occurred, to reflect the estimated position at 31 March.

Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable During Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within twelve months of the yearend. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees. Such benefits are
recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the
Authority. The calculated cost of unpaid benefits owing to employees at year end is not
considered material, so no accrual has been made in the accounts for this.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision
to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Authority can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Authority recognises costs for a
restructuring.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority
to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are
made to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid
to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the yearend.
Post-Employment Benefits
Employees of the Council are generally eligible to be members of the Local Government
Pension Scheme, administered by Kent County Council.
The scheme provides defined benefits (retirement lump sums and pensions) to its
members, linked to their length of service as employees of the Council, including
transferred-in service from past employers.
The local government scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme. The liabilities
of the Kent County Council pension scheme attributable to the Council are included in the
Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis, using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment
of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and
projections of earnings for current employees.
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Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
indicative rate of return on high quality (AA) corporate bonds. At March 2020 the discount
rate was 2.35%.
The assets of the Kent County Council pension scheme, attributable to the Council, are
included in the Balance sheet at their fair value, as follows:
Quoted securities:
Unquoted securities:
Unitised securities:
Property:

current bid price
professional estimate
current bid price
market value

The change in net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
Service Cost
 current service cost: the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this
year (allocated to the revenue accounts of services for which the employees worked, in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).
 past service cost: the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years (debited to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs).
 net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense for the
authority – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises
from the passage of time (charged to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is
calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the
period, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the
period as a result of contribution and benefit payments).
Remeasurement
 the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
 actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because
the actuary has updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
 contributions paid to the Kent County Council pension fund - cash paid as employer’s
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an
expense.
Statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount
payable by the Council to the pension fund, or directly to pensioners, in the year, not the
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in
Reserves Statement, appropriations are required, to and from the Pensions Reserve, to
remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits
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for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners, or any amounts payable to the fund
but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account
for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by
employees.
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to
any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award, and are
accounted for using the policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Events After the Reporting Period
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable,
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
– the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events
 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the
events and their estimated financial effect.
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.

Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the authority becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair
value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at
which it was originally recognised. This means that the amount presented in the Balance
Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable and the interest charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the
loan agreement.
Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow
characteristics. There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:


amortised cost
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fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and



fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
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The authority’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows.
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose
contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash
flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).
Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when
the authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and
are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised
cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the authority, this means that the
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus
accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in
the loan agreement.
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.
Expected Credit Loss Model
The authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at
amortised cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also
applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Lifetime losses are recognised for
material trade receivables (debtors) held by the authority.
Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might
not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a
crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument
was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not
increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month
expected losses.
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss (FVPL)
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when
the authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and
are initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised
as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.
The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:
 instruments with quoted market prices – the market price


other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow
analysis.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the
following three levels:
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Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the
authority can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. Any gains and losses that arise on the
derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through other Comprehensive Income
(FVOCI)
It is the policy of the authority that certain equity assets will be designated as Financial
Assets Measured at Fair Value through other Comprehensive Income. Designation is
considered when the investment would normally fall into the Fair Value through Profit of
Loss classification, the investment meets the definition of an equity instrument and is not
held for trading. Any designation is determined so that a reliable accounting policy is
maintained for the investment reflecting the long term strategical nature of each
investment. Designation is irrevocable so that gain/losses in movements in fair value are
not recognised in usable reserves until the investment matures or is sold.

Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is
reasonable assurance that:


the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and



the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or
service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required
to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is
posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to
the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Community Infrastructure Levy
The Authority has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The levy will be
charged on ‘new build’ (chargeable developments for the Authority) with appropriate
planning consent. The Council charges for and collects the levy, which is a planning
charge. The income from the levy will be used to fund a number of infrastructure projects
(these include transport, flood defences and schools) to support the development of the
area.
CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the
commencement date of the chargeable development in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, in accordance with the accounting policy for government grants
and contributions set out above. CIL charges will be largely used to fund capital
expenditure. However, a small proportion of the charges may be used to fund revenue
expenditure.

Heritage Assets
A Heritage Asset is a tangible or intangible asset that is intended to be preserved in trust for
future generations because of its historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities and is held principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture.
The value of Heritage Assets held by the Council is not material and therefore is not
recognised on the balance sheet.

Interest in Companies or Other Entities
The Council does not have material interests in companies, nor in other entities that have
the nature of subsidiaries; accordingly group accounts have not been prepared. The
Council is a shareholder in the Bridge Estate Management Company Limited. To date the
company’s activities have been very limited and are not considered material; and it is not
considered that the preparation of group accounts would aid in the understanding of the
financial standing of the Council.

Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the
delivery of council services or is held for sale.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being
the price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. As a non-financial asset, investment
properties are measured at highest and best use.
The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the
following three levels:
 Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that
the authority can access at the measurement date.
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 Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.


Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.

Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at
the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However,
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account.
Joint Operations
Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the
arrangement. The activities undertaken by the Authority in conjunction with other joint
operators involve the use of the assets and resources of those joint operators. In relation to
its interest in a joint operation, the Authority as a joint operator recognises its:


assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;



liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;



revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;



share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation;



expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from
the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Where a lease
covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately
for classification. Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a
right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy, where
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.
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The Authority as Lessee
Finance leases
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the balance
sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception
(or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is
matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the authority
are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are
applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.
Lease payments are apportioned between:


a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment –
applied to write down the lease liability, and



a finance charge (debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure
line in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement).

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the
lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the
asset does not transfer to the authority at the end of the lease period).
The authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made
from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted
by a revenue contribution in the general fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the capital adjustment account in the movement in reserves statement for the
difference between the two.
Operating Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (eg there is a rent-free period at
the commencement of the lease).

The Authority as Lessor
Finance Leases
Where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement
of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet is written off to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Authority’s net investment in
the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
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Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying
value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in
the Balance Sheet.
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:
 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the
lease debtor (together with any premiums received), and
 finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).
The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is
not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund balance, and is required to be treated
as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General
Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of
rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund balance to the
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the
future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is
used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. The
written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets
is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Operating Leases
Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the
other operating expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

Overheads and Support Services
In past years these have been charged to appropriate Service Reporting Code of Practice
line, however as part of the “Telling the Story” changes to the accounts outlined in the
Narrative Report the costs of overheads and support services are now charged to service
segments in accordance with the Authority’s arrangements for accountability and financial
performance.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and
Equipment.
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Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment
is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an
asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. Expenditure above £10,000 is
capitalised; amounts below this sum are charged directly to revenue.
Measurement
Assets have been valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the
Statements of Asset Valuation principles and Guidance Notes issued by the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). They have been classified in accordance with the
IFRS Code.
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:


the purchase price;

 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under
construction.
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value.
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated
historical cost

dwellings – fair value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social
housing (EUV-SH)

council offices – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the
asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV),

surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at
highest and best use from a market participant’s perspective

all other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the
asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV).
Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature
of an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value.
Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), the depreciated
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value.
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Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying amount was not materially different from their fair value at the
year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by
credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. (Exceptionally, gains
might be credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services where they arise
from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service).
The schedule of valuations for operational property is shown in note 14. The date of
revaluation for non-dwelling Property, Plant and Equipment assets valued during the year is
1 January 2020. Investment Properties have been revalued as at 31 March 2020.
The valuer has confirmed on the 31st March that observable changes had not taken place
despite growing uncertainty in the light of Covid-19. The Council is confident that the PPE
valuations at 1st January 2020 are materially correct as at the 31st March 2020 subject to
the uncertainty mentioned above and noted elsewhere in the statement.
Council dwellings are revalued annually using the Beacon principle. The asset valuations in
these accounts have been prepared by the Richard Robson BSc MRICS and by Michael
Rogers LLP (HRA Beacon properties only). The valuations were produced in accordance
with guidelines issued by CIPFA, and in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors’ current guidance notes for Asset Valuation.
The basis for Council dwellings’ valuations is Existing Use Value for Social Housing (EUVSH). Under this method the vacant possession value of the dwellings is reduced to 33% of
the market value, to reflect their occupation by secure tenants. A full valuation of the
Beacon properties in undertaken every five years, but an annual adjustment to reflect
market changes is made in the intervening years. The date of valuation for Housing
Revenue Account dwellings was 31 March 2020.
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise
unrealised gains. Gains can also be credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a
service.
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for in the following ways:
 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of
the accumulated gains);
 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated
into the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. Where such indications exist, and any possible differences are estimated
to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than
the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for in the following ways:
 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of
the accumulated gains);
 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not
been recognised.
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for
assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community
Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:
 dwellings – straight-line allocation over 60 years, the useful life of the property as
estimated by the valuer,
 other buildings – reducing balance charge over the useful life of the property as
estimated by the valuer, (ranges from 10-60 years).
 vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – a percentage of the value of each class of
assets in the Balance Sheet on a reducing balance basis, as advised by a suitably qualified
officer, (ranges from 3-10 years).
 Infrastructure – reducing balance charge over the useful lives of the assets, (ranges
from 10-35 years).
Expenditure on the acquisition or enhancement of an asset is not depreciated in the year it
is incurred unless the value is significant.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Components
The IFRS code requires local authorities to identify elements of major assets that either
have a capital cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset and/or have a
different useful life or depreciation method. The Council accounts for components for
individual assets with a gross book value in excess of £1m, and where any individual
component has a value in excess of £100,000.
The treatment of components for the Housing Revenue Account dwellings differs from that
shown above. The component policy for the HRA dwelling stock has been compiled based
on advice received from external valuers and officers. The criterion for this asset class is if
an individual component has a value in excess of 20% of the average dwelling valuation.
The Council has not implemented component accounting for the HRA stock as no individual
components meet the Council’s criterion.
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified
as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and
then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value, less costs to sell. Where there is a
subsequent decrease to its fair value, less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised
in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets
Held for Sale.
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount
before they were classified as held for sale, adjusted for the depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for
Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. Assets that are to
be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.
When an asset is disposed of, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet is
written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if
any) are also credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value
of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the
Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Amounts in excess of £10,000 received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts. A
proportion of certain receipts relating to housing disposals is payable to the Government.
The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can
then only be used for new capital investment. Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from
the General Fund balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
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Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits
or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Authority becomes aware of the
obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and
uncertainties. When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision
carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each
financial year.

Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise
of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities
also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made, but either it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts.

Contingent Assets
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Authority.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential

Reserves
The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund
balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund
balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against
council tax for the expenditure. Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting
processes for non-current assets and retirement benefits and do not represent usable
resources for the Authority – these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.
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Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS)
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure
to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
year. Where the Authority has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing
capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from
the General Fund balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the
amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.

Value Added Tax
VAT has been included in the income and expenditure accounts, whether of a capital or
revenue nature, only to the extent that it is irrecoverable.

4 Accounting Standards that Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been
Adopted
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code)
requires the disclosure of information relating to the expected impact of an accounting
change that will be required by a new standard which has been issued but is yet to be
adopted by the 2019/20 Code.
The Code also requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied retrospectively
unless transitional arrangements are specified, this would result in an impact on
disclosures spanning two financial years.
Accounting changes that are introduced by the 2020/21 code are:
 Amendments to IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle
 Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement
These changes are not expected to have a material impact on the Council’s statements.


Changes relating to IFRS16 Leases were originally in the 2020/21 code but the
implementation of these have now be delayed for a further year. These changes relate
to the classification of leases and will affect the authorities accounts from 1 st April
2021.
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5 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 3 the Authority has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The Council’s aggregate interest in the discounted sales scheme is continuing, (167
properties as at 31 March 2020). The historic costs of the sales since the commencement
of the scheme have been uplifted to March 2019 prices using the Land Registry indices for
Dartford, relevant to the respective balance sheet dates.
The Council’s income from this scheme is variable and dependant on the individual owner
occupiers’ decisions to sell, redeem the charge or to do neither. During the 2019/20
financial year 40 properties were sold or redeemed.
The Council considers that the future value of its interest needs to be reduced in the
statement of accounts by applying a net present value to the gross figure in order to reflect
the long term, future, value of anticipated income. A discount rate of 2% has been applied,
being the Bank of England forecast for long-term inflation.
It has been determined that the discounted sales scheme receivable is not a financial
instrument as the Council’s rights under the scheme do not meet the definition of a
financial asset. This is because the Council’s legal charge over the properties concerned
does not arise from a contractual relationship between the Council and the purchasers of
the property. Additionally, the Council has offered no consideration to the owners of the
property in return for the economic benefits received.
There is still a fairly high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local
government. However, the Authority has determined that this uncertainty is not yet
sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Authority might be impaired as a
result of a need to close facilities and/or reduce levels of service provision.
The Council is a shareholder in The Bridge Estate Management Company Limited. To date
the Company’s activities have been limited; they are increasing but are still not considered
material, nor would the inclusion of the Company’s activities in the Council’s Statement of
Accounts aid the understanding of the financial standing of the Council. In view of this,
Group Accounts have not been prepared for 2020/21.

6 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions
made by the Authority about the future, or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are
made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other related factors.
However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be
materially different from the assumptions and estimates.
There are three items in the balance sheet where actual results could be materially
different from assumptions and estimates:
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Pensions Liability
The Council’s Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020 includes an amount of £54.90m for
pension liability for which it is considered there is a significant risk of material adjustment in
the forthcoming financial years.
In particular valuation techniques are used to determine the fair values of directly held
property and pooled property funds. Where possible these valuation techniques are based
on observable data, but where this is not possible management uses the best available
data. Changes in the valuation assumptions used, together with significant changes in
rental growth, vacancy levels or the discount rate could affect the fair value of property.
Since the outbreak of Covid-19 as at the valuation date, valuers consider they can attach
less weight to previous market experience for comparison purposes to inform opinions of
value. Valuations are therefore reported on the basis of “material valuation uncertainty” as
per VPS3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Red Book Global.
The effect of variations in the factors supporting the valuation would be an increase or
decrease in the value of directly held property of £1.1m on a fair value of £11.4m.
Additional information regarding the assessment of valuation, uncertainty and risk is
covered in Note 32.
Property Valuations
Valuations were carried out by external valuers. Valuations of land and buildings were
carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
The valuer has declared a ‘material valuation uncertainty’ in the valuation report issued.
This is on the basis of uncertainties in markets caused by COVID-19. The values in the
report have been used to inform the measurement of the Council’s properties at valuation
in these financial statements. With the valuer having declared this material valuation
uncertainty, the valuer has continued to exercise professional judgement inproviding the
valuation and this remains the best and most reliable information available to the Council.
The uncertainty would have the greatest effect on Social Housing assets where a reduction
in market values of 10% would decrease holding values from £313m by £31m. Other land
and buildings and investment property are held at £46m and £10m respectively so the
same change would reduce values by £4.6m and £1.1m.
Provision for Business Rate Valuation Appeals
A provision has been made for the potential effect of outstanding appeals in respect of
rating list entries relating to the Collection Fund as detailed in Note 5.
The 2010 provision for business rate valuation appeals is based on the latest list of
outstanding rating list proposals provided by the Valuation Office and is an estimate based
on changes in comparable hereditaments, market trends and other valuation issues,
including the potential for some proposals to be withdrawn. The Dartford element of this
provision is £1.5m and is variable to changes in the estimate of likelihood of claims
success and the amount of the reduction if successful. The current estimate assumes a
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15% reduction in value across all cases. An estimated figure of 10% would reduce this part
of the provision to £1.068m or to £1.93m if using 20%
A provision of £5.7m has also been made for the 2017 appeals list, which is based upon
average estimates of successful appeals as calculated by central government with
additional amounts for residual issues relating to the 2010 list. The government average is
based upon an average reduction of 2.1% in ratable value. The amount provided would
change accordingly with the percentage used.
Investment Property – The Bridge
The Balance Sheet includes a value for The Bridge investment property of £3.65m
(£6.855m in 2018/19). The Bridge is a development the Council has entered into in
partnership with Prologis. The value of the investment property is based on future
estimated cash flows to the Council. These will vary each year and will, in part, be
determined by the property market; The Bridge is revalued each year and the balance
sheet adjusted accordingly.
The estimation uses a risk reduction for future incomes figures. A change in the risk value
used would reduce the valuation to £2.73m if doubled and £3.92m if reduced by 50%.

7 Events After The Reporting Period
The Statement of Accounts was approved and authorised for issue on the 13th September
2020 by the Audit Board, and this is the date to which events after the Balance Sheet date
have been considered for inclusion in the financial statements.

8 Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under
Regulations, including Usable Reserves Disclosure
Details of movements in the Authority’s usable reserves are set out in the Movement in
Reserves Statement and the tables later in this note. The movements are summarised in
the table below. Earmarked Reserves are also part of useable reserves and are analysed
separately in note 10.

Movements in Year
2018/19

CI&ES

MIRS

Reserves

2019/20

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

3,740

1,710

6,077

(8,527)

3,000

12,328

8,296

(6,820)

0

13,804

Capital Grants Unapplied

5,877

0

5,192

0

11,069

Capital Receipts Reserve

7,402

0

12,099

19,501

"One for One" Receipts

4,393

0

728

5,121

33,740

10,006

17,276

General Fund Balance
Housing Revenue Account

Total
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The Usable Reserves are composed of:
General Fund Balance
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an authority are
required to paid and out of which all its liabilities are to be met, except to the extent that
statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in
which liabilities and payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not
necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance
therefore summarises the resources that the Council is statutorily empowered to spend on
its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the Council is required
to recover) at the end of the financial year.
Housing Revenue Account Balance
The Housing Revenue Account Balance reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a
revenue account for local authority council housing provision in accordance with Part VI of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. It contains the balance of income and
expenditure, as defined by the 1989 Act, that is available to fund future expenditure in
connection with the Council’s landlord function or (where in deficit) that is required to be
recovered from tenants in future years.

Major Repairs Reserve
The Authority is required to maintain the Major Repairs Reserve, which controls the
application of the Major Repairs Allowance (MRA). The MRA is restricted to being applied
to new capital investment in HRA assets or the financing of historical capital expenditure by
the HRA.
Capital Grants Unapplied
The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions
received towards capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would
otherwise require repayment of the monies but which have yet to be applied to meet
expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the nature of capital expenditure
against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this can take place.
Capital Receipts Reserve
The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets,
which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure
or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve
shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end.
‘One for One’ Receipts
This is a part of the capital receipts reserve and is broken down here for additional
disclosure; these receipts arise from the sale of Council properties via the Right to Buy.
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The receipts must be held separately and used to fund the provision of new social housing,
within three years of receipt.

Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations
The table below details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income
and expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year, in accordance with proper
accounting practice, to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being
available to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

Pensions Costs

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£,000

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£,000

Major
Repairs
Reserve
£,000

General
Fund
Balance
£,000

2019/20
Adjustments to the Revenue
Resources

Housing
Revenue
Account
£,000

Usable Reserves

(1,501)

(446)

0

0

0

238

0

0

0

0

(9,253)

83

0

0

0

(19,278)

(6,502)

0

0

0

(29,794)

(6,865)

0

0

0

17,917

3,081

0

0

(20,998)

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts
on receipt of cash

(9)

0

0

0

(53)

Recognition of Deferred Capital Receipt
on change of lease conditions

351

0

0

0

0

Recognition of Long Term Debtor re
Discounted Sales Scheme

485

0

0

0

0

(1,573)

0

0

0

1,573

98

2,642

0

0

0

220

4,443

0

0

0

0

3,518

(3,518)

0

0

17,489

13,684

(3,518)

0

(19,478)

0

0

0

1,036

0

Council Tax and NDR
Reversal of entries in relation to
Investments
Reversal of entries in relation to Capital
Expenditure
Total Adjustments to Revenue
Resources

Adjustments Between Revenue and Capital Resources
Transfer of Cash Sale Proceeds credited
as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement

Contribution from the Capital Receipts
Reserve to finance the payments to the
Government capital receipts pool
Capital expenditure financed from the
General Fund and Housing Revenue
Account Balances
Statutory provision for the repayment of
debt
Transfer from HRA to Major Repairs
Reserve
Total Adjustments between Revenue
and Capital Resources
Adjustments to Capital Resources
Capital Grants Applied to Finance Capital
expenditure
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6,228

0

0

(6,228)

0

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to
finance capital expenditure

0

0

3,518

0

0

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to
finance capital expenditure

0

0

0

0

6,650

6,228

0

3,518

(5,192)

6,650

(6,077)

6,819

0

(5,192)

(12,828)

Total Adjustments to Capital Reserves
Total Adjustments
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Housing
Revenue
Account
£,000

Major
Repairs
Reserve
£,000

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£,000

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£,000

2018/19

General
Fund
Balance
£,000

Usable Reserves

(1,036)

(321)

0

0

0

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources
Pensions Costs
Council Tax and NDR
Reversal of entries in relation to
Investments
Reversal of entries in relation to Capital
Expenditure

388

0

1,861

101

0

0

0

(7,873)

(7,055)

0

0

0

(6,660)

(7,275)

0

0

0

2,580

0

0

(9,218)

(1)

0

0

0

(51)

(402)

0

0

0

0

(407)

0

0

0

407

41

4,921

0

0

0

314

4,443

0

0

0

0

3,566

(3,566)

0

0

6,183

15,510

(3,566)

0

0

0

0

2,213

0

0

0

0

3,566

0

0

0

0

0

0

9,225

Total Adjustments to Capital Reserves

2,213

0

3,566

(2,013)

9,225

Total Adjustments

1,736

8,235

0

(2,013)

363

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources

Adjustments Between Revenue and Capital Resources
Transfer of Cash Sale Proceeds credited
as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts
on receipt of cash
Recognition of Long Term Debtor re
Discounted Sales Scheme
Contribution from the Capital Receipts
Reserve to finance the payments to the
Government capital receipts pool
Capital expenditure financed from the
General Fund and Housing Revenue
Account Balances
Statutory provision for the repayment of
debt
Transfer from HRA to Major Repairs
Reserve
Total Adjustments between Revenue and
Capital Resources

6,638

(8,862)

Adjustments to Capital Resources
Capital Grants Applied to Finance Capital
expenditure
Capital Grants and Contributions
unapplied credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to
finance capital expenditure
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to
finance capital expenditure
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9 Unusable Reserves
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Capital Adjustment Account

(206,636)

(208,853)

Revaluation Reserve

(133,219)

(127,299)

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

(1,670)

(1,432)

Pensions Reserve

54,906

54,835

(13,772)

(15,376)

8,561

(769)

(291,830)

(298,894)

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account
Total Unusable Reserves

Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing
the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.
The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation
Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The account is credited
with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition,
construction and enhancement. The account contains accumulated gains and losses on
investment properties and gains recognised on donated assets that have yet to be
consumed by the authority. The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on
property, plant and equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve
was created to hold such gains.
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2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Balance as at 1 April

(208,853)

(194,314)

Reversal of items relating to capital
expenditure debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and
impairment of non-current assets

12,505

8,540

Amortisation of intangible assets

32

34

3,689

1,083

10,612

4,063

(1,956)

(1,828)

(461)

(529)

Revenue expenditure funded from
capital under statute
Amounts of non-current assets written
off on disposal or sale as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Adjusting amounts written out of the
Revaluation Reserve
Adjustment re Historic Cost
Depreciation
Other Adjustments
Net written out amount of the cost of
non-current assets consumed in the
year:

24,421

11,363

Capital financing applied in the year:
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to
finance new capital expenditure

(6,650)

(9,225)

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to
finance new capital expenditure

(3,518)

(3,462)

Capital grants and contributions
credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement that have
been applied to capital financing

(3,435)

(951)

Application of grants to capital financing
from the Capital Grants Unapplied
Account

(1,036)

(200)

Statutory Provision for the financing of
capital investment charged against the
General Fund and HRA balances

(4,663)

(4,757)

Capital expenditure charged against the
General Fund and HRA balances

(2,740)

(5,066)

Movements in the market value of
Investment Properties debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement
Balance as at 31 March
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(162)

(2,241)

(206,636)

(208,853)
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Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases
in the value of its property, plant and equipment.
The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:
 revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
 used in the provision of services as the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
 disposed of and the gains realised.
The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that
the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into
the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.
REVALUATION RESERVE

Balance as at 1 April
Upward revaluation of assets
Downward revaluation of
assets and impairment losses
not charged to the surplus or
deficit on the provision of
services

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000
(127,299)

(12,783)

(14,546)

4,446

8,137

Surplus or deficit on
revaluation of non-current
assets not posted to the
surplus or deficit on the
provision of services
Difference between fair value
depreciation and historical
cost depreciation
Accumulated gains on assets
sold or scrapped
Amount written off to the
Capital Adjustment Account

(123,247)

(8,337)

(6,409)

1,956

1,828

461

529

Balance at 31 March
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Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the
recognition of council tax and non-domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax and business rates payers,
compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund
from the Collection Fund.
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

(1,432)

(1,044)

Amount by which council tax income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different
from council tax income calculated for the year in accordance
with statutory requirements

344

135

Amount by which non domestic rates income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different
from non domestic rates income calculated for the year in
accordance with statutory requirements

(582)

(523)

(1,670)

(1,432)

COLLECTION FUND ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT
Balance at 1 April

Balance at 31 March

Pensions Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in
accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for post-employment benefits
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation,
changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the
costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the
Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds, or eventually pays any
pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve
shows a shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources
the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that
funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.
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2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Balance at 1 April

54,835

60,154

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset)

(1,875)

(6,676)

4,791

4,133

Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year

(2,845)

(2,776)

Balance at 31 March

54,906

54,835

PENSIONS RESERVE

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the provision of Services

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of noncurrent assets for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory
arrangements the authority does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital
expenditure until they are backed by capital receipts. When the deferred cash settlement
eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. The
Council has identified monies due to it in respect of discounts provided by two third parties
on sales of new dwellings on a development in the borough. These receipts will arise over
the next 25 years, as relevant properties are sold or redeemed, and they are shown on the
balance sheet and within Long Term Debtors in note 18 to the accounts.

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

(15,376)

(17,989)

62

53

Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash

(350)

0

Discounted Sale Scheme - New Receipts and Valuation
Changes

(485)

402

Discounted Sales Scheme - Written Out on Receipt of Cash

2,377

2,158

(13,772)

(15,376)

DEFERRED CAPITAL RECEIPTS RESERVE

Balance at 1 April
New Deferred Receipts

Balance at 31 March
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Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account
The pooled investment fund adjustment account holds unrecognised gains and losses of
financial instruments accounted for at fair value through profit and loss. A statutory
override allows for these unrecognised gains and losses to be transferred from the general
fund to the pooled investment fund adjustment account via the MIRS so that the
fluctuations in the movement of these funds does not impact the council tax payer. When
the asset is eventually sold the accumulated gain or loss is then transferred back to the
General fund via the MIRS.
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

(769)

(1,049)

0

(370)

9,275

592

Accumulated gains on assets sold written out to the General
Fund via the MIRS

57

58

Accumulated losses on assets sold written out to the General
Fund via the MIRS

(1)

0

8,562

(769)

POOLED INVESTMENT FUND ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT
Balance at 1 April *
Upward revaluation of investments
Downward revaluation of investments

Balance at 31 March
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10 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balances in Earmarked
Reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans, and the amounts posted back
from Earmarked Reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2019/20.
Balance
Transfers Transfers
at 31
Out
In
March
2018/19
2018/19
2018
£,000
£,000
£,000
Identified Initiatives
Additional
Pensions
Acacia
Structural Changes
and Partnering
Default and
Exceptional Loss
Feasibility and
Service Provision
Minor Insurance
Liabilities
Investment
Volatility
Museum Donation
Box
Replacement and
Renewals
Corporate Property
Maintenance
Homelessness
New Homes Bonus
Environmental and
Waste
Management
NNDR Stability
Exceptional Cost
Overrun
Business Rates
Pool Growth Fund
Major Projects
Community
Infrastructure Levy
Business Rates
Pilot Economic
Development
Total

Balance
Transfers Transfers
at 31
Out
In
March
2019/20
2019/20
2019
£,000
£,000
£,000

Balance
at 31
March
2020
£,000

(2,698)

242

(1,123)

(3,579)

421

(486)

(3,644)

(2,000)

0

0

(2,000)

0

0

(2,000)

(300)

0

0

(300)

0

0

(300)

(560)

41

0

(519)

32

(11)

(498)

(572)

0

0

(572)

0

0

(572)

(538)

17

0

(521)

0

(200)

(721)

(100)

0

0

(100)

0

0

(100)

(1,000)

0

(500)

(1,500)

0

(3,311)

(4,811)

(14)

0

0

(14)

0

0

(14)

(677)

21

(62)

(718)

31

(6)

(693)

(646)

0

0

(646)

7

0

(639)

(300)
(12,569)

0
351

(100)
(400)
(4,122) (16,340)

0
122

(604)

138

0

(466)

40

0

(426)

(415)

0

0

(415)

110

0

(305)

(1,000)

0

0

(1,000)

0

0

(1,000)

(573)

28

(487)

(1,032)

28

(560)

(1,564)

(1,677)

42

(364)

(1,999)

0

0

(1,999)

(279)

0

0

(279)

0

0

(279)

0

0

(1,040)

(1,040)

50

(20)

(1,010)

(7,798) (33,440)

841

880

65
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11 Other Operating Expenditure
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Parish Council precepts

1,167

1,227

Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool

1,573

407

(8,358)

(2,996)

(485)

402

(6,103)

(960)

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

10,620

1,661

1,283

1,498

(3,286)

(2,743)

Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties

(309)

(310)

Changes in the fair value of investment property

(162)

(2,241)

Total Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

8,146

(2,135)

(Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non-current assets
Notional Income - Discounted Sale Scheme
Total Other Operating Expenditure

12 Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure

Interest payable and similar charges
Net interest on the net defined benefit (liability)
Interest receivable and similar income

13 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Council Tax Income

(8,032)

(7,935)

NNDR Tariff

29,258

28,288

(34,825)

(36,116)

851

808

NNDR Income Share
Business Rates Levy / Pool Contribution
Section 31 Business Rates Grants

Note 28

(1,338)

(979)

Non-Ringfenced Government Grants

Note 28

(4,949)

(4,316)

Capital Grants and Contributions

Note 28

(5,934)

(1,959)

(24,969)

(22,209)

Total Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment

Other Land and
Buildings*

Vehicles, Plant,
Furniture &
Equipment

Infrastructure
Assets

Community
Assets

Surplus Assets

Assets Under
Construction

Total Property,
Plant and
Equipment

Movements in 2019/20

Council
Dwellings

Movements on Balances

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

Cost or Valuation
at 1 April 2019
Additions
Revaluation increases /
(decreases) recognised in
the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases /
(decreases) recognised in
the Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services
Derecognition - Disposals
Assets reclassified
Other Movements*
At 31 March 2020

303,576

45,746

4,411

3,357

9,397

12,600

5,581

384,668

6,992

3,452

1,755

0

0

90

2,816

15,105

6,486

1,846

0

0

0

4

0

8,336

(1,363)

(5,361)

0

0

0

0

0

(6,724)

0

0

0

0

0

(7,807)

0

0

0

0

6,166

3,357

9,397

6,408

3,450

(615)

(3,239)

(1,447)

0

0

(5,664)

(3,518)

(2,229)

(200)

(105)

0

0

0

(6,052)

3,438

1,782

0

0

0

0

0

5,220

62
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0

0

0

0

0

271

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

18

0

0

0

0

0

0

18

0

0

6,408

3,450

(1,521)
2,667
(3,438)
313,399

2,280

(6,286)

(4,947)

(1,782)
46,181

0
(5,220)
388,358

Accumulated Depreciation
and Impairment
At 1 April 2019
Depreciation charge
Depreciation written out to
Revaluation Reserve
Depreciation written out to
Surplus/Deficit on provision
of Services
Impairment losses
(reversals) recognised in
the Revaluation Reserve
Derecognition - Disposals
At 31 March 2020

0

0

(853)

(3,439)

(1,552)

2,727

1,805

(363)

(363)

(6,207)

Net Book Value

at 31 March 2020

313,399

45,328

67
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Other Land and
Buildings*

Vehicles, Plant,
Furniture &
Equipment

Infrastructure
Assets

Community
Assets

Surplus Assets

Assets Under
Construction

Total Property,
Plant and
Equipment

Movements in 2018/19

Council
Dwellings

Movements on Balances

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

Cost or Valuation
at 1 April 2018

297,663

45,360

4,070

3,357

9,326

7,300

3,584

370,660

Additions
Revaluation increases /
(decreases) recognised in
the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases /
(decreases) recognised in
the Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services

11,113

887

341

0

71

277

4,297

16,986

276

1,163

0

0

0

4,971

0

6,410

(3,102)

311

0

0

0

0

0

(2,791)

Derecognition - Disposals

(1,268)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(1,268)

0

0

0

52

Assets reclassified
Other Movements*
At 31 March 2019
Accumulated
Depreciation and
Impairment
At 1 April 2018
Depreciation charge
Depreciation written out to
Revaluation Reserve
Depreciation written out to
Surplus/Deficit on
provision of Services
Impairment losses
(reversals) recognised in
the Revaluation Reserve
Derecognition - Disposals
At 31 March 2019

Net Book Value
at 31 March 2019

2,341
(3,447)

343

(5,765)

0

0

0

0

0

4,411

3,357

9,397

12,600

5,581

(902)

(3,084)

(1,344)

0

0

(5,693)

(3,462)

(2,031)

(155)

(103)

0

0

0

(5,751)

3,447

1,828

0

0

0

0

0

5,275

0

490

0

0

0

0

0

490

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

15

0

0

0

0

0

0

15

303,576

0

0

303,576

(2,318)

436

(2,300)

45,746

(615)

46,361

(3,239)

(1,447)

1,172

1,910

(363)

(363)

9,034

0

12,600

0

5,581

384,668

(5,664)

379,004

* Other movements in both years are related to the write back of depreciation on revaluation.
* Other Land an buildings figures have been restated from last year due to an omitted value so that the
note agrees to the main statement.

During 2019/20 the Council spent £17.4m on capital works to its asset portfolio. Of this
sum, £7.3m was spent on HRA dwelling stock assets, including a programme of new
build/acquisitions. The Council sold 20 dwellings with a total balance sheet valuation of
£1.5m under the Right to Buy scheme during 2019/20. The Council built 23 new dwellings
and purchased two others.
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Depreciation
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of
depreciation:
Council Dwellings
Other Land and Buildings
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment
Infrastructure

60 years
10-60 years
3-10 years
10-35 years

Capital Commitments
At 31 March 2020 the Authority is contractually committed to spending a total of £4.7m on
capital projects. This is provided for in the capital budget and is fully funded. £0.3m of this
commitment will be reimbursed by grant with the remainder coming from the Council’s own
resources.

Revaluations
The Authority carries out a rolling programme of valuations, in accordance with the IAS16
requirements, to ensure that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured at
current value is revalued at least every five years. Properties with a higher valuation are
valued annually to ensure a materially correct carrying value.
Valuations were carried out by external Valuers. Valuations of land and buildings were
carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
With regard to PPE properties valued during the year, these were split between properties /
land that were valued on an ‘Existing Use value’ basis (such as, Civic Offices and the Car
Parks) and those valued on Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) such as Public
Conveniences, Theatre, Football Stadium etc.
An existing use value involves analysing other market transactions, in terms of purchase
price, rents, yields etc. and making adjustments to relate this evidence to the subject
property and, where appropriate, making allowances for cost of acquisition etc. The
relevant factors in terms of adjustments relate to tenure (in particular the terms of any
leases), age, location, use, condition and suitability of the property for its intended use.
Housing is valued at Existing Use Value for Social Housing (EUV-SH) as detailed in the
accounting policies.
With regard to DRC properties the Valuer relied on the rebuilding costs supplied by the
RICS Building Cost Information Service and made assumptions based on the life
expectancy of building components based on his knowledge of the property type and any
other information supplied.
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The valuer has declared a ‘material valuation uncertainty’ in the valuation report issued.
This is on the basis of uncertainties in markets caused by COVID-19. The values in the
report have been used to inform the measurement of the Council’s properties at valuation
in these financial statements. With the valuer having declared this material valuation
uncertainty, the valuer has continued to exercise professional judgement in providing the
valuation and this remains the best and most reliable information available to the Council.
Council
dwellings

Other land
and buildings

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

31 March 2020*

313,399

36,683

350,082

31 March 2019*

0

4,897

4,897

31 March 2018*

0

2,808

2,808

31 March 2017*

0

940

940

313,399

45,328

358,727

Valued at current value as at:

Total Cost or Valuation

* Council dwellings valued as at 31 March; Other Land and Buildings as at 1 January

Surplus Assets: land at Stone Lodge was revalued at Fair Value as at 31 March 2020. The
valuation technique was based on Significant Observable Inputs – level 2, i.e. it was based
on the market approach using current market conditions and recent sales or lettings
evidence and other relevant information for similar assets in Dartford Borough, or other
suitably comparable locations. Where appropriate, adjustments have been made to the
comparable evidence to relate these directly to the subject asset. Market conditions are
such that similar assets are actively sold or let and the level of observable inputs are
significant, leading the assets being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

15 Investment Properties
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties
over the year:

Balance at 1 April

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

12,811

13,816

0

(436)

(2,823)

(2,810)

162

2,241

10,150

12,811

Additions:
Reclassifications
Disposals
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments
Balance at 31 March
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Fair Value Hierarchy
Details of the authority’s investment properties and information about the fair value
hierarchy as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
Other
significant
observable
inputs (Level
2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs (Level
3)

Fair value as
at 31 March
2020

£,000

£,000

£,000

Commercial units

10,150

0

10,150

Total

10,150

0

10,150

Other
significant
observable
inputs (Level
2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs (Level
3)

Fair value as
at 31 March
2019

£,000

£,000

£,000

Commercial units

12,811

0

12,811

Total

12,811

0

12,811

Recurring fair
value measurements
using:

Recurring fair
value measurements
using:

Transfers between Levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy
There were no transfers between Levels during the year
Valuation Techniques used to Determine Level 2 Fair Values for Investment
Properties
Significant Observable Inputs – Level 2
The fair value for the commercial investment portfolio has been based on the market
approach using current market conditions and recent sales or lettings evidence and other
relevant information for similar assets in Dartford Borough, or other suitably comparable
locations. Where appropriate, adjustments have been made to the comparable evidence to
relate these directly to the subject properties. Market conditions are such that similar
properties are actively sold or let and the level of observable inputs are significant, leading
to the properties being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties
In estimating the fair value of the authority’s investment properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.
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16 Contingent Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities may arise from past events but their existence is uncertain and may
arise from circumstances outside of the Authority’s control.
Former Co-op Site Development Costs
In September 2019 the Council agreed to underwrite the Co-op Town Centre planning
application costs of its development partner Muse Developments Limited to the sum of
£1.4m. This was to enable the scheme to be progressed to planning while outstanding
viability issues were addressed.
The early planning application increased the likelihood of a grant award, which will in turn
help to address outstanding viability issues.
The grant process had since been delayed by the Covid 19 outbreak and decision on the
grant has not yet been made.
At this stage the Council does not consider outstanding viability issues to be likely to
prevent the scheme from going ahead so the commitment is thereby disclosed as a
contingent liability dependant on future events.
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17 Financial Instruments
Categories of Financial Instruments
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:

Financial Assets
At fair value through profit &
loss
Total Investments
At amortised cost
At fair value through profit &
loss
Total cash & cash
equivalents
Trade debtors
Lease receivables
Included in debtors
Total Financial assets

Long term
31 March
31 March
2020
2019
£,000
£,000

Short term
31 March
31 March
2020
2019
£,000
£,000

57,796

61,838

27,794

34,105

57,796
0

61,838
0

27,794
(390)

34,105
428

0

0

40,750

13,160

0

0

40,360

13,588

129
2,752

150
2,463

2,881
60,677

2,613
64,451

6,567
0
6,567
74,721

5,972
0
5,972
53,665

Reconciliation to debtors note 18

Trade debtors
Lease receivables
Debtors included in
financial assets
Discounted sales scheme
Statutory amounts
Non-financial assets total
Total debtors

Long term
31 March
31 March
2020
2019
£,000
£,000
129
150
2,752
2,463
2,881
8,859
0
8,859
11,740

2,613
10,824
0
10,824
13,437

73

Short term
31 March
31 March
2020
2019
£,000
£,000
6,567
5,972
0
0
6,567
2,161
3,874
6,035
12,602

5,972
2,089
2,405
4,494
10,466
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Income, Expense, Gains and Losses
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement in relation to financial instruments consist of the following:
2019/2020
Financial
Liabilities

Amortised
Cost

Financial Assets

2019/20
Total

2018/19
Total

Fair Value
through
Profit &
Loss

Amortised
Cost

£,000

£,000

£,000

(1,344)

0

0

(1,344)

(1,439)

Losses on derecognition

0

0

(1)

(1)

0

Losses from changes in fair value

0

0

(9,275)

(9,275)

(222)

(1,344)

0

(9,276)

(10,620)

(1,661)

Interest income

0

254

3,012

3,266

2,742

Gains on derecognition

0

0

20

20

1

Interest and investment income

0

254

3,032

3,286

2,743

(1,344)

254

(6,244)

(7,334)

1,082

Interest Expense

Interest Payable and Similar
Charges

Net gain/(loss) for the year

Reconciliation to creditors note 20
Long term
31 March
31 March
2020
2019
£,000
£,000

Short term
31 March
31 March
2020
2019
£,000
£,000

Trade creditors

12,663

13,370

7,575

5,231

Finance leases

0

0

191

0

12,663

13,370

7,766

5,231

Statutory amounts

0

0

20,598

21,304

Non-financial liability
creditors

0

0

20,598

21,304

12,663

13,370

28,364

26,535

Creditors included in
financial liabilities

Total creditors
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Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities
Some of the authority’s financial assets are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and
are described in the following table, including the valuation techniques used to measure
them.

Fair
Value
Level

Balance
Sheet 31
March
2020

Fair
Value 31
March
2020

Balance
Sheet 31
March
2019

Fair
Value 31
March
2019

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

Financial assets held at fair value:
Money market funds

1

40,750

13,160

Bond, equity and multi asset funds

1

83,690

93,972

Property funds

2

1,900

1,971

Financial assets held at amortised cost:
Lease receivables

2

Total
Assets for which fair value is not disclosed*

2,752

3,329

2,464

3,205

129,092

129,669

111,567

112,308

21,200

21,867

150,292

133,434

Long-term debtors

11,740

13,437

Long-term investments

57,796

61,838

Short-term debtors

12,602

10,466

Short-term investments

27,794

34,105

Cash & cash equivalents

40,360

13,588

150,292

133,434

Total Financial Assets
Recorded on balance sheet as:

Total Financial Assets

*The fair value of short-term financial assets held at amortised cost, including trade
receivables, is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount.
The Council’s investment in a property fund has been moved from level 1 to level 2 of the
hierarchy for 2019/20 reflecting that there is no longer an active market in this instrument.
Fund managers have suspended redemptions reflecting market conditions for underlying
properties caused by the economic consequences of the coronavirus pandemic.
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Balance
Sheet 31
March
2020

Fair
Value 31
March
2020

Balance
Sheet 31
March
2019

Fair
Value 31
March
2019

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:
Long-term loans from PWLB

2

51,612

54,682

56,068

59,919

Lease payables

2

1,214

1,215

0

0

Total

52,826

55,897

56,068

59,919

Assets for which fair value is not disclosed

47,212

48,224

100,038

104,292

Short-term creditors

28,364

26,535

Short-term borrowing

4,650

4,663

Short-term provisions

1,501

3,288

Long-term creditors

12,663

13,370

Long-term borrowing

46,962

51,405

Long-term provisions

5,898

5,031

Other long-term liabilities

0

0

Total Financial Liabilities

100,038

104,292

Total Financial Liabilities
Recorded on balance sheet as:

*The fair value of short-term financial liabilities held at amortised cost, including trade
payables, is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount.
The fair value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost is higher than their balance sheet
carrying amount because the Council’s borrowing with the PWLB includes a number of
loans where the interest rate is lower than the current rates available for similar loans as at
the Balance sheet date.
There has been no change in the valuation technique used during the year for the financial
instruments, nor has there been any transfer between input levels.
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
2019/20

Financing
Cash
Flows

1 April

Repayment

Reclassification

Other

31
March

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

Non-Cash Changes

2019/20

Long-term borrowing

51,405

0

(4,443)

0

46,962

Short-term borrowing

4,663

(4,663)

4,443

207

4,650

56,068

(4,663)

0

207

51,612

Total liabilities from financing
activities

18 Debtors
Long Term Debtors
31 March
2020

31 March
2019

£,000

£,000

0

0

Finance Leases

2,752

2,463

Discounted Sales Scheme

8,859

10,824

Works in Default

54

52

Car Loans to Employees

75

98

11,740

13,437

Mortgages: Outstanding Loans on Council Houses

Total
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Short Term Debtors
31 March
2020

31 March
2019

£,000

£,000

978

1,026

Other Local and PublicAuthorities

3,161

2,716

Disounted Sales Scheme

2,161

2,089

Over Paid Housing Benefits

3,499

3,712

Other Entities and Individuals

8,773

6,497

18,572

16,040

Less Impairment for Bad Debts analysed below

(5,970)

(5,574)

Total

12,602

10,466

Gross amounts owing at year end
Central Government Bodies

Balance as at
31 March
2019

Amounts
Written Off

Adjustments

Balance as at
31 March
2020

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

General Fund

3,340

(75)

215

3,480

Housing Revenue Account

1,226

(5)

98

1,319

Collection Fund - Council Tax

353

(58)

211

506

Collection Fund - NNDR

655

(746)

756

665

5,574

(884)

1,280

5,970

Bad Debts - Impairment
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19 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:

Cash held by the Authority
Bank current accounts

31 March
2020

31 March
2019

£,000
7

£,000
6

(399)

422

Short term deposits in Money Market Funds and Instant Access
Deposit Accounts

40,752

13,160

Total

40,360

13,588

Long Term Creditors
Section 106 Agreements
The Bridge
Other Long Term Creditors
Total

31 March
2020
£,000
(5,295)
(4,786)
(2,582)
(12,663)

31 March
2019
£,000
(4,386)
(7,483)
(1,501)
(13,370)

Short Term Creditors
Central Government Bodies
Other Local and Public Authorities
Business Rates Overpayments
The Bridge
Other Entities and Individuals
Total

31 March
2020
£,000
(13,618)
(6,005)
(1,047)
(2,370)
(5,324)
(28,364)

31 March
2019
£,000
(730)
(19,894)
(1,080)
0
(4,831)
(26,535)

20 Creditors
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Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits
or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Business Rate Valuation
Appeals
Other Provisions
Balance Carried Forward

2018/19
£'000

New
Provision

Amounts
Used

2019/20
£'000

(8,115)

(1,021)

1,926

(7,210)

(203)
(8,318)

0
(1,021)

14
1,940

(189)
(7,399)

Provision for Business Rate Valuation Appeals
A provision is made against the potential effect of outstanding or future appeals made in
respect of rating list entries relating to the Collection Fund:
The provision against the 2010 list is based on the latest list of outstanding rating list
proposals provided by the Valuation Office and is an estimate based on changes in
comparable hereditaments, market trends and other valuation issues, including the
potential for some proposals to be withdrawn. Specific knowledge about individual or a
group of appeals is applied to the likelihood of success and the provision is based upon the
results of similar claims in the area or elsewhere.
A provision has also been made for the 2017 appeals list, which is based upon average
estimates of successful appeals as calculated by central government.
The total provision is split between current and long term liabilities in the Balance Sheet;
the current element is £1.501m and the long term element is £5.898m.
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Operating Activities (Cash Flow Statement)

The cash flows for operating activities include the following items:

Interest received
Interest paid
Dividends received
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2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

11

210

10,632

(16)

0

0
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The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following
non-cash movements:
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Depreciation

6,052

5,749

Impairment and downward valuations

6,453

2,791

32

34

(12)

(16)

2,357

(1,179)

(11)

(210)

(2,051)

1,982

0

0

1,946

1,357

10,612

4,064

Movement in investment property values

9,092

(2,019)

Contributions to (from) provisions

(920)

1,478

33,550

14,031

Amortisation
Increase/(decrease) in Interest Creditors
Increase/(decrease) in Creditors
(Increase)/decrease in Interest Debtors
(Increase)/decrease in Debtors
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories
Movement in pension liability
Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets
held for sale, sold or derecognised

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following
items that are investing and financing activities:

Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes investments
in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries)
Proceeds from the sale of property plant and equipment,
investment property and intangible assets
Capital Grants credited to surplus or deficit on the provision of
services
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2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

2,041

0

(19,448)

(6,657)

(9,663)

(3,164)

(27,070)

(9,821)
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23 Investing Activities (Cash Flow Statement)
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

(14,593)

(16,703)

(7,000)

(24,000)

(19)

(121)

6,037

9,267

21,051

4,058

9,663

3,164

Other receipts from investing activities

40

44

Net Cash flow from Investing Activities

15,179

(24,291)

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

(450)

(62)

Repayment of short-term and long-term borrowing

(4,443)

(4,443)

Net Cash flow from Financing Activities

(4,893)

(4,505)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property
and intangible assets
Purchase of short-term and long-term investments
Other payments for investing activities
Proceeds from the sale of short term and long term investments
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment,
investment property and intangible assets
Capital grants

24 Financing Activities (Cash Flow Statement)

Council Tax and NNDR adjustments

25 Members’ Allowances
The Authority paid the following amounts to Members of the Council during the year.

Allowances
Expenses
Total
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2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

366

376

2

1

368

377
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26 Officers’ Remuneration and Termination Benefits

The remuneration paid to the Authority’s senior employees in 2019/20 was as follows:
Salary, Fees
and
Allowances

Benefits in
Kind

Pension
Contributions

Total
Remuneration
2019/20

Total
Remuneration
2018/19

£

£

£

£

£

107,975

1,909

0

109,884

115,349

Strategic Director - External

89,727

1,141

0

90,868

88,244

Strategic Director - Internal

110,664

0

15,837

126,501

123,416

Head of Legal Services

86,548

1,248

14,135

101,931

98,931

Head of Housing

71,605

0

10,735

82,340

80,331

Head of Regeneration

71,605

0

10,735

82,340

80,331

538,124

4,298

51,442

593,864

586,602

Post title

Managing Director
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The Authority’s employees (including those detailed above) receiving more than £50,000
remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions) were paid the
following amounts:
Remuneration Band

£

2019/20

2018/19

Total

Total

No.

No.

£

50,000

-

54,999

5

6

55,000

-

59,999

0

2

60,000

-

64,999

7

7

65,000

-

69,999

3

2

75,000

-

79,999

0

0

85,000

-

89,999

2

2

100,000

-

104,999

0

0

105,000

-

109,999

1

1

110,000

-

114,999

1

0

115,000

-

115,999

0

1

19

21

Total

Termination Benefits and Exit Packages
Exit packages include compulsory and voluntary redundancy costs, pension contributions
in respect of added years, ex-gratia payments and other departure costs.
2019/20

2018/19

Compulsory

Other

Compulsory

Other

Redundancy

Departures

Redundancy

Departures

up to £10,000

0

2

1

0

£10,000-£20,000

0

0

1

1

£20,000-£30,000

1

0

0

0
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27 External Audit Costs
The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of
Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory inspections provided by the Authority’s
external auditors:
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Financial Statements/Scale Fee

42

36

Composite Certification Fee (includes Whole of Government
Accounts)

25

23

Total

67

59

Fees payable for external audit services:

28 Grant Income
The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2019/20.
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

(5,934)

(1,959)

0

0

Section 31 Business Rates Grants

(1,338)

(979)

New Homes Bonus Grant

(4,774)

(4,121)

(167)

(154)

(8)

(41)

(12,221)

(7,254)

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant
Income

Note 13

Capital Grants and Contributions
Revenue Support Grant

EU Exit
Miscellaneous Grants
Total
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2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

(21,226)

(24,771)

Housing Benefits Administration (DWP)

(237)

(264)

Homelessness Support (DCLG)

(632)

(435)

0

0

Disabled Facilities Grant (DCLG)

(521)

(483)

Local Council Tax Support Scheme (KCC)

(107)

(107)

Local Council Tax Support Scheme (DCLG)

(97)

(102)

Brexit (DCLG)

(17)

0

Covid 19 (DCLG)

(48)

0

(3,208)

(722)

(841)

(493)

(26,934)

(27,377)

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Miscellaneous Grants

(1,394)

(97)

Total

(1,394)

(97)

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Community Infrastructure Levy

(9,945)

(5,440)

Other Third Party

(1,124)

(437)

(11,069)

(5,877)

Credited to Services
Housing Benefits (DWP)

Supporting People (KCC)

Town Centre (KCC)
Other Miscellaneous Grants and Contributions
Total

The Council is also holding the following grants and contributions.

Grants Receipts in Advance - Revenue

Unapplied Capital Grants and Contributions

Total
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29 Related Parties
The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or
influenced by it. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to
which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently, or
might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the
Authority.
Central Government
Central government has significant control over the general operations of the Authority – it
is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates,
provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many
of the transactions that the Authority has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing
benefits and business rates). Grants received from government departments are set out in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and in notes 13 and 28.
Members
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating
policies. The total of Members’ allowances paid in 2019/20 is shown in Note 25.
Members have been asked to declare whether they, or any member of their close family,
have had any significant interest in any company or voluntary organisation that had any
financial dealing with the Council during the 2019/20 financial year. A significant interest
would include transactions exceeding £10,000 in total or a major shareholding in a
company where the shareholding exceeds 25% of the total shares.
Declarations are as follows:
Councillor Kite is the Leader of
shareholding Director of Dartford
payments of £125,112 in 2019/20
community facilities at Princes Park
grants of £5,750.

the Council and is a voluntary, unpaid and nonFootball Club (1992) Limited. The Council made
to Dartford Football Club (1992) Limited to provide
in accordance with service agreements and additional

Councillor Kite is also a Board member of the Ebbsfleet Development Corporation (EDC).
The council has received payments from the EDC of £610,000 for affordable Housing
section 106 contributions and £3,250 for other services.
The above named Councillor declared interests at the relevant meetings and took no part
in relevant discussions.

Officers
Senior officers have been asked to declare whether they, or any member of their close
family, have had any significant interest in any company or voluntary organisation that had
any financial dealing with the Council during the 2019/20 financial year. A significant
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interest would include transactions exceeding £10,000 in total or a major shareholding in a
company where the shareholding exceeds 25% of the total shares.
No relevant
declarations have been made.
Other Public Bodies
The Authority has a shared services arrangement with Sevenoaks District Council to
provide various services, namely: Revenues, Benefits, Audit and Anti-Fraud, and
Environmental Health. The relevant costs to the Council are accounted for within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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30 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below,
together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is
to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority,
the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a
measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be
financed.

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

55,852

61,444

15,104

16,986

20

0

3,689

1,083

Capital Receipts

(6,650)

(9,225)

Government Grants and Other Contributions

(4,471)

(1,151)

Major Repair Reserve

(3,518)

(3,462)

Direct Revenue Contributions

(2,740)

(5,066)

Voluntary MRP

(4,663)

(4,757)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement

52,623

55,852

(4,663)

(5,592)

1,434

0

(3,329)

(5,592)

Opening Capital Financing Requirement

Capital Investment
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

Sources of Finance

Explanations of movement in year
Increase/(decrease) in underlying need to borrow (unsupported
by government financial assistance)
Assets acquired under finance leases
Increase /(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement
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31 Leases
Authority as Lessee
Operating Lease
The Authority’s refuse and waste collection contract ended in June 2019. It conveyed the
right to use and control specific assets, namely refuse collection vehicles. Under IFRIC 4
this had been recognised as an arrangement containing a lease, which is also referred to
as an ‘embedded lease’. The implied lease was disclosed in accordance with IAS 17 and
the relevant section of the Code.
Property, Plant and Equipment - Embedded leases

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

£,000

£,000

Not later than one year

0

0

Later than one year and not later than five years

0

62

Total

0

62

The Authority entered into a new refuse and waste collection contract which started in July
2019. The contract contains an embedded lease for refuse vehicles, however this new
arrangement is considered to be a Finance lease.
Finance Lease
The Authority’s new refuse and waste collection contract conveys the right to use and
control specific assets, namely refuse collection vehicles. Under IFRIC 4 this has been
recognised as an arrangement containing a lease, which is also referred to as an
‘embedded lease’. The implied lease has been accounted for in accordance with IAS 17
and the relevant section of the Code. The Long-term Creditor in the Balance Sheet relates
to these assets.
The assets acquired under these leases are carried as Property, Plant and Equipment in
the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts:

Property Plant & Equipment - embedded leases

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

£,000

£,000

1,434

0

The Authority is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising
settlement of the long-term liability for the interest in the property acquired by the Authority
and finance costs that will be payable by the Authority in future years while the liability
remains outstanding. The minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounts:
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31 March 2020

31 March 2019

£,000

£,000

191

0

1,024

0

104

0

1,319

0

Finance lease liabilities (net present value of minimum lease
payments):
Current
Non-current
Finance costs payable in future years
Total

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:
Minimum lease payments

Not later than one
year
Later than one year
and not later than
five years
Later than five years
Total

Finance lease liability

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March
2019

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

220

0

191

0

879

0

809

0

220

0

215

0

1,319

0

1,215

0

Authority as Lessor
Finance Leases
The Authority owns three properties which are leased out on finance leases. The first is
Crown Buildings, comprising the Court House and Offices. The Court House is leased to
Central Government and the offices are leased to BizNiz Point Dartford Lease Limited.
Both are on 125 year leases which end in February 2113. The second property is ‘Air and
Breathe’, a nightclub which is leased to Luminar Gems Limited, and has a lease end date
in 2036. The third is on the old site of the Maybledon Hospital. The site is let on a 100 year
lease for the development of a crematorium and cemetery. Rent is paid annually.
The Authority has a gross investment in the leases, made up of the minimum lease
payments expected to be received over the remaining term and the residual value
anticipated for the property when the lease comes to an end. The minimum lease
payments comprise settlement of the long-term debtor for the interest in the property
acquired by the lessee and finance income that will be earned by the Authority in future
years whilst the debtor remains outstanding. The gross investment is made up of the
following amounts:
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31 March 2020

31 March 2019

£,000

£,000

288

279

- non-current

2,403

2,184

Total

2,691

2,463

91

939

Unearned finance income

15,010

15,540

Gross investment in the lease

17,792

18,942

Finance Lease debtor (net present value of minimum lease
payments):
- current

Unguaranteed residual value of property

The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over
the following periods:
Gross Investment in
the Lease
31 March
31 March
2020
2019

Minimum Lease
Payments
31 March
31 March
2020
2019

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

313

310

313

310

1,082

1,138

1,082

2,157

Later than five years

16,397

17,494

16,044

17,051

Total

17,792

18,942

17,439

19,518

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five
years

Operating Leases
The Authority leases out property under operating leases both on commercial and noncommercial terms.
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future
years are:
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

£,000

£,000

470

464

1,585

1,657

Later than five years

35,936

36,221

Total

37,991

38,342

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
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32 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes
Characteristics of Defined Benefit Plans and Associated Risks
The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as
possible. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The fund is valued once every
three years and the latest valuation was at 31 March 2019. The valuation disclosed a net
deficit of £13.3m and a change in contribution rates as a result of that valuation will take
effect from 1 April 2020. The employer’s contribution has been agreed with the actuary and
is based on the aim of eliminating the deficit over 17 years. The weighted average duration
of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members remains at 17 years for 2019/20, no
change from 2018/19.
The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is a defined benefit statutory scheme
administered in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013
and currently provides benefits based on career average revalued earnings.
The administering authority for the fund is Kent County Council. The Pension Fund
Committee oversees the management of the fund whilst the day to day fund administration
is undertaken by a team within the administering authority. Where appropriate, some
functions are delegated to the fund’s professional advisers.
As administering authority to the fund, Kent County Council, after consultation with the fund
actuary and other relevant parties, is responsible for the preparation and maintenance of
the Funding Strategy Statement and the Investment Strategy Statement. These should be
amended when appropriate based on the fund’s performance and funding.
Contributions are set every three years as a result of the actuarial valuation of the Fund
required by the Regulations. The next actuarial valuation of the Fund will be carried out as
at 31 March 2022 and will set contributions for the period from 1 April 2023 to 31 March
2026. There are no minimum funding requirements in the LGPS but the contributions are
generally set to target a funding level of 100% using the actuarial valuation assumptions.
In general, participating in a defined benefit pension scheme means that the employer is
exposed to a number of risks:


Investment risk. The fund holds investment in asset classes, such as equities, which
have volatile market values and, while these assets are expected to provide real
returns over the long-term, the short-term volatility can cause additional funding to be
required if a deficit emerges;



Interest rate risk. The fund’s liabilities are assessed using market yields on high quality
corporate bonds to discount future liability cashflows. As the fund holds assets such as
equities the value of the assets and liabilities may not move in the same way;



Inflation risk. All of the benefits under the fund are linked to inflation and so deficits may
emerge to the extent that the assets are not linked to inflation;



Longevity risk. In the event that the members live longer than assumed a deficit will
emerge in the fund. There are also other demographic risks.
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In addition, as many unrelated employers participate in the Kent County Council Pension
Fund, there is an orphan liability risk where employers leave the Fund but with insufficient
assets to cover their pension obligations so that the difference may fall on the remaining
employers.
All of the risks above may also benefit the employer e.g. higher than expected investment
returns or employers leaving the fund with excess assets which eventually get inherited by
the remaining employers.
Participation in pension schemes
As part of the terms and conditions of employment, the authority offers retirement benefits
to its employees. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees
retire, the authority has a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at
the time that employees earn their future entitlement.
The authority participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme administered locally
by Kent County Council. The current scheme is a Career Average Revalued Earnings
Scheme, meaning that the authority and employees pay contributions into a fund,
calculated at a level intended to balance pension liabilities with investment assets.
Transactions relating to retirement benefits
The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services as they
are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.
However, the charge required against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year,
so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed. This adjustment is shown in the
Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Movement in Reserves
Statement during the year:

Surplus and Deficit for the year to 31 March 2020
2019/20

2018/19

The amounts recognised in the profit and loss statement are

£,000

£,000

Service Cost

3,455

2,592

Net Interest on Defined Liability

1,283

1,498

53

43

Total

4,791

4,133

Actual Return on Scheme Assets

6,794

6,709

Administration Expenses
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Balance Sheet Disclosure as at 31 March 2020
31 March
2020

31 March
2019

£,000

£,000

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

137,375

145,259

Fair Value of Scheme Assets

(83,807)

(91,907)

53,568

53,352

1,338

1,483

54,906

54,835

Net Pension Asset as at

Deficit/(Surplus)
Present Value of Unfunded Obligation
Net Defined Benefit Liability

Asset and Benefit Obligation Reconciliation for the year to 31 March
2020
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present

2019/20

2018/19

£'000

£'000

146,742

147,038

Current service cost

2,661

2,592

Interest cost

3,475

3,693

(12,052)

6,023

(1,562)

(8,185)

2,618

0

(4,304)

(4,742)

Past service cost

794

0

Contributions by scheme participants

487

474

(146)

(151)

138,713

146,742

value of the defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation

Changes in financial assumptions
Changes in demographic assumptions
Experience loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation
Estimated benefits paid net of transfers in

Unfunded pension payments
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation

The authority has allowed for the estimated impact of the recent McCloud judgement as a past
service cost. We have estimated the impact on the total liabilities as at 31 March 2020 to be
£767,000 (or 0.6% as a percent of total liabilities).
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2019/20

2018/19

£'000

£'000

91,907

86,884

2,192

2,195

Return on assets less interest

(8,986)

4,514

Other actuarial gains/(losses)

(135)

0

(53)

(43)

2,845

2,776

487

474

Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net transfers in

(4,450)

(4,893)

Closing Fair Value of Fund Assets

83,807

91,907

2019/20

2018/19

£'000

£'000

(54,835)

(60,154)

(2,661)

(2,592)

2,699

2,776

146

151

(794)

0

(10,322)

2,822

10,861

2,162

(54,906)

(54,835)

fair value of fund assets
Opening fair value of fund assets
Interest on assets

Administration expenses
Contributions by employer including unfunded
Contributions by scheme participants

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances

Surplus/ (Deficit) at beginning of the year
Current Service Cost
Employer contributions
Unfunded pension payments
Past service costs
Other finance income (expenditure)
Actuarial gains (losses)
Surplus/(Deficit) at the end of the year

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed
interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date.
Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in
the respective markets.
The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Authority has in the long run to
pay retirement benefits.
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Basis for estimating assets and liabilities
The Kent County Council Fund liabilities have been assessed by Barnett Waddingham, an
independent firm of actuaries. Estimates for the fund are based on the latest full valuation
of the scheme as at 31 March 2019. To assess the current value of liabilities as at 31
March 2020 the actuarial valuation has been rolled forward, using financial assumptions
that comply with IAS19. The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:

2019/20

2018/19

Men

21.8 years

22.0 years

Women

23.7 years

24.0 years

Men

23.2 years

23.7 years

Women

25.2 years

25.8 years

Rate of RPI increase

2.85%

3.45%

Rate of CPI increase

1.95%

2.45%

Rate of increase in salaries

2.95%

3.95%

Rate of increase in pensions

1.95%

2.45%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

2.35%

2.40%

Mortality Assumptions
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners

No allowance has been made in the figures disclosed in this note for the recent McCloud
judgement, which relates to age discrimination within the New Judicial Pension Scheme.
Barnett Waddingham have undertaken calculations to estimate the possible impact of any
amendments that may be required to the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) as a
result of the Court of Appeal judgement on the McCloud and Sargeant cases. While the
liability is expected to increase as a result of the cases, the calculations have shown that
the relevant adjustments are unlikely to be materially different to these disclosures.

Sensitivity Analysis
The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions
set out in the table above. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the
other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume
that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The
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estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme,
i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those
used in the previous period.
The scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total assets
held:
Sensitivity Analysis

£'000

£'000

£'000

+0.1%

0.0%

-0.1%

136,366

138,713

141,101

2,425

2,484

2,544

+0.1%

0.0%

-0.1%

138,921

138,713

138,506

2,485

2,484

2,483

+0.1%

0.0%

-0.1%

140,900

138,713

136,562

2,543

2,484

2,426

Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption

+1 Year

None

-1 Year

Present value of total obligation

144,904

138,713

132,804

2,561

2,484

2,409

Adjustment to discount rate
Present value of total obligation
Projected service cost
Adjustment to long term salary increase
Present value of total obligation
Projected service cost
Adjustments to pension increases and
deferred revaluation
Present value of total obligation
Projected service cost

Projected service cost

2019/20

2018/19

%

Quoted
market price
in an active
market
£000's

Price not
quoted in an
active
market
£000's

%

2,785

61%

60,814

2,208

68%

651

0

1%

604

0

1%

10,923

0

13%

8,369

0

9%

Property

0

11,403

14%

0

11,039

12%

Cash

0

2,193

3%

0

1,603

2%

7,078

0

8%

7,270

0

8%

67,426

16,381

100%

77,057

14,850

100%

Equity investments
Gilts
Bonds

Target Return
portfolio

Quoted
market price
in an active
market
£000's

Price not
quoted in an
active
market
£000's

48,774
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Statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the
Authority remains healthy. The deficit on the local government scheme will be made good
by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by
the scheme actuary. The projected pension expense for the year to 31 March 2020 is:

31 March
2020

31 March
2019

£000's

£000's

(8,986)

4,514

(135)

0

12,052

(6,023)

1,562

8,185

Experience gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation

(2,618)

0

Remeasurement of the net assets/(defined liability)

1,875

6,676

Remeasurement of the net assets/(defined liability)

Return on fund assets in excess of interest
Other actuarial gains/(losses) on assets
Changes in financial assumptions
Change in demographic assumptions

The table below shows the projections of the pension scheme transactions for the 2020/21
financial year based on the assumptions and forecasts currently in use by the actuary.
Projections for the year to 31 March 2021

31 March 2021
£'000

Service Cost

2,484

Net Interest on the defined liability (asset)

1,256

Administration Expenses

48

Total loss (profit)

3,788

Employer Contributions

2,758
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33 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
The Council complies with CIPFA’s code of Practice on Treasury Management and
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, both revised in December 2017.
In line with the Treasury Management Code, the Council approves a Treasury
Management Strategy before the commencement of each financial year. The Strategy
sets out the parameters for the management of risks associated with financial instruments.
The Council also produces Treasury Management Practices specifying the practical
arrangements to be followed to manage these risk.
The Council also approves an Investment Strategy in compliance with the Ministry for
Housing, Communities and Local Government Guidance on Local Government
Investments. This Guidance emphasises that priority is to be given to security and liquidity,
rather than yield.
The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and Treasury
Management Practices seek to achieve a suitable balance between risk and return or cost.
The main risks covered are:


credit risk - the possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset will fail to meet its
contractual obligations, causing a loss to the Council.



liquidity risk - the possibility that the Council might not have the cash available to
meet its commitments to make payments;



market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result
of changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.

Credit Risk – Treasury Investments
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to the Authority’s customers.
The risk is minimised through the annual Treasury Management Strategy, which requires
that deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum
credit criteria. The Treasury Management Strategy also imposes a maximum sum to be
invested with a financial institution as well as a maximum period of investment.
Although the Council recognises that credit ratings from rating agencies such as Fitch,
Moody’s and Standard and Poor remain a key source of information, they also have
limitations, and investment decisions are based on a range of market intelligence. All
investments as at 31 March 2020 met the Council’s credit rating criteria at that date and all
investments made during 2019/20 were made in line with the Council’s Treasury
Management Strategy Statement for 2019/20 first agreed at the budget meeting of GAC on
25 February 2019.
The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in Money
Market Funds of £40.75m, cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution
failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each
individual counterparty. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be
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unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Council’s
deposits, but there was no evidence at 31 March 2020 that this was likely to crystallise.
The table below summarises the credit risk exposure of the Council’s treasury investment
portfolio by credit rating and remaining time to maturity
31 March 2020
Long term

Short term

£,000

£,000

AAA

0

57,261

AA

0

6,392

Total

0

63,653

Credit risk not applicable*

57,796

4,891

Total Investments

57,796

68,544

Credit rating

*Credit risk is not applicable to pooled funds where the Council has no contractual right to
receive any sum of money.
No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period. The Council has neither
experienced, nor does it expect, any losses from non-performance of any of its
counterparties in relation to its investments. No investments are impaired.
Credit Risk – Trade and Lease Receivables
The Authority does not generally allow credit for customers.
The Council Credit on lease receivables is mitigated by its legal ownership of the assets
leased, which can be repossessed if the debtor defaults on the lease contract.
The following analysis summarises the trade receivables, by due date.
31 March
2020

31 March
2019

£,000

£,000

Less than three months

1,757

371

Three to twelve months

1,651

138

145

113

3,553

622

More than one year
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All receivables are assessed for credit risk in the following groupings:

Range of
allowances
set aside

Individuals- HRA Tenants
Individuals - Housing Benefit
Overpayments
Other
Private Sector - lessees
Public Sector
Total

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Gross
receivable

Loss
allowance

Gross
receivable

Loss
allowance

30-100%

£,000
1,588

£,000
(1,319)

£,000
1,485

£,000
(1,225)

50-100%

3,731

(2,299)

3,711

(2,433)

0-100%
0%
0%

2,889
2,752
2,578
13,538

(424)

1,987
2,464
2,840
12,487

(244)
0
0
(3,902)

(4,042)

Amounts assessed at zero within the other category include immaterial sums where no
loss assessment was made and receivables relating to interest/dividends receivable in
relation to assets that are fair value through profit & loss.
Individually assessed items relate to larger receivables where payment was received
before the loss allowance assessment date.
Liquidity Risk
The Council has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that
cash is available as needed. As the Council has ready access to borrowings from the
money markets and the Public Works Loans Board, there is no significant risk that it will be
unable to raise finance to meet its commitments.
The risks to the Council are that it will:


have to re-invest a significant proportion of its investments at a time of unfavourable
interest rates; to offset this risk, maturity dates are staggered and different types of
investment used;



not have adequate liquidity on a day to day basis; to assist in managing this risk, a
detailed cash flow model is maintained and updated daily.

The Council’s debt outstanding at 31 March 2020 consisted solely of loans from the Public
Works Loan Board (PWLB). A maturity analysis of this debt is shown below:
31 March 2020
£'000's

Time to Maturity (years)
Not over 1

4,651

Over 1 but not over 2

9,443

Over 2 but not over 5

10,630
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Over 5 but not over 10

15,146

Over 10 but not over 20

11,742

Total

51,612

Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its
borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the
authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects:


investments at variable rates (e.g. Money Market Funds) – the investment income
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will rise;



investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall;



borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities will fall.



borrowings at variable rates – the Council has no borrowings at variable rates.

Investments measured at amortised cost and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value,
so changes in their fair value will have no impact on the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
However changes in interest receivable on variable rate
investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.
Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments measured at fair value will be
reflected in Other Comprehensive Income or the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services as appropriate.
The Treasury Management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate
exposure that feeds into the setting of the annual budget, and which is used to update the
budget during the year. This allows any changes (negative or positive) to be
accommodated.
According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2020, if interest rates had been 1%
higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be:
£,000
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments

(506)

Decrease in fair value of investments held at FVPL

794

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

288

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowing*

(3,027)

*No impact on comprehensive income and Expenditure.
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The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the
movements being reversed.
Price Risk
The Council’s investments in pooled bond funds are governed by prevailing interest rates
and the price risk associated with these instruments is managed alongside interest rate
risk.
The Council’s investments in pooled equity funds are subject to the risk of falling share
prices. This risk is managed by ensuring the portfolio of investments held is diversified
across a variety of investment types and by closely monitoring the performance in these
funds.
The Council’s investment in a pooled property fund is subject to the risk of falling
commercial property prices. The risk is limited by the Council’s minimising the investment
held in this fund and spreading risk across a variety of investment types.
A fall in either equity or property prices would result in a reduction in the financing and
investment income in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement however there
would be no impact on the General fund as the change in fair value is reversed out through
the MIRS via a statutory override.
Foreign Exchange Risk
The Council does not hold any financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies and
thus has no exposure to loss arising from the movement in foreign exchange rates.
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HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Repairs and Maintenance

3,425

3,246

Supervision and Management

4,899

4,392

26

22

Depreciation and Impairment of Non-current Assets

3,702

3,566

Revaluation of Non-current Assets

1,297

2,236

98

159

13,447

13,621

(19,690)

(19,433)

(645)

(636)

(1,207)

(1,352)

(3)

(5)

(21,545)

(21,426)

(8,098)

(7,805)

89

86

(8,009)

(7,719)

(1,577)

(1,327)

1,344

1,439

(83)

(101)

276

325

(83)

(76)

(164)

(168)

(8,296)

(7,627)

HRA
Note

Expenditure

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges

Movement in the allowance for bad debts

1

Total Expenditure
Income
Dwelling rents

1

Non-dwelling rents
Charges for services and facilities
Minor capital receipts
Total Income
Net Cost of HRA Services
HRA services share of Corporate and Democratic Core
Net (Income)/cost for HRA Services including HRA
share of costs not allocated to specific services
HRA share of the operating income and expenditure
included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:
(Gain)/Loss on sale of HRA non-current assets
Interest payable and similar charges
Changes in the fair value of Investment Properties
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)
Interest and investment income
Income and expenditure in relation to Investment Property
(Surplus) / Deficit for the year on HRA Services
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Movement on the HRA Statement

Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous year
(Surplus) or deficit for the year on the HRA Income and
Expenditure Statement
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
statute
Net (increase) or decrease before transfers to and from
reserves

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

(12,328)

(12,934)

(8,296)

(7,627)

6,820

8,233

(1,476)

606

Transfers to or (from) reserves

0

(Increase) or decrease in year on the HRA
(Surplus)/Deficit Balance on the HRA at the end of the current
year
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(1,476)

606

(13,804)

(12,328)
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Note to the Movement on the HRA Statement
2019/20

2018/19
Restated

£,000

£,000

4,444

4,443

Depreciation charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

(3,701)

(3,566)

Impairment and Revaluation changes charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(1,297)

(2,236)

83

100

1,577

1,326

(1,030)

(897)

2,458

4,921

584

576

3,702

3,566

6,820

8,233

Major Repairs Allowance element of Housing

0

0

Net amount required by statute to be debited or (credited)
to the HRA balance for the year

0

0

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis
under statute
Voluntary Minimum Revenue Provision

Movement in the Value of Investment Property
Gain/(Loss) on sale of Non Current Assets
Net charges for retirement benefits in accordance with IAS19
Capital expenditure funded by revenue
Employer's contributions payable to the pension fund and
retirement benefits payable direct to pensioners
Statutory Transfer to Major Repair Reserve/ Capital Adjustment
Account
Net additional amount required by statute to be debited or
(credited) to the HRA balance for the year
Transfers to or (from) reserves

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT NOTES
1 Rent Income and Arrears
Total rent income from houses due in the year was:

Direct from tenants
From housing benefit
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2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

11,300

9,901

8,390

9,532

19,690

19,433
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Average rents for the year were £89.10 per 52 week rent year, a marginal decrease under
the previous year. Gross rent arrears at the end of the year were 8% of rent income due
(7.6% in 2018/19). The amounts were as follows:

Arrears at 31 March
Less Provision for Bad Debts

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

1,583

1,481

(1,319)

(1,226)

264

255

The Provision for Bad Debts (including rent rebate overpayments) was as follows:
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

1,226

1,062

Write offs during year

(5)

5

Change in provision

98

159

1,319

1,226

Former Tenants' Arrears

843

768

Current Tenants' Arrears

370

357

1,213

1,125

106

101

1,319

1,226

Provision Brought Forward

Provision Carried Forward
Provision Analysed as follows: -

Total Provision - Rent Arrears
Rent Rebate Overpayments/Other
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2 Major Repairs Reserve
The Council is required to maintain separate records of the Major Repairs Reserve, as
shown below.
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

0

0

(3,518)

(3,462)

3,518

3,462

0

0

31-Mar-2020

31-Mar-2019

Bedsits

13

13

Houses

2,075

2,081

Flats/Maisonettes

1,504

1,493

Bungalows

181

181

Sheltered Units

466

466

4,239

4,234

Balance as at 1 April
Contribution to the Reserve
Major Repairs Allowance
Payments from the Reserve
Capital Expenditure
Balance carried forward as at 31 March

3 Housing Stock
The stock was made up as follows:

The Council sold 20 dwellings with a total balance sheet valuation of £1.5m under the Right
to Buy scheme during 2019/20. The Council built 23 new dwellings and purchased two
others. The numbers above exclude four “Rent-to-mortgage” properties where the Council
owns a proportion of the property.
4 Capital Receipts
The total capital receipts arising from the sale of Housing Revenue Account assets were:

Dwellings
Repayment of mortgage capital
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2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

3,060

2,580

0

3

3,060

2,583
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5 Property, Plant and Equipment in the Housing Revenue Account

Community Assets
Furniture& Equipment

Assets Under Construction
Furniture& Equipment

£,000

£,000

£,000

£,000

303,576

4,398

159

1

Additions

6,992

0

101

0

185

7,277

0

Revaluation increases /
(decreases) recognised in
the Revaluation Reserve

6,486

3

0

0

0

6,490

0

Revaluation increases /
(decreases) recognised in
the Surplus / Deficit on
the Provision of Services

(1,301)

4

0

0

0

(1,297)

84

Derecognition - Disposals

(1,521)

0

0

0

0

(1,521)

0

2,667

0

0

0

(2,667)

0

0

(3,500)

(1)

0

0

0

(3,501)

0

313,399

4,405

260

1

298 318,362

1,712

0

(9)

(2)

0

0

(11)

0

Depreciation charge

(3,518)

(161)

(23)

0

0

(3,702)

0

Other Movements in
depreciation and
impairment

3,518

1

0

0

0

3,519

0

0

(169)

(25)

0

0

(194)

0

at 31 March 2020

313,399

4,235

235

1

298 318,168

1,712

at 31 March 2019

303,576

4,389

157

1

2,780 310,903

1,628

Investment Property

Total Property, Plant and
Equipment

Vehicles, Plant,
Furniture& Equipment

£,000

Council Dwellings

Other Land and Buildings

Movements on
Balances
Movements in 2019/20

£,000

£,000

2,780 310,914

1,628

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2019

Impairment
Other movements in cost
or valuation
At 31 March 2020
Accumulated
Depreciation and
Impairment
At 1 April 2019

At 31 March 2020
Net Book Value
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6 Vacant Possession Value of Dwellings in the Housing Revenue Account
The difference between the vacant possession value and the Balance Sheet value of the
dwellings represents the economic cost to the Council of providing social housing at rents
lower than those in the open market.

Open Market Value
Balance Sheet Value
Economic Cost

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

949,694

919,927

(313,399)

(303,576)

636,295

616,351

7 Capital Expenditure
The total capital expenditure on dwellings, land and other properties within the Housing
Revenue Account:
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

7,112

11,242

185

1,912

7,297

13,154

Contribution from Major Repairs Reserve

3,518

3,462

Revenue Contribution

2,642

5,025

Capital Receipts

1,137

1,986

0

2,681

7,297

13,154

Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets Under Construction

Funded by:

Increase in Capital Finance Requirement
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8 Contribution to Pensions Reserve
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when
they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as
pensions. However, the charge made against housing rents is based on the cash payable
in the year, so an adjustment is made in the Statement of Movement on the HRA
Statement.

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Current Service Cost

572

563

Past Service Cost

171

0

11

9

276

325

1,030

897

(1,030)

(900)

584

576

HRA Income and Expenditure Statement

Administration Expenses
Net Interest Expense Cost
Total Post-employment Benefit Charged to the HRA
Income and Expenditure Account
Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to the surplus and deficit for the
provision of services for post-employment benefits in
accordance with the code
Actual amount charged against the HRA Balance for
pensions in the year:
Employer's contribution payable to the scheme
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COLLECTION FUND
2019/20

2019/20

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000
Council
Tax

£,000

£,000

0

(70,192)

(70,192)

(64,899)

(90,667)

0

(90,667)

(93,712)

(90,667)

(70,192)

(160,859)

(158,611)

51

0

51

186

170
200
4
0

499
2,994
183
409

669
3,194
187
409

652
2,998
189
394

425

4,085

4,510

4,419

42,557
34,045
7,660
0

0
7,877
49,049
2,935
7,291

42,557
41,922
56,709
2,935
7,291

0
40,850
94,490
3,601
6,205

84,262

67,152

151,414

145,146

1,891

1,831

3,722

474

(2,264)

0

(2,264)

3,538

172
3,874
0
0
3,673

0
0
0
0
1,831

172
3,874
0
0
5,504

172
4,259
0
0
8,443

Total Expenditure

88,360

73,068

161,428

158,008

(Surplus) / Deficit arising during the year

(2,307)

2,876

569

(602)

(Surplus) / Deficit as at 1 April

(1,781)

(6,131)

(7,912)

(7,310)

(Surplus) / Deficit as at 31 March

(4,088)

(3,255)

(7,343)

(7,912)

Allocated to:
Dartford Borough Council
Central Government
Kent County Council
Kent Fire and Rescue Authority
Kent Police and Crime Commissioner

(1,296)
(940)
(969)
(32)
0

(376)
0
(2,381)
(140)
(358)

(1,672)
(940)
(3,350)
(172)
(358)

(1,431)
0
(5,529)
(286)
(666)

(3,237)

(3,255)

(6,492)

(7,912)

NNDR

Total

INCOME
Council Tax Receivable
Business Rates Receivable
EXPENDITURE
Apportionment of Previous Year Surplus /
(Deficit)
Central Government
Dartford Borough Council
Kent County Council
Kent Fire and Rescue Authority
Kent Police and Crime Commissioner
Precepts, Demand and Shares
Central Government
Dartford Borough Council
Kent County Council
Kent Fire and Rescue Authority
Kent Police and Crime Commissioner
Charges to Collection fund
Less : Increase (-) / Decrease in Bad Debt Provision
Less : Increase (-) / Decrease in Provision for
Appeals
Less : Cost of Collection
Less : Transitional protection Payments
Less : Interest
Add : Deferred amount
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COLLECTION FUND NOTES
1. General
The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing
authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions
of the Council in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities
and the Government of Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Business Rates (NNDR)
The Council has a statutory requirement to operate a Collection Fund as a separate
account to the General Fund. The purpose of the Collection Fund is to isolate the income
and expenditure relating to Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Business Rates. The
administrative costs associated with the collection process are charged to the General
Fund.
2. Council Tax Base
The Council Tax is primarily a property based tax and derives from charges raised
according to the value of residential properties, which have been classified into nine
valuation bands (A-H) for this specific purpose. Individual charges are calculated by
estimating the amount of income required to be taken from the Collection Fund by the
Council for the forthcoming year and dividing this by the Council Tax base (i.e. the
equivalent numbers of Band D dwellings).
The Council Tax base for 2019/20 was 37,747.03 (36,685.06 in 2018/19).
The tax base and basic Council Tax payable for 2019/20 was approved at the Cabinet
meeting on 25 February 2019. The basic tax for each band is shown below:
Basic Tax

Chargeable
Dwellings

Proportion of
Band D Charge

Number of
Band D
Equivalent
Dwellings

£

£

£

£

A

1,165.39

1,621.00

6/9

1,081.00

B

1,359.62

6,744.00

7/9

5,245.00

C

1,553.85

14,635.00

8/9

13,009.00

D

1,748.08

12,364.00

1

12,364.00

E

2,136.54

6,463.00

11/9

7,899.00

F

2,525.00

2,699.00

13/9

3,899.00

G

2,913.47

1,056.00

15/9

1,760.00

H

3,496.16

48.00

18/9

96.00

Band

Net effect of premiums and discounts

(7,606)

Tax Base for the Calculation of Council Tax

37,747.03
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Additional amounts are payable for precepts levied by the Parish and Town Councils within
the borough.
The level of non-payment provided for in 2019/20 was 2.5%.
Council tax bills for Bands A to H were based on the following proportions of the Band D
charge:
Band

Range of 1991 property values

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H

£40,000 or less
£40,001 to £52,000
£52,001 to £68,000
£68,001 to £88,000
£88,001 to £120,000
£120,001 to £160,000
£160,001 to £320,000
More than £320,000

Ratio
0.67
0.78
0.89
1.00
1.22
1.44
1.67
2.00

3. Income from Business Ratepayers
The Council collects National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) for its area based on local
rateable values provided by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA), multiplied by a uniform
business rate set nationally by Central Government.
The total income from business rate payers, after reliefs, collectable in 2019/20 was
£90.667m (£93.712m in 2018/19).
For 2019/20, the total non-domestic rateable value (RV) at the year-end is £203.m
(£199.0m in 2018/19). The national multipliers for 2019/20 were 49.1p for qualifying Small
Businesses, and the standard multiplier was 50.4p for all other businesses (48.0p and
49.3p respectively in 2018/19).
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4. Contributions to Collection Fund Surpluses and Deficits
The share of the surplus/ (deficit) for each of the precepting authorities is:
Share of surplus/ (deficit)

2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

3,350

5,529

Kent Police and Crime Commissioner

358

666

Kent Fire and Rescue

172

286

1,672

1,431

940

0

6,492

7,912

Kent County Council

Dartford Borough Council *
Central Government

* Shown as the Collection Fund Adjustment Account in the Balance Sheet.

5. Provision for Uncollectable Amounts
The provision for Council Tax and Business Rates bad debt is based on an analysis of the
age of the debt plus applying an additional percentage for non-payment to the total tax due,
less the write-offs in year.
The movement this year in the provision for non-collection of debt relating to Council tax is
shown below:
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Balance Brought Forward

3,011

3,402

Write Offs

(455)

(14)

Increase/ (decrease) in provision

1,831

(377)

Balance Carried Forward - Council Tax

4,387

3,011
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At 31 March 2020, the total Council Tax outstanding debt was £8.3m. This was made up as
follows:
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Debt up to 1 year old

2,480

2,292

Debt between 2 to 5 years old

4,279

3,940

Debt over 5 years old

1,580

1,295

Total Council Tax Debt

8,339

7,527

The movement this year in the provision for non-collection of debt relating to Business
Rates is shown below:
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

1,637

1,338

(1,865)

(552)

Increase/ (decrease) in provision

1,891

851

Balance Carried Forward - Business Rates

1,663

1,637

Balance Brought Forward
Write Offs

At 31 March 2020, the total Business Rates outstanding debt was £2.06m. This was made
up as follows:

Debt up to 1 year old
Debt between 2 to 5 years old
Debt over 5 years old
Total Business Rates Debt
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2018/19

£,000

£,000

1,466

1,187

537

749

57

97

2,060

2,033
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6 Provision for Appeals (NNDR)
A provision is made against the potential effect of outstanding appeals in respect of rating
list entries relating to the Collection Fund:
2019/20

2018/19

£,000

£,000

Balance Brought Forward

20,288

16,750

RV list amendments charged against the provision for appeals

(4,815)

(659)

2,551

4,197

18,024

20,288

Contribution to provisions during year
Balance Carried Forward

The provision for Business Rate valuation appeals is based on the latest list of outstanding
rating list proposals provided by the Valuation Office and is an estimate based on changes
in comparable hereditaments, market trends and other valuation issues, including the
potential for some proposals to be withdrawn. The element included in the Council’s
Accounts is shown in Note 21 to the main accounts.
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A GLOSSARY OF LOCAL AUTHORITY FINANCIAL TERMS AND
ABBREVIATIONS
For the purposes of compiling the Statement of Accounts the following definitions have
been adopted:
Accounting Period
This is the period covered by the Accounts which is the 12 month period commencing 1
April each year.
Accounting Policies
Those principles, bases, conventions , rules and practices applied by the Council that
specify how the effects of transactions and other events are to be reflected in the financial
statements.
Accruals
The accruals concept means that income and expenditure are recognised as they are
earned or incurred and not as money is received or paid. For example, if an invoice relating
to works carried out, or services received, in March 2020 is expected to arrive in April
2020, it will be accounted for in the 2019/20 accounts (the financial year it relates to), not
the 2020/21 accounts (the financial year it arrives in.)
Actuarial Gains and Losses
For a defined benefit pension scheme the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that
arise because either events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for
the last valuation, or the actuarial assumptions have changed.
Amortised Cost
A classification of a financial instrument by measurement basis. See Accounting Policies
for further information.
Balances
The non-earmarked capital or revenue reserves of an authority, made up of the
accumulated surplus of income over expenditure on the General Fund and the Housing
Revenue Account. Revenue balances may be utilised to provide for unforeseen
circumstances or to ensure that payments can be made pending the receipt of income, and
may be used to reduce the council tax levy.
Balance sheet
This statement is fundamental to the understanding of an authority’s financial position at
year end. It shows:





the balances and reserves at an authority’s disposal
long-term indebtedness (over one year)
the assets employed in its operations
summarised information on the long-term assets (items that are held for more than
one year) by category
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Budget
The Council’s aims and policies set out in financial terms, against which performance is
measured. Both capital and revenue budgets are prepared.
The revenue budget is a financial statement of planned expenditure required to deliver the
Council’s policies over the financial year. It is illegal for councils to budget in excess of
available resources.
The budget requirement is calculated in advance of each year. It is, broadly, estimated net
revenue expenditure as funded by formula grant, council tax and business rates.
Business Rate Retention Scheme
A scheme introduced in April 2013 under which billing authorities are able to retain a
proportion of the business rates they collect.
Key terms associated with the scheme are as follows:


Tariff - each local authority has an agreed baseline funding position set by
government. If its individual business rates baseline is greater than the set level, it
must pay a tariff to government.



Pool – Local authorities can pool together to share risks around business rates. A
pool can have the effect of reducing the total levy rate, enabling authorities to agree
how to share the possible gains of this arrangement.



Levy – this limits the amount business rates can grow in any one year. In a pool this
is calculated by reference to the pools’ total baseline funding level and its total
individual business rates baseline.



Safety Net – this guarantees that the Council’s income from business rates will not
fall below a certain level. The safety net is set at a percentage of the baseline funding
level.

Capital expenditure
Expenditure for the purchase or improvement of significant assets including land, buildings,
and equipment, which will be of use or benefit in providing services for more than one
financial year.
Capital receipts
The proceeds from the sale of land, buildings and other capital assets. Strict rules govern
their use: they cannot be used for revenue purposes.
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
CIPFA is the accountancy body which represents at national level the interests of local
government and public service finance. As well as awarding public sector specific
accountancy qualifications the Institute also produces advice, codes of practice, and
guidance to local authorities on best practice.

120

Dartford Borough Council

Agenda Item 9

Page 268

CIPFA Code of practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2019/20
Known familiarly as “the Code”, this specifies the principles and practices of accounting
required to prepare a Statement of Accounts which “presents a true and fair view” of the
financial position and transactions of an authority.
Collection Fund
A statutory fund used to record the billing and collection of council tax and non-domestic
rates. Though it is independent of the General Fund, payments are made from it to support
the General Fund services of the billing and precepting authorities.
Community Assets
Assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity, that have determinable useful life and
that may have restrictions in their disposal e.g. parks.
Community Infrastructure Levy
A levy which is charged on new development with the appropriate planning consent. This is
a planning charge used to fund a number of infrastructure projects including transport and
schools to support development in the area.
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
A statement that reports the net cost for the year of all the functions for which the authority
is responsible, and demonstrates how that cost has been financed from general
government grants and income from taxpayers.
Consistency
The concept of consistency states that the accounting treatment of like items within an
accounting period, and from one period to the next, is the same, in order to facilitate
comparisons.
Creditors
Parties to whom the Council owes money at year end for goods and services supplied in
year.
Current liabilities
Those amounts which will become payable or could be called upon within the next
accounting period e.g. creditors and cash overdrawn.
Current Service Cost
The increase in the present value of a defined pension scheme’s liabilities expected to
arise from employee service in the current period i.e. the pension benefits “earned” by
employees in the year.
Debtors/Receivables
Parties owing money to the Council at year end for goods and services supplied to them,
by the Council.
Depreciation
The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic
life of a non-current asset, whether arising from use, the passage of time or obsolescence

121

Dartford Borough Council

Page 269

Agenda Item 9

through technological or other changes. It means that, rather than the whole cost of an
asset being charged to revenue in the year in which it is acquired, the cost is spread out
over the life of the asset. As such, it illustrates an application of the matching concept.
Employee Benefits
Amounts due to employees including salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick pay. These
also include the cost of employer’s national insurance contributions.
Events After the Reporting Period
The occurrence of a material event between the balance sheet date and the date the
accounts are authorised for issue, which might have a bearing on the financial results of
the organisation. In such cases the event should be reflected in the Statement of Accounts
as a note or amendment.
Expected Rate of Return on Pensions Assets
The average rate of return expected over the remaining life of the related obligation on the
actual assets held by the pension scheme.
Extraordinary Items
Material items, possessing a high degree of abnormality, which derive from events or
transactions that fall outside the ordinary activities of the authority and which are therefore
expected not to recur frequently or regularly.
Fair Value
The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm’s length
transaction less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards its purchase or use.
Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL)
A classification of a financial instrument by measurement basis. See Accounting Policies
for further information.
Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
A classification of a financial instrument by measurement basis. See Accounting Policies
for further information.
Financial Reporting Standard (FRS)
A statement of the practice to follow in UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles when
dealing with a discrete area of financial accounting.
Most of these have now been superseded by International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and International Accounting Standards (IAS) but, in some areas, the previous
standards remain in effect.
Fund
A major division of the Council’s accounts, for example the General Fund or the Collection
Fund. It is sometimes also used in a different sense to designate an earmarked reserve.
General Fund
This is the main revenue account and covers the day-to-day spending requirements of
providing services. It is paid for out of council tax, formula grant, specific grants and fees
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and charges. It also includes the cost of services provided by other bodies which make a
levy. It is clearly segregated from the Housing Revenue Account.
Going Concern
The concept that the authority will remain in operational existence for the foreseeable
future; in particular, that the revenue accounts and balance sheet are not based on the
assumption of an intention to curtail significantly the scale of operations.
Government grants
Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies, whether
local, national or international, in the form of cash or transfers of assets, in return for past
or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities of the authority.
Gross expenditure
The total cost of providing services before deducting any income.
Held for Sale Assets
Where there is reasonable certainty that an item of property, plant or equipment is likely to
be disposed of via a sale in the next twelve months it is reclassified to the category of ‘Held
for Sale’.
Heritage Assets
This is a separate class of asset (land, building, artefacts, vehicles etc.) that is held
principally for its contribution to knowledge or culture and which meets the definition of a
Heritage Asset.
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
A statutory account which contains all expenditure and income to fund council housing - in
effect, a landlord account. It shows the major elements of housing revenue expenditure
and how this is met by rents, subsidy and other income. The HRA must be kept entirely
separate from the General Fund and the account must not be in deficit.
Local authorities are not allowed to make up any shortfall on the HRA from the General
Fund, and any surpluses or deficits must be retained within the HRA. No costs may be
charged to council tax or business rate (NNDR) income.
Impairment
Impairment occurs when the book value (carrying value) of an asset exceeds the amount
that could be recovered through use or sale of the asset.
Intangible Assets
These are non-financial fixed assets (for example, they are not bonds or stocks) that do not
have a physical substance, but are identifiable and are controlled by the Council through
custody or legal rights. Examples are IT systems and software licences.
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
Principles-based standards, interpretations and the framework adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board.
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Income
Monies received or due from rents, fees and charges for services, specific grants and
investment interest.
Investments
In the context of the Statement of Accounts, this term refers only to long-term investments
which are intended to be held for use on a continuing basis in the activities of the authority.
Where investments do not meet this criterion, they have been classified as current assets.
Leases
These can fall into two types:

Finance lease – a lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee; such leases are recognised on the balance
sheet by the lessee.

Operating lease – a lease other than a finance lease, which is not recognised on the
balance sheet by the lessee, but by the lessor.
The distinction between the two is the subject of an array of tests and is highly technical.
Liabilities
Those amounts which will become payable by the Council in the short or long term.
Matching
The matching concept says that expenditure and income transactions, including accruals,
are matched with one another so far as their relationship can be established, or justifiably
assumed, and dealt with in the period to which they relate.
Materiality
Financial statements often cannot be precisely accurate but this need not detract from their
ability to be fairly stated. Within certain limits, a tolerance is permitted in measurement and
disclosure of financial statement items. The concept of materiality determines the
acceptability of the degree of this tolerance.
Movement In Reserves Statement (MIRS)
This statement reconciles the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure account for the
year with the authority’s budget requirement, which is governed by statute and differs in
certain key respects from accounting conventions.
Movement on the HRA Statement
Similar to the General Fund’s Movement In Reserves Statement, this reconciles the HRA
Income and Expenditure account for the year with the surplus or deficit for the year on the
HRA Balance, calculated in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989.
National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)
A national rate, often familiarly called “business rates” and can also be referred to as NDR.
Business Rates are levied on businesses by the Government and collected by local
authorities. The total proceeds are shared between central government and local
authorities as per the Retained Business Rate Scheme.
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Net Book Value (NBV)
The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost
or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation.
Net expenditure
Gross expenditure for a service, less (“net of”) directly related income.
Net Realisable Value (NRV)
The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of
non-operational assets) less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset.
Past Service Cost
Past service costs arise from decisions taken in the current year but whose financial effect
is derived from service earned in earlier years.
Precept
A levy on the Collection Fund by another public body (a precepting authority), requiring the
billing authority to collect the required income from local taxpayers on their behalf.
Prior year adjustments
Those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting
policies or from the correction of fundamental errors. They do not include normal recurring
corrections or adjustments of accounting estimates made in prior years.
Property, Plant and Equipment
This classification covers all assets with physical substance (tangible assets) that are
expected to be used by the Authority for more than one year. The item must have physical
substance (e.g. land, buildings, vehicles) and must be held by the Authority for the
provision of goods and services, for rental to others (as part of a service), or for
administrative purposes. If the item is held purely to earn rentals or capital appreciation, it
will be treated as ‘Investment Property’; if it is held to be sold (within the next twelve
months), it will be accounted for as a ‘Held for Sale’ asset.
Provisions
A provision is required to be made and disclosed in the accounts for any liability or loss
which, due to an event which has already occurred, is certain or likely to be incurred, but
where there is uncertainty as to the amounts or the dates on which they will arise. As a
result, it is often a matter of interpretation and careful judgement whether such an
uncertainty should be disclosed (and accounted for) as a provision or simply included by
way of a note as a contingent liability.

Public Works Loans Board (PWLB)
A statutory body operating within the United Kingdom Debt Management Office, which is
an Executive Agency of HM Treasury. Its function is to lend money from the National Loans
Fund to local authorities and other prescribed bodies, primarily for capital projects, and to
collect the repayments.
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Rateable Value (RV)
The value of a business, assessed by the Valuation Office Agency, on which business
rates are payable.
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)
Expenditure which legislation classifies as capital but which does not result in the creation
of a fixed asset belonging to the authority. An example is where the Council pays a grant to
a private householder for adaptations required by a disabled person; the work done is
capital in nature, but the resultant asset does not appear on the Council’s balance sheet
because it belongs to the private freeholder. These were previously defined as deferred
charges.
Related Party Transactions
The transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to or for a related
party irrespective of whether a charge is made.
Reserves
Funds set aside to meet future expenditure which fall outside the definition of provisions.
Reserves can be for general contingencies and to provide working balances, or earmarked
for specific future expenditure.
Note that certain reserves are statutory in nature – for example, the Council is obliged to
hold a Revaluation Reserve and its use is closely prescribed under the IFRS as interpreted
for use in local government. The Council has no discretion in the existence or use of such
reserves.
Revenue expenditure and income
The regular day to day running costs an authority incurs in providing services, as distinct
from capital expenditure (under the Local Government & Housing Act 1989, all expenditure
is regarded as revenue unless specifically classified as capital). In a general sense,
revenue expenditure (and income) arises from recurring items such as running services.
Section 151 Officer (CFO)
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires the Council to appoint an officer
responsible for the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs. The Strategic
Director (Internal Services) is the Council’s Section 151 Officer.
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment
Formerly known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), this is the minimum amount
that must be charged to a local authority’s revenue account each year and set aside to
provide for debt repayment or other credit liabilities.
Substance over form
The concept of substance over form requires that transactions and other events are
accounted for and represented in financial statements with regard to their economic
substance and financial reality rather than just their legal form.
Useful Life
The period over which the local authority expects to derive benefits from the use of a fixed
asset and over which, typically, it will be depreciated.
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FURTHER INFORMATION
For Further Information
These accounting statements have been prepared for the benefit of all those interested in
the Borough’s activities, particularly Council Taxpayers and Business Ratepayers, and
other parties who are associated directly or indirectly with the Council.
Further details on the general activities of the Council can be obtained from:
Communications Manager
Dartford Borough Council,
Civic Centre,
Home Gardens,
Dartford,
Kent
DA1 1DR
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AUDIT BOARD
21 OCTOBER 2020
INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (OCTOBER 2020)
1. Summary
1.1.

The report provides Members of the Audit Board with an update on Internal
Audit outcomes and activity since our last report in July 2020. It also presents
performance information and progress on the procurement of an External
Quality Assessment.

2. RECOMMENDATION
2.1

That Members note the Internal Audit Progress Report and updates (attached
as Appendix A to the report).

2.2

That Members approve the addition of a Home Working Review to the Plan.

3. Background and Discussion
3.1

Reporting the outcomes of the internal audit service is a requirement
under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). As
those charged with governance, the Audit Board is required through its
Terms of Reference to provide oversight of the internal audit service.

3.2

The Audit Board receives regular updates from the Internal Audit
partnership. Principally the focus on these updates is around the
progress made to deliver the audit plan, but also to track progress of
audit actions, and to consider key insights from internal audit activities.

3.3

The report also provides quality and performance information to allow
Members oversight of the Internal Audit Service.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan
4.1

Not directly applicable although all Internal Audit work is designed to
support the achievement of the Council’s objectives.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk
assessments
Financial Implications

The Internal Audit Partnership is responsible for
the delivery of the audit service. Delivery of the
Audit Plan is already approved within the
Council’s budget and so needs no new funding.

Legal Implications

Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015, the Council must ensure an effective
system of Internal Audit.
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Staffing Implications

Use of Internal Audit resources are set out in
the report (Appendix A).

Administrative
Implications

There are no direct administrative implications
associated with this decision.

Risk Assessment

The audit plan is risk-based. As such, the
projects outlined in the plan have been
prioritised based on the outcomes of each risk
assessment.

6. Details of Exempt Information Category
6.1

Not applicable

7. Appendices
Appendix A – Internal Audit Update Report (October 2020)
BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted

Date

Report Author

Previous Audit Board reports
as published on the Council
website.

22/07/20

Audit Manager
01322 343004

Section &
Directorate
Internal Audit
Partnership
&

Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (March 2017)

Strategic Director
(Internal Services)

Exempt
Information
Category
N/A
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Introduction
1) Internal Audit is an independent and objective assurance and consulting function. The shared team
undertake reviews over the course of the year that are designed to evaluate and improve the Council’s
internal control, governance and risk management processes.
2) This report provides Members with an update on internal audit activity, and, crucially, its outcomes,
against the Plan that was agreed by Members of this Board in July 2020.
3) It also seeks to enable the Board to discharge its responsibility to provide oversight of the Internal
Audit Partnership through performance information and an update on the forthcoming External
Quality Assessment (EQA).

Internal Audit Progress Update
4) Members will recall that due to the Coronavirus pandemic, both the completion of the 2019/20 Plan
and the start of the 2020/21 Plan were delayed. The 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan was approved by
Members in July 2020; at the same meeting the Annual report for 2019/20 was presented but at that
stage, some audits for the previous financial year had not yet been finalised.
Internal Audit Plan 2019/20
5) Since the Annual Report, we have completed the 2019/20 Plan and have issued the remaining three
audit reports (Animal Welfare, Garage Management and HR Policy Compliance). All three of these
audits received ‘Substantial’ assurance (summaries are provided in Annex B) and therefore they do
not have any detrimental impact on my conclusion in the 2019/20 Annual Report that overall systems
of control are sound.
Internal Audit Plan 2020/21
6) Members will recall that the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan was divided into two; Plan A contains the
audits that are priorities for completion and Plan B contains additional audits that will be completed
if resources allow.
7) An overall summary of Internal Audit progress against both Plans as at 28 September 2020 is shown
below in Annex A. We have made steady progress against Plan A with three pieces of work fully
completed and a further four in fieldwork. Nonetheless, it will be important to maintain momentum
and work as efficiently as possible in the remaining months of the year in order to complete the Plan.
This is a key focus of the Internal Audit Management Team.
Amends to the 2020/21 Plan
8) Within the Audit Plan report presented in July, I did note that the Audit Plan may have to be continually
revised throughout the year as needs and risks would be likely to change. To date, we have made one
amendment to the Internal Audit Plan. For expediency (to enable us to progress the work in a timely
manner), this has already been discussed with the Chair outside of the Audit Board meeting. The
amendment is an additional advisory piece of work to review whether outcomes, outputs and
productivity across the Council have been impacted by the change to home-based (rather than office-
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based) working arrangements. In my view, this is a key piece of work to ensure that the Council is able
to offer high standards of service to its residents and the budget for the work is available from the
existing pot of advisory days. Members are asked to retrospectively approve this amendment to the
Plan.
Internal Audit Outcomes
9) The table below shows all final audit reports issued and the outcomes since the last report to Audit
Board in July 2020. Summaries of these audits can be found in Annex B. Definitions of our assurance
ratings are provided in Annex E.
Audit Year
2019/20
2019/20
2019/20
2020/21
2020/21
2020/21

Audit
HR Policy Compliance
Garage Management
Animal Welfare
Cyber Security
Housing Allocations
Counter Fraud Policy Review

Assurance Level
Substantial
Substantial
Substantial
Limited
Substantial
NA

10) In addition to the substantive pieces of work as set out above, Internal Audit has also provided advice
and consultancy services on an ad hoc basis. To date, this work has been largely Covid-related; we
have completed post-payment assurance checks on 35 Business Support Grants (across Dartford and
Sevenoaks) and we have provided advice on processes relating to distribution of additional grant
funds.
11) Four of the five assurance pieces of work received ‘Substantial’ assurance which is a strong set of
results. For these four audits, we found that for the majority of areas reviewed, robust controls were
in place for the core process which we found to be working effectively in practice. Where we identified
areas for improvement, these were generally for controls at the end of a process, relating to approvals,
follow ups and appeals. These controls are of course important for managers to assure themselves
that any exceptions are identified and rectified.
12) We have issued one ‘Limited’ assurance audit report relating to Cyber Security. This is the first time
that an audit of cyber security has been undertaken. Clearly, this is a critical area for any organisation
and therefore is inherently high risk. The audit report contained one high priority recommendation
which related to testing of Disaster Recovery Plans alongside some medium priority
recommendations. Members can be assured that senior managers have responded positively to the
audit findings and that a strong action plan is in place which is due to be implemented by December
2020. Internal Audit will follow up these actions until they are closed.
13) Internal Audit did not identify any high risk findings from the ad hoc advisory work that require
Members’ attention.
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Follow Up
14) Internal Audit follows up all Critical, High, Medium and Low priority findings as they fall due. Annex C
shows the results of our follow up process to date this financial year. There are currently no Critical or
High priority issues that are due and outstanding. We have agreed to defer three actions this quarter
but these are all ‘Low’ priority actions and therefore we do not consider non-implementation to
represent a significant risk.
15) We have however closed one non-implemented Medium priority action as ‘risk accepted’. This is the
action raised in our 2018/19 Food Safety audit to reduce the backlog of new food premises
inspections. Progress had been made prior to March, but due to the impact of the pandemic (including
inability to undertake face to face inspections and large numbers of new food businesses registering),
the service accepts that it will need to operate with a backlog for some time yet.

Internal Audit Performance
16) Audit Board have an important role to play in monitoring the performance of Internal Audit, in order
to assure themselves that Internal Audit makes an effective contribution to governance and that
reliance can be placed on its conclusions.
Key Performance Indicators
17) To facilitate performance monitoring, a suite of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) exist and the results
for August 2020 (the most recent available at the time of writing) are shown at Annex D. Our key
challenge at the moment is delivering audits to budget (as well as time and quality) which we are
addressing through analysis to understand where and why budget over-runs occur and therefore how
we may reduce these.
18) Currently, no figure for compliance with PSIAS is shown. This is because I am currently working through
a full self-assessment in preparation for the External Quality Assessment (EQA).
External Quality Assessment (EQA)
19) The External Quality Assessment (EQA) is an important mechanism for Members to receive assurance
on the effectiveness of Internal Audit. At the July Audit Board, Members were advised of the plan to
procure an EQA in the form of a validated self-assessment in the current financial year. Since that
time, under the sponsorship of the s151 Officers at DBC and SDC, we have requested, received and
evaluated quotes and we have appointed the Institute of Internal Auditors (the IIA) to undertake this
work. The review is provisionally booked for January 2021.
20) The Institute of Internal Auditors are the standard setters for the profession and are therefore very
well qualified to undertake this work. The Lead Reviewer, John Chesshire, is a Chartered Fellow of the
IIA and has over 20 years’ internal audit, governance and risk management experience. Quality
Assurance will be undertaken by Liz Sandwith, the IIA’s Chief Professional Practices Advisor.
21) John Chesshire undertakes a lot of training for the IIA and as such, in 2013 and 2015, I attended
training courses as part of my own professional qualification that he delivered. John was also my
nominated tutor for one module of my (distance learning) qualification. I do not believe that this
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constitutes a conflict of interest but nonetheless wished to bring this to Members’ attention in the
interests of transparency.
Conclusion
22) The outcomes of Internal Audit work have been largely positive and where findings have highlighted
potential weaknesses, officers have put plans in place to address.
23) Clearly, these are volatile times for Councils up and down the country and it will therefore be
important over the coming months that risks are continually acknowledged and assessed and that
Internal Audit is able to respond in a dynamic way to the situation as it evolves.
24) We would like to thank Officers, Managers and Members for their ongoing support and co-operation
to enable us to deliver our work, particularly in the light of the ongoing pandemic.
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Annex A – Internal Audit Plan 2020/21
Plan A
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
Plan B
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

Audit Title
Cyber Security
Rent Collection / Rent Arrears (Current
Tenants)
Waste Collection Contract
Street Cleansing
Reactive Repairs
New Build Capital Programme
Budget Setting
Feeder Systems & Journals
Fraud Risk Review
Planning: Administration & Fees
Housing Benefits
Housing Allocations Policy
Corporate Project Governance
Planning Enforcement
Local Air Quality Management
Contract Management
Dartford Town Against Crime
Service Desk (IT Support)
Facilities Management
Counter Fraud Policy Work
Covid-19: Lessons Learned
Covid-19: Recovery
(Plan Addition) – Home Working Review
Audit Title
Revenues and Benefits Shared Service
Performance
Recruitment Process
Homelessness Prevention
Emergency Planning
Environmental Enforcement
Employee Induction
Project Management Framework
CRM System
Markets
Shared Service Value for Money Review
KCC Funding Agreement – Fraud & Error

Type
Compliance

Current Status
Complete

Finance
Risk Based
Risk Based
Risk Based
Finance
Finance
Finance
Governance
Risk Based
Finance
Risk Based
Governance
Risk Based
Risk Based
Risk Based
Risk Based
Risk Based
Risk Based
Governance

Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
Planning – draft brief issued
Fieldwork
Planning
Not yet started
Not yet started
Complete
Not yet started
Fieldwork
Planning – draft brief issued
Planning
Fieldwork
Not yet started
Not yet started
Complete – subject to Audit
Board approval
Consultancy Not yet started
Consultancy Not yet started
Consultancy Fieldwork
Type
Current Status
Finance
Risk Based
Consultancy
Risk Based
Risk Based
Advisory
Governance
Risk Based
Risk Based
Consultancy
Risk Based

Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
Not yet started
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Annex B - Summaries of Audit Reports issued
HR Policy Compliance 2019/20 (Substantial Assurance) – Issued in August 2020
This audit review examined the arrangements in place for review, updating and compliance with the
following Human Resources policies:
Disciplinary Policy and Grievance Policy
We confirmed that both policies were prepared by the HR Manager who is an experienced HR
professional and holds the Chartered Institute of Personnel Development (CIPD) qualification.
The Advisory Conciliation and Arbitration Services (ACAS) provides guidance for preparing HR policies
on grievance policies and disciplinary policies. Fieldwork confirmed the ACAS guidance had been
incorporated into the policies.
Audit testing of specific grievance and disciplinary cases confirmed these cases had been conducted
in accordance with the Council’s HR policies.
There are arrangements in place for the draft policies to be commented upon by the Council’s two
Strategic Directors and by the Head of Legal Services. There was e-mail correspondence on file which
confirmed both the policies had been seen by the Strategic Director (Internal Services) and the HR
Manager gave verbal assurance that all of SMT had reviewed both policies. However, there was no
evidence to confirm that the Strategic Director (External Services) and the Managing Director had
reviewed either policy or that the Head of Legal Services had reviewed the Grievance policy. Internal
approval routes required clarification.
It was also noted that there was a significant delay between the draft policies being prepared and
the policies being finalised. The draft Grievance and Disciplinary policies were presented to the
Managing Director in January 2019. The Disciplinary Policy was not finalised until June 2019. The
Grievance Policy was finalised in October 2019. The HR Manager provided explanations for why the
delays took place and Audit accept the reasons were one off unavoidable situations.
A summary of actions raised is given below:
Priority Ranking
Critical
High
Medium
Low
Advisory
Total

Number of audit
actions
0
0
1
0
0
1

Audit Actions
Agreed
NA
NA
1
NA
NA
1

Risks accepted by
management
NA
NA
0
NA
NA
0
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Garage Management 2019/20 (Substantial Assurance) – Issued in August 2020
We conclude based on our audit work that the controls in place over garage management provide
SUBSTANTIAL assurance.
The Council owns 1,301 garages, and in 2019-20, approximately £811,714 was collected in rental
income. Garage rent agreements require monthly payment by direct debit only, therefore a collection
rate of 99.5% was achieved by 31 March 2019.
We found the management of garages operates across three departments: Customer Services,
Housing Finance, and Housing Maintenance. Effective communication and information sharing exists
between departments, although our testing identified opportunities to enhance existing
arrangements.
There is no planned maintenance programme in place for the garages and all repairs are reactive.
Annual repair expenditure on the garages during 2019-20 was approximately £88,409. We found
effective arrangements in place to notify Housing Maintenance of a repair and our testing confirmed
Housing independently check the quality of work undertaken by the contractor before payment is
authorised.
At the time of our fieldwork, occupancy rates for the Council’s garages was approximately 80%,
meaning 270 garages were void. This includes garages that are beyond repair (22) and those due to
be demolished (12). We calculated additional rental income in the region of £150,000 could be
generated annually if the current void garages were rented out. We understand a significant capital
investment in the garage stock would be required to increase public demand for these garages. We
have however recommended that the Council reviews its overall strategy to manage these assets.
Overall, the arrangements for the management of the garage stock are robust, and no significant
control weaknesses were identified through our work.
A summary of our findings and the actions raised in the review are set out below:
Priority Ranking
Medium
Low
Advisory
Total

Number of audit
actions
2
1
2
5

Recommendation
Agreed
2
1
2
5

Risk accepted by
management
0
0
0
0
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Animal Welfare 2019/20 (Substantial Assurance) – Issued in September 2020
We conclude based on our audit work that the controls in place over the management and
maintenance of Animal Licensing provide SUBSTANTIAL assurance.
In October 2018 the Government introduced a new licensing regime to control the following
licensable activities:






Selling animals as pets
Providing or arranging for the provision of boarding for cats or dogs
Hiring out horses
Breeding dogs
Keeping or training animals for exhibition

Since October 2019 the Environmental Health Partnership has taken over responsibility for issuing
all animal licences. There are currently 70 licenced establishments which require monitoring,
inspecting and renewing.
Our review found there is an experienced team consisting of inspectors and support officers who
are responsible for Animal Welfare. Officer roles are clearly defined between support and
operational.
We found processes in place to deal with new licence applications, inspections and renewals.
Records detailing existing licence holders are managed on Uniform and Idox, and monitored using
spreadsheets.
Inspections are carried out in a timely manner by experienced, qualified officers, with adequate
documentation to support applications. However, we identified improvements to enhance existing
controls over the monitoring and follow up of improvement notices.
There is a system in place for recording and managing complaints. We noted that a number of
concerns have been raised by members of the public (nationally as well as locally) regarding the
illegal breeding and selling of animals. This is an area where the service takes proactive action to
identify establishments operating without a licence, resource permitting.
A summary of the actions raised in the review are set out below:
Priority Ranking
Medium
Low
Advisory
Total

Number of audit
actions
2
1
0
3

Actions agreed
2
1
0
3

Risk accepted by
management
0
0
0
0
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Cyber Security 2020/21 (Limited Assurance) – Issued in September 2020
We conclude based on our audit work that the controls in place to manage and mitigate risks
associated with Cyber Security provide Limited assurance.
Our review confirmed that:



The firewall at the boundary of the network had the latest version of software running;
Default usernames had been removed and default passwords on the boundary firewall had
been changed to strong passwords;
 Inspection of the latest IT Health Check confirmed that the network configuration reflected
the common rule set of security requirements;
 The vulnerabilities identified in the latest IT Health Check had been tracked, managed and
resolved; and
 Anti-malware solution was installed on devices (workstations and servers) with regular scans.
However, we identified that:







Dartford Council has not tested any disaster recovery scenario in the last three years.
Dartford Council rely on one single firewall. This puts the corporate network at risk of a single
point of failure.
There was a lack of prior documentation (e.g. Backup, Change Management, User Access
Management and Disaster Recovery plan) and that this documentation was created during
this audit.
The change management process was not formalised and no formal approval stage at any
step of the process was evident.
No restoration testing of the backups had been performed, which would confirm the integrity
of the backup and recovery processes.

A summary of the actions raised in the review are set out below:
Priority Ranking

Number of audit actions

Actions agreed

High
Medium
Low
Total

1
3
3
7

1
3
3
7

Risk accepted by
management
0
0
0
0
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Housing Allocations 2020/21 (Substantial Assurance) – Issued in September 2020
We conclude based on our audit work that the controls in place to comply with the Housing
Allocations Policy provide SUBSTANTIAL assurance.
Our review found the arrangements in place to develop the Council’s Housing Allocations Policy in
accordance with legislation are sound. The Policy provides the framework by which applicants are
prioritised for housing and our testing confirmed applications are appropriately assessed. The
process to set up auto-bidding is adequate, and although our testing found that notes are not
consistently applied in practice, the service has already taken action to address this.
We found shortlists are ranked by band and priority date which are automatically managed by the
system. Our testing confirmed the shortlists operate accurately in practice and that applicants are
verified at the time of offer.
A summary of the actions raised in the review are set out below:
Priority Ranking

Number of audit actions

Actions agreed

Low
Advisory
Total

1
2
3

1
2
3

Risk accepted by
management
0
0
0

Counter Fraud Policy Review – Subject to Member Approval
The Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy and the Whistleblowing Policy have been substantively
reviewed by Internal Audit and are submitted for Members’ approval as a separate agenda item.

Annex C -Audit actions

Project

Report Issue
Date & Rating

Markets Income 2016/17

Lewis Kirnon

April 2017
Substantial

Environmental Health
(Food Safety) 2018/19

Annie Sargent

Members’ Expenses
2018/19

Tim Sams

December
2018
Substantial
December
2018
Substantial

Agreed actions Actions due
in Final Report in Q1 & Q2

Not yet
due

Closed in
Q1 & Q2

Agreed
Deferrals this
Qtr.

Total
actions
complete
to date

Total actions
outstanding1

1

1 (M)

0

1 (M)

0

1

0

3

1 (M)

0

1 (M)

0

2

0

1

1 (M)

0

1 (M)

0

1

0

Marie KellyStone / IT
Services

June 2019
Substantial

5

0

1 (M)

0

0

4

1

Mark Stoneham

October 2019
Substantial

2

1 (L)

1 (M)

0

1 (L)

0

2

Corporate Complaints
2019/20

Marie KellyStone

March 2020
Substantial

3

0

1 (M)

0

0

2

1

Accounts Receivable
2019/20

Tim Sams

April 2020
Full

3

2 (L)

1 (L)

0

2 (L)

0

3

Post GDPR Review
2018/19
Building Control 2018/19

1

Projects with 0 actions outstanding will be removed from future reports and be closed
*Actions due for implementation at the end of September, which is after the report deadline. A verbal update will be provided at the meeting.
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We raise recommendations to assist management in addressing control failings, or to suggest service improvements following the results of
our testing. In accordance with our follow-up process all audit actions are tracked and followed up when they fall due. The table below shows
the current actions, and progress against implementation:

Mark Salisbury

July 2020
Full

1

0

1 (L)

0

0

0

1

HR Policy Compliance
(Grievance & Disciplinary)
2019/20

Philippa Curtis

August 2020
Substantial

1

1 (M)*

0

0

0

0

1

Paul Koster

August 2020
Substantial

3

1 (M), 1
(L)*

1 (M)

0

0

0

3

3

0

2 (M), 1
(L)

0

0

0

3

7

0

1 (H),
3(M), 3
(L)

0

0

0

7

1

1 (L)

0

1 (L)

0

1

0

34

10

16

4

3

11

22

Garage Management
2019/20
Animal Welfare (shared
review) 2019/20

Annie Sargent

Cyber Security 2019/20

Sarah Martin

Housing Allocations
2020/21

Toni Carter

September
2020
Substantial
September
2020
Limited
September
2020
Substantial
TOTAL
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Agreed Deferrals

Project

Action (including priority)

Building Control
2018/19

Reconciliation between
Uniform and Cedar (Low)

Original
agreed date

Revised
date

No. of
times
deferred

Reason for deferral

30/3/20

31/08/20 This work has been started but on further investigation, a new
31/10/20 SQL report needs to be built – this has been requested from IT.

2

Review and refresh the
guidance available to
officers on the intranet
(Low)

30/9/20

31/3/21

The action has been deferred until a new Finance Assistant (Debt
Recovery) has been recruited.

1

Accounts
Receivable
2019/20

Liaise with relevant service
areas for timely set up of new
debtors (Low)

31/7/20
30/9/20

30/11/20

This action has started but not completed with regard to all relevant
departments.

2

Closed Action
Project

Action (including priority)

Original agreed date

Action closed

Times
deferred

Environmental Health (Food
Safety) 2018/19

Address the outstanding backlog of new premise food
inspections. (Medium)

31/01/19, 01/04/19,
31/08/19, 31/04/20

22/9/20

4

Update on progress
Audit Comments: Risk accepted by management, therefore this action is closed.

Manager Update: Environmental Health were making progress on reducing the backlog but it was not possible to continue with inspections during
lockdown plus, significant numbers of new businesses have started up in recent months, adding to the backlog. On top of this, Environmental Health
have considerable extra work as a direct result of the pandemic. Whilst the public health emergency remains ongoing it is simply not possible to say
when this can be effectively addressed. I think we have to take our lead from the Food Standards Agency and they have accepted that the pandemic has
had significant impact on Environmental Health’s ability to undertake inspections and on businesses ability to respond to inspections.
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This table shows the three audit actions that have been deferred. Officers have been asked to provide an update on progress, and the reason
for the deferral:

Annex D – Key Performance Indicators for Q2 Progress (July and August)
Finance: Associated performance indicators

Q2 (Jul – Aug)

F1: Projects Completed within budgeted days
Indicator measures any variance between the days agreed
on the final brief vs. the actual time coded on Teammate
TEC

0/3
0%

F2: Chargeable days (time)
Indicator measures the actual chargeable activities against
the assumptions made in the audit plan

Q2 Average
67%

F3: PSIAS conformance

Client satisfaction: Associated performance indicators

Q2 (Jul – Aug)

I2: Time taken between the issue of the FEEDBACK and DRAFT
report
Indicator measures the currency of our audit finding and
effective engagement between Auditors and Clients

Indicator measures the effectiveness of our process to finalise
audit reports and issue the report in a timely manner

4/4

Learning & Development: Associated performance indicators
L1: Audit actions fully implemented within agreed timescales
Indicator measures the successful implementation of audit
actions and the effectiveness of our follow-up process

10 days
(average)

15 days
(average)

14.8 days
(average)
Q2 (Jul – Aug)
DBC 0/2
0%
SDC 1/1
100%

L2: Training & development days
5/6
83%

Indicator measures our investment and time spent on training
and development against the assumptions made in the audit
plan

13.24 Days
(of 58 days)

Agenda Item 10

100%

C2: Respondents agreement with the audit actions
Indicator measures Client agreement to the audit findings
and resulting actions from our audit work

Indicator measures the effectiveness of our project planning
and time taken to prepare the work programme

Q2 (Jul – Aug)
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TBC

Indicator measures overall satisfaction levels, taking into
account the audit approach, conduct, findings and
competence of the auditor

I1: Time taken between issue of the DRAFT and FINAL Audit
Brief

I3: Time taken between issue of the DRAFT report and FINAL
report

Indicator measures effectiveness of the Quality Assurance &
Improvement Programme (QIAP) to ensure compliance with
professional Standards

C1: Overall client satisfaction with the audit experience

Internal processes: Associated performance indicators
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Annex E - Definitions of Assurance ratings:
OPINION

DEFINITIONS

Full Assurance

A sound framework of control is in place that meets Council or
service objectives. All expected controls tested are in place
and are operating effectively.

(no High or Medium
priority actions)

Substantial Assurance

A review with this level of assurance will generally have no
actions, or very few LOW priority actions. Agreed actions will
be followed up as they fall due.

There is generally a sound framework of control in place that
meets Council or service objectives. However, there are
isolated weaknesses in design of controls, or inconsistent
application of controls, which puts the achievement of a limited
number of objectives at risk.

(no High priority actions)
A review of this level of assurance may raise a number of
MEDIUM priority actions. Agreed actions will be followed up as
they fall due.
There are weaknesses within the framework of control or
evidence of non-compliance with Council procedures or good
practice, which puts the achievement of the Council’s or
service objectives in many of the areas reviewed at risk.
Limited Assurance

A review with this level of assurance will raise one or more
HIGH priority actions. Actions with a high priority should be
acted on as soon as practical and will be followed up as soon
as they fall due.
Key controls are absent from the framework of control. There
are fundamental weaknesses identified with both the design
and operation of the system under review. As a result, it is
unlikely that Council or service objectives will be achieved.

No Assurance

A review of this level may include a number of HIGH or
CRITICAL priority actions. Actions of a critical level will be
reported as soon as they are identified and escalated to the
relevant Senior Manager. Actions to address the findings will
be followed up as soon as they fall due.
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AUDIT BOARD
21 OCTOBER 2020
COUNTER FRAUD POLICIES
1. Summary
1.1.

This report presents the updated Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy and
the Whistleblowing Policy for Members’ approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION
2.1

That Members approve the Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy (attached
as Appendix A to the report).

2.2

That Members approve the Whistleblowing Policy (attached as Appendix B to
the report).

2.3

That Members agree that minor amends to both policies (job titles and contact
details) may be made without further Audit Board approval.

2.4

That Members note the proposals to promote fraud awareness during
International Fraud Awareness Week.

3. Background and Discussion
3.1

The Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy and the Whistleblowing
Policy are both important components in the Council’s fight against
fraud. The Strategy is designed as a high level framework which sets out
the Council’s approach towards fraud (prevention, detection and
investigation) including the desired culture. The Whistleblowing Policy is
a key part of the control framework to detect fraud. It is intended to be
comprehensive, encouraging staff (and other relevant individuals) to
raise concerns whilst providing them with all the information that they
need to do so.

3.2

Both policies were last approved by this Board in 2017. They have now
been extensively refreshed and updated in line with best practice.
Specifically, they have been reviewed against the following:






3.3

CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risks of Fraud and
Corruption
NAO assessment criteria for Whistleblowing Policies
Department for Business Innovation and Skills Whistleblowing
Guidance for Employers
The Whistleblowing Commission Code of Practice.
BIS Standard for Whistleblowing

Whilst the main components of the original policies have been retained,
the policies have been strengthened and expanded in key areas
including roles and accountabilities throughout the organisation and
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cultural aspects such as developing a strong counter fraud ethos where
staff feel able to speak up if they suspect wrongdoing.
3.4

International Fraud Awareness Week runs from 15 – 21 November.
During this week, we are planning to run a ‘light touch’ fraud awareness
campaign for both staff and public. The messaging will highlight some
key fraud risks and the Council’s response to fraud. It will also provide
further information on what staff should do if they suspect fraud. The
campaign will include social media messaging, communications to staff
and information on the internal website for staff. We will also use this
opportunity to launch the revised policies to staff.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan
4.1

NA

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk
assessments
Financial Implications

None

Legal Implications

Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015, the Council must ensure an effective
system of Internal Audit.

Staffing Implications

None

Administrative
Implications

None

Risk Assessment

Both policies are designed to reduce the
Council’s exposure to fraud or other
malpractice.

6. Details of Exempt Information Category
6.1

Not applicable

7. Appendices
Appendix A – Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy
Appendix B – Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure
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BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted

CIPFA Code of Practice on
Managing the Risks of
Fraud and Corruption
NAO assessment criteria
for Whistleblowing Policies
Department for Business
Innovation and Skills
Whistleblowing Guidance
for Employers
The Whistleblowing
Commission Code of
Practice.
BIS Standard for
Whistleblowing

Date

Section &
Directorate

Report Author
Audit Manager
01322 343004

Internal Audit
Partnership
&
Strategic Director
(Internal Services)

Exempt
Information
Category
N/A
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Francesca Chivers,
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Date

22 Sept 2020

September 2022
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1.

POLICY STATEMENT

1.1.

The Council will not tolerate fraud and corruption in the administration of its
responsibilities, whether from inside or outside the Council. The Council’s
expectation of propriety and accountability is that Members and Officers at all levels
will lead by example in ensuring adherence to legal requirements, rules, procedures
and practices. The Council also expects that individuals and organisations (e.g.
suppliers, contractors, service providers) with whom it comes into contact will act
towards the Council with integrity and without thought or actions involving fraud and
corruption.

1.2.

The purpose of this Counter-Fraud and Corruption Strategy is to set out the Council’s
commitment towards the prevention of fraud and corruption (including bribery) from
both internal and external sources. It is primarily designed to improve resilience to
fraud and to create a strong counter-fraud culture which highlights the Council’s zerotolerance approach to all stakeholders. Specifically it aims to:
 Encourage prevention,
 Promote detection; and
 Identify a clear pathway for reporting and investigation.

1.3.

The Council’s Counter-Fraud and Corruption Strategy is based on a series of
elements, which when in place will contribute towards a strong anti-fraud culture and
practice across the Council. The Council also supports the Fighting Fraud and
Corruption Locally Strategy.

1.4.

This document has been made publicly available via the Council’s website and
intranet and all staff have been informed of its existence and revision.

2.

DEFINITIONS

2.1.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines fraud as
“any intentional false representation, including failure to declare information or abuse
of position that is carried out to make gain, cause loss or expose another to the risk
of loss.”

2.2.

Under the Fraud Act 2006, a person can be guilty of fraud by:
 False representation - for example providing false information when applying
for Single Person Discount, or staff falsely claiming to be sick
 Failure to disclose information – for example failing to disclose a financial
interest in a company the Council is trading with
 Abuse of position – for example ordering goods through Council accounts for
personal use

September 2020
2
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2.3.

Transparency International UK defines corruption as ‘the abuse of entrusted power
for personal gain’.

2.4.

This includes the offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement or
reward, which may influence the action of any person to act inappropriately.

2.5.

In the UK, the Bribery Act 2010 creates the following offences:





Offering, promising or giving a bribe
Requesting, agreeing to receive or accepting a bribe
Bribing a foreign official to obtain or retain business
Failure by an organisation to prevent bribery by those acting on its behalf

3.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

3.1.

The Council expects and requires all its officers, members, contractors and all who
associate with the Council to act with propriety and accountability. Specific
responsibilities are set out below:

STAKEHOLDER

RESPONSIBILITIES

Strategic
Director –
Internal Services

The Strategic Director – Internal Services has overall responsibility for:
 developing, maintaining and implementing this strategy
 maintaining adequate and effective internal control arrangements
 ensuring that all suspected irregularities are reported to the Audit
Manager and the Strategic Director (Internal Services) who will
advise on the most appropriate course of action.

Strategic
Directors and
Service
Managers

All Strategic Directors and Service Managers are responsible for:
 embedding a strong counter-fraud culture with an ethos of honesty
and integrity
 embedding an open and transparent culture where staff feel
empowered to report suspicions of wrong-doing
 maintaining the internal control system including those designed for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other illegal acts
 ensuring that all suspected irregularities or financial improprieties are
reported to the Audit Manager and Strategic Director (Internal
Services)
 instigating the Council’s disciplinary procedures where the outcome
of an Internal Audit or similar investigation indicates improper
behaviour
 maintaining and regularly reviewing a service register of staff
disclosures of financial or commercial interests in the Council’s
functions.

Counter Fraud
Manager

The Counter Fraud Manager is responsible for:
 proactively using appropriate tools and techniques and working with
other relevant agencies to identify potential fraud
September 2020
3
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investigating and reporting on external cases of alleged or potential
fraud (primarily Revenues and Benefits)
 promoting counter fraud awareness within the organisation
Audit Manager
The Audit Manager is responsible for:
 reviewing and updating the Counter Fraud and Corruption strategy
on behalf of the Strategic Director (Internal Services)
 maintaining the Council’s Whistleblowing policy and arrangements
 investigating and reporting of internal cases of alleged or potential
fraud
 promoting counter fraud awareness within the organisation
 ensuring that fraud risks are considered as part of the annual audit
planning process and during the course of individual internal audits
Money
The Council’s Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO) is responsible
Laundering
for disclosing all known or suspected money laundering offences to the
Reporting Officer National Crime Agency. This role is filled by the Strategic Director (Internal
Services) (deputised by the Head of Finance).
Audit Board
Audit Board is responsible for monitoring the Council’s strategies and
policies and considering the effectiveness of the arrangements for
Whistleblowing and Counter-Fraud and Corruption procedures.
All Council
Officers &
Members

All Council Officers and Members are responsible for:
 Leading by example in ensuring adherence to legal requirements,
rules, procedures and practices
 Declaring all potential conflicts of interest that may affect their
independence within their role as Members or officers
 Acting with integrity and conducting their business in a forthright and
honest manner
 Paying regard to the requirements of the Bribery Act 2010 when
acting on behalf of the Council or doing business with the Council
 Familiarising themselves with the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy
 Reporting any suspicions of fraud or improper behaviour.

4.

CULTURE

4.1.

The Council is committed to a strong anti-fraud and corruption culture and has a zerotolerance approach towards fraud, bribery and corruption activity.

4.2.

The Council is determined that its ethos will be one of honesty and integrity. The
Council supports the Seven Principles of Public Life (the ‘Nolan Principles’) as set
out below:
 Selflessness – Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public
interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other benefits for
themselves, their family or their friends.
 Integrity – Holders of public office should not place themselves under any
financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might
seek to influence them in the performance of their official duties.
September 2020
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 Objectivity – In carrying out public business, including making public
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards
and benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit.
 Accountability – Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions
and actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is
appropriate to their office.
 Openness – Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all
the decisions and actions they take. They should give reasons for their
decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly
demands.
 Honesty – Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests
relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in
a way that protects the public interest.
 Leadership – Holders of public office should promote and support these
principles by leadership and example.
4.3.

To promote this culture all managers, supported by Council policies, are expected to
create and embed an environment in which employees feel they can raise concerns
without recrimination and are confident that all concerns will be thoroughly
investigated.

4.4.

Whistleblowing arrangements exist to enable concerns to be raised and for the
whistleblower to be protected.

5.

PREVENTION – FRAUD, BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION RISKS

5.1.

The Council and other Local Authorities face a range of risks regarding fraud, bribery
and corruption.

5.2.

Strategic Directors and Service Managers are expected to ensure that fraud, bribery
and corruption risks are considered as part of their risk management processes, both
in terms of identification and mitigation measures.

5.3.

The Internal Audit Team can support this process by providing advice and guidance
on risks and controls as requested and providing assurance on the effectiveness of
these controls in practice.

5.4.

Some key fraud, bribery and corruption risks that the Council faces are set out below
(this list is not exhaustive):
Member and Employee Fraud
 False representation or failure to disclose information in order to gain
employment at the Council
 Abuse of position in order to award a contract to a relative or friend without
declaring an interest
September 2020
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 Offering or accepting a bribe in order to ignore a liability or award a grant or
contract
 Offering or accepting a bribe in order to allow planning permission that does not
meet the agreed criteria
 Abuse of position to make payments to someone who is not entitled to receive
them
Contractor Fraud
 Charging for goods and services that have not been delivered or received
External
 False representation or failure to disclose information in order to gain social
housing
 False representation or failure to disclose information to obtain Council Tax or
Business Rates discounts or exemptions
 False representation or failure to disclose information in order to receive parking
permits
 Submission of false invoices or false changes to bank details for existing
suppliers
 Cybercrime, such as ransomware attacks
 Phishing, for example emails purporting to be from a senior officer requesting
a payment to be made
6.

PREVENTION – INTERNAL CONTROL

6.1.

The Council has a series of policies and codes which form part of the internal control
framework and a key part of the fight against fraud. These are communicated to all
employees and Councillors to ensure they are aware of activities that are permitted
and prohibited, including relevant actions that will be taken if requirements are
breached. Key relevant policies are detailed below:

Employees
 The Employee’s Handbook
 Code of Conduct
 Disciplinary Procedure
 Standing Orders on Declarations of Interest
 Financial Regulations
 Contract Standing Orders
 Local Taxation/Council Tax Support Fraud
and Compliance Strategy
 Whistleblowing Policy
6.2.

Members
 The Constitution
 Member Code of Conduct
 Gifts and Hospitality Protocol
 Standing Orders on Declarations of
Interest
 Financial Regulations
 Contract Procedure Rules.
 Whistleblowing Policy.

The Council recognises that a key preventative measure in the fight against fraud
and corruption is to take effective steps at the recruitment stage to establish, as far
as possible, the previous record of potential employees, in terms of their propriety
September 2020
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and integrity. In this regard temporary and contract employees should be treated in
the same manner as permanent employees.
6.3.

Employee recruitment must comply with HR Policy. In particular references will be
obtained regarding the honesty and integrity of all prospective employees prior to
commencing employment with either Council. Also where appropriate, a Disclosure
and Barring Services (DBS) check will be undertaken before commencement of
employment for certain roles.

7.

DETECTION AND INVESTIGATION

7.1.

The array of preventative measures, including internal control systems within the
Council, has been designed to deter fraud. Monitoring controls, if properly applied,
should facilitate the identification of any unusual activity.

7.2.

Managers should be alert to the possibility that unusual events or transactions could
be symptoms of fraud or attempted fraud. Fraud may also be highlighted as a result
of specific management checks or be brought to management’s attention by a third
party.

7.3.

All Officers and Members have a duty to report any allegations or suspicions of fraud,
bribery or corruption, as follows:

8.

External Fraud

8.1.

Suspicions about external fraud (Revenues and Benefits) should be reported to the
Counter Fraud Manager for investigation.

8.2.

An investigation will be carried out in accordance with the Sanctions and Prosecution
Policy.

9.

Internal Fraud

9.1.

Employees may report their suspicions to their line manager or Strategic Director, or
can utilise the arrangements set out in the Whistleblowing Policy, which exists to
provide further support and guidance to employees regarding raising concerns and
to provide protection to these employees.

9.2.

The line manager, Service Manager or Strategic Director who receives the allegation
(whether from a Councillor or a Council employee) must refer the matter to the
following people, to determine how the potential irregularity will be investigated:
 Strategic Director (Internal Services)
 Audit Manager

9.3.

If an investigation is required, an investigating officer will be appointed who will carry
out an investigation in line with the Council’s investigation processes. This
investigation will seek to confirm or refute the allegation of fraud, bribery and
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corruption but will also look to identify any improvements to prevent similar incidents
occurring.
9.4.

On conclusion of the investigation, a report will be presented to the Strategic Director
( Internal Services) for a decision on the next steps.

9.5.

Where a fraud has occurred, management must subsequently make any necessary
changes to systems and procedures to minimise the risk of similar frauds recurring.
The investigation may have identified where there has been a failure of supervision,
breakdown or an absence of control.

10.

SANCTIONS

10.1. The Council considers all fraudulent activity to be unacceptable and operates a ‘zero
tolerance’ approach to fraud. As such, on the conclusion of an investigation with
regard to both internal and external fraud it will consider applying the full range of
sanctions available including prosecution. Decisions on sanctions will take into
account relevant legislation and internal policies, the Code for Crown Prosecutors
and the aggravating and mitigating factors in the case. The Council will also consider
referral to the police.
10.2. Where the outcome of an investigation indicates improper behaviour by a Council
employee, this will be dealt with through the Disciplinary Policy. Where financial
impropriety is discovered or it appears that a criminal offence may have been
committed, the Council may also refer the matter to the police.
10.3. The Council will also pursue the repayment of any financial gain from individuals
involved in malpractice and wrongdoing.
11.

WORKING WITH OTHERS

11.1. In view of the rapid increase in fraud perpetrated against local authorities and benefits
agencies, including fraudsters having multiple identities and addresses, there is a
need to liaise and share information with other agencies and regulators in the fight
against fraud and corruption.
11.2. Arrangements are in place to develop and encourage the exchange of information
between other external agencies on national and local fraud and corruption activity,
to help both prevent and detect these activities.
11.3. This includes data sharing and matching using records from other public sector
bodies through the National Fraud Initiative and the Kent Intelligence Network. Other
bodies with whom the Council works includes the Police, the Department for Work
and Pensions, and the Kent Investigating Officers Group.
11.4. Whilst the ethos and required outcome of this Strategy is expected to remain
constant, the procedures and processes by which this is undertaken may alter over
time due to the changing nature of fraud, improvements in investigation techniques,
and alterations to legislation.
September 2020
8

Agenda Item 11

12.

Page 306

REPORTING

12.1. The Audit Board will receive reports on counter fraud activity and outcomes and are
responsible for approving and monitoring this strategy. These reports will be publicly
available on the Council’s website.
13.

TRAINING AND AWARENESS

13.1. The Council recognises that the continuing success of its Counter-Fraud and
Corruption Strategy and its general credibility will depend largely on the effectiveness
of awareness, training and responsiveness of employees throughout the
organisation.
13.2. This strategy will be available to all Members, officers and the public on the Council’s
internal and external website.
13.3. Counter fraud awareness will be promoted periodically throughout the organisation.
14.

STRATEGY REVIEW

14.1. This strategy will be reviewed and updated on a two-yearly basis, unless earlier
changes are required. All changes bar minor amends to job or policy titles will be
subject to approval and endorsed by the Audit Board.
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Background

1.1. Whistleblowing is defined by the Whistleblowing Commission’s Code of
Practice as “the raising of a concern, either within the workplace or externally,
about a danger, risk, malpractice or wrong-doing which affects others.”
1.2. The Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 gives statutory protection to
employees who “blow the whistle” on their employer’s malpractice.
1.3. The Act makes clear the important role that a whistleblowing mechanism can
play in helping organisations and employers to comply with the law. To this
effect, the Council has developed a whistleblowing policy and procedure. This
has been designed to align with the Whistleblowing Commission’s Code of
Practice 2013, which sets out a best practice whistleblowing framework for the
Public Sector.
1.4. This policy underpins the Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy and is
complementary to the Officer and Member Codes of Conduct.

2.

Policy statement and objectives

2.1. Dartford Borough Council takes seriously its responsibilities for safeguarding
public funds and assets and for operating in an ethical manner that ensures
the well-being of its employees, suppliers, service providers and customers.
2.2. To this end, the Council is committed to having effective whistleblowing
arrangements in place in order to support, encourage and protect individuals
who have genuine cause for raising concerns and to promote good
governance and safeguard the public interest.
2.3. The Council will take all reports of improper activity seriously and will
investigate all concerns raised fairly and consistently.
2.4. The Council will protect the person raising the concerns against victimisation,
harassment and / or recrimination and recognises they may wish to raise
concerns on a confidential basis.
2.5. The overarching objective of the Whistleblowing policy is to outline a
framework which encourages potential whistleblowers to communicate their
concerns within a safe environment without fear of recrimination. Specifically,
it aims to:



encourage employees to feel confident in raising serious concerns and
to question and act upon concerns in practice
provide avenues for employees to raise those concerns and receive
feedback on any action taken
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reassure employees that they will be protected from possible reprisals
or victimisation, if they have a reasonable belief that they have made
any disclosures in good faith

3.

Responsibility

3.1.

Management Team are responsible for approving and endorsing the Policy
and for embedding an open and supportive culture where employees feel
empowered to whistleblow without fear of reprisals. They are also responsible
for assuring themselves that the policy is operating effectively and that
concerns are investigated properly and fairly.

3.2.

Audit Board are responsible through their Terms of Reference for reviewing
and monitoring the Policy.

3.3.

The Audit Manager has overall responsibility for the maintenance and
operation of this Policy and for keeping a record of all allegations received,
their outcomes and the feedback provided.

3.4.

All staff are responsible for raising relevant concerns they may have under
this policy.

3.5.

All managers are responsible for ensuring that concerns raised with them are
taken seriously, treated appropriately and investigated fairly.

3.6.

The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report to Members will incorporate a
summary of whistleblowing events and their outcomes.

3.7.

The External Auditor will also be advised at least annually, of all proven
whistle-blowing events and their outcomes.

4. SCOPE
4.1.

This Policy applies to all employees (including temporary and agency staff),
Councillors, co-optees, volunteers, contractors, their agents and/or
subcontractors, consultants, suppliers and service providers in the course of
their work for the Council.

4.2.

Disclosures may be made under the Whistleblowing policy relating to the
following concerns:
-

Conduct of a criminal nature or a breach of the law
Miscarriage of justice
Bullying, harassment or victimisation of a third party
Disclosures related to miscarriages of justice
Health and safety risks, including risks to the public as well as other
employees
Damage to the environment
Covering up or concealing any of the above
-3-
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The unauthorised use of public funds
Possible fraud and corruption including offences falling under the
Bribery Act 2010
Sexual or physical abuse of customers
Breach of Council procedures; or
Other unethical conduct or malpractice.

Any serious concerns that employees have about any aspect of service
provision or the conduct of officers, councillors, co-optees, partners or others
acting on behalf of the Council, can be reported under this Policy. This may
be about something that:





makes you feel uncomfortable in terms of known standards, your
experience or the standards you believe the Council subscribes to; or
relates for example to a breach of the Council’s Standing Orders,
Financial Regulations, policies, practices and procedures; or
falls below established standards of practice; or
amounts to improper conduct.

4.4.

The Whistleblowing policy does not replace the Corporate Complaints and
Grievance procedures. Concerns relating to individual complaints or personal
grievances, including employment matters, are likely to fall under complaints
and grievance policies. Employees must not use this Policy to deal with day
to day problems, such as mistakes, errors, or general differences of view that
arise in the workplace. Operational matters should be raised with
management first.

5.

Safeguards and Support

5.1.

The Council expects employees and others that they deal with who have
serious concerns about any aspect of the Council’s work to come forward and
voice those concerns. Employees are often the first to realise that there may
be something seriously wrong within the Council.

5.2.

Nonetheless, the Council recognises that the decision to report a concern can
be a difficult one to make. Employees may not express their concerns because
they feel that speaking up would be disloyal to their colleagues or to the
Council. They may also fear harassment, victimisation or recrimination from
the Council.

5.3.

Provided they believe they are acting in the public interest and are making
disclosures in good faith, employees raising a disclosure are protected by both
employment law and this policy. ‘Confidentiality’ or other clauses in settlement
agreements do not prevent employees from making disclosures in the public
interest.

5.4.

The Council has a strong commitment to good practice and high standards in
protecting its employees from harassment, victimisation and recrimination
when raising a whistleblowing disclosure. It will not tolerate any harassment,
-4-
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victimisation or recrimination when a concern is raised in good faith or in order
to deter someone from making a disclosure. Any such instances amount to
serious misconduct and will be dealt with under the Disciplinary policy.
5.5.

The above provisions apply regardless of the outcome of the investigation
including where the concern is unfounded or unsubstantiated.

5.6.

The Council is also committed to providing support for whistleblowers. The
person with whom you are raising your concern will discuss with you options
available for support, which could include, for example, mentoring or a referral
to Employee Assistance.

5.7.

If you believe you have suffered or are under threat of suffering victimisation
or harassment as a result of raising concerns, you may also report this
concern as set out under section 9 below.

6.

Confidentiality

6.1.

Where requested, the Council will use its best endeavours to treat in
confidence all concerns raised and will do its utmost not to reveal your identity
without your agreement. However, the Council cannot guarantee that any
investigation process will not reveal the source of the information, particularly
in matters of criminal or civil law. If it is necessary to disclose your identify, the
Council will make every effort to discuss this with you first, including
arrangements that can be put in place to support you.

7.

Anonymous Allegations

7.1.

Whilst you are encouraged to put your name to your allegation whenever
possible, it is recognised that in some instances, individuals may have genuine
concerns about their safety, security or well-being which may prevent them
from revealing their identity. Under such circumstances, the policy allows for
anonymous disclosures and these are always preferable to remaining silent.

7.2.

Before you choose to remain anonymous however, you should carefully
consider the following:




Anonymity may limit the actions that the Council is able to take as, for
example, it may not be able to contact you for any follow-up information
You are unlikely to be able to receive feedback on your concern
Invoking legal protections for whistleblowers may be more difficult as
there will not be any documentary evidence to link you to the concern
raised.

8.

False Allegations

8.1.

If you make an allegation in good faith but the investigation finds this to be
unsubstantiated or unfounded, no action will be taken against you. If, however,
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you make a false or malicious allegation for an ulterior motive, disciplinary
action may be taken against you. It is therefore important that any allegation
is made in good faith.
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Whistleblowing Procedure
How to raise a concern
9. Who to contact
9.1.

Depending on the seriousness and sensitivity of the issues involved and who
is suspected of the malpractice, you are encouraged in the first instance to
raise concerns with your immediate manager or your supervisor.

9.2.

If you believe that your line manager may be involved, if you do not feel
comfortable discussing the issue with your line manager or if you are not
satisfied with the response that you receive, you may raise your concern with
any of the individuals or contacts below. Key contact details are provided at
Appendix A.





Service Manager
Strategic Director
The Audit Manager (or member of the Audit Team)
The Council’s whistleblowing reporting line / email address

9.3.

If you are not an employee, you may raise your concern using any of the
contacts given in Appendix A.

9.4.

Anyone who receives a report of a concern must notify the Audit Manager
(unless the concern relates to Internal Audit). This ensures that all concerns
are recorded, that they are treated fairly and consistently and that any patterns
of behaviour are identified.

9.5.

If your concerns are about Internal Audit, you must contact the Strategic
Director (Internal Services) in the first instance.

9.6.

For all concerns, you may also contact the Chairman of the Audit Board, as a
last resort, if you believe that your concerns have not been appropriately dealt
with.

10. How to report a disclosure
10.1

Concerns may be raised verbally (in person or on the telephone), in writing or
by email.

10.2. A dedicated Freephone telephone number has been set up to allow you to
speak in confidence to the Internal Audit Team (0800-496-3245). Alternatively
you can email whistleblowing@dartford.gov.uk.
10.3. Please provide the following information when making a whistleblowing
disclosure:
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The background and history of the concern (giving relevant dates and
evidence where available)
The reason why you are particularly concerned about the situation.

10.4. The earlier you express the concern, the easier it is to take action, as delays
may make it more difficult to obtain the relevant evidence.
10.5. You are not expected to provide evidence or to prove the truth of an allegation,
however you should ensure that there are reasonable grounds for your
concern.
10.6. Where concerns are raised in person, you may invite your trade union
representative, or a work place colleague to be present during any meetings
or interviews in connection with the concerns you have raised.

11. What we will do
11.1

The Council will take every whistleblowing concern seriously and will
investigate appropriately.

11.2. Where appropriate, the matters raised may:
•
•
•
•

be investigated by senior management and / or the Internal Audit Team
be referred to the police;
be referred to the external auditor; or
form the subject of an independent inquiry.

11.3. In order to protect individuals and those accused of misdeeds or possible
malpractice, initial enquiries will be made to decide whether an investigation
is appropriate and, if so, what form it should take.
11.4. The overriding principle which the Council has in mind, is the public interest.
11.5. Concerns or allegations which fall within the scope of specific procedures (for
example discrimination issues) will normally be referred for consideration
under those procedures.
11.6. Some concerns may be resolved by agreed action without the need for
investigation. If urgent action is required, this will be taken before any
investigation is conducted.
11.7. Within ten working days of a concern being raised, provided you have supplied
your contact details, the investigating officer will write to you:
•
•
•

Acknowledging that the concern has been received
Indicating how we propose to deal with the matter and who will
investigate
Giving an estimate of how long it will take to provide a final response
-8-
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Advising you how and to whom you should report if you feel you are
being treated unfairly as a result of the disclosure
Supplying you with information on staff support mechanisms
Advising you that you are entitled to independent advice.

11.8. The Council will take steps to minimise any difficulties which you may
experience as a result of raising a concern.
11.9. The Council accepts that you need to be assured that the matter has been
properly addressed. Subject to legal constraints, you will be informed of the
outcomes of any investigation.

12. If you are not satisfied
12.1. If you are not satisfied with how a whistle-blowing disclosure has been
managed, please speak to the Audit Manager or the Strategic Director
(Internal Services).

13. External Disclosures
‘Prescribed’ Disclosures
13.1. If you feel that the Council has not responded to your concern satisfactorily,
or if you feel unable to raise the matter internally, the law allows for disclosures
to be made externally to ‘prescribed people or bodies’ whilst maintaining
whistleblower protections for the individual. The relevant ‘prescribed person’
depends on the subject matter of the concern and a full list can be found here:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/blowing-the-whistle-list-ofprescribed-people-and-bodies--2/whistleblowing-list-of-prescribed-peopleand-bodies
13.2. The most likely relevant bodies for the Council’s business are set out in
Appendix B.
13.3. You may also contact the police or seek advice from a legal professional.

‘Non prescribed’ Disclosures
13.4. These are disclosures made to other people or bodies, such as the media.
Whistleblower protections would only apply to these disclosures in exceptional
circumstances and therefore you are encouraged to seek independent,
specialist advice prior to making any such disclosure.
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14. External Advice
14.1. If you wish to seek advice outside the organisation you can also contact:
• Protect (formerly Public Concern at Work) on 0203 117 2520
whistle@protect-advice.org.uk
• The Council’s External Auditor (Grant Thornton) on 0207 383 5100
• Relevant professional bodies or regulatory organisations
• Your trade union representative

15. Policy review
15.1. The Whistleblowing policy will be reviewed and updated every 2 years, or as
and when amendments are needed.

16. Training
16.1. As part of the Council’s Counter-Fraud and Corruption Strategy, appropriate
training will be offered to officers on key aspects of the whistle-blowing policy
and how it should be implemented. The policy will be available on the
Council’s website for easy access by staff. Guidance will be provided to
managers on how to respond to concerns raised.
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Appendix A – Key Contacts
Name
Sarah Martin

Sheri Green

Francesca
Chivers

Job Title

Contact details

Strategic Director
(Internal Services)

sarah.martin@darford.gov.uk

Strategic Director
(External
Services)

sheri.green@dartford.gov.uk

Audit Manager

fran.chivers@dartford.gov.uk

01322 343632

01322 343125

01322 343004 or
01732 227053

Whistleblowing
hotline

whistleblowing@dartford.gov.uk
0800 496 3245
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Appendix B – External Contacts
Prescribed body

Scope of
disclosures

The Comptroller
and Auditor
General

Contact them
about the
proper conduct
of public
business,
value for
money, fraud
and corruption
in relation to
the provision of
public services.

The Comptroller and Auditor General
National Audit Office
157-197 Buckingham Palace Road
London
SW1W 9SP

Contact them
about
compliance
with the
requirement of
legislation
relating to data
protection and
to freedom of
information.

The Information Commissioner’s
Office
Wycliffe House
Water Lane
Wilmslow
SK9 5AF

Disclosures
relating to local
authorities.

0207 383 5100

The Information
Commissioner

Grant Thornton
(the Council’s
External
Auditors)

The Health and
The industries
Safety Executive and work
activities for
which the
Health and
Safety
Executive is
the enforcing
authority under
the Health and
Safety
(Enforcing

Contact details

Tel: 020 7798 7999
Website: www.nao.org.uk/contactus/whistleblowing-disclosures/

Tel: 0303 123 1113
Email: casework@ico.org.uk
www.ico.org.uk

Tel: 0300 003 1647
Online form:
www.hse.gov.uk/contact/concerns.htm
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Authority)
Regulations
1998
The health and
safety of
individuals at
work, or the
health and
safety of the
public arising
out of or in
connection
with the
activities of
persons at
work.
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SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS
1. Summary
1.1

After the July 2020 meeting of the Board, the Chairman selected five creditor
payments for checking. This report summarises the findings of this exercise
and provides the opportunity for Members to select a further five payments for
checking.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1

That Members note the content of this report and request any further
explanations as required.

2.2

That Members select five further payments for checking by Internal Audit.

3. Background and Discussion
3.1.

It is a regular feature of the Audit Board’s work for Members to select a
sample of payments made by the Council for review. Following review
of these payments, Members receive a report on the findings, and
consider them as part of each meeting. This is intended to provide
Members with reasonable assurance that goods and services
commissioned or procured, for which payments have been made, are in
compliance with Council procedures. In particular, that they have been
properly authorised, requisitioned, ordered and received, prior to making
payment.

3.2.

At the October 2019 meeting the Audit Board agreed a proposal to
update the method by which payments are selected each month. The
previous reports were arranged by alphabet, whereas the revised report
would look back at the last quarter, to ensure that transactions tested
were current.

3.3.

The following approach was agreed:
Meeting

SIC Selection

Q1 (April – June)
Q2 (July – September)
Q3 (October –
December)
Q4 (January – March)

ABCDEF
GHIJKLM

Transaction Report
Parameters
Jan to March
April – June

NOPQRS

July – September

TUVWXYZ

October – December

3.4.

The following five payments were selected by the Chair at random:




GEEMG001
GOSAL005
The Green Planning Studio Ltd

£993.50 (Gross)
£3,600.00 (Gross)
£924.00 (Gross)
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Height Adjustable Desks
Hi-Way Services Ltd

£1,196.10 (Gross)
£1,800.00 (Gross)

4.

Summary of Findings

4.1

The results of testing confirm that four the spend decisions were made
appropriately and in compliance with Council procedures. But one of the
procurements was not in compliance with Contract Standing Orders.
Detailed summaries of the outcome of each payment are set out below.

5.

Detailed Findings

5.1

GEEMG001 (£993.50 gross) – This was the monthly payment for April
2020, for the lease of a two-bedroom property in Greenhithe, under the
Dartford Private Leasing Scheme. A two-year agreement between the
Council and the owner was signed on 10 April 2017, but there were
delays in handing the property back to the owner. The tenants were
evicted in September 2019 and the property was eventually handed back
to the owner in July 2020 following a number of repairs. During this time,
the Council continued to compensate the owner for lost rent. Checks of
the Cedar financial system confirmed that regular monthly payments
were made to the owner. Testing confirmed that the payment was
justified, made promptly and in accordance with payment procedures.

5.2

GOSAL005 (£3,600.00 gross) – This was the quarter two payment for
the lease of a three-bedroom property in Dartford, under the Dartford
Private Leasing Scheme. The two-year agreement between the Council
and the owner was signed on 16 November 2018. Checks of the Cedar
financial system confirmed that regular quarterly payments were made
to the owner. Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, made
promptly and in accordance with payment procedures.

5.3

The Green Planning Studio Ltd (£924.00 gross) – This payment was
the refund of a fee paid for an appeal against a Planning Enforcement
Notice. The Green Planning Studio paid the fee to the Council in
November 2018, but following the appeal being upheld by the Planning
Inspectorate, the enforcement notice was withdrawn and the fee
refunded. Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, made
promptly and in accordance with payment procedures.

5.4

Height Adjustable Desks (£1,196.10 gross) – This payment was for the
supply of a height adjustable desk for a member of staff, to allow them
to work either standing up or sitting down. A quote was obtained in
advance and a purchase order (P022768) was raised using the Council’s
e-Procurement system, in accordance with the Council’s purchasing
procedures. Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, made
promptly and in accordance with payment procedures.

5.5

Hi-Way Services Ltd (£1,800.00 gross) – This payment was for the
painting and removal of lines on the roads at various locations in Dartford
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on 2/3/20 and 3/3/20. Contract Standing Orders had not been complied
with as a quotation was not sought in advance, nor had a purchase order
been raised using the Council’s e-Procurement System. Internal Audit
identified that the cumulative spend with this company over the last three
years meant that it had reached the threshold of requiring three
quotations, as detailed in the Council’s Procurement Guide. Appropriate
advice has been provided to the service and they are in discussions with
the Senior Finance and Procurement Officer. Testing confirmed that the
payment was made promptly, but was not in accordance with
procurement procedures.
6.

Relationship to the Corporate Plan
Not applicable

7.

Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk
assessments

Financial Implications

Staffing Implications

While there are no direct financial implications
associated with the outcomes detailed in the
report, compliance with agreed financial
procedures helps to ensure that the Council
maintains a sound systems of financial control
and governance. It also helps ensure value for
money.
There is a risk of non-compliance with Public
Contract Regulations 2015 if appropriate
procurement routes are not followed.
None

Administrative Implications

None

Risk Assessment

Obtaining goods and services on behalf of the
Council carries potential inherent risks of
fraud, or misappropriation. The Selective
Invoice Checks process is one of many steps
employed by the Council to manage fraud
risks and to ensure value for money.

Legal Implications

8.

Details of Exempt Information Category
Not applicable

9.

Appendices
None
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